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1 PROCEEDINGS

2 (**" toa"O: 10:25 a.rn.)

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record. The hearing

4 wiLL be in order. This is a formal hearing in the matter of New

5 York Presbyterian Hospita.L, Westchester Divísíon, 2-RC-23583,

6 before the NationaÌ Labor Relations Board. The Hearing Officer

7 appearing for the Board 1s Rhonda cottÌieb.

8 All part.ies have been informed of the procedures at formaf

t hearing before the Board by service of a Statement of Standard

10 Procedures with the Notice of Hearinq- I had additionaf copies

11 of the statement for distribution if any party wishes more. All
L2 parties please note that the official reporter makes the only

13 transcript of these proceedinqs, and any citations and briefs,

14 .if briefs are to be submitted, must refer to the officia]
15 record.

L6 The parties are reminded that witnesses should neither

17 seek nor receiwe assistance from others in the hearing room

18 while testifying- Smoking is not permitted anywhere in this
19 bullding.

20 WiÌl counsel and other representatives please state thei.r

2A appearances/ name and address for the record,

22 MR. FRANK: For the hospital, James Frank and Donald

23 Krueger, Epstein, Becker & Green, 250 Park Avenue, New York. New

24 York 1017 7 .

25 MR. DORN: For the Union Rlchard Dorn and Michaef Hickson
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1 of ¡evy Ratner, 80 Eighth Avenue, New york, New yor:k 10011.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Are there anv other
3 appearances ?

4 (No response)

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Are there any other persons,

6 parties or Ìabor organizatlons in this hearing room at this time
7 who claim an lnterest in this proceeding?

I (No response)

9 MR. FRANK: Madam Hearing Officer, one thing I noted on

10 the petition, .it incorrectly stated that there were no certified
11 representatives at the facllity. And I believe the Board

a2 previously certified Local 30 of the TBE!,\iW for some of the
13 employees in the petition, and they are currently the certified
L4 representatives . I'm now aware of them having been provided
15 with notices. f refer the Board to case 2_RC_22251 -

16 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Could you repeat that, 2_RC?

L7 MR. FRÀNK: I|L's 2-RC-22251 . And there,s a subsequent

18 case 2-RM-2098.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Does the Union have a response
20 to that ?

21- MR. DORN: I have no idea if that is correct or not. üihat

22 classifications of employees were they certified for. and is
23 there a current bargaining agreement in effect coverlng those
24 empÌoyees ?

25 MR. FRANK: There's not a current bargalning agreement. I
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1 don't recaÌÌ the exact titles that were certified. Irm sure

2 í-L' s in the Board's records. It's a - type unit with grounds

3 keeper:s incÌuded in that unit.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: I'm not famiÌiar wlth this

5 issue at all. so why don't we just conclude with the prelimlnary

6 and we'll go back to rhat, okay.

7 At this time T propose to receive the formal papers. They

I have been marked as Board's Exhibit Number One. This exhibit
t has aÌready been shown to all the parties. Are there any

10 objections to its introduction?

11 MR. FRANK: Yes, the hospÍtal objects to the inaccurate

12 statement in the petition that there's no certified

13 representative, and that the certified l:epresentative hasn't
L4 even been given notíce of the proceeding.

15 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay.

16 MR. DORN: Do we have a date on this, that this alleged

17 cerriflcaL ìor Look place?

18 MR. FRANK: Tt was in October of 2000.

19 MR. DORN: In 2000-

20 MR. ERANK: Yes.

2L MR. DORN: Well, if it was in October 2000, I don't have a

22 current collectlve bargaining agreement- T don't see why they

23 would be given notice.

24 MR- FRANK: I think certified representatives are entitled
25 to know.
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1 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

2 MR. FRANK: There was a RM Petition that the Board decided

3 to continue the representation in 2002, and that it stifl

4 stands. And I believe therers a Board Order to that effect-

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you hawe any documents or

6 anything w.ith respect to this issue? I mean you're raising an

7 issue that I mean f'm not familiar w.ith the issue. T don't

I know what the region had

9 MR. FRANK: It was this region.

10 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: So -
11 MR. FRANK: Irm sure Karen Fernback ls fam.iÌiar with this

12 case.

13 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: No, I'm saying that this is a

f4 new lssue that has emerged, so I mean obviously I, T can't have

15 a position. T have no idea what the facts are. I mean do you

16 have any documents or anything on this issue?

L7 MR. FRANK: I know there's a certification from the Board

18 in case 2-RM-2098, rejecting the RM Petition, it lvas decided by

19 the Board I believe in 2001 - The Board had granted a review and

20 I beLieve issued an order. I don't have a copy of that order

2L but I've seen it referred to in Board manuals.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. We wiLL go back to that

23 issue. So, at this po.int, Irll just reserve ruling on that and

24 we w.iÌ1 go back to that issue. Mr. Frank, wouÌd you pLease

25 state for the record the correct and complete name of the
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1 Employer as appearlng on the Certificate ôf Incorporation, that

2 by which has been, is it that by which lt's been designated in

3 the petition?

4 MR. ERANK: The Ìegal name of the institution is the New

5 York and Presbyterian Hospital. The petitioned for unit is at

6 the lüestchester Division of the New York and Presbyterian

7 Hospital. The Vüestchester Division is not a separate legaf

I entity, lt is a separate campus of the hospital that functions

9 and is licensed as a psychiatric facility.

10 HEARÏNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: So, the corporate, the correct

11 corporate name is not New York Presbyterian Hospltal Vùestchester

L2 Division.

13 MR. FRÀNK: The legal name of the hospital is the New York

L4 and Presbyter.ian Hospital .

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: New York and Presbvterian

16 Hospital.

a7 MR. FRANK: The New York and Presbyterian Hospital.

18 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

a9 MR- FRANK: Ts the corporate legal entity-

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Does the Petitioner wish at

2L this t.ime to move to amend the petition to reflect the

22 Employer's correct corporate name?

23 MR. DORN: We'lÌ so move. I assume that's the correct

24 name¡ no personaÌ knowledge.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Okav.
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1 MR. FRANK: So, the record .is clear, the petitioned for
2 un.it is a separate campus calÌed the Westchester Division.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Now, if we couÌd that --
4 MR. FRÄNK: And the petition is only for the Westchester

5 Dívision.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, no, we couLd make that
7 clear on the record, but what we're looking at now is just the

I corporate name. the exact corporate name- Yes, obviously, if
9 it's just, the unit onÌy is hel:e at the Westchester Division

10 that could be made clear in the record. But what I just want is
11 the cor:porate name. and so we have that now, okay.

L2 Mr. Dorn, wouÌd you please state for the record the

13 correct and complete name of the Petitioner as set forth in its
14 constitution and byfaws fisting any and all affiliatlons?
15 MR. DORN; Let me make sure, 1199 SETU, United Healthcare

1,6 Vüol:kers East.

L'7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,TEB: Okay. And just before we

18 proceed are there any objections by the Employer to having the

19 petition amended to refÌect the correct corporat.e name?

20 MR. FRANK: No objection.

2L HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Okay. Ar.e there any motions to
22 intervene in these proceedings to be submitted to the Hearing

23 Officer at this time?

24 (No response)

25 MR- FRANK: Let the record also reflect that the cert.ified

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

tr{al¡ne, New Jersey 07 47 O

(973) 692- O66O



11

1 un.it, Union was never given notice of today's hearinq.

2 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: WeLl, yes. that's on the

3 record, and we'Ìl get back to that a Ìittle faterf but yes.

4 MR. FRANK: Do we start the hearing over if they want to
5 intervene ?

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: As I said I'm reservlng

7 ludgment on that, so.

I MR. FRANK: My only concern is not to have this record

9 built up and then have to do, start over if they do want to
10 appear.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB:

12 MR. DORN: Vúell, itrs interesting that the Employer

13 initiafly at the conference took the position that lt wasn't

f4 seeking ma.intenance employees in this non-professionaf unit, and

15 now despite the fact that it says that there is a certified
16 Union for the maintenance employees, it is nevertheless seeking

L7 to include them in our netition.

l8 HEARING OFFICER aorr"t""' And this could have been raised

).9 ear.Lier I must say.

20 MR. DORN: Yes, it coufd have.

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And it coufd have been raìsed,

22 and ultimately should have been raised earlier rathel: than

23 bringing it up here when there was a preliminary conference on

24 it. And obviousÌy it could have attempted, or it coutd have

25 resolved it there, you know. I mean it's unfortunate that at

BI]RKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite. 316

hlayne, Nei,¡ .fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692- O660



L2

1 this date when the hear.ing is beginning a new issue arises that

2 cou]d have been d.iscussed much earlier -

3 So, I lust donrt see why if you knew the existence of this

4 unit why this wasn't raised earlier. I mean it just makes

5 abso.lLlte no sense, and it's a terribLe waste of the resources

6 now to have this problem when it could have been raised earlier,

7 and that's alÌ I can say.

I MR. FRANK: Vùith aÌl due respect, I befieve I did identlfy

9 there would be an additionaÌ issue today at the conference.

10 MR. DORN: No, you did not.

11 MR. FRANK: I be.Lieve I advised the Board Agent that there

L2 would be another --
13 MR. DORN: Well, you didn't advlse me.

14 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Irm saying by not, even

15 advising that there wouÌd be another issue without identifying

L6 what the ìssue is, it doesn't hefp resoÌve which couÌd have been

17 resolved. But no matter what, I mean it's over.

18 MR. FRANK: WelÌ, at the conference we tr.ied very hard to

L9 get an agreement to have an effective election and the Union

20 decÌined to reach an agreement that wouLd resuÌt in an eLection,

2a so there was no polnt to continue with the conversations.

22 HEARÌNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: But let's go on. I'm just -
23 MR. DORN: We didn't dec].ine. We petitioned for a unit

24 and we were ready and willing to proceed to an election

25 immediately in that unit.

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
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1 HEARïNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: l/üelf , ]et us just move on,

2 okay. Anyway it is my understanding from off the record

3 d.iscussions that the parties intend to join in stipufatlons as

4 to the fol lowing :

5 The flrst one is commerce. Do the parties stipuLate that
6 the New York and Presbyterian Hosplta.L, the EmpÌoyer herein,

7 wlth an office and a place of business located at 21

I BLoomingdafe Road, White Plains, New York, the onLy faciÌlty
9 involved herein, is a New York State psychiatric hospital

10 engaged in the business of prowiding psychiatric services.

11 Annually in the course and conduct of its business

L2 operations the EmpÌoyer der.ives gross revenues ln excess of 250

13 thousand dollars, and purchases and receives. at its New York,

L4 New York facility, goods and materials vaÌued in excess of five
15 thousand doÌÌars directly from suppliers Ìocated outside the

16 State of Nev,/ Yo r k.

1-7 Do the parties so stipuÌâte, Mr- Frank?

18 MR. FRANK: May I see the st.ipulation, pÌease?

L9 HEARING OFE]CER GOTTLIEB: Off the record.

20 (Off the record)

21" HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: At thÍs time lhe parties have

22 been unable to enter into a stipuÌation regardíng commerce. We

23 will take record evidence on that matter. Now. we hrill go to
24 the unit lssues. The unit sought by the Petitioner as set forth
25 in the petition is as follows:

BURKE COURT REPORTTNG, LLC
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1 ALl full-time, part-time and per diem service and

2 maintenance, excluded alÌ other empÌoyees including guards and

3 supervisors as defined in the Act.

4 Does the Petitioner wish at this time to amend the

5 petition to reflect any changes in its unit contentions?

6 MR. DORN: I'm sorry?

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Does the Petitioner wish aL

8 this time to amend the petition to reffect any changes in its

9 unit contentlons or to ctarify the exact titfes that are

10 invofved herein?

11 MR. DORN: I will g.ive you the titles that the Union

12 believes should be in a service unit solely: EC Clerk, Leacl

13 Cashier Cafeteria, MaiL CÌerk, Unit Clerk, Casac, EEG EKc

14 Technician. Pharmacy TechnicÍan, Phlebotomist, Senior Casac,

15 that's C-A-S-A-C, Assistant Nutrition, Building Services

L6 Attendant, Chauffeur, Concierge, Cook, Coordinator l,aundry

f7 Services, Delívery Person. Drapery Maker. crounds Person. Hall

18 Aide, T.aundry Driver, MentaÌ Health Vüorker, Per Diem Mentaf

L9 Health Worker, Psychiatric Technician, Senior crounds Person/

20 Senior Ha.Ll AÍde, Storeroom Clerk, Food Service Employee, Pantry

27 A.ide, KiLchen Worker. Cner, wo wo-.o ¿gr^^ is a s-pervLso'.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Are there any objections

23 Lo Lhe amendment ?

24 MR. FRANK: Is the Union deletinq the petition for the

25 maintenance workers as originalÌy found?

BTIRKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
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1 MR. DORN: Yes.

2 HEARÍNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Any objections to the

3 amendment?

4 MR. FRANK: No, they can describe, I don't th.ink lt's an

5 appl:opr:iate unit. I wou.Ld ask the Board to recheck the Showing

6 of Interest to the extent that the Showing of Interest inc.Luded

7 maintenance workers who theyrre now excluding. I think we need

I to recheck the Showing of Tnterest against the entire unit that

9 may be appropriate.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

11 MR. FRANK: The Union's petitloned for unit included

12 ma ìnrenance, but --
13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, T understand.

14 MR. FRÄNK: -- I don't know if the guards were from there

15 or noL Lrom the.re.

L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, I under:stand what you're

L7 sayíng. But .Let's just at this point just deaÌ with the

18 amendment so -
19 MR. ERANK; I do not object to the Union amending its

20 petition.

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Hearing no objections, the

22 amendment is allowed so let us deal with that. Yes, at this

23 tirne I'm going to allow you to state your Iegal position with

24 respect to the Uníon's unit and l¡ou can raise the Showing of

25 Interest issues as well, so why donrt you do that now?

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LI,C
1044 Route 23 North/ Suíte 316
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1 MR- FRANK: I befieve that under the Board, s Standards
2 that a unit of all non-professlonal employees is an appropriate
3 unit in a psychiatric hospital. And I based that on the Board, s
4 Decision in Holllngswood Hospital and Mount Airv psvchiatric
5 Hospitaf.

6 At the psychiatric facility there are additional job
7 categories of non-professionaf empÌoyees that the hospital
I believes shouÌd participate in the vote and be included in the
9 barqaining unit. Those addltionat tittes are folÌows:

10 Upholsterer, plant Service Mechanic, plant Service
11 Mechanic HEAC, plant Service Mechanic, I'm sorry. plant Service
L2 Senior Mechanic, Operating Engineer, Maintenance Mechanic,

13 Blacksmith, ceneral Service Worker, Licensed practical Nurse,

1-4 TeÌephone Operatôr, Senior SociaÌ ü/ork Assistant, Assistant
15 SociaL Work Staff Assistant, Senior Medicare Account Rep, Senior
L6 Access Serwlce Rep, Specialist HIM processing.

17 Specialist HfM Data, patient Registrar, patient Account

18 Representative, Office Assistant/ Medicaf Counse.Ior, Data

19 Techniclan HIM, Data Entry Technician SùI, Cashier, Chef,

20 Assistant Purchasíng, an Anafyst Medical Data, Administrative
2L Clerk, Analyst Chart Administrative Assistant, Administrative
22 Assistant, Access Service Representative, Abstractor, Health
23 Info Management.

24 AÌl of which titles are set forth and off the record
25 identifled as Employer Exhibit One, which will l¡e submltted-
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1 Did I miss one?

2 MR. KRUEGER: I'm not sure. Could you run that fist
3 again? I apologize, I'm not sure that you got the -
4 MR- FRANK: Oh, I think you're right, also, X-Ray

5 Technician, and Assistant SociaÌ VÍork. And for ease of the

6 record, we want to start at Exhibit One as --
7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes. no, I think it would be

I good for ease of the record to have that. So, we1l, you've

9 offered that as Employer Exhibit Number One/ it's been

10 identlfied. Do you want to offer that?

11 MR. DORN: I don't think that could be offered unless it,s
L2 properÌy authenticated by a witness.

13 HEARING OFFICER COTTLIEB: Well, I thought we were both

L4 going I'm sorry. Then all the parties agree that just/ I mean

15 obviously ìf it's simple the list of, for ease of the record.

16 the .list of employees Lhat the Employer ls seeking to have

L7 included. ft doesn't really represent anything other than that,
18 but.

L9 MR. DORN: I understood from the initial discusslon with

20 Mr. Frank that the Employer/s position \^ras that the Chef was a

2a supervisor. Now, Mr- Frank has indicated that the Chef should

22 be included, which one is correct.

23 HEARÍNG OFFICER GOTTT.IEB: Well, that's true, you did, did

24 you .include Lhä -?

25 MR. FRANK: I may have misspoken when I said that earÌier.
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1 I believe it is not a supervisory title.

2 HEARING OFFfCER GOTTLIEB: So. would you object to having

3 this in the record simply for the ease of the record? It

4 doesn't reflect anything -
5 MR. DORN: I'm not saying it shouldn't be in the record.

6 I'm saying someone should testify about it.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Okay.

I MR- DORN: And I'd Ìlke to make a motion at this point.

9 When a petitìon is filed the Board requ.ires that it be for an

10 appropriate unit/ not the most appropriate unit or the only

11 appropriate unit. but an appropriate unit.

L2 The Board has held in many cases that service units are

13 appropr.iate in hospitals, therefore I move that Pr:esbyterian be

L4 requíred to submlt a detailed Offer of Proof showing why in this

15 case the service unit isn't an appropriate unit, and that the

16 only appropriate unit is a non-professional unit. And if

L7 Presbyterian can't do that I request that the Region direct an

18 eÌection in a service unit.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-IEB: Mr. Frank. your position.

20 MR. FRANK: I thought the purpose of the hearing was to

2L build a factua.L record as to what would be an appropriate unit.

22 I understand Mr. Dorn would rather not have a record or any

23 evidence to support his position. We are certainLy opposed to

24 that.

25 The Westchester Div.ision is a psychiatric hospital. The
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1 Board has the decision I referred to HofÌlngswood Hospital,

2 found that a unit of afl fuff-time and regular part-time non-

3 professional empÌoyees is the appropriate unlt.

4 I am aware that the Board has also engaged ìn rule making

5 in consideration of what to do in non-acute care hospitaf units

6 and has not yet reached a decision at this time. T believe

7 those deliberatíons in the briefs that were filed di.d not refer

I directly to psychiatric hospitals but to other long-term non-

9 acute care hospitals.

10 The Board has clearly rufed that in psychlatric hospitals

11 there's a record to be made because there are different

12 considerations than in the acute care context. The Hearing

13 Officer lastly can certainfy make an Offer of Pr:oof on what each

L4 of the job títles do- I wouLd think it wouLd be more efficient

15 to build a record on that.

16 HEARING OFFÏCER GOTTI-TEB: And do I agree that T think

L7 itrs better to develop a record, so that's how we wiÌl proceed

18 in this matter. Okay. Just before we proceed with respect to

L9 the EmpÌoyer's contention that there were possible parties of

20 .interest who haven't been notlfied, if it's appropriate to

2L notify any third-party we'ÌL do so. If thereafter there's an

22 interested party we'll have to deaL with that matter at that

23 time, but we're not going to stop the proceedlng today in order

24 to reso.Ive that matter-

25 MR. FRANK: May I have an exception to that rul1ng,
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1 please ?

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Certainly. Okay. Off the

3 record, please.

4 (Off the record)

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Back on the record.

6 MR. FRANK: Before we do that we have another preliminary

7 issue that I would like to raise is that we woufd request that
8 the Board pursuant to its standard poÌicy, that's set forth in

9 its manual in Section 11730, hold this matter .in abeyance

10 pend.ing resolution of an unfair labor practice charge that the

11 Union filed regarding pre-petition contact.

f2 The reason we're makíng this request is that several

13 months ago the Union fifed a petition to represent maintenance

14 employees on a different campus of the hospital. They

15 subsequentÌy flled a blanking charge to prevent an election
L6 golng forward. The Region subsequently declded to hold the

L7 e.lection but impound the baLlots. The day before the electlon
18 the Union wÍthdrew the petition.

f9 After the Unlon filed the petition in this case, they have

20 subsequently filed a charge, and I befieve an arnended char:ge,

2L alleg.ing the same conduct, whÍch was alleged in the case on the

22 other campus. They obviousÌy are looking to create a situation
23 where if they are unsuccessful in the election they can have the

24 elect-ion set asjde. They'we demonstrated in the past that
25 they're not prepared to go to an election and they want to have
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1 a way of avoiding an efection at the last m.inute.

2 Under the Board's po.L.icy now itrs stated that the agency

3 has a general policy of holding in abeyance the processing of a

4 petition, or a concurrenl under labor practice charges filed by

5 a party to the petition, and the charge alfeges conduct if

6 proven would interfere with employee free choice Ín the e.Iection

7 were one to be conducted.

Me wouÌd urge the Board to conduct an election, absolve

9 the Employer of the charges which have no merit, and then

10 proceed in this case as appropriate.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you want to respond, Mr.

1-2 Dorn?

13 MR. DORN: Mr. Frank can specufate as to what the Union is
14 go.ing to do or is not going to do. but that's what it is, sheer

15 specuÌation. The Union has filed a petition in this case- lt

L6 has a.Iso fiÌed unfair labor practice charges as its right and it

L7 has requested to proceed.

18 Therefore, the request of the Employer to further deÌay

L9 this hearing for its own purposes should be immed.iateÌy denied

20 and we should proceed to hear the evidence in this case.

2L HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: I mean I have to agree with Mr.

22 Dorn on this matter and we will proceed.

23 MR. ERANK: May I have an objection to that ruling?

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTT],IEB: Certainly.

25 MR. FRANK: Thank vou-
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1 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTLIEB: you,re welcome- Do you want to
2 call your -
3 MR. FRANK: If the Hearing Officer has no interest in what

4 the a.ILegations are and what it might effect in terms of the

5 election, f mean doíng

6 MR- DORN: I'm going to object to continuing this diaÌog
7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: I just don't think it,s realÌy
I relevant to this matter here. you have another case. a

9 different petition. We have a petition here and that,s what,s

10 before me. And if you have other cases, I just don't think
11 thatrs the reÌevant matter here.

1,2 MR. FRANK: fn the Board, s manuaf it says that the Board

13 does consider thls, and that the general policy is to hold the

L4 petition in abeyance. I mean T dldn't write 11730-

15 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yes. okay.

16 MR. DORN: Mr. Fl:ank raised this at the conference. The

17 Regional Director was consuÌted and it was found that the

18 petitlon should be continued-

19 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yes, yes. Okay, why don't
20 MR. FRANK: Let me, and it's my exception. Then it is
2a obvious that there's been previously determined not on this
22 record not to honor the Employer,s request. And I would suggest

23 this demonstrates bias against the EmpÌoyer.

24 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: No, his coÍments, Mr. Dorn, s

25 conments -
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1 MR. FRANK: Now/ are you saying the Regional Director has

2 previous.Ly decided this case. The Hearing Officer without

3 taking any facts in the matter has declded it. Obviously, the

4 Reqion has decided what it's going to do w.ithout regard to what

5 the EmpÌoyer says or what the facts may be. I don't thÍnk
6 that's appropriate.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Mr. Dorn's comments have

8 nothing to do with what the Reg.ion has decided because he's not

9 privy to what the Reglon has decided. What T sirnp]y stated is
10 that what is relevant to me is what is here before me and that
11 other cases I just do not think are relevant to th.is proceeding.

A2 I have a petition before me and we're going to proceed.

13 MR. FRANK: The Board's doesnrt apply to this?
L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I don't want to. go -
15 MR. DORN: I'm going to object -
L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: -- anymore of these comments.

I7 MR- DORN: -- to this continuing dialog. let'sf Let's move

18 on.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: And I agree, Ìet us move on.

20 Okay, why don't we calf the first witness, please.

21- MR. FRANK: Mr. OrConnor.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: cood morning, how are you

23 doing ?

24 THE WTTNESS: Good, good morning.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Why don't you just take a seat.
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I Do you want to pÌease state your name and address for the

2 re cord?

3 THE WITNESS: Sltre/ Sedrick O'Connor. Do you want me to
4 spell that ?

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: SuIe.

6 THE VüITNESS: S-E-D-R-I-C-K. l,ast name is O, Connor, O,

7 apostrophe, capital C-O-N-N-0-R.

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-IEB: Thank you.

9 THE WITNESS: Home address, work address?

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: tr^]ell.

11 THE IÍTTNESS: Work address?

L2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Home address is fine.
13 THE WITNESS: It's 1037 Duthcer Drive, Fishkill, New york

a4 1252 4 .

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, do you want to ra.ise your

a6 right hand?

a7 f{hereupon,

18 SEDRTCK .f. O/ CONNOR

L9 Having Ì:een first duÌy sworn, was called as a witness and

20 testified as follows:

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Mr. O'Connor, I'm just going to
22 ask you certain questions since the parties have been unabl-e to
23 enter lnto a stlpulation regardinq conmerce. They're very basic

24 questions. Is the corr:ect corporate name of the company here,

25 the New York and Presbyterian Hospitaf?
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1 THE Í{ITNESS; To my knowledge, yes, it .is.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And do you have a Westchester

3 Divi s ion?

4 THE VüTTNESS: YeS.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: And where is that Westchester

6 Div is ion locaLed?

7 THE WITNESS: It's located at 21 BLoomingdale Road in the

I City of Vühite Plains, the zip code is 10605.

9 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: And is there a relationship

10 between Westchester Division and the New York and Presbyterian

11 Hospi tal ?

L2 THE WITNESS: New York Presbyterian Hospital is, the

13 Westchester Division 1s one component of the New York

L4 Presbyterian Hospital . We are excÌusively a psychiatric

15 hospital or division of New York Pt:esbyterian.

L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: So, the New York and

17 Presbyterian Hospital and the i¡Testchester Division are related
18 enti ties ?

L9 THE ÍÍITNESS: Yes -

20 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And the facility engaged, and

2! the New York and Presbyterian Hospital has an offlce and pÌace

22 of business Ìocated at 21 BloomingdaÌe Road, White Plains, New

23 Yor:k, corre ct ?

24 THE WITNESS: Did you say offlce?

25 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes/ an off.ice and a pÌace of
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1 business.

2 MR. FRANK: Objection.

3 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: I'lÌ owerrule it.

4 THE WITNESS: YeS.

5 HEARfNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

6 THE üTITNESS: We have a hospitaL at 21 Bloomingdafe Road.

7 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Okay. And that facility is

I engaged in the buslness of providing psychiatric services is

9 that correct ?

10 THE WITNESS: ExclusiveÌy, yes-

11 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And annualLy during the course

12 and conduct of its business operations does the EmpÌoyer derive

13 gross revenues .in excess of 250 thousand dollars?

L4 THE WTTNESS: I be]leve so, yes.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLÌEB: And does the Emp.Loyer purchase

f6 and receive and its Nerv York, New York facllity goods and

17 materials vaÌued in excess of five thousand dol.Iars directly -
18 MR. FRANK: Objection to form, are you referring to New

!9 York or at Westchester?

20 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: New York at this time. Does

2L the New York and Presbyterian HospitaÌ at its New York, Nelr York

22 facility receive goods and materials valued in excess of five
23 thousand dollars directly from suppliers located outside the

24 State of New York?

25 THE WITNESS: I would have no way of knowing that
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2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you know if the New York and

3 Presbyterian Hospitaf, its Vüestchester Division purchases and

4 receives at its White Plains, New York faciÌity goods and

5 materials valued in excess of five thousand doflars directly

6 from suppliers located outside the State of New York?

7 THE WTTNESS: I believe so-

I HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Why don't you proceed.

9 DIRECT EXAMINATTON

10 BY MR. FRANK:

11 Q Mr- O'Connor/ !,¡hat is your position?

L2 A The Manager of Human Resources and Employee ReLations at

13 the ü/estchester Division, New York Presbyterian Hospital.

L4 Q And wouÌd you generalÌy describe your responsibilities as

15 the manager of human resources,

t6 A WelL/ primariLy by responsibility is to insure that we

l7 have policies and procedures that are reflective of various

18 state, federa] and .Iocal labor .Iaw. To engage directly with the

L9 employees on staff recognition, staff celebrations if you will.

20 And primariÌy just to insure that we have a good working

2L relationship between a1l individuaLs and empÌoyees at the

22 hospitaÌ.

23 I wou.Ld also work with our employees to access other HR

24 professionals shouÌd they have questions about their benefits,

25 training and development opportunities, different serwices
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1 within the hospitaÌ.
2 Q At the Westchester Division are Vou the senlor human

3 resource manager ?

4AYes/Iam.

5 Q And are you familiar with all of the hospital/ s policies
6 and benefits programs for the Westchestet: Dlvision?
7 A Yes.

B Q Now. what is the Westchester Division?
9 A The Westchester Diwlsion is a pre-standing psychiatric

10 faci.llty again in White plains. New york. ft's a 260 licensed
11 psychiatric beds. It,s on a 22A acre campus just off Interstate
L2 281 on Bloomingdale Road in White plains. And we offer both
13 inpatlent and outpatient psychiatric and addlction recovery
14 services.

15 Q Now, when you say itts a 260 bed licensed institutlon, who

f6 licenses the hospitaÌ ?

L7 A There are various licensing entities primariÌy the Offlce
18 of MentaÌ Health, the New york State Office of Mental Health,
1-9 New York State Department of Health, OASAS which is the Office
20 of ALcoholism and Substance Abuse Serwices. We're also
2I accredited through the Joint Commlssion which is recognized by

22 the CMS or the Center Medicare and Medicaid Services.
23 Q Now, the ficense through the Office of Mental HeaLth do

24 you know the provisions of the statutes that that Ìicensing is
25 engaqed .in or?
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1 A I 'm sorry, I donrt -

2 Q And the Department of HeaÌth is the generaf state

3 department for regufating all the health care provÍsions?

4 A I don't thlnk so.

5 Q And the Joint Comnìission what does that do?

6 A The Joint Commission is an accreditation body that CMS

7 recognizes as a Ìeading authority on assuring quaÌity and safety

I within all hospitals in the Un.ited States. So, of the five

9 thousand hospitals in the Unit.ed States and other health care

10 faciÌities and institutions that is the largest recognized

11 accred.itation body that is responsible for insuring that there

a2 are safe practices at the hospitaL which insures that it can

13 accept federal money through Medicare and Medicaid.

t4 Q And what is OASAS?

15 A OASAS is I be.Lieve it's a New York State department or

a6 division that is responsible for llcensing and requÌating

a7 alcoholism and substance abuse programs of which we have some at

18 rh^ [¡]escchester Div.ision.

f9 Q Now, you said there lras a 280, 220-acre campus.

20 A Yes.

2L Q Coutd you describe the campus, pÌease?

22 A The campus is currently 220 acres. It's the hospítaf, the

23 Westchester Division has been focated at this one site since

24 1894, when the City of White Pfains was basicaÌÌy farm land and

25 a smalf town. And the hospital that was then known as the
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1 Bloomingdale Asylum was located in Manhattan, refocated to that

2 location, the location that werre stitl at. We've been there

3 for 117 years.

4 The idea of chooslng that focation was very important to

5 the behavioral health specialist, the psychiatric professionals

6 that chose that primarily ít was -
7 MR. DORN: I'm going to object at this point untess the

I witness can test.ify how he was aware of what happened 117 years

9 ago, and what these individuals at that time were thinking, not

10 that I thlnk it's necessary for this hearinq in any event.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: All right.

1-2 THE VûITNESS: I can answer if you'd like.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: WelÌ, don't you answer that

14 question.

15 BY MR. FRANK:

16 Q WouÌd you, slnce Mr. Dorn raised the issue/ what is the

L7 bas.is for your knowledqe that you're describing why the faciÌity

18 1s located in 220 acres, the basis of your knowledge?

L9 A üieLl, it's very important for - welÌ, the basis for my

20 know.Ledge is that I facilitate or I lead generaÌ empÌoyee

2I orientation each month for our new employees. And the first

22 hour of the Õríentation that T lead is on the hospitaÌ's

23 history, herltage, and some our most notab]e psych.iatrlc

24 accomplishments and achievements.

25 Q Now. to digress sÌightly since you mentioned that you tead
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1 the general orientation are alÌ new employees given orientation?
2 A Yes.

3 Q And are all of the employees who were describ,ed in the

4 Employer's description of the titles to be incfuded in th.is

5 bargaining unit do they aÌl attend the same oïientation?
6 A Yes, they aLl attend the same orientation. It,s known as

7 "GEO", or Genera.l Employee Orientation.
I Q And what ls ceneraf EmpÌoyee Orientation?
9 A The Generaf Employee Orlentation progl:am is an aÌl day

10 orientation and trainlng program that is designed to introduce
11 and orient aLÌ new employees to the Westchester Division. It's
12 an aÌl day serles of presentations by between 13 and 15 subject
13 matter experts including the hospital, s sen.ior leadership, human

14 resources professionals to tafk about various benefits and

15 recognition prÕqrams.

L6 There are components that are dedicated to introduclng new

17 empÌoyees to the security department. We are a psychiatric
18 facllity so there are some unique security precautlons that all
a9 employees at the Vüestchester Diwisíon need to be oriented and

20 educated to.

2a There is an infection control. there's an infectlon
22 control presentation by the manager of our internal cÌ1nic, and

23 that is a nurse practitloner that tatks about the importance of
24 universal precautions in health care such as hand washing,

25 wearing a face shietd or a mask Íf there's suspected patient
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1 contamination, also gÌoves/ et cetera.

2 There is an overview of the hospitaL benefits program that

3 all employees would be eligible to, would be eligible for.

4 There ls a signíficant component of the orientatlon program that

5 is specifically dedicated to our code of conduct and corporate

6 compÌiance should employees feef that there is any fraud or any,

7 any issues !,¡ith lmproper billing as governed by CMS. They wouÌd

I be educated as to what would Ì:e appropriate. For example

9 employees r,nould not be aLLowed to accept gifts, cash gifts at

10 any time .in a behavioral heaÌth setting.

11 And primariLy lt's an opportunity for them to meet the

L2 various heads that help run the organization, and it's an

13 opportunÍty for all of the new employees to greet each of the

L4 new hires because they vel:y often would be working in different
15 departments, different parts of the hospital, although everyone

16 is responsible for providing exceptional patient care and

L7 service regardLess of their actual job.

18 This is an opportunity for them to be Íntroduced to your

L9 patient centered-care approach. We have a very special patlent

20 centered-care brand at the tr4lestchester Diwision known as t'Plain

2L Tree", and it's been ln existence since the 1970s. And our

22 motto is "We put patients first"- And this is a brief
23 introduction into the patient centered expectations that all

24 employees at the vùestchester Division are responsibÌe for.

25 There is a morning breakfast provlded for by the hospitaf.
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1 There's an afternoon Ìunch and snacks and a break. And there a

2 few videos as ü¡ell that would show the employees to teach them a

3 .Little bit about the hospital's history.

4 Q Now. in this initial orientation of aÌl empÌoyees is

5 pr:ivacy a topic ?

6 A Yes, thank you for po.inting that out - Privacy is a

7 significant component of orientation. So --
8 Q Why is that relevant?

9 A WeÌl, that's extremeÌy reÌevant and important probab.Ly

10 more so than in a non-psychiatr.ic setting. Tn a general acute

11 care medical center for example patients unless they were to ask

'L2 do not have their names on the general registry. In a

13 psychiatric environment we woufd newer reweaÌ the name of a

L4 patient or whether or not that patient was or was not in our

15 hospitaf regardless of their circurnstances, regardless of their

a6 diagnoses.

L7 lt's something that is treated, lt is very significant ln

18 a behavioraL institution to protect the Hippo Rights and privacy

1"9 and confidentialÍty of all our patients and their families.

20 MR. DORN: I'm goinq to object again unless the witness

2L can testify of his own knowledge about an acute care hospitaL

22 and the practices at such a hospital, which I don't think anyone

23 can do because they may differ hospital to hospital.

24 MR- FRANK: I believe the witness lras testifying about the

25 psychiatric hospita L .

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LTJC

1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316
Wayne, New (tersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692-0660



34

I MR. DORN: He mentioned acute care hospítals, so I had to
2 show that there is a difference -

3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q Are you aware of the faws in the State of New yôrk that
5 protect the rights of patients in mentaf health faciÌities?
6 A I am aware of Hippo regulations and Hippo requirements.

7 Q And are there, are you also aware that there are New york

I State requirements on protecting mentaÌ health patients?

9 A Yes.

10 Q And the State reguÌation, is the state law separate from

11 the federal faw -- on prlvacy?

L2 A Yes.

13 Q Now. before we return to the orientation you were

14 describing the campus of the hospital and why it was in this
15 secluded area. What eÌse do you cover in your initial
16 orientation of ernployees about the histot:y of the campus?

I7 A One of the most slgnificant things that we would cover in
18 the general employee orientation, the cEO session/ is the reason

1"9 that the location that our hospitaL stilÌ is at, which is 21

20 Bloominqdafe Road,. was that at the time of its choosing the

2I location it was chosen because it was one of the highest hiÌls
22 and what was then the town and the farmland of White pÌains, and

23 that is very lmportant to the therapeutic environment for the

24 psychiatric patients or those that are receivinq behavioraf

25 hea.l th care services.
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1 So/ Lhe 220 plus acres that are stilÌ the hospitaf are
2 very important to patient activities, recreatíonaf activities,
3 somewhat occupational or psycho-social rehabil.itation. We have

4 large courtyards. üie have a go.If course for example that was

5 primariÌy for patient use when the hospitaÌízation was much

6 Ìonger, the length of stay was much longer. We have a pool that
7 the patients can use for aqua-therapy and as way to cool off in
I the sunmer.

9 We hawe gymnasiums that the patients can use for
10 recreational activlties or for other psycho_social

11 rehablÌitation- But primarily the Location was chosen at the
72 time because it_ was in a very secluded area and that is the way

13 we have maintained the property to this date. But it is stifÌ
L4 something that's very .important to the therapeutic and healing
15 environment that we create for our patients.
L6 For example in the main building of the inpatient
L7 psychiatric units there are very large windows from top to
18 llottom, they wouÌd be larger than, you know, myself standing up.
L9 And the reason being is that the patients, it's very important
20 to the patients heating to hawe a Lot of natural Ìiqht and to
2L able to look out at nature that is in front of them.

22 So, that's part of our pÌain Tree phiÌosophy, and that,s
23 something that ties very cÌosely and significantly alf the way

24 back to our roots in 1894 relocating to White pfains.
25 Q Now, do the non-professional employees of the hospital, af
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1 I can use that to describe the group of employees that the

2 hospital has incLuded in this unit, do they work throuqhout this

3 campus of the hospitaÌ?

4 A Yes.

5 Q Thle 220 acres?

6 A They work throughout the entire campus in multiple

7 departments. units and work settings/ yes-

I Q And do patients have be ability subject to their

9 conditlons to be in all of the 200 acres or use all of the

10 facilities of the property?

11 A Dependlng on the type of treatment that the patient would

L2 be receiving they couÌd have access to the entire property. For

13 exampLe/ our outpatient department, or the OPD, those pâtients

L4 genera.Ily come for a day psychiatric treatment, any psychiatric

15 group therapy sessions. but they wou]d go home ln the evening/

'L6 they would be able to exp.Iore or go to every corner of the

1-7 proper:ty.

18 On the inpatient psychiatric side, we have 12 psychiatric

f9 un.its, 11 of those 12 units are Ìocked for patient safety

20 pur:poses with the exception of 4 South/ which is the addiction

21 recovery unit, those patients hâve an unlocked unit and they can

22 choose to come and go as they see fit.

23 So, those patients on 4 South during meal breaks, during

24 breaks between gr:oup therapy they would be able to go out onto

25 the beautiful grounds of the !üestchester Campus. But the
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f .inpatients wou.Ld need to have a patient escort. They would need

2 go have someone escort them fol: their own safety reasons to

3 fessen the fikelihood of a patient elopement-

4 Q And when patients are walking around the grounds do they

5 interact at times w.ith the grounds keepers or other empLoyees on

6 the campus ?

7 A Absolutely- They may have questions about where the poo.L

8 is. They may questions about where a parklng fot is for

9 somebody that's coming to vlsit. Absolutefy, they woufd have a

10 fot of interaction wlth every employees of the hospital

11 incLuding the non-professìonal employees.

L2 Q Can the non-professional empÌoyees use the poof at the

13 gym?

L4 A It's prirnarily for patient use bì.lt there are hours that

15 are set aside for employees, and the empLoyees' famiLies and

L6 guests to use the pool during the sunrner horrrs free of charge to

17 the empÌoyees- The hospital prov.ides a lifeguard to insure that

18 there is a safe swirnming experlence for aÌ1, for the patients

L9 and for the employees and their families when they wish to use

20 the pooÌ.

2L MR. FRANK: For the record I'd like to mark and introduce

22 as Employer Exhibit One, the list of job tltles that the

23 Employer believes should be incÌuded so I can refer to this as a

24 coLlective group before T go to addresslng the specific job

25 titles.
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1 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. trdould you/ you want to
2 mark that then.

3 MR. FRANK: Sure.

4 (Employer Exhibit One identified)
5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Thank you.

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q Mr- O'Connor, I'm showing you what I've marked as EmpÌoyer

I Exhibit One, that's a title of .'All Non-professionals,,. Are

9 these the titfes of the non-professional employees of the
10 Westchester Division of New york presbyterian Hospitaf?
11 A I would say with the exception of Chef-

3.2 Q okay.

13 A Yes, Lhey are.

L4 MR- FRANK: May I offer Exhibit One?

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB; Do you have any objections?
16 MR. DORN: Yes, at this time unless !,/e go through afl of
L7 the cfasslfications of employees empÌoyed by the hospital. T

18 think it's premature to have this entered at this point. It's
L9 been marked for identiflcation ancl it can be referred to, but I
20 think it's premature to have it entered at this time.
21- HEARÌNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I,m I'lf allow its adrnissiorr.

22 (Employer Exhibit One received)

23 MR. ERANK: Thank you. I'd like to have this marked as

24 EmpÌoyer Exhibit Two.

25 (Employer Exhibit T$ro identified)
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Thank you.

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q Mr. Orconnor, the reporter has marked a document that has

4 been identified as EmpLoyer Exhibit Two, wouÌd you pfease

5 identify the document?

6 A This document is a map of the lfestchester Division

7 showing, I bel.ieve not to scale, our hospital, the main

8 building, the outpatient department. several of the buildings

9 that wou.ld be on the property including staff housing.

10 Q And is this a diaqram of the campus that you've been

11 describing :LhLe 220 acres?

t2 A Yes, jt is.

13 Q Now/ the Center BuiLding number one, what is that?

14 A The Center Building .is the main entrance of the

15 psychiatric hospital of the ülestchester Division. As you waÌk

16 in that building there would be a reception area and primarily

L7 patients would not be entered, entering the facillty through

18 here but visitors and guests of the hospìtal, farnily members of

L9 our patients would enter through there. Several Õf our

20 employees would enter through there, although there are other

2I enlrances that employees and patients would enter through as

22 well.

23 Q We'll come back to what's in the main building. Moving

24 over to the right what is the Brown Vílla?

25 A The Brown Villa .is one component of the outpatient
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1 depar:tment where children receive psychiatric and ll'ehavioral

2 trearment and serv.ices.

3 Q Now. do employees in the petitioned for unit work in that

4 focation?

5 A Yes.

6 Q Vlhat ìs number four, the adult outpatient department?

7 A That is the second component of the outpatient department

8 and it primarily specializes in treating the psychiatric needs

9 of the adult popuLation.

10 Q And do employees work .in that focation?

L1 A Yes, they do.

L2 Q What is the medical library, number five?

13 A The medical .library is where alf empLoyees wouÌd have

14 access to review psychiatric or behavioral heafth periodicals Íf

15 they're conductlng research or if they were looking up

'L6 information on a specific diagnosis or treatment approach.

L'7 Q And the Nichols Cottage is what?

18 A The Nichols Cottage is an inpatient psychiatric unit

19 dedicated to treating children, primarily chlldren between the

20 êqes oJ five and 12 T beL'eve.

2L Q And what type of conditions are these children treated for

22 in the Nichols Cottaqe?

23 A They would be treated for any type, it's a general

24 psychiatric unit, ch1Ìdren that may aggressive behavÍors,

25 children that may be severely depressed. chifdren that have been
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1 abused. There are a Lot of abused children, sadÌy, on that unit
2 but they receive exceptionaf care from a very dedicated

3 treatment team.

4 Q What is Taylor Building?

5 A The Taylor Building if you go back to the hospital's

6 origins in the 1890s prímariÌy was a gymnasíum for femaÌe

7 recreational therapy. It is attached to the main hospital
I building. Tt is slilÌ very much used by the PSR Department, or

9 Psycho-Social RehabiÌitation Depal:tment today.

10 Q I want to stop you. What is the PSR Department?

11 A Psycho-Social Rehabi.litation.

f2 Q And wLaL. do they do?

13 A Actiwities with the patients. They run psychiatric groups

L4 on the inpat.ient units and a major component of our patients
15 heal.ing may be to interact with others. so a game for example in
16 a gymnasíum woufd be very important to Listening to taking

L7 directions, turn taking, handling frustration. This again is
18 the patients.

19 Q Part of the therapeutic process.

20 A Absofutely, PSR, psycho-sociaÌ rehabilitation is an

2a essentiaf component of therapy and treatment that the patients

22 would receive.

23 Q And do the employees identifled in Exhibit One are they

24 invoÌved in the working in those, in thls area?

25 A Some, yes, yes-

BURKE COURT REPORTING, IJLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, Nev, ,Jersey 07 47 O

(973l, 692 - O66O



42

1 Q Number e.ight. the Educational SchooÌ Annex/ what is that?

2 A f'm sorry. Irm not seeing that. Oh, the Educational

3 Schoof Annex that I befieve is the Star Program. ltrs an

4 affiliated program with the White Plains Schoof Distr.ict- It's

5 for: children that have not have success mainstreaming in pubÌic

6 school, children that may hawe aggressive or depressive

7 behaviors would be treated in that program. It is a school

8 program that the children and students do go home each evening.

9 Q Vühat is the Macy Vil.la, identified as number nine on

10 Exhibit E-2?

11 A The Macy Villa is prirnarily office space. Historically it

L2 was used for more treatment and services of patients/ but

13 primarily that was office space.

14 Q The Banker Vi.Lla, number 10.

15 A The same, it's primarily office space. I believe there is

L6 a resource library for the borderline personality disorders

1-7 program for the seLf-injurious individuals that suffer from

18 self-injurious behaviors.

L9 Q And do employees in the bargalning unit deal or work lvith

20 the borderline self-injurious patients?

2l A Yes.

22 Q What is the Russell Building, identified as number 11?

23 A The Russell Building ls primarily a shed where our

24 maintenance service workers wouÌd keep their equ.lpment, for

25 example lawn mowing equipment- There would be trucks. There
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1 would be ]ots of too]s to help maintain the 200 pÌus acres for

2 grass cutting as an example. Actually, that may be number 12,

3 I'm s orry .

4 Q Twelve is the Bourne Research Lab?

5 A Yeah, I think underneath of that research lab is where all

6 of that mechanical equlpment is maintained.

7 Q And what efse is in the Bourne Research Lab?

8 A I'm not aware if there is any active research ongoing

9 right now, I canrt speak to that-

10 Q What is the Staff Annex Two, number 13?

11 A The Staff Annex Two is residential apartments for our

1-2 employees. I'm not entirely certaln of the number of units but

13 I Ì:eÌieve upwards of 100 people live in there/ aduÌts and

f4 children. There are studio apartments, single room apartments,

15 two-bedroom apartments.

L6 Q And does that include people in the bargaining unlt, all

I7 the non-professionals ?

18 A Yes. several.

19 Q Now, are alL of the job tit.les in Employer Exhibit One

20 incÌuded potentiaLly in the housing?

2a A Yes/ absolutely.

22 Q What is the WalI Building, number 14?

23 A The VúaIl Bui.lding is a building that is leased to the Ì

24 think it's the Vüestchester Blood Centet: or the Mid-Hudson Blood

25 Center. It's not a hospital affiliate in any way. It is just a
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1 tenant that r:ents that space.

2 Q What is the Rogers Buílding, numb'er 15?

3 A The Rogers Building if you actuaLLy go back to number

4 seven/ T indicated that historicaÌly that was the women's

5 gymnasium. The Rogers Gymnasium, number 15/ was the male gym

6 where the male patients of the Westchester Division received

7 psycho-social rehabilitat.ion therapy/ actívities, et cetera.

I That ís where the pool for patients and employee use is

9 located. That is also where the staff fitness center is ]ocated

10 that's open to aÌl employees and their famiÌies- And that is

11 the future site, the top floor of that building of our autism

12 research program.

13 Q The Staff Fitness Center is avaiÌabÌe to all of the

14 employees on, identified on Empfoyer Exhibit One --
15 A CouÌd you repeat that?

16 Q Can all of the employees and the job titles identified on

L7 Emp.loyer Exhibit One use the staff fitness center?

18 A Yes, as long as they sign a waiver and release,

19 absoÌutely.

20 Q And the aut.ism facility is going on the top f.Loor, what

2L wi l.I that be?

22 A My understanding is that it's going to be a very

23 comprehensive aut.ism research program that wiÌl follow children

24 from the early .interventj"on years of 18 months, it w.i.ll track

25 their progress. Children that are inflicted anywhere in the
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1 spectrum of autism, it will track the.ir progress and their

2 therapy from early intervention through adulthood. And it's

3 something that we're very excited to be able to offer the

4 patient population.

5 Q And wilf employees in the bargaining unit be -
6 MR. DORN: I'm going to object, this is specufative at

7 this time. It's not in existence as I under.stand the testimony,

8 so I ask that that be stricken.

9 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Ultimate.Ly it is specuÌative

10 but, yes, why don't you just move on.

11 BY MR. FRANK:

a2 Q Is there an autism current.ly at the --
'L3 A No, there is not -

f4 Q What is Bart House, number 16?

15 A Bart House, number 16, is, was a chiÌd day hospitaÌ

f6 similar to the Star program at number eight- Bart House was a

f7 school program for chi.Ldren that would have behavioral needs in

18 the White Plains SchooÌ Distr:ict primari.Iy, and they receíved

19 schooling and psychiatric serwices at Bart House.

20 Q What is number 17, Community Resident --
2L A That I believe is office space.

22 Q What is Stur:gis Hall?

23 A Sturgis HaIÌ, number 18 on the map, is, it's an ofder

24 building as are many of the buildings at Westchester Division-

25 It was primaríly used for the first 100 years of its existence
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2 on-site training center that we use for employees. So, for
3 example all of the employees that wouÌd, that do attend our
4 Pf a.in Tree Retreats wouÌd go to Sturgis Hafl for that on_site
5 trainlng.

6 Q So, regardless of job tltle all of the employees, afl of
7 the employees who are hired into any of the jobs on Employer

8 Exhibìit One would go to the same training center?

9 A Yes.

10 Q And the training that they receive there is without
11 regards to lob title?
L2 A Correct/ every employee goes.

13 Q What is f-p-R^T, what does that stand for?
L4 A That I can,t telÌ you, I don't know.

15 Q NuÍìber 19, what is A-R-S?

L6 A A-R-S stands for Addiction Recovery Services, that was an

L7 outpatient addiction recovery treatment program similar to Four

18 South that I mentioned earÌier that is an unlocked inpatient
19 unlt that treats individuars that are sufferinq from addiction.
20 Four South is an inpatient unit. ARS was an outpatient
2L treatment for those that are sufferìng from addiction.
22 MR. DORN: f'd ask for some clarification. The witness
23 has used the term '.was,, on severaÌ occasions, Coufd we clarify
24 whether it stj I I ís used for that purpose or for what purpose?

25 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I was a.lso confused by that, I
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1 aqree. Is that still in existence now?

2 THE WITNESS: No, for the two instances where I referred

3 to as "was", Bart House and ARS/ those programs are no Ìonger in

4 existence primarily due to funding from the state/ Ìack of

5 funding.

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q And is it a fact that funding from the state varies from

I year to year ?

9 A Yes.

10 Q Now, is there parkíng facilities for employees on the

11 property ?

t2 A There are several parking spaces that are available, not

13 all of them are identified on this map. But the two Larqest

14 parking facilities, the North Parking Lot that would be next to

15 number flve on the map, and the South Parking Lot that's just

L6 under number 11 on the map, both of those are free parking

L7 spaces for alÌ of our empLoyees and all of our patients.

18 But ther:e are severa.I other parking spaces throughout the

L9 hosp.ital. Do you see number 19, on the map, if you were to look

20 just to the left of that there is another parklng lol there.

2I And in front of the Main Center Building one, two, for example,

22 there would be patÍent parking, emergency parking and some other

23 parking, handicap parking, et cetera.

24 Q And do all of the employees in the job titles on Empfoyer

25 Exhibit One who dríve to the facility park in these parking
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1 lots ?

2 A Yes.

3 Q And now employees who don't drive to the facifity how do

4 they get to the facillty on this campus?

5 A A number of ways. Some of our employees live very close

6 to the Vüestchester Division Campus and they could waÌk to work.

7 There are warious entrance gates that they could access by using

I a 9-9-2-5 key, what we refer to as a 9925 key. They coufd take

9 the hospital's free shuttfe. If they were to take MetLo North

10 for example we have free shuttÌe service from the train station.
11 For those that wouÌd take the local bus in Vühite PÌains,

L2 there .is a bus stop that is at the bottom of the maín entrance

13 and the shuttle, the free shuttle that we offer employees would

L4 pick those individuals up and drop them off. There's several

15 shuttle runs per day to acconmodate for individuals' varying

L6 work schedules.

L7 Q And do aÌÌ Lhe emp]oyees of the jobs identÍfied in Exhibit
18 One get to use the shuttle íf they're coming in by train or

L9 other transpot:tation?

20 A Yes, they do.

2l MR. FRANK: Did I offer Exhibit Two?

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, you haven't.

23 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibit Two.

24 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Any objection?

25 MR. DORN: NÕ obiection-
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1 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB: It's received.

2 (Employer ExhibiÈ Two receiwed)

3 MR. FRANK: May I have this marked as Empfoyer Exhibit

4 Three, pLease. Th.is is a diagram of the hospitaL building-

5 (Employer Exhibit Three identified)

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q Mr. O'Connor, wou]d you take a moment look at Emp.Loyer

B Exhibit Three because T'm going to ask yol-r to go through the

t hospitaf building and describe the various units.

10 A Okay.

11 Q Now, before looking at the specifics, can you describe the

L2 12 units or types of units that the hospital for rendering care

13 at this f aci l.ity?

L4 A Sure. We offer a full spectrum of psychiatric serv.ices to

15 the patients, not restricted to diagnosls age. But the first

L6 f or example wou.ld be Two South, Two South is, .it specia.Lizes in

L7 eat.ing disorders and that is .Iocated in the south, on the south

18 side of the building which would be the first ffoor. The map

L9 may not tell you that but it is the first fÌoor even thouqh itrs

20 Two South.

2L Q Okay. And thaL's the brown area just off the center.

22 A I need to correct myse.lf , it is the second floor. They

23 don't aÌÌ correlate Ìike that.

24 Q So, the record is not confused is the bui.Lding bui.Lt into

25 the side of the hiÌÌ, and you have different floors for
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1 different levels ?

2 A lt's not buift into the side of the hiÌl, it's built on

3 top of a hiff. But for example, Five North is on the second

4 floor not the fifth floor because there are only three floors I

5 the hospitaÌ, so the numbers don't always correLate with the

6 f Ìoor that they' re on.

7 Q And that occurs because some floors go befow the ground

I level of the entrance on the, coming in?

9 A The basement level and the sub-basement.

10 Q Back to Two South, that's an eating disorder unit?

11 A It speclalizes in treating patients wlth eating disorders,

1-2 yes.

13 Q And what is the Two North?

f4 A Two Nor:th is a mature adult.

15 Q What is that?

16 A Mature aduÌt they treat primarily a geriatric population

L7 but not excluslveÌy, it could be patients 50 or ofder.

18 Q What ís Three North?

L9 A Three North is the longest stay unit that we have patients

20 and on Three North 1t's referred to as the "Second Chance

2I Program". Oftentimes, patients that are hospitalized on Three

22 North have been in state or other psychiatric hospitafs for most

23 of thelr lives.

24 Thís .is an opportunity for them to spend upwards of nine

25 to 12 months to receive very intensive therapy, and they have
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1 over an 80 percent discharge rate- And for many of the patients

2 that's the first time that they have been outside of a

3 psychiatric hospital setting in their lives/ but Three North is

4 the Second Chance Program.

5 Q And what is the Three South Unit?

6 A Three South is the psychotic unit and it primarily treats

7 pat.ients w.ithin the spectrum of schlzophrenia.

I Q What is Three South A, or Three A South?

9 A Three A South is not an inpatient hospitaL Ìocation, but

10 there are offices on Three A South. I beÌieve that's where

11 finance, purchasinq, and one staff break room would be focated.

12 MR. DORN: I'm sorry, one? f'm sorry, I didn't hear the

13 làsl parl oF your

L4 THE WITNESS: Employee lounqe. a staff break room.

15 BY MR. FR-ANK :

L6 Q And what is Three A North?

I7 A Three A North is aqain it's not an inpatient psychiatric

18 unit, but it woufd be business office space. And I beÌieve that

19 there's an outpatient department program there, CDTP, Continuing

20 Day Treatment Program.

21 Q C, f 'm sol:ry?

22 A C, D as in David, T as Tom, P as in Presbyterìan.

23 Q And what is that program?

24 A Ìt's a Continuing Day Treatment Program. Ttrs known as a

25 step down program, oftentimes patients would be hospitalized for
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1 two to three weeks/ except for Three North where they may be

2 hosp.italLzed for nine months to a year or more. But as they al:e

3 being discharged from the hospítal they would enter one of a

4 variety of outpatient program.

5 CDTP is one such prograrn that is very structured. very

6 intensiwe that aL.Lows patients to be discharged to home or to an

7 aftercar.e facility. They still receive treatment on a daily or

8 regular basis but they are not inpatients.

9 Q And do employees Ín jobs identified on Employer ExhÍbit

10 One work in this area as well?

11 A Yes.

L2 Q Let me dir:ect your attention over to the gray box, what is

13 Four North ?

L4 A Four North is an inpatient general psychiatric unit that

15 prìmarily treats orthodox Jewish patients - It is a unit that

L6 was speciaLly designed to treat what was an under served

L7 popufation in psychiatry or behawioraf health and it opened in

18 September of 2049.

L9 Q And what is Five North?

20 A Five North is the inpatient borderfine unít which is self-

2L injurious behaviors, primariLy patients that would be prone to

22 cutting themse.Lves or ingesting harmfuÌ substances, patients

23 that would be very likely to harm themselves.

24 Q What is Six North?

25 A Slx North Ís an affective disorders unit- I beÌieve they
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1 primarlÌy treat patients that are suffer.ing from personality
2 di sorders -

3 Q And what is Six A North?

4 A Six A NÕrth is office space. There is aÌso an empfoyee

5 lounge in that area as well.
6 Q And over to the other slde of the chaït, what is Four

7 South?

I A Four. South is an inpatlent addiction recovery unit that is
9 again the one unit that is an unlocked unlt. patients that are

10 lf,eing treated on Four South have the ability to come and go as

11 they please, and they recelve very intensive treatment to help
a2 them with theil: alcohol or substance abuse addictions-
13 Q What is Five South?

L4 A Five South ls a generaÌ psychiatric unit. It is an

15 amenities unit. There is a se.lf-pay provision foï patients that
1-6 choose to be treated on Five South, that is a generaf

t7 psychiatric unit. And if there are othet: units that for example

18 are full, their 18 or 22 bed census could not handle another
f9 patient it's often a border unit where other patients can be

20 treated from other areas of the hospital if admission to another
21 unit is not possible.

22 Q What is Six South?

23 A Six South is the women, s unit. Tt's a general inpatient
24 psychiatric unit that excÌusively treats women.

25 Q Six A Sourh.
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2 unit.

3 Q Now. what is the Educational School Annex Star Program, is

4 that what you had described previously?

5 A That would be for high school age chiLdren in the üIhite

6 Plains School District that are not able to mainstream.

7 Q So, that's different than the program in the Nichofs

I Cottage for the younqer children?

9 A Well, Nichols Cottage is an inpatient general psychiatric

10 unÍt for children, and there actua.L.Iy is an educational

11 component that we haven't discussed yet.

L2 Q We'lI get there. Let's move onto the black, what is Seven

13 South ?

L4 A Seven South is office space primarily used by non-hospitaf

15 employees, physicians, researchers.

16 Q EighL Sourh.

L7 A The same as Seven South.

18 Q And Eight A South.

L9 A I believe it's the same.

20 Q Going to the other side of the building what is Seven

2I North?

22 A Seven Norlh is an inpatient qeneraL psychiatric unit that

23 serves the ado.Lescent popuLation, primarily those that are

24 between the ages of it couLd be a mature 12, b\tL more often 13

25 up to age 18.
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1 Q E.ight North, what is Eiqht North?

2 A EÍght North is a, hrhat we refer to as a "Swing Unit".

3 Current.Ly as the hospital is renovating. rehabllitating some of

4 the other units in the hospital that unit would swing to Eight

5 North so that the rehab.i] itat i on from the unit in which the

6 program is exitíng temporarily could receive the constructíon or

7 cosmetic attention that it needs.

8 Q The kitchen is located where?

9 A The kitchen is actualÌy in the basement of the Center

10 Buildlng.

11 Q And that provides foods for the employees throughout the

1-2 facility, for the patients throughout the faclllties?

13 A We.L.l, for patients and employees, and for visitors,

14 guests, everyone.

15 Q And the cafeteria?

16 A The cafeteria is one level up from the kitchen. It woLlfd

!7 be on the main floor b'ut it's accessible by looking at this map

18 through the .Lower level corridor there would be a stairway to

L9 the cafeteria. Or if you were to follow the corridor through

20 the one/ two/ Three South Building you coufd enter it on the

2L main flÕor without hawing to access a stairway.

22 Q Now, at the top of this page there are various units that

23 are described as being located in each of these units. is this

24 an accurate descriptlon of where those functions are located in

25 the main hosp.ital build.ing?
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1 A I recognlze almost a1f.

2 Q For exampfe, human resources where is that located?

3 A Human resources wou]d be located down the hall from the

4 kitchen, we're on the basement level.

5 Q Within what's described as the Center Buílding --
6 A Correct -

7 Q -- on this map.

I A Tf you see on the map the Center Building there is what

9 appears to be a .Little corridor into the Center BuiLding, but

10 right underneath the main entrance of the hospital is where the

11 human resources department would be located, kìnd of where the

12 crescent or the semi-circle is in the Center Building underneath

13 that.

L4 Q And does the diagram correctÌy reflect that aÌÌ of the

15 buildings that we have been describing are aÌl interconnected?

f6 A Yes, they're alÌ interconnected by corridors. And if

L7 you'.ll notice on the north end, the south side, the buiLding

18 actualÌy surrounds what we refer to as our "North and South

19 Cour:tyards". North and South Courtyards those are where

20 patients w.ith proper escort can go for activities or

2L recreationa.L therapy or for different psychiatric treatments as

22 a way to get outside.

23 Q And do the employees, do the jobs identifled in Exhibit

24 One North throughout the entirety of this buiLding complex

25 described in Employer Exhibit Three?
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1 A Yes, they do thr.oughout the entire building.

2 MR. FRANK: I offer Employer Exhibit Three.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Any objectÍon?

4 MR. DORN: Just one second. Ask for a heater.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, I know.

6 THE WTTNESS: I fee.L good actually.

7 MR. FRANK: Might I suqgest whiÌe we're dolng the document

I that this might be a time to take a .Lunch break?

9 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: i{ell, off the record.

10 (Off the record)

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No objection to Number Three.

12 EmpÌoyer Three it's rece.ived.

13 (Employer ExhibiÈ Three received)

L4 MR. FRANK: Might this be a t.ime to take a lunch break?

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, off the record.

1-6 (Off the record)

17 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record. Just to

18 cLarify for the record, there was some discuss.ions or disputes

L9 about the name of the company b,ut the name of this case is the

20 New York and Pl:esbyterian Hospital, and of course the case

2L number is 2-RC-23583 -

22 liith respect to the formal papers, they have been admitted

23 into evidence. And just to clarify for the record, we had many

24 off the record discussions about Emp.loyer Exhibit Number One

25 which was a list of títles of the non-professional employees,
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1 that ls the fist of employees that the Employer seeks to include
2 in the unit and that's what I'm admitting it into the record as/

3 as the list the Employer has drafted and for the ease of the

4 record.

5 It doesn't necessarily refÌect that that is the only

6 titles, whatewer, evidence will come fater. So, obwiously a

7 list that's been drafted by the company to reffect their
I contention regarding the empÌoyees should be incLuded and that's
9 what we had díscussed off the record.

10 MR. FRANK: lf I may? One, this is a hospitaÌ, and two,

11 those are the hospital/ s job 1-ítÌes of its non-professional
L2 emp]oyees other than quards, supervisors. and managers as

f3 Oe lr ned rn Lhe Act,

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. !Íe.11/ I'm just. it's a,

15 it's not an official buslness record or anything like that.
t6 There has been no testlmony regarding who drafted it. I've just
L7 admitted it as I said I would off the record just for the ease

18 of the record and just onÌy to reffect the Employer's position
19 regarding ít.

20 I mean you wanted other type of evidence allout who in fact
2L is in it, you can dÕ that, but I don't think it's realÌy
22 appropriate here because it is just a self-serving document

23 regard.ing these positions. It isn't a business record. We

24 donrt know who did it. So, I'm jLrst dolng it for that reason.

25 MR. FRANK: We offered it for the ease of the Hearing
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1 Offi ce r
2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yes, f know.

3 MR. FRANK: -- and the reader of the record. And help me,

4 f mean as I understand the Union, s position we,re goinq to be

5 required to put ln testimony about each of these job categories
6 on the Showing of Interest, and the Community of Interest of
7 each of these employees. If there,s anyway to short circuit
8 thls we would be happy to hear that-
9 HEARING OFEICER GOTTT,IEB: Oh, no, that,s why _

10 MR. FRANK: I'm ant.icipatlng having to show that a1f the
11 Job titles on the list whìch is Employer Exhibit One have a

f2 Conmunity of lnterest.
13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: yes, yes.
L4 MR. FRANK: Anyway to shorten this I,m more than happy to
15 hear a way to do that.
L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: No, I mean f ,ve aÌfowed it in
17 precisely for the ease of the record. But I am t:eflecting that
18 it is just a list of what the job categories the EmpÌoyer wants
a9 in the record, and that's what it,s there for, okay.
20 MR. FRANK: Can we request that the Board check the
27 Showing of fnterest durlng a lunch break?

22 HEARTNC OFFTCER COTTLTEB: yes.

23 MR. FRANK: Or I guess you have to do that after the unit
24 determinatlon don't you ?

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: WelÌ. you,ve already made that
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1 request. Irm going to confer with the Region t:egarding that,
2 but I heard that request. T wilÌ certainly confer with the
3 Region Lhar, and

4 MR- FRANK: Thank you.

5 HEARING OFFÍCER GOTTLIEB: -- get back to you on that
6 matter.

7 MR. FRANK: Thank you.

8 HEARING OFFICER GOTTL]EB: And T think we can a]Ì have

9 lunch now, okay.

f0 (Whereby, at !2:57 p.m., a luncÌ¡eon rêcess was taken to
11 reconvene at 1:57 I).m.)
L2
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1 AFTERNOON SESSTON
2 (Time: 1:57 p.m. )

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the ïecord.
4 DIRECT EXAMINATION (Continued)

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Mr. OrConnor, before we took our recess I believe we had

7 gone through the general locations on the vúestchester Division
I Campus, and its various buiÌdings. What I'd like to direct your
9 attention to now is describing how the hospital is

10 administratively organized.

11 A Okay.

12 Q And who is the senior administrative person for the
13 l{estchester Divis ion ?

L4 A We have two vice presidents at the Westchester Dívisio¡r
15 that woufd makeup the senior feadership team. Linda Espinosa is
16 the V.ice President of patient Care Services. and she would be

17 the chlef administrator on site. She works at the WestchesLer

18 Division.

L9 And we also have a Vice president fot: Support Servlces,
20 that is Alan Lee.

2L MR. DORN: I'm sorry, r,¡hat?

22 THE üIITNESS: A1an, A-L-A-N, L-E-E. food nutrition for
23 example would report to Afan Lee.

24 BY MR. FRANK;

25 Q Vûhat areas report to him?
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1 A Primarlly that is the one area that woufd repor:t to Mr.
2 l,ee at the idestchester Division. All other areas woufd falf
3 under T.ln da Espinosa -

4 Q Now, who reports to the vice president l,inda Espinosa, the
5 job titfe of that --
6 A Sure. l,inda Espinosa has severa-t director leveÌ
7 indiwiduals that, woufd report to her directly. There is a

I Director of Nursing practice, EÌlen.Brous, B_R_O_U_S. There is
9 a Director of Nursing operations, Janet Moran. A Director of

10 Gene ral Serv i ces -
11 MR. DoRN: M_o-R?

1-2 THE üIITNESS: A-N.

13 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: And the first name for Brous
14 was what ?

15 THE WITNESS: Ellen, weÌl it,s Maryeflen Brous.
L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Maryelten-
L7 THE WITNESS: But she qoes by Elfen.
18 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, thank you.
f9 THE I{TTNESS: yourre welcome.

20 BY MR- FRANK:

2! Q Other directors after the nursing Ops?

22 A A Director of General Services, Douglas Mccrath. A

23 Director of Operations, John Ffanigan. Dil:ector of Access
24 Services, Ruth MendeÌoÌ,¡ltz.

25 Q Mendef owit z ?
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1 A M_E_N_D-E_L_O_VI-I_T_2.

2 Q The reporter appreclates that.
3 A DiTector of SociaL Vûork/ BarJf,ara Vùaltman, W-A-L-T-M-A-N.

4 Q Who reports to the directors?
5 A For exampfe the patient care directors would ïeport
6 through the directors of nursing.

7 Q Patient care directors?
8 A PCD's, those would be the lndividuals that run the

9 inpatient psychiatric units.
10 MR. DORN: Who did you say they t:eport to or she?

11 THE WTTNESS: EssentiaÌÌy half of the patlent care

12 dlrectors wouLd report to each of the directors of nursing. So,

13 if we had 12 inpatient psychiatric units, rough.Ly six of the
a4 PCDs woufd report, Patient Care Dll:ectors rnould report to either
15 the director of nursing operatlons or the director of nursing
16 practice. T did forget one Õther director, Director of euality
L7 Assurance, or Patient Serv.ices, Judi, J-U*D-I, Giorgi-Cipriano,
18 G-I-O-R-c-T, hyphen, C-I-P-R-I-A-N-O.

19 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q So, the 12 PCDS report to one of two nursing directors?
2L A Correct, but there wouÌd be other managers that would

22 report through them as welf, for example, the manager of our

23 WHS. Work Force Health and Safety, the Medicaf Clinìc that
24 treats patients and empÌoyees.

25 Q So, the managers report up to the pCDs, who report up to
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1 the Nursing Directors, who report into the vice president Ms.

2 Espinosa, is that correct?

3 A That is correct.
4 Q And supervisors report into the managers?

5 A Do you want manaqers for the other areas, the other
6 di rectors ?

7 Q Yes. that's fine. tr{ho are the managers?

I A So, some of the managers that wouÌd report to the Director
9 of Operations, for example, John FÌanigan wouÌd be the Manager

10 of Human Resources, myself. There wou.Id be the Manager of
11 Security, Dírector of patient Finance- I'm thinking there are
L2 others.

13 HEARING OFFÏCER GOTTT,IEB: Excuse me, off the record.
T4 (Off the record)

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Back on the record.
L6 THE WITNESS: Another: manager reporting to the Director of
17 Operations wouÌd be the Manaqer of Finance tvho lrouÌd also be an

18 Operations Änalyst that reports to the director, that,s a

L9 management ÌeveÌ but non-supervisory position.
20 BY MR. FRANK:

2I Q And who does hurnan resources report to?

22 A Human Resources reports throuqh the Director of
23 Operations.

24 Q There are supervisors who report to the managers.

25 A Yes-
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1 O And where are the supervisors, are theiï tit.Les, do they
2 have specific titles or?

3 A The supervisory title is commonly used in many of those
4 areas, but in security for example Sergeants would be the

5 supervisory individuals.

6 Q But the supervisors are cafled superv.isors in the iob
7 titÌe ?

8 A cenerally.

9 Q And there are security personnel or guards at the
10 faci lity?

11 A Yes.

1"2 Q Now, are there lead persons who are supervisors whÕ report
13 into the supervl sors ?

14 A Yes.

15 Q And Ì,,rhat are those titles ?

16 A Lead Communications, T.ead Transportation, those two jobs

L7 in particuLar would report through the Supervlsor of General

18 services/ and through that supervisor of General servlces is the
L9 Director of General Services, and uLtlmateÌy to l,inda Espinosa.

20 Q AÌ1 right. How many employees are incÌuded in the job
2f tit.Les set forth in Employer Exhil¡it One?

22 A How many empLoyees in total-?
23 Q Yes, total of non-professlonaÌ employees, the job titÌes
24 on Employer Exhibit One -

25 A Rouqhly 450-
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1 Q And are you generaffy famíIÍar with the kind of work that

2 employees perform at the Westchester Division of the hospitaÌ?

3 A Yes.

4 Q And are there job descriptions for the employees?

5 A Yes, there are-

6 MR. DORN: Can we stipu.Late that the vlce president, the

7 directors/ the PCDS. the managers, the supervisors/ and the Ìead

8 peopÌe are either superwisory or managerial and shoufd be

9 exc]uded?

10 MR. FRANK: Yes.

11 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: The parties so stipulate.

L2 MR. FRANK: And can we also stipulate that the guards,

13 security guards are a.lso excluded?

L4 MR. DORN: Yes .

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, stipulation is receiwed.

16 BY MR. FR-ANK:

L7 Q What do the mental health workers do at the Westchester

18 Divi s ion?

A9 A The mentaL health workers are primarÍly responsibfe for

20 insuring that patients have a safe environment in whlch to

2L receive care.

22 Some of the primary responsibilities for a mental health

23 worker would be to observe patients, to oversee them when they

24 may not be in group activities, for example to lnsure that they

25 are not harm.ing themselves or others, to assist patients with
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1 the requests that they may have, to occasionally transport

2 patÍents to a procedure such as ECT, or to X-ray or for EKG, for

3 example, those would be some of the hospÍtal procedures that may

4 be conducted.

5 They can be responsible for escorting patients to the

6 cashier for exampÌe, to the cafeteria if they are on an

7 appropriate level or pass which wouÌd allow them to feave the

I inpatient unit when their therapy has reached a certain point

9 Q You're referring to the pat.ients?

10 A Referring to the patients. When the patients are able to

11 go to the cafeteria, the menta.I hea.Lth worker wouÌd be a likely

L2 escort for those patients.

13 Q And when the mentaÌ heaÌth worker was escorting the

14 patient to the cafeteria would have interchange with any other

15 employee s ?

f6 MR. DORN: Obl ectlon.

17 THE WITNESS: Sure.

18 MR. DORN: T don't see how this witness couÌd tell- whether

19 a particuÌal: mental hea.Lth worker had interaction with any other

20 worker or any patient at any one tlme.

2I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It's true with the Director of

22 Human Resources, he's probabÌy not the best witness on this

23 area. But do you want to have some questlons regarding where he

24 is? I mean it's probably true, I mean just for the best record

25 you do want someone who's there and lnvolved in the care and can

BURKE COI'RT REPORTING, ],LC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, New ,fersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692-O660



68

1 test i I y mor e dj rectfy to it.

2 MR. FRANK: T donrt know what to say. I think th.is

3 witness is capable of testifying to what he knows of his

4 know.Ledge and experience as the chief human resources officer of

5 the f aci.Lity.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: WeÌl/ do you want to have some

I MR. FRANK: I can bring additional witnesses if that

9 becomes appropriate.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. AÌÌ right, well why

11 don't you just ask just a, I mean I agree it's really -
A2 MR. FRANK: f'm not Sure what Mr. Dorn would like. I mean

13 is he trylng to say let's have 20 witnesses and make thìs a

L4 three-week hearing? I mean that's certainly not my goal. I'm

15 trylng 1-o describe what peopÌe do. Ìt seems to me sort of

L6 obwious that if the mentaf health worker escorts the patients

L7 they're goinq to interact with other people, or the other peopfe

18 .interact with him. I beÌieve this witness can testify to that.

19 Tf he doesn't know that, he'Ì] tell me he doesn't know that.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Vlell, why don't you ask hím

2L some questlons and see what his first-hand knowledge is, is he

22 present during the day to see this, to observe ìt- Because it

23 is true we have ahead of us I think a Lengthy record, so you

24 want to get as much first-hand information possibLe to have the

25 best record, because ultimately I don't want tô down the line
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t have to br.ing other people in because itrs not first-hand, and

2 you know, there are those diffículties.

3 So, you do want someone who realÌy is there and sees it,
4 you know, so it's a valid point. T mean I just feel that way

5 for the development of the record. But why don't you just ask

6 him questions, to Mr. OrConnor to see what his knowledge is.

7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q How frequently do you visit the Vüestchester Division?

9 A Every day that T'm working Irm at the Westchester

10 Division.

11 Q And where is your office located?

12 A My off.ice is .Iocated on the basement fevel of the Centel:

13 Bu.ilding next to several other departments, and a centraL

14 secu'i ty build - ng services.

15 Q And do you have any interaction wìth employees in the job

L6 categol:ies who are described Ín Employer Exhibit One?

a7 A Yes, on a daiÌy basis on the inpatlent units, in the

18 outpatient cÌlnic and throughout the hospital
19 Q And in the performance of your duties do you wafk around

20 the hospital and see peopÌe and see things with your own

2L expe rience ?

22 A Yes.

23 Q And how frequently do you waÌk around the hospital?

24 A Probably half of rny business day every day.

25 Q And you work five days a week?
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lAYes.Tdo.

2 Q And do you know many of the employees in the proposed

3 bargaining unit ?

^ 
A \/ôc T /ì^

5 Q And do you hawe opportunities to see them at work?

6 A Yes, I do and in a number of different settings.

7 Q Do you also ta.Ik to them about benefits?

8 A Yes, T do.

9 Q Do you taÌk to them about concerns they may have about

10 work and ?

11 A Yes, and initially I was the facility charnpion for patient

L2 centered-care for four years.

13 Q What is that?

L4 A lt was a role that I was asked to take in 2006. And it

15 a.l]owed me to work direct]y with the caregivers. primarily

a6 mental health workers, psych techs, al.L of those that woul d bre

L7 seen as PCC Champions, or Patient Centered-Care Champions on

18 each of the un.its. And as the fâcility champion for patient

L9 centered-care f worked with them on further strengthening and

20 connectinq with the patient experience and the employee

2l experience.

22 Q And what do you define as charnpions? In the mental health

23 wor.Id that you work in what do you mean by "champions"?

24 A The champions would be oftentímes volunteers from thelr

25 inpatient unit, for example a mentaÌ health worker. Someone
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1 that wished to maybe give a little bit more back to the

2 patients. They would bring to a centralized qroup that would

3 meet on a regular basis best practices that they saw in the

4 psychiatric or therapeutic - or in the environment.

5 We woufd ta.Ik about different ways of deescalating

6 patients. We wouÌd talk about different ways of just caring for

7 the pat.ients and beinq more service oriented. And each of those

I best practices that were discussed Ín that forum, whlch was

9 known as a "patlent centered-care huddle", would then, the

10 charnpions would then go back to their units and departments and

11 share those best practices with the rest of their, with the t:est

L2 of their department.

13 TdealÌy/ we would have patient centered-care charnpions

L4 from each of the shifts so that the best practices were fuÌÌy

15 permeating the entire organization top to bottom thr:oughout the

L6 entire day.

f7 Q And yorl were doing this personaÌly?

18 A Yes, for four years.

19 Q And when you say that you would help them to deescaÌate

20 thlngs what do you mean by that?

2L A We]l. the PCC Champions for example would be the

22 individuals that would be on the unit. And although I wou.ld be

23 one of the peopLe that would facilitate the discussion and the

24 diaLoq the mental health workers, psychiatric technic.ians, the

25 sociaL work assistants, the EC CÌerks, the individua.Ls that
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1 would be identified as the champions would talk about that from

2 the more cÌ.inical standpoint because that was there hands-on

3 expert.ise.

4 Q And what is "deescalating patients"?

5 A Deescalating a patient ln a psychiatric envlronment is

6 something that can oftentimes be done through therapeutic

7 communication, being an active fistener, making good eye

I contact. sometimes not havinq eye contact with the patient other

9 times, but for the careqivers to be able to read the patient to

10 know if that was agitating or escaLating the situation, or .if

11 their therapeutic or tone of their voice was helping to relax

L2 the patient or deesca.Iate the patient.

13 Q So. deescafate refers to behavior that the patient has

14 exhibÍted?

15 A Yes. So, an agitated patient, for exampLe, there couÌd be

16 a number of ways. There's no one right way to deescafate the

a7 patient. But one of the things that t.he PCC. the Patient

18 Centered-Care Champions that I was leading for four years/ one

1"9 of the things we introduced was something called the "service

20 recovery tooÌ kit", and that servlce recovery tool kit was a way

2L for us to acknowledge, apoLogize and amend.

22 If for example a menta] heaLth worker needed to transport

23 a patient to a procedure in the inpatient setting/ and say the

24 patient had to wait for what they perceived to be a long tíme ín

25 a medicaÌ surgical hospital a 1O-minute wait may nol upset a
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1 patient. But a 1O-minute wait for a psychiatric patient could

2 cause them an inordinate amount of stressr so a de-escalation

3 technique may be to offer them something as a way to acknow.Ledge

4 what they're going through.

5 lt couLd be a calling card if thatrs something they

6 wished. It could be reading materials. ft could be a number of

7 things, but it's a way to provide exceptional service and care

I to our patients, and that's something that's impor.tant for all

9 employees at the vlestchester Divis.ion not just those that are

10 direct care providers, such as me and human resources.

11 Q So, I understand that a patient could act out at any time,

L2 and whoever is in the area has a respons.ibility for

13 appropl:iately responding to the pat.ient's behavior?

L4 A Sure, in a psychiatric setting, true, a patient could

l5 oecome aggressive. absolutely.

L6 Q And what do you mean by "aggressive"? The reader of this

L7 record probably has never been .in a psychiatric hospital . What

18 kind of behavior by the patients is cons.idered aggressíve? T'm

L9 sure therers a spectrum to that, but can you describe the

20 spectrum of the types of behavior that personnel at the hospita.l

2'L would have to deal with?

22 A Sure- As I visit the inpatient units on a regular basis,

23 I mean patients, many of the patients, l mean are/ are/ they're

24 just wonderful people. But some of the patients are very

25 curious to know who I am. Some may use very colorfuf language
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1 to welcome me to the unit, or to inquire as to why I'm there.

2 Some patients/ for exarnpÌe, have a very adverse reaction to an

3 individua.l wearing a suit and tie.

4 They may not have had a good exper.ience with someone with

5 a suit and tie before. They may not have a good experience with

6 someone who wears a uniform. For examp.Le, maybe Ìaw

7 enforcement/ other individuals, they may perceive that as a

I threat to them. So, for a security person to be on a inpatient

9 unit for some patients could cause them to b'ecome aggressiwe-

10 So, in those lnstances patients can become aggressive in a

11 number of ways. They can yell. They can raise thelr voice.

12 They can physicaÌÌy harm other patients, health care

13 professionals, admìnistrators, visitors. They can throw things.

f4 They spit. They may throw bodiLy fLuids.

15 There are a number of ways in which a patient in a

f6 psychiatr.ic setting can become aggressive, and for all

L7 lndividua.Is to be trained on how to deescalate patients is very

18 important. And many of the employees in the hosp.ital go through

19 something calÌed "CPI", or Crisis Prevention Intervention

20 training.

2L Q What.is "CPI"?

22 A CPI Training is a very speciallzed form of de-escalation

23 training and it helps mentaÌ health, behavioral health and

24 psychiatric professionals resolve and deescafate serious patíent

25 situations in which they may become aggresslve or upset.
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1 Q And do non-professional employees in the unit, identified

2 on Exhibit One, do they receive thls CPI Training as welf?

3 A Yes, they do.

4 Q So, it's not limited to professionaÌ empÌoyees.

5 A No, not at all Anyone that works with patients.

6 outpatient or inpatlent, many individuaLs who are not even

7 c]in.ica.L prof essionals would also receive that tra.ining.

I Q And woufd you explain the I guess it starts, you started

9 to say this ín the orientation. how workers are trained from the

10 beginning to deal with patients. I beLieve you started earlier

11 today to talk about the orientation process.

L2 A Yes.

13 Q And I think you made reference to Plain Tree?

L4 A The Plain Tree model.

15 Q What is the PÌain Tree modeL?

16 A The Plain Tr:ee mode.I of patient centered-care was

L7 developed in the 1970s by a former patient, who was in

l8 California, who was very concerned that her inpatient

L9 hosp.italization was one that seemed very cold, where there r,,ras

20 not a lot of staff co.llaborat.ion. where there was not a ]ot of

2L cohesive care or treatment for her. and as she was discharged

22 she developed what ís now "Plaln Tree"-

23 The Westchester Division is currentÌy a Plain Tree

24 affiLiated hospital, and we are in the process of hopefully

25 achieving PÌain Tree designation status. Vùe wouLd be the first

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, Nev, .Jersey 07 47 O

(973l- 692 - O66O



76

1 free-standing psychiatric faciÌity in the world to achieve that

2 great honor. But the P.Iain Tree phiÌosophy has multiple

3 components of it that try to myst.ify and humanize the heafth

4 care, behaviora.l health care experience for patients-

5 As you can imagine psychiatric patients generally are

6 suffering from their mental illness throughout their Ìives.

7 Itt s not something where they have it one day and it goes away.

I They have their mental hea]th, their mental illness with them

9 pr.imarily throughout the.ir entire Ìives. So, they would be

10 hospitaLized potentiaLly at muÌtiple times throughout their

11 lives, or they would receive outpatient services when they're

L2 not hospitalized, or receive therapeutic interventions as

13 needed -

a4 But the P.La.in Tree approach is one that tries to create

15 more of a hone Ìike setting in a hospital So, for example,

16 baking bread, or the srnells of fresh baked cookies would

a7 something that would be very important in a behavioraÌ heaÌth

18 institution so that it doesn't seem as sterile or as clinical as

19 a typical hospital or a medicaÌ surgicaL hospltal.

20 There's great. ther:e's great effort that qoes into

2L choosing the esthetics of the hospital so that it's calming,

22 soothing. You may use bÌue or yellow as opposed to steriÌe

23 !,rhite on the inpatient units. Group actlvities, human

24 interactions is a major component of the Plain Tree philosophy.

25 And if you know anything about psychiatric care of
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1 patients group therapy is vitaÌ for a patient, for patient
2 breakthroughs, if you witÌ, for them to sit in their room in a

3 medical surgicaÌ hospital, someone with a broken leg wouÌd be

4 perhaps in their bed aLL day- fn a psychiatric hospitaÌ group

5 therapy and group sessions are very important for patients to
6 interact not only with their caregivers but to interact with
7 other patlents.

8 In a Plain Tree facifity running water is very important.
9 So, as you come into our Center Buifding, for example, or water

10 general we have a very big fish aquarium. tt just, it adds to
11 the therapeutic environment in which we treat our patlents. But

72 one of the other components of plain Tree is that there is a

13 colÌaboration between aÌÌ of the jobs, alt of the disciplines
L4 within the hospital.
15 life are all caregivers. lr7e can each take the time to
16 Ìisten to patients. We can each take the time to assist a

A7 patient. In a Plain Tree facil.ity, for example, if a patient is
18 lost, we wouldnrt just point down the haÌl and say the room

19 you're Ìooking for is down there/ we would escort the patient,
20 everyone of us from our senior administrators to the human

21- resources team to the great staff we have on the units, we

22 personaÌ 1z e -

23 Q Idould that include the maintenance workers or the office
24 workers ?

25 A Absolutefy. The maintenance workers for exampfe wouÌd be
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1 very important .in our Plain Tree approach because they would

2 help choose the co]ors for examp.Le that would go on the

3 inpatient units. They also have to go through very specialized

4 training, the maintenance lndiwiduals. If they bring their

5 cart, or their tool care onto a unit there is a very special way

6 in which it's, it can never be left unattended.

7 A patÍent could take a hammer, or could take another toof

I or something where they could harm themsefves, or could create

9 an elopement precaution. So, yes, I mean the maintenance

10 workers are very, wery much a part of the larger treatment team.

11 And they would often come .in contact with patients and they,

L2 too, wouLd need to know that they should listen to the patients

13 if they have questions because it may not take much to aggravate

14 or escaÌate a patient if they felt they were ignored, or if they

15 felt shunned.

L6 Q And when theyrre on the units do the, do they interact

L7 with the mental health workers and the other workers on the

18 unit s ?

19 A Yes, they lrou.Id interact with the unit clerks, the mental

20 health workers - The unit clerk for example cou.Id very well be

2L the individual, primarily be the individuaÌ if there were a

22 broken Ìight, or a light fixture that needed attention, or if

23 they're needed to be touchup paint, or there needed to be a

24 patient lledroom that needed to be renovated or fixed.

25 The unit clerk for example would be the person that would
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1 p.Iace what we refer to as a "Sentact Order", S-E-N-T-A-C-T,

2 thatrs an e.Iectronic serwlce request. And the unit cferks

3 would, for example, or the staff assistants/ or the

4 admlnistrative assistants would place those Sentact orders, and

5 it immediately would notify the proper person, whether il's

6 buiÌding services for a cleanup. whether it's routine

7 maintenance from any of the other individuals.

I If paper tor,nels needed to be repLenished it can aÌl be

9 done through the Sentact system and it generates an eÌectronic
10 work order.

11 Q How do you effectuate the teaching of thls collaboration
L2 approach or the Pfain Tree model, how is that taught to the new

13 employees ?

L4 A Well. it's taught --
15 Q And can you start maybe at the orientation, how often do

L6 you do orientation?

a7 A Sure. Orientation, we wouLd have 10 general employee

18 orientation sessions per year, so they're roughly five weeks

f9 apart.

20 Q And who goes to orientation?

2a A AII new employees or any individual that is being

22 reinstated, anyone that perhaps feft the organization for a year

23 for maternìty Ìeave, to raise a famlly, if they're coming back

24 to the organlzation with more, more than a one year break in

25 service they would go through orientation.
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1 Q And what is taught about the Plain Tree modeL and how to

2 interact with patients and staff in the orientation process?

3 A WeÌl, that's a significant portion of genera.L employee

4 orientation. and it starts irith an overview of the hospital's

5 core va.Lues. There are six values.

6 O l¡ihat are the six values ?

7 A Respect/ responsibiLity, team work, excellence,

I innovation, and empathy. And some of the core components of the

9 PLain Tree model they obviously incorporate each of the core

10 values but team work, we're al] caregivers. Empathy, we a]l

11 need to walk in our patients' shoes- I/ie need to be abÌe to help

L2 them. We need to be ab]e to understand them and to pr:ovide to

13 them any service within our power to do so.

L4 So, they're introduced to the core values of the hospital.

15 They wouÌd be inl-roduced to the hospital's strategic initiatives

16 and patient centered-care- tr{e put patients first is that core

L7 strategic init.iative. If we are not working as a col.Laborative

18 team to care for patients then we cannot be an effective

19 behavioral heaLth hospital. And as we've aÌÌ seen many

20 hospitaLs around New York unfortunately have closed and that's

2L one of the ways that we remain viable working together.

22 Q And you' re persona.lly invo.lved in the or.ientatÍons ?

23 A Yes. Yes, T am. I weÌcome each of the new employees to

24 orientation and I fead the hospital's we.Lcome pl:esentation which

25 .is an overview of the hospital's hlstory, and entitÌed
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1 "Defivering ExceÌlence in Health Care". And as needed I aÌso

2 cover the corpol:ate compÌiance section of orientation with our

3 partners in corporate compÌlance.

4 And then there is an introduction by our senior leadership

5 team to our Plain Tree phiÌosophy. And it telts, lt educates

6 all of our new hires as to the irnportance of our patient

7 centered-care modeÌ of Pfain Tree, and that's in generaÌ

I employee or ientation.

9 Q Noü¡, staying with the general employee orientation is
10 infection controÌ a topic that aÌl of the employees could come

11 in training on?

L2 A Yes. it's a very important part.

13 Q Worifd you describe what that is?

L4 A One Õf our FNPS/ or Family Nurse Practitioners, Ralphene

15 Matesuzwski.

16 Q And a nurse practítioner is not a - is that a

L'7 professionaÌ, what ls a Nurse Practitioner?
18 A A Eami.Ly Nurse Practitioner is, it's a very highÌy

19 skilÌed, hiqhly trained nurse. This one that leads that portion
20 of orientation is also the manager of our medical clinic.
2L MR. FRÀNK: In terms of the stipulation can we stipulate
22 that aff physicians, Registered Nurses, and other professionals

23 are excluded frorn this unit?

24 MR. DORN: Yes.

25 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Okay, the partles have
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1 stipulated, the stipulation 1s received.

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q tr{ould you describe the infection control trainlng of the

4 orientat.ion? I interrupted you in alÌ of that.

5 A Sure.

6 Q You had gotten to the nurse practitioner, so I just want,

7 I realized we had not dealt with that on the stipu.Lation. So,

I you were starting to te]l us what the initial training is on an

9 infection control unit.

10 A Sure. fn any hospital envlronment --
11 Q Just deal with your hospital.

f2 A In the behavioral health care environment it's very

13 important for aÌl mentaL health professionals to be trained on

L4 how to lessen the likelihood of spreading infectious diseases.

15 We're stil] in the middLe of coÌd and flu season, for exampÌe,

16 so that would be a major component of the training-

77 In the hospital setting we can't emphasize enough that
18 Nosocofmia or hospital acquired infections are somet.imes the

L9 number one cause of harm to patients in a hospital setting, so

20 that is a discussion with the employees about the importance of

2L hand washing, hand hygiene, and making sure they realize that .if
22 they can't get the soap and water that they pure out Õften.

23 Hand hyglene is something that the Joint Commission, the

24 Office of Menta.I HeaLth, the Department of Health and alÌ of our

25 regulatory agencies survey us on- They want to see the data for
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1 that, in particular. And, you know, our goaÌ is be, you know,

2 as cÌose to 100 percent compliant with hand i\¡ashing and hand

3 hygiene at afl times.

4 But in a psychlatric setting, for example if a patient is

5 being restrained that's someth.ing that we try to rninimize as

6 much as possible through therapeutic dlscussion with the

7 patients, but there are occasions where patients do need to be

I restraÍned against their wil.L.

9 The patient for example may spit, may f.LalL and punch/ so

10 there's a discussion with the individuals that would be

11 responsib.le for intervening in an episode of patient restraint

1-2 or patient seclusion to make sure that they understand that they

13 need to put on an appropriate leve.I of gown, perhaps, or a face

14 shield, gloves as theyrre intervening to restrain that patient

15 if necessary -

L6 Q And this is par:t of the orientation that al.L empfoyees go

L7 through?

18 A Yes.

19 Q You also mentioned that the Code of Conduct was discussed.

20 tr{hat is the Code of Conduct?

21- A The hospital's Code of Conduct is a multipage document

22 that brinqs empLoyees, it raises thelr awareness as to some of

23 the things that we can and can't do in a behavioral heaÌth

24 setting. For example, T had lndicated earfier that mental

25 heaLth professionals couldn't accept a tip from a patient,

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wayne, New ,fersey 0747O
(973) 692- O66O



84

1 b'ecause some of our patients hawe very limited means and they

2 might not be able to give you a dollar for carrying their bag,

3 another patlent might be able to.

4 And we wouÌd never want to create a situation where some

5 patients felt that they would receive better care or treatment

6 because they had means- !r7e treat all of our patients very we1Ì.

7 trde treat them a.l.L equally, so that's something that wouLd be

I covered in our Code of Conduct. Our corpol:ate compliance team

9 wouLd specialize in that. They would share with them the

10 document that re-emphasizes our values.

11 There wou]d be references to the Nel,/ York State and

12 Federal FrauduÌent Claims Act, for example doubfe bi.Il.ing or

13 fraudulent billing is something that is obviousÌy illegal and

14 improper. But we want all individuals to know upfront, you

15 know, whether they're responsibÌe for updating a medicaÌ chart,

16 whether it's in the EC, the Evafuation Center, or Access

L7 Services, or on an inpatient unit, if therers a simpfe mistake,

18 if something is coded as 0-0-1, and it's really 0-1-0. the

19 Federal Government, CMS woufd not distinguish between an honest

20 mistake and something that was intentional.

2l The hospital woufd obviously have to .explaln that, woufd

23 Q Do you tra.in them on how to make corrections

24 appropr.iately?

25 A We tr:ain them how to doubLe check their work before they
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1 wouLd, or the importance of doul:le checking their work to make

2 sure that we have as few errors on the business side of things,

3 just as we would on the coding or the actual direct side of it-

4 Q Is it a fact that employees in the job titÌes on Exhibit

5 One make entries into patient charts and other hospitaÌ records?

6 A Yes, a number of them do. Yes.

7 Q And are these entries that are rnade and revlewed by other

8 empÌoyees in the unit are then processed?

9 A Some could be reviewed by others. Some couÌd be directÌy

10 entered into the patient chaït of the medical record. Some

11 couLd be hard copy paper documents that ultimately wouLd be

1-2 handed off to the med.ical records team from a unit clerk for

13 example scanned and added later, could be a numl¡er of ways.

14 Q And just -
15 HEARfNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: One minute, just before the,

16 just for purposes of getting a complete record, I think it would

17 be better if we just asked. I'm assuming that everyone of these

18 makes entries, for example the cook or something, so just so we

19 have more facts, if you could say which employees would do it,

20 so it just gives us more -
2I MR. FR-ANK: What I was trying to do is start !,rith -
22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIfEB: fn a]l of them.

23 MR. FRANK: Do you want to go through all the jobs?

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: YeS.

25 MR. FRANK: Okay. What I was trying to do is show that
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1 since this is a different kind of - institution than the acute

2 care nospitat or the - is that the approach is to start tra.ining

3 everyb,ody from the initial or:ientation in this P.Iain Tree type

4 model where everybody works together. And that it starts at the

5 beginning with the general orientation and the general education

6 because everybody contributes to the same product.

7 And then what I intend to do is qo through each of the job

I descriptions to show how they work together. For example, the

9 mental heaLth workers -
10 MR. DORN: I'm going to object to the

11 MR- FRÄNK: Can I finish my -
L2 MR. DORN: No, T'm going to object to making a statement

13 HEARING OFFïCER GOTTT,IEB: Yes.

L4 MR. DORN: -- that should be obtained thr:ough a witness.

15 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yes. T,et's just, I'm just

L6 thinkinq of getting the best record, the most factual

L7 informâtion. I think it would be better r:ather than keeping,

18 referring to Employer One and getting these overwiews/ to get

19 the more specific facts/ which employees do it. Because it lust
20 uLtimateÌy isnrt that probative when we have it so general, so

2L just in terms of getting a record, and trying to make the use of

22 our time that's what I would just suggest we do. Okay-

23 MR. FRANK: May I add one thing to the record?

24 MR. DORN: No, I object.

25 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTT,IEB: Yes, wait until there's a
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1 question. co ahead.

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q Mr. Orconnor, what would you like to add to the record?

4 MR. DORN: l'm go.ing to object to that question.

5 HEARING OFFICER COTTLIEB: YeS.

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q WouÌd you Ìike to clarify your previous answer?

8 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Oh/ it's aÌÌ right, go ahead.

9 MR. FRANK: I just beLieve Mr. Dorn doesn't want a fuÌÌ

10 record.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Yes/ no/ I mean

L2 MR. DORN: I object to the statement.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, no.

14 MR- DORN; Don't teÌÌ me what T want -
15 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: A.l.l right, no

16 MR. DORN: -- you worry about yourself.

17 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: For the purposes of the record

18 I agree. l,et him clarlfy his position. Go ahead.

19 THE VüITNESS: One of the items that you had brought up, it

20 may not seem obvious in a different work setting that a cook,

2\ for example, or someone in food nutrition wouLd be very invo.Lved

22 wíth the medical record, but they would be very knowledgeable of

23 the medical record l¡ecause patients come in with severaf dietary

24 restrictions. They may have alÌergies, and those would be

25 updated with our food nutrítion team on a very regular basis.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Okay- Vùe]Ì, whatever the facts

2 aîe, I donrt know the facts but I'm just saying that the

3 testimony is go generaf it doesnrt give me that, so maybe if we

4 cou.Ld just get more specific testimony, but thank you.

5 MR. FRANK: f be.líeve I started to ask the witness about

6 the mentaÌ health worker, and counse.L for the Union objected

7 that he didn't have familiar knowledge to be testifying. And I
I was trying to establlsh that he does have this personal

9 knowledge of h.is invo.lvement .in these prÕgrams -

10 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, no, go ahead.

11 MR. FRANK: So, I'm more than happy to go back -
12 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes. no, go ahead, proceed.

13 MR. FRANK: I'm trying to lay a foundation so we don't
14 hawe an object.ion for each job title as to whether ol: not the

15 wÍtness can testify.

L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Off the record. The

I7 witness just needs some water.

18 MR. FRANK: Oh. sure.

19 (Off the record)

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; Back on the record.

21- BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q Mr. O'Connor, I beÌíeve some time ago you were talking
23 about observe/ or mental heafth workers escol:ting patients into

24 the cafeteria area -

25 A Yes.
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1 Q I befieve counsel again objected to that testimony- What

2 was your testimony based on?

3 A ltrs based on my observations. based on me spendinq time

4 in the cafeteria as well, and see my colÌeagues and co-workers

5 who are escorting patients to the cafeteria, who would be on

6 leveÌ four, a level five pass that allows patlents to get off

7 the unit.

8 Q Would you describe what a level four or a leveL fiwe pass

9 is?

10 A My understanding of what the pass is, is thatrs what

11 al.Iows patients who have throughout the course of their

a2 treatment demonstrated that they are welf enough to get off one

13 of the locked inpatient psychiatrlc units with a proper escort.

14 Sometlmes they would be a.llowed to go on grounds- lt's not just

15 to the cafeteria. They could go to the cashier:. They can go to

L6 the gift shop. They may go to the poof.

1,7 They may go to, they may go to a dlfferent area or part of

18 the hospital, Õr the hospitaL grounds under proper supervision,

L9 .it's not just the cafetería but it could be and often is.

20 Q Before I go into more of the specific things, does the

2a hospital have a colnmon program of benefits for health insurance

22 for its empÌoyees?

23 A Yes.

24 Q And do all of the empLoyees, with job titles on Employer:

25 Exhibit One, get the same b,enefits, heaLth insurance, pension
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1 bene fit s ?

2 A Yes, they wouLd.

3 Q Can you generaLly describe the health benefits?

4 A WeÌ1, the hea.Lth benefits for exampLe they're introduced

5 to those at our general employee orientation program. lfe have

6 the Empire PLan. We offer them two choices, but that is for aff

7 of their heaLth care medical coverage and all employees in the

I hospita.l become ellqibLe for the heafth benefíts of their choice

9 after two full months of service.

r0 Q And is the pension plan applicable to all of the employees

11 in the job categories on Exhibit One?

f2 A Yes, it is, that wouÌd be our Cash BaLance Retlrement

13 Plan -

14 Q And is rhaf -
15 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTIIEB: The Empire is Empire Bfue

L6 Cl:os s, Blue Shield?

L7 THE ù/ITNESS: Empire Blue Cross. Blue Shleld, yes-

18 HEARING OFFICER COTTI,IEB: Okay.

19 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q Describe the, the holiday policies are the same for, what

2L is the holiday policy for alL of the job categories in the non-

22 professional workforce group ?

23 A It's the same for everyone. AÌ] of our employees are

24 eligible and entitled to 12 paid hotidays per year- Eight of

25 those holidays are legal holidays - One is a hospital recoqnized
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t holiday which ís the Friday after Thanksgiving. And three are

2 personal hoLidays that all employees earn or accrue on the same

3 day in the year-

4 So. for example, March 1"t, each year every ernployee

5 Tegardless if it's their first day of work, or if they,ve been

6 with us for 50 years, woutd get that personal hoÌiday. And they

7 car' use that day for any. for any Leave that they wish w.ithín 90

I days of earning that.

9 On June 1"t of each year afl hospital employees wouLd earn

10 a second personal holiday. And on September 1"t, all hospital
11 employees earn a personal holiday as weÌf. And our empÌoyees

t2 like the flexibiÌity of that hoÌiday -
13 MR. DORN; Objection to what the employees presumably

L4 liked.

15 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, yes.

L6 MR. FRANK: lf I may. After the witness is flnished it is
1-7 proper to make a motion tô strike. It is not proper for a

18 Ìawyer: tô ìnterrupt a witness if he doesn't Ìike what he's

L9 hearing. Let the wltness finish and have that courtesy and then

20 make your objection or your motion to strike. But Mr. Dorn is
2L not entitled to just interrupt the witness when he wants to-
22 MR. DORN: I thought he was through-

23 MR. FRANK; And T would ask

24 MR. DORN; I thought he was.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Atl right, and it's true that
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t he doesnrt know what the employees, what they like about ít or

2 noL, or I donrt know. Itrs not the most -
3 MR. FRANK: Maybe he does.

4 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Maybe he does actuafÌy f have

5 to say. I mean we don't know that ltrut it's not the most

6 reÌevant thing anyway one or the other, so just go ahead, it's

7 fine.

I MR. FRANK: I'm just asking for some basic courtesy and

9 that's what Cross examinat.ion is for --
10 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: No, it's fine, go ahead.

11 MR. ERANK: -- how do you know that.

L2 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTT.IEB: Go ahead.

13 BY MR. FRANK:

L4 Q Now, what are the hours of wÕrk?

15 A Well, our --
'1,6 Q For: all employees generaf Ly?

17 A We are a 24-1 , 365 day a year operation. [de never cJ-ose

18 and we haven't since 1894 when we opened. But the hours of

19 operation and the hours that the employees work would be simifar

20 across aÌl of our non-professional job titles.

2L Q And how many shifts are there generalÌy?

22 A GeneraÌly there are three shifts each day.

23 Q And is there a corrrmon cafeteria for employees?

24 A Yes/ there is, but it's a common cafeteria for patients as

25 we. I as empJoyees.
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.I Q Now, are there social events that the empfoyees in the job

2 categories described in Exhibit One attend. can you describe

3 some of thos e ?

4 A Sure/ there are a number of socia.L events that are - we

5 have a committee called "Making it Better for Employees

6 Comlnittee". We would host a number of employee recognition and

7 celebration events each year. The first that we woufd hofd

8 wouÌd be something we call the "Spring Fhnq", and that ls our

9 employee cocktai.I parly. All employees are invited to it-

10 Genera.Lfy over 200 employees attend each Spring. This wouÌd be

11 our sixth year conducting that, that's on March 31"t this year

L2 if anyone wouLd like to come.

13 We also have a number of pool pal:ties and B-B-QS,

a4 cookouts, that the management prowides fÕr staff where we wouÌd

15 do the grilling and the cooking and provide the food and the

16 beverages. FamÍlies are encouraged to bring famiÌy members to

f"7 those events. And depending on the weather we try to do

18 anywhere from one to three per sunìmer,

L9 On each August, we hawe an annual employee recognltion

20 event, again the management team prepares food for all of the

2L empÌoyees, and we have two events, one is a breakfast to

22 celebrate and recoqnize our night staff, and the other is an

23 outdoor event generatly heÌd on Taylol: Lawn. And that's

24 something that's a Long tradition I beÌieve at least 30 years

25 that we've been doino that.
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1 We afso have a holiday tea that goes back to the Late

2 I910s. And we have three wery special award categorles where we

3 recognize our empLoyees. We hawe a Hamilton Award, a Pandorf

4 Award, and a Senior Caring Award. And the holiday tea, we would

5 recognize lhree Hamilton Award winners, one Pandorf Award

6 winner, and one Senior Caring Award wlnner- And those are

7 individuafs that are nominated by their peers, by their

8 management team for recognition.

9 And on top of that we have over 20 depar:tments'

10 recognition events throughout the hospital. Nursing Week for

11 example wiÌl be in May. Sociaf Work recognition month is this
L2 month which is March. Mental health workers, psychiatric

13 technicians, LPNS are afl recognized annuaÌly at Nursing Support

L4 Staff event. But human resources would have a recognition event,

15 so we have over 20 additiona.L department specific recognition

16 events.

a7 MR. FRANK: This is marked as Employer Exhibit Four, it's

18 the job description for mental hea.Lth workers.

19 (Employer ExhibiÈ Four identified)

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Thank you.

21. BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q Mr. O'Connor, if you would take a moment to review what's

23 been marked as Employer Exhibit Four.

24 A Okay.

25 Q Can you describe what Exh.ibit E-,4 i' ñrôrcô?
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1 A Exhibit E-4 is a mentaf health worker joÌ: descriptíon for

2 the Westchester Division. Itìs a job, or it's a job summary of

3 all of the dut.ies and responsib.ilities that a rnentaf health

4 vrorker would be responsible for performing on an inpatient

5 psychiatric unit.

6 Q And this is an official hospital document?

? 
^ 

v^ê it- iê

I Q And what are the principle duties of the mental health

9 worke r ?

10 A To observe the patient's

11 MR. DORN: Irm going to object if the document ls going to

L2 sought to be put in evidence, the document speaks for itseÌf, I

13 assume.

f4 MR. FRANK; Itrs not yet in evidence, counseÌ.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes. I mean if you't:e goj-ng to

16 testífy don't read the document. If you can put it down and -
l7 THE ù/ITNESS: Sure.

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-ÌEB: -- if you could testify from

L9 your own personal experlence.

20 THE WÌTNESS: Okay.

21 MR. FRANK: Has this now become an adversarial hearing as

22 opposed to a representation hearing? I mean -
23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, it's

24 MR. FRANK: WelÌ, T

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: T understand what he was saying
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1 but go ahead. Hers put it down and he's going to testify, so go

2 ahead.

3 MR. FRANK: I thought it was an introductory, I mean -
4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: co ahead.

5 MR. FRANK: -- if we're going to have an adwersary

6 hearing, I'If be -
7 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No. no, itrs a fact finding

I hear.ing, go ànead -

9 BY MR. FRANK:

L0 Q Generally what do mental health workers do?

11 A GeneralÌy mental health workers supervise patients,

L2 psychiatric patients in an inpatient behavioral health setting.
13 They wouÌd be responsibLe for a number of things, some of them

L4 we've discussed. some we haven't. Some of the uníts may have

15 patients that are more in need of asslstance than others, for

76 example on our Two Nol:th Unit which is our mature adu]t or

!7 ger.iatric unit that primarily serves an older population or a

18 less indlwidually capable population.

L9 Something referred to as "Cares" may be performed by a

20 mental hea]th worker, which wouÌd inwoÌve bathing, toileting
2L those patients, changinq a diaper, but it's realÌy --
22 Q Now, do they work with Licensed Practical Nurses

23 sometlme s ?

24 A Yes, on a regular l¡asis.

25 Q And where would, on what units would that occur?
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1 A Wherever the LPNS are assigned.

2 Q And do they work other categories of employees?

3 A They wou.Ld work with every category of empÌoyee both on

4 the unit and many, many different ernployee job categories off

5 the unit. For example a mental heaÌth worker would work very

6 closely L¡ith the unit clerk- The unit clerk would Jtre

7 responsible for maintaining the nursing station and organizing

B many of the clerical responsibilities of the unit. They would

9 very c.Losely with the psychiatric technicians.

10 Q What do the psychiatric technicians do? ü7e'll get to them

11 but.

12 A Sure. A psychiatric technician is essentiaÌly a senior

13 ÌeveÌ mental hea.Lth worker.

L4 Q And \,,¡hat are the general hours that the mental heafth

15 workers work, are they three shift workers?

)-6 A Yes .

a7 Q And do they get the same Ì:eneflts as you described

18 generally for this group?

L9 A Yesf they do.

20 Q Vüho superwises the mentaÌ health workers?

2L A The mental heaÌth workers work under the supervision of

22 the patlent care d.irector or the nurse in charge.

23 Q How wouÌd mentaf hea]-th workers sign in when they come to

24 work. tlme cards, how is that done?

25 A Mental health workers wou.Ld siqn in to work for paper
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1 purposes, t.ime and attendance purposes the same as every other

2 employee. Vüe have a system in the hospital called "KRONOS",

3 K-R-O-N-O-S, it's an eÌectronic tlme keeping system. And we

4 have numerous KRONOS time terminals that are located throughout

5 the hospital . And it's a Ìittle box. maybe one foot by one foot

6 in size, and it would be waLl mounted.

7 And a.L.L emp.Loyees includ.ing menta.L health workers would go

8 to the KRONOS Unit that would be closest to theiT work station

9 or the.ir work area, and they would do one of two things. They

10 would either swipe their employee identification badqe that's,

11 the newer ones have a magnetic strip on the back. They would

12 swipe their card or they would enter their unique individual

13 empLoyee lD number, .it's a six digit number.

L4 ff the magnetic strip did not work, it's a redundant

15 system that a.L.Iows them to clock in. And aÌl empfoyees are then

L6 required to validate their punch by using one. the.ir left or

r'7 thelr right finger, usually the index finger as a biometric

18 verification measure to insure that that individual is the

L9 person that actua.Lly c.Locked in, and that allows us to --
20 employees appropriately for alL hours worked.

2L Q And that poÌìcy appLies to all of the employees that we're

22 taLking about in the --
23 A We I I, thàt --
24 a -- Employer Exhibit one?

25 A AÌ1 of the employees that are identlfied on EmpÌoyer
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1 Exhiblt One, this document, would be required to go through a

2 second step that professional employees wou]d not, for example.

3 Q Do all ernpÌoyees have ID Cards?

4 A Yes.

5 Q What do the TD Cards say?

6 A The hospita.L's policy on this which is under our dress

7 code pollcy that requires that all behavioral health

8 professionaÌs wear their ID befow their neck and above thelr

9 waist, alÌ hours while at work.

10 Q That's an HR policy?

11 A That 1s an HR policy.

L2 Q And is there a standard HR policy whereby mental health

13 workers are allowed to raise grievances or concerns to,

L4 regarding discipLine or issues with human resources?

15 A Yes. There's a grievance poLicy- There's a grievance

L6 procedure. There are three steps to the grievance procedure,

a7 and --
18 Q Is that applicable to aLl of the employees that we're

1-9 ta.l king about ?

20 A Yes/ alÌ employees have access to that policy and to the

2l grievance procedure.

22 Q Now, on the/ one of the items on the job description wou.ld

23 be f.irst implementing a nurslng care pÌan. My question is to

24 implement the nursing care plan for the patients who does the

25 mental health worker communicate with to understand the pLan and
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1 imp.Lement what needs to be done for the patients? I'm looking

2 for r.rhat is the work team that works together with the mental

3 heafth worker to implement the patient care plan?

4 A They could and wouÌd work with a number of people on a

5 treatment team depending on the individuaÌ patient. So, for

6 exampLe, they could work very cLose.Ly with the social work

7 depar:tment. They could vJork. they woufd work very cfosefy with

I the PSR, or Psychosocial Rehabilitation Department- PSR is

9 responsible for running group sessions, group therapy- They

10 couÌd work with the nursing staff.

11 Q In terms of job titles. you have in front of you that

f2 Exhìbit One with some of the job titles?

13 A Yes.

f4 Q It's looks like in the sociaÌ work department what jobs

15 wouLd the mental health worker - employees .in what job

L6 categor:ies of the sociaf work department could the mental hea.Lth

f7 worker can interact with? [dould that be the --
18 MR- DORN: objection- He keeps leading the wítness. He

L9 asked the question, let the witness answer.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Yes/ I mean if you could

2I rephrase the question, I agree.

22 BY MR. FRÀNK:

23 Q You testified that they interact with the social work

24 department. My question is can you identify specific job tìtles

25 that they interact with?
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1 A The social work asslstant ls identified on thÍs as the

2 assistant social work, but the actual titÌe is sociaf work

3 assistant.

4 Q Are there other., welL what about the senior sociaÌ work

5 as sl stant ?

6 A And the senlor sociaÌ work assistant, yes/ they would work

7 ver:y closely vr.ith those two groups . I, primar.i.Ly at the t.ime

B that the patient is nearing, hopefuÌly nearing discharge, the

9 sociaf work staff, the sociaL work assistants would work with

10 the mental health workers and the other caregivers to insure

11 that the medicaf record properly identified how well the patient

)-2 was doing so that they could best determine if that patient were

13 nearìng dìscharge.

L4 Q And woufd the LPNs have any role in thìs impÌementation of

15 the nursing p.Lan for pat.ients, nursing care plan?

L6 A Sure. The nurses spend a considerable amount of time on

L7 the inpatient unìts. They are around the psychiatric patients

18 on a reguLar basis. And they afso would admin.ister medications

a9 for example to the patients and that couÌd be a part of the

20 treatmenl- pfan -

2)- Q And you're referring the Licensed Practical Nurses?

22 A The LPNS/ yes.

23 Q Do the hall aldes interact at all with the mental health

24 workers ?

25 A Yes-
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1 Q And what is that interactlon?

2 A The interactlon is sígnificant. There are assigned hatl
3 aides to each of the inpatient units. It affows the buiÌding
4 service team or the hall aide to get to know the patients and to
5 get to know the professionaf and non-professional team on the

6 unit, so that they can work more collaborativeÌy and cohesiveÌy.

7 So/ for exampÌe if a patient had an issue in their room,

I if they had a spiLl, or they wet the bed, it wouÌdn't be

9 uncommon for the patient to tell the mentaf hea]th worker, or

10 for the mental health worker to observe that, and for: the mental

11 health worker to then r:elay that to the hal.L alde so that the

L2 halÌ aide coufd attend to or c.Iean the spilÌ, and that's just

13 one exarnple.

14 Q Do the, can you describe the role of the mental health

15 worker in the admission process and who they work with in the

1,6 patient admission proce s s ?

L7 A During the patient admission through the EC, or the

18 Evafuation Center, patients spend a considerable amount of time

19 being processed- That can take a few hours to severaL hours,

20 but when the EC Cferk. the evaluation center clerk --
2L Q Vûhat is the EC Clerk, what dÕes "EC" stand fol: by the way?

22 A Evaluation Center. Tn a psychiatric hospìtal there is no

23 emergency department as you would have in a medical surgica.l or

24 acute care hospital. We don't have EDs, we have ECs, Evafuation

25 Centers because we're deaÌing with healing the mind as opposed
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1 to the body.

2 So, the EC Clerk, or the Evaluation Center Clerk when the

3 admission process has concluded would escort the patlent to the

4 unit they are ltreing admitted to, and they Ìrould then hand off

5 that patient usíng a conÌnon technique known as "Sbar", S-B-A-R.

6 They wouLd explain the situation, get the background of the

7 patient, their: assessment, recommendation.

I And either the mental health worker or the unit clerk on

9 the unit that the patient is arriwing at would then take that

10 patient and orient them to the unit that they are coming into.

11 So, the unit clerk and,/or the mentaÌ health worker could

a2 talk to the patient, orient them, show them where their room ls,

13 give them a Plain Tree bfanket that aff patients get, give them

14 a welcome bag that aÌl patients get/ talk about the ruÌes of the

15 un.it/ taLk about dlfferent mealtímes, snack times for the

f6 patients¡ let know when the next group therapy session is going

L7 to be held, encourage them to attend it/ and introduce them to

18 other patients and caregivers in what is commonly referred to as

1,9 the "llvinq room", but it is a large room where patients

20 congregate when they're outside of their/ when they're outside

2I of their rooms on the units.

22 They can play games there. They can sociafize. They can

23 watch television. But the mental health worker and unit clerks

24 would be primariLy responsible for orienting the patients to the

25 unit that they're arrivlng at.
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1 Q And does the mental health worker have any

2 responslbilities ín regard to insurance information?

3 A That I 'm not sLlre of . the EC cf erk wou]d.

4 Q The EC Clerk does?

5 A Yes.

6 Q Does Exhibit E-4 accurately reflect the job description of

7 the mental hea]th workers?

I A Yes, I believe it does.

9 Q And does the hospitaÌ have a conmon system for grading

IU S a lArÌes 1

11 A Yes, it does.

L2 Q And so this is a job grade W-2?

13 A Yes-

L4 Q And Lhat's part of the corìrnon system of classification?

15 A Yes, it is.
't6 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibit E-4.

17 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-IEB: Any objection?

18 MR. DORN: Just one second. No objection.

19 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, itrs admitted.

20 (Employer Exhibit Four receíved)

2l MR. FRANK: I'd like to have this document marked as

22 Exhibit E-5, the job descriptions for the per diem mental health

23 worker.

24 (Employer Exhibit Five identified)

25 BY MR. FRANK:
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1 Q Have you had a chance to read the exhibit?

3 Q tr{ould you describe what a per diem mentaf health \n¡orker at

4 the hospitaÌ is?

5 A A per diem mental health workers by the nature of thelr

6 work are not full-time or part-time employees. They are at-wifl

7 empLoyees. Many of them work at other heafth care, behavioral

8 health institutions. And as they have free time may wish to

9 pick up extra shifts, for example, they could enter the per diem

to nôôt-

11 And after an appropl:iate or.ientation they would be

L2 assigned to a unit, primarily as their home unit although they

13 can k¡e hlred to work for one shift or a series of shifts

L4 depending on where the patient needs would be at the Westchester

15 Diwision. But simi.Lar to the mental health workers they are

16 primarily responsíble for overseeing and interacting with

17 patients and supporting the clinical team on the inpatient unit

18 to which they're assigned.

L9 One of the things that they are respons.ible for doing with

20 the mentaf heafth worker and per diem mental heaÌth workers is

2L to something known as "sitting status". It can either be "CO

22 Status or MO Status" as --
23 Q I'm sorry to interrupt you, what's "CO Status"?

24 A *CO" is close obserwatlon- So. some patients who may be

25 at risk for injuring themseLves or others wouLd be assigned to
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1 CO Status. The mentaÌ heatth workers or the per diem menta.L

2 heaÌth workers are commonly the indíviduals that would be

3 responsible for. the slanq would be ..sÍttlng status,,, pulÌing a

4 chair up outside the patientf s room. But they're in close
5 proximity to the patient at alf times. They could watch I
6 befieve up to two patients on CO Status at once.

7 So, commonly patients that are on that type of heightened

I observation would be assigned to the same bedroom, so that the

9 same mentaL health worker or per diem mentaÌ heafth worker could
10 watch both patients at once. MO Status is referred to as

11 Maximum Observation Status. This is something that mentat

L2 hea.lth workers and per diem mental health workers primarily do

13 on the inpatient unlts -

L4 And if a patient .is on MO or maximum ollservation statu¡j
15 the mental heaÌth worker, per diem mental health worker. they
L6 are not allowed to take their eyes off the patient at any time.
L7 So, on close observation status they could Look back and forth
18 between the two patients.
L9 lf a patient is so acute that they would be on maximum

20 observatlon status, if the patient needs to bathe, if the

2a patient needs to go to the restroom or the toitet while they're
22 sleeping, that mental heaÌth worker is with them at aLL times

23 because they could be at risk for harming themseLves or others.
24 But that is a key responsibility of the mentaL health workers.

25 Q And -* with the patients of the maximum status that
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1 interchange with other empfoyees the same v,,ay that mental health

2 workers do?

3 A Yes.

4 Q And do the per diem mentaf health workers work on a

5 regular basis, do they scheduÌe themselves regularly or?

6 A They don't. They are per diem employees so they for

7 example might say that they have shÍfts or days that are

I availabfe in the month of ApriL. They would give that to the

9 unit cler:k or the patient care director, whoever is responsible

10 for scheduÌing on the unit, and maybe they have seven days

11 during the month of April that they would be avaiÌable, they

A2 could fet the unit clerk or the scheduling office know that they

13 would be availal¡le if patient acuity were such or staff
a4 vacations required more per diem staff to be hired.
15 There ís a requirement that all mental health workers or

L6 per diem mentaÌ health workers work a certain of number of

L7 shìfts as there are for aÌl per diem staff in a month.

18 Q Generally do they work more than four hours in a pay

L9 period ?

20 A Generally, they do.

2L MR. ERANK: I offer E-5.

22 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Any objectlon?

23 MR. DORN: No objection.

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It'S admitted.

25 (Employer Exhibit Five teceived)
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q What did the psychiatric technicians do?

3 A Psychiatric technicians or Psych Techs are essentially,

4 essentially senior leve.l menta.L heaLth workers- I believe they

5 need to have at .Least two to three years of prior mental health

6 work experience before they can be considered quaÌified to apply

7 far, on that job. It is a career ladder position. Often our

I mentaÌ heaLth workers do appÌy for and are promoted into the

9 psychiatric technician role.

10 There are far fewer psychiatric technicians than there are

11 mental heaÌth workers. But generally their respons.ibilities

L2 wouÌd be similar to mental health workers/ aLthough they do hawe

13 some ability to direct the work of the mentaL heafth workers.

L4 Q Do they have responsibilities regarding blood work deaÌing

15 with those kinds of test resu.Its?

L6 A They can take vital signs and to take vitals. but they

L7 would not draw b.Lood. And I believe crltical r:esults from the

18 laboratol:y for example woufd need to be responded to or accepted

79 by a professionaL staff, nursing in particular.

20 Q Are they involved in having the bLood drawn from patients

2L before meals or is that done by other people?

22 A I belleve that's done by other people. They may assist in

23 escorting the patlent to the area where the phlebotomist is, but

24 the actual process of drawing b.Ioods wôuLd generally not be done

2s by --

BURKE COURT REPORTTNG, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

!f a)me , New ,Jersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692 - O66O



109

1 Q So, phlebotomists withdraw the b.Ioods.

2 A Correct.

3 Q And the psychiatric wouÌd the assistant.

4 A The mental health worker, the psychiatric techniclan, they

5 could assist, absolutety -

6 MR- FRANK: May I have this marked as --
7 MR. DORN: I'm going to object again and ask that it be

I stricken because we keep hearing the word "they m.ight do it,

9 they may do Ít", unÌess we have specific direct testimony I

10 don't think that the testimony shouÌd, that it be str.icken.

11 MR. FRANK: I believe íf Mr. Dorn woufd like to expand the

L2 testimony he can do ít either on Cross examination or put .in a

13 witness, put in other evidence, that's not grounds for striking
14 the testimony.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, I'11 permit it.

L6 MR. FRANK: May T have this marked as Employer Exhibit E-

t7 6, please.

18 (Employer Exhibit Six identified)

19 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q Have you had a chance to revìew Exhibit E-6?

2I A Al mosr. \es.

22 Q And the administrative senior staff nurse referred to in

23 the job titles is that a Registered Nurse?

24 A The administrative senior staff nurse is a Reoistered

25 Nurse, yes, iL is.
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1 Q And is that also true for the Charge Nurse?

2 A Yes, I believe it is-

3 Q Is this an accurate description, this being Emptoyer

4 Exhlbit E-6 of the job description for the psychiatric

5 techni cian?

6 A Yes, it .is.

7 Q And this is a job grade W-3, is that correct?

B A Yes-

9 Q And does this get the same beneflts and subject to the

10 same ru.Ies as the other jobs we've been talking about today?

11 A Yes.

A2 MR. FRANK: I offer E-6.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Any objection?

a4 MR. DORN: No olljection.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB; Admitted-

a6 (Employer Exhibit Six receíved)

17 BY MR. FRANK:

18 Q What do unit clerks do on the unit?

L9 A The unit clerks are primarily responsíble for cÌericaÌ

20 support level activities in the nursing statlon, on each of the

2L inpatient psychiatric units. Unit clerks can receive mail for

22 exampÌe. They can open and disseminate mail. They spend a lot

23 of time on the phone with other disciplines, with other

24 employees throughout the hospitaÌ coordinating care.

25 lt's not uncommon for them to be on the ohone a
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1 significant amount with social work assistants for exampfe

2 preparing for discharge, with our HIM/ or Health Information

3 Management team making sure that the medical record is ready for

4 discharge, makíng sure that itrs accurate during the patient's

5 hospitalization.

6 But they're responsible for coordinating a lot of the

7 nursing station activities for the unit in which they are

I assigned, but pr.imarily it's a clericaf support position on the

9 inpat.ient units.

10 Q !ühat other clerical pos.itions do they interact with?

11 A They interact with every clerical position within the

12 hospital from administrative assistants to staff assistants,

13 office assístants, unit clerks, senior sociaÌ assistants, office

14 assistants in the health information management office, et

15 cetera.

16 Q Don't et cetera/ pÌease go through, like the analysts, I

L7 mean -
18 MR. DORN: Obj ection.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-TEB: No, I mean, that's fine. Go

20 ahead.

2L MR. FRANK: If you're all right with "et cetera",

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No/ no/ I mean T prefer not

23 having et cetera. l'm saying it's fine, just go ahead.

24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q Vüould you please continue, Mr. O'Connor?
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1 A But even the telephone operator, they would have a Ìot of

2 interaction as visitors for the patients come into the Center 
i

3 Building. That's where the receptionist desk is on the main

4 floor of the hospital . The operator primarily after hours would

5 be the one person at the welcome desk and would calt the unlt,

6 and the unit clerk would answer the phone. And the unlt cÌerk
7 would coordinate that patient's visitors arriving to the un.it.

I But as I indlcated the administrative clerk, the

9 administrative assistant, staff assistant.

10 Q And do they receive the same benefits as all of the other

11 c]erica] empÌoyees that are, that you just referred to and are ,

'l-2 descrìbed on Employer Exhibit One?

13 A Yes, the benefits are the same.

f4 Q And do they have the same procedures to signing in and

15 signing out every day?

16 A Yes, they do. i

L7 Q And do they wear uniforms or not or?

18 A they do not wear uniforms and that's primarily by design

L9 and psychiatry- Many of the patients have as I indicated

20 earÌier have sometimes an adverse reaction to individuals in

21 unlform, so at a medical surglcal hospital it's not uncommon for

22 the health care team to wear scrubs but that is very atypical,

23 it's not typical ln a behawioral hatl setting.

24 Q And thatrs for mentaL heaÌth workers as well?

25 A For mental heaÌth workers as wetl. l
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1 Q What ls the unit cÌerk's inwolvement with the maiÌ

2 del.ive ry s ystem?

3 A Oh.

4 Q Do they .interact with ma.i] delivery?

5 A Yes, they do inter:act w.ith the mail deÌivery individual .

6 Every unit receíves unit specific maiÌ each day- The unít c.Lerk

7 is primarily responsible for office clerical work. and as such

I woufd be responsible for opening the maiL, for reviewing it, and

9 for putting it in the appropriate staff member's inbox for

10 example.

11 Q And what is their interaction with the cashier if you can

L2 describe that ?

13 A The unit clerks?
1L ô V^c

15 A The unit clerk would siml]al: to the mental health workers

'L6 would interact with the cashier on a reguLar basis. As one

a7 examp]e our patients are often hospitaÌized for weeks or months.

18 And if they obtain the appr:oprlate fevel of, tf they receive the

f9 appropriate ÌeveÌ, three or four or five. and they're able to

20 get off the unit, the patients it would not be unconìmon for the

2'L unit clerk or the mental health worker to escort them to the

22 cashier.

23 The cashier may or would have their credit card, would

24 have cash that they came into the hospital with, and they, the

25 patient wouLd take out money and go to the qift shop for
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1 example, that cou.Ld Ì:e an award or an incentive for the patlent

2 if they recelved a number of points for good behawior on the

3 unit. The unít cferk or the mentaL heaLth worker would bìring

4 them to the cashier to get their monetary possesslons that the

5 cashíer would keep in the safe so that the patient couLd buy

6 something to take back to the unit with them.

7 MR. FRANK: Now, I'Ì1 try to save some time wíthout going

I through all the details. May I have this marked as Exhibit

9 Seven, a job description for the unit clerk?

10 (Employer Exhibit Seven idenÈified)

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Thank you.

12 BY MR. FRANK:

13 Q Have you had a chance to read through thls?

L4AYes,rhave.

15 Q Ts this an accurate description of the, and more

L6 comprehensive description of the duties of the unit cLerk?

L7 A Yes, it appears to be a very comprehenslve descr.iption of

18 the job duties including showing the interconnectedness of some

a9 many of the departments.

20 Q And this is the hospita.l's current job description for the

2I pos ltion?

22 A Yes, it is.

23 MR. FRANK: I offer E-7.

24 MR. DORN: No objection.

25 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTT.IEB: Admitted.
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1 (Employer Exhibit Seven received)

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q l/úhat is the function of Licensed Practical Nurses?

4 A The LPNS are certified nurses. different from Registered

5 Nurses. They're licensed in a different way and they, they're

6 on the inpatient floors. We have far fewer lPNs than we would

7 Reqistered Nurses. There is no educationaÌ requirement. The

I RN' s for exampÌe woufd have an Associate's or Bachelor's Degree,

9 that is not an requìrement for an LPN, although the LPNS are

10 very important to the other work we do at the Westchester

11 Diwi s ion -

12 They can administer meds. They can take vitafs. They're

13 important members of the team, but at the same time they work

L4 under the direct supervision of a Registered Nurse or the

15 patient care director.

16 Q Is that similar to the mental health workers?

L7 A Yes.

18 Q And what is the interaction between the LPNs and the

19 mentaL health workers ?

20 A The LPNs and the mentaf health workers work very closely

2L togethel: on a daily basis on the same inpatlent units that

22 they're assigned to-

23 Q And what kind of duties do the LPNs provide for the

24 pat-ienrs on the --
25 A The LPNs can administer medications. They can update the
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1 medicaf record that woufd be maintained by HIM. They take

2 vitals, blood pressure. They use the pachometel:. They would

3 use different medica.L devices in the treatment room. But they

4 couÌd aLso assist in interven.ing to deescaLate a patient as

5 other indíviduafs on the unit could.

6 They would be responsib.le for helping to gather patients

7 and bring them to group treatment sessions. They could be

I respons.ible, would be responsible for transporting patients or

9 observing them in their treatment setting if needed.

10 Q What is there .invo.Lvement in prov.iding - comfort and

11 safety on the units?

a2 A Their responsíbility wou.Id be the same as every other

13 individuaL work.ing on the unit to insure that we have an

t4 appropriately safe, you know, unit for our patients to receive

15 care, and for our visitors to v.isit their loved ones.

16 Q Do they receive the same benefìts as you've previously

L7 descrlbed for other employees?

18 A Yes, they do.

L9 Q And do they have the same sign in, sign out procedures?

20 A Yes, they do.

2I Q And do the, where do they eat Lunch?

22 A Many of them eat ]unch in the cafeteria.

23 Q Same one as the mental health workers --
24 A Yes.

25 O -- go to? And do they participate in the events that you
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1 described previous ly?

2 A Yes. One of the events is specificaLly designed to

3 recognize them.

4 MR. FRANK: May I have this marked as EmpLoyer's Exhibit

5 Eight?

6 (EmpJ.oyer Exhibit Eight identified)

7 BY MR. FRANK:

8 Q liüould you please revlew Employer Exhibit Eight?

9 A Okay.

10 Q l¡lould you pLease describe what Employer Exhibit Eight is,

11 sir?

f2 A Employer Exhibit Eight is a job description for Licensed

13 PracticaÌ Nurses, LPNS -

L4 Q And is this the current job description of the hospital

15 for l,icensed PracticaÌ Nurses?

L6 A Yes, j-t is .

f7 Q And does it accurately reflect their duties and

18 responsibilities ?

19 A Yes.

20 MR. FRANK: I of fer: E-8.

21- HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Any objection?

22 MR. DORN: No objection.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay, rece.ived.

24 (Employer Exhibit Eight recêived)

25 MR. DORN: Could we take a break now, please?
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1 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sure, ü¡e'11 take about 10

2 minutes.

3 (Off the record)

4 HEARINC OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record. So, the

5 heaï.ing is adjourned until March 23'd, at 9:30. A hearing wiÌÌ

6 also be conducted on March 28th, at 9:30, March 31"t, in or about

7 lI:30, and April 5th, 7th, and 8th, at 9:30. Thank you very much.

8 (Whereby, aL 4:42 p.m., the heating was adjourned to reconvene

9 aÈ 9:30 a.¡n., on March 23, 2OLl .l

10
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1 PROCEEDINGS

z li" to."u, 1o:i-7 a.m.)

3 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTTIEB: On Èhe record.

4 This is a resumption in the matter of 2-RC-23583. the New

5 York and Presbyterian HospitaÌ.

6 (Whereupon,

7 SEDRICK .f. O'CONNOR,

I was recaÌÌed as a witness by and on behalf of the Employer and,

9 after having been previousÌy duly sworn, was examined and

10 testified as folÌows: )

11 HEARING OEFICER GOTTT,IEB: Good morning, Mr. O'Connor.

1-2 THE WITNESS: Good morning.

13 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yolr are stiLl under oath. T'll
L4 jusu remind you-

15 THE WTTNESS: Okay.

1-6 MR- FRANK: Can we show the witness a copy of Employer

L7 Exhibit 7?

18 DIRECT EXAMINATION 
l

19 oY lvlR . FRANK:

20 Q Mr- O'Connor. let me dlrect your attention to ltem 6 on

2I the job description of the unit clerk. Woutd you please

22describefo]:therecordtheworkingrelationsh1pbetweenthe

23 unit cferk and the admitting department and the informatlon ì

l

24 system that's referred to in Paragraph 6? 
:

25 A Sure. The unit clerk, agaln, is responsÍble for numerous
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1 clericaf duties and responsibilities in the nursing station, on

2 the inpatient units. But in addition, they would work -- they

3 do work very closely as you can see from Number 6 on this job

4 description in working wlth the admitting department. And there

5 woufd be two components to the admitting process -

6 Q Would you please descrlbe those?

7 A Sure. The access service, access servj ces depa rLmenr.

8 whlch is the prescreening, pre-intake department within the

t hospital. And also the EC or the evaÌuation center. which is
10 where patients at a psychiatric hospital would actuaÌly be

11 admitted to the hospital.
L2 Q Who are the employees who work in the prescreening area?

a3 MR. FRANK: lf you could show the h'itness Employer

14 Exhibit 1, the jôb titles?
15 BY MR. FRANK:

1-6 Q fs that in front of you?

l7 A Yes. So the employees in the prescreening area oï the

18 access services department would be the access services
1-9 representatìve and the senior access serwices representative.
20 That ls one component of what is described in ftem 6.

2L Q We'Ì.} get to that job detail as we go through this and the

22 access services rep. But what do they generalÌy do?

23 A They being?

24 Q The access services representatives.
25 A They do a number of things. primarily, prior to a patient
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1 being admitted to the hospitaf. they wou]d need to contact the

2 access service and the access service rep or senior rep would

3 spend time on the teÌephone either with the patient or with

4 another behavioraL heafthcare provÍder in the corùnunlty, and

5 they would ask a set or a series of predetermined questions such

6 as have you ever been hospltalized at the V{estchester Division
7 or at any other psychiatric facility, trying to determine if

I there would be a prior medical record to access so that they or

9 their department head cou]d review that.

10 They would ask questions/ prescreening questions about the

11 demographics of the patient, the age of the patient, certainty
L2 the gender. They wouÌd take insurance Ínformation from the

13 patient. They would try to create as complete a prescreening

f4 record as they can so that the hospital can make a determinatlon

15 as to whether or not that patient needs to be admitted, \,nhether

16 or not they are suicidal, whether or not they wouLd need

L7 immediate triage or treatment in the evafuation center. or

18 perhaps if they could be referred to one of the outpatÍent

L9 services that the hospital offers.
20 Q What are the responsibiÌities of the unít cferk that have

2L unit clerk working together with the access services

22 repres entative s ?

23 A WeÌ1, the admitting process involves numerous areas of the

24 hospital, including access services, including Lhe unit clerk,
25 and including the EC cterk because the admission process is very
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1 detaiÌ oriented and it can be a very busy and very chaotic time

2 for the patient. So they would work very closeÌy to make sure

3 that aÌl of the information that was obtained in the prescreen

4 and the admitting area or the access serwice and the information

5 that wou.Ld have been buift upon that in the evaluation center

6 were accurate when the evafuation center transports or escorts

7 the patient from the EC, the evaÌuation center, to the unit. So

I they wouÌd be working off of the same documentation that
9 or:iginated in the access service, then went to the evaluation

10 center, and eventualfy went to the unit with the patient.

11 Q What does the EC clerk do in this process, the admitting

a2 proces s ?

13 A The evafuatÍon center cÌerk is, aga.in. building on the

14 record that would have been initiated in access services. And

15 they can do a number of things. They do a number of things such

16 as taking vitals similar to a mental health worker. They would

L7 update the medicaÌ record with the vital signs of the patient.
18 They would ensure that al] of the dÕcumentation simifar to a

19 unit cferk. One of the major responsibiÌities would be clerical
20 support or administrative support in the eva.luation center to
21- ensure that alÌ of the documentation that is required for the

22 patient admission is accurate and that it is in ot:der so that
23 the eventual evaluator/ it may be a social worker, it may be a

24 doctor, but the eventual person who evaÌuates the patient woufd

25 need to have all of that documentation ln order to make a

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, New .fersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692- O660



12a

1 thorough assessment of the patient.

2 The EC cler:k, the evafuation center cferk ls also very

3 important in the process of ensuring that a]f of the

4 preadmission paper documents that are not eLectronic are signed

5 off on by the patients. Although our inpatient medicaÌ record,

6 which is known as Eclipsys, I mentioned that yesterday, is a

7 very comprehenslve medical record and it Ís an electronic

I system, many of the documents in a behavioral health hospitaÌ

9 are still paper in nature and wouÌd require an ink signature of
10 the patient such as a living wil.L or a DNR, do not resuscitate,
11 power of attorney documentation/ several documents that wouÌd

L2 not be avaifable to the patient electronically. The EC clerk,
13 the evaluation center clerk would be responsib.Le for working

f4 very cfosely with the patient to get their signature. the

15 informed consent documentat.ion, making sure they are educating
'L6 the patient on the patient's bill of r.ights, going over each of

17 the 19 components of that biÌl of rights, and obtaininq their
18 signature, and talking to them about confidentiality in the

L9 psychÍatric environment as a way to ensure that they are at

20 ease. But it is a very chaotic process, very busy process-

2L Q l¡lould you describe what the Eclipsys system is?

22 A The Eclipsys system actually had a recent upgrade. It's
23 known as EcLipsys XA. And that's the next generation of
24 Eclipsys. lt is our inpatient e.Lectronic medicaÌ record. But

25 this is only for inpatient. In the outpatient settlng, there is
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1 a different record. There Ís a different electronic network.

2 Q And what is the outpatient system?

3 A That is cal.led AS-400- I don't believe it stands for

4 anything, but that Ís what it is known as. And that is

5 prirnaríly for outpatient behavioral healthcare records.

6 Q The unit cÌerk uses the Eclipsys system for recording

7 informatÍon into the patient's medícal record, right?

8 A Yes.

9 Q And the access service people, do they use the same

10 system?

11 A The access services do at different parts of the spectrum,

12 at the admission process but also during discharge. They are

13 the individuals that officially discharge a patient, working

L4 with the sociaÌ work ass.istant and the sociaÌ work department.

15 Q And the EC clerks aLso use the Ecfipsys system?

16 A The EC clerks do. They would update vital signs, for
a7 example, that they took during the inltial assessment in the

18 evaluation center.

1,9 Q What I'm trying to get to is that when a patient is
20 admitted to the hospitaÌ, their .inpatient medicaÌ records.

2L whatever the job title is, is aff kept on the Eclipsys system?

22 The EC clerk and the unit clerks are alÌ using a common Ectipsys

23 system, is that correct?

24 A Correct, for different parts of the processing port.ion of
25 admission, for different portions of the hospital stay, and for
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1 different portions of discharge, for example.

2 Q hlhat is the Eagle system?

3 A The Eagfe system is tied to patient finance and it is
4 cÌosefy interfacing with the bed-tracking system.

5 Q Let's stay wlth the EagÌe system and then we'll go to the

6 bed-tracking system. What is the Eagte system?

7 A The Eagfe system, it tTacks open beds vrithin the hospitaÌ.
I But it is also a component of patient finance and the biÌÌing

9 process through HealthQuest.

10 Q The unit clerks work with the Eagle system, as wel] as

11 with the EcÌipsys system/ am I correct?

12 A Yes, unit clerks do.

13 Q i{hat do they do with the Eagle system?

14 A They would update the Eagfe system- They would spend a

15 considerable amount on the phone with different individuaÌs
L6 outside of -- we're taLking about the unit clerk or the EC

17 cÌerk?

18 Q Unit cferk.

f9 A The unlt clerk would spend a considerable amount of time

20 with people in access serwices, for exampÌe, the access serv.ices

2A representatives - They wouÌd verify by phone the anticìpated
22 discharges for the day. But in a psychiatric environment, it is
23 not uncommon for anticipated discharges to be delayed for a

24 number of reasons - So --
25 Q This would affect bed availak¡iÌity for new*coming?
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1 A It affects bed awailability and because we have several
2 wetly speciallzed units such as the children's unit or eatlrrg
3 disorders un.it, they need to know in adwance whether or not they
4 can through the access serwice accept addltionaf patients into
5 those units. so the initlar telephone carl from the unit c-Lerk

6 to the access serwice representative to talk about anticipated
7 beds gives them a heads-up. if you wilÌ, as to what may become

I available. And lt would go onto a wery Large whiteboard in the
9 access service department. And they would identify by unlt the

10 fifled beds. the anticipated discharges, but it would not be

11 untif a pat.ient is being discharged that they would officiaÌly
!2 be .input into Eagle.

13 Q Now Ìooking at Exhibit 1. are there other job categories
L4 that work directly with the Eagfe system that you haven't
15 referred to yet apart from the access service people?

16 A Yes. The patlent account reps, the patient registrar;
A7 they're in inpatlent finance.
18 Q And what is the communications between the unìt clerks and

19 the patient account l:eps and the patient registral:s?
20 A What is the communication?

2L Q Tn other words, what does the unit cferk communicate l<.r

22 the patient account reps and the patient reglstrars via the
23 Eagle sys tem?

24 MR- DORN: Objectlon. I haven't objected about feading
25 questions because I want this to move- But I think just about
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1 afl the questions that have been asked are leading questions.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: I'ff pernit it. Go ahead.

3 THE WITNESS: Can you restate the question?

4 BY MR. FRANK:

5 Q Sure. You said the unit cÌerk uses the Eagle system to
6 cornmunicate !.¡íth the patient account reps. What is being

7 comnunicated by the unit clerks to the patient account reps?

I A Well, they would communicate a number of things directfy
9 over the phone, in person, or uslng the Eagle system.

10 Q Let's start with the telephone or in person.

11 A Okay. Over the telephone, they would discuss anticipated
f2 discharges for the day because sometimes those are contingent

13 upon a number of wariables- One in particular could be. would

14 be whether or not a patient actually had a house or an aftercare
15 treatment program to be discharged to. Several of our patients
a6 are homeless. Severaf of our patients would actuafly reside in
I7 group homes. So the discharge process nay be contingent upon

18 something that has nothing to do with the hospltal but whether

L9 or not they have an aftercare facility in which to l¡e

20 discharged. I¡/e would never discharge a patient to the street,
2L for exampÌe. tr{e would discharge them to a safe and secure

22 facility within the community.

23 So over the phone conunun.ication or in-person communication

24 between these different individuats wouÌd be ta]king about some

25 of the challenges that they may be anticipating for the day with
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1 the discharge and letting everyone on the team know what they

2 anticipate as some of the hoÌd-ups prirnarily so that they can

3 work through those so that beds become available for other

4 patients on a quicker basis.

5 Q WouLd the sociaÌ service rep also be invofved in this?

6 A The soc.ial wor:k assistant?

7 Q Yes.

I A Yes.

9 Q And what wouÌd the social work assistants involvement be?

10 A WeÌÌ, the social work assistant is very instrumentaf in

11 the component of hospitaf that invo.Ives discharge and discharge
'L2 plannlng.

13 Q Would you explain that, please?

L4 A The discharge planning process that the socia.L work

15 assìstant would be involved with, it rea.Lfy depends on the

L6 patient, the age of the patient, and where the patient is being

L7 discharged to. For exampfe, a chiÌd patient that was being

l-8 discharqed to a cofiìmunity or g]:oup home, the process would look

L9 very different than an adult that was being discharged to h.is

20 own home or her own home. But the sociat work assistant would

2I work very closeLy with numerous individuaÌs, staff assistants or

22 adminlstrative assistants in all areas of the hospitaL and

23 including the unit clerk and including mentaf heafth

24 professionals to ensure that all of the required documentation

25 that would be needed for discharge and that aI.L of the patient's

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wa)me, New Jersey 0747O
(973) 692-O660



L34

1 persona.L property with the cashier/ such as cash or other

2 monetary valuables, or credit cards, that all of those items

3 would be ready for the indivldual upon discharge -

4 The secur.ity department would also be, they would also

5 work closely with them because the secul:íty department has a

6 luggage room that they maintain. Oftentlmes, patients come to
7 the hospital if they are homeÌess, for example. Before their
8 admission, they wou.Id come in with all of their possessions.

9 All of those possessions would need to be secured.

10 So the social work assistant wôuld work very c]osely with/

11 does work very cÌosely brith the unit c]erk on the unit the

12 patient is in. They would work very cLoseLy with, again, access

13 services. The bed-tracking systems are again a component of the

L4 Eagle system. But that is how the hospital can prepare for
15 patients that have not yet gone through the access service or

16 evaluation center prescreening or admission process to the

17 hosp.ital.

18 Q Now in addition to the telephone and in-person

L9 conmunications that you have just described, what does the unit
20 c]erk entel: into the Eagle system that is used by the patient

2L account reps or the registrar¡ patient registrars?
22 A f don't know specifically what they enter.

23 Q When decisions are rnade or processes compÌeted, is there a

24 process for recording information into the electronic records as

25 the patient leaves one area to another?
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1 A VüeÌl, there ís a process, yes, there is.

2 Q hlould you describe that process?

3 A The process couÌd be through the efectronic record or ít
4 couLd aÌso be a paper document that wouÌd be generated. Again,

5 not just in the evaluatlon center do patients have paper

6 documents to sign, but throughout their psychlatric

7 hosp.ita.L.izationf they woufd receive addit.iona.L documents about

8 their rights, about the different rules of a particular unit on

9 which they are admitted to, and those dlfferent paper documents

10 would afso be required to be obtained by the medical records

11 department, the HTM department, because they r,.rould need to be

12 scanned and uploaded to the elect-ronj c medicaÌ records so that
13 there is a compÌete and accurate med.ical record.

14 Q You have identified the departments that woufd be

15 involved. In the HIM department, what job tltÌes are you 
l

L6 referring to from Employer Exhibit 1? |

I7 A The abstractor, the health information management; the

18 chart analyst..
lL9 MR. DORN: Could you go a littÌe sLower, p.lease? I'm

20 sorry. Abst ractor ?

2L THE !iTTNESS: The allstractor of health information

22 management/ and the acronym would be HIM. The anafyst, it,s on

23 here as anafyst-chart, but ìt's actualLy chart analyst. that 1s 
I

;24 the position. The office assistant. Ì

25 MR. FRANK: If I may lnterrupt. can I then move to amend
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1 the job titles? I don't know if it matters. I mean do you

2 care?

3 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It doesn't to me matter,

4 anaLyst-chart, a chart analyst, it's the same person, right?

5 MR. FRANK: Same job title/ yes.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: YeS, Same.

7 MR. FRANK: Sorry, for the interruption.

8 BY MR. FR-ANK :

9 Q AÌÌ riqht/ abstractor, HÌMi anaÌyst-chart?

10 A The office assistant that would be assigned to the HTM or

11 health information management department. The data speciaÌist

L2 of HIM. The processing specialist of HTM. And I believe that
13 would be it.

L4 Q And the medical record department, what would be the jot>

15 tit.Les on Exhibit 1 that the unit clerks would .interact in the
'L6 medìcaf record department ?

L'l A The unit clerks would, do work with the chart analyst on a

18 daily basis.

f9 Q Vúou]d you explain what the unit cÌerks do with the chart

20 analyst on a daily basis?

2L A ]t's not just the chart analyst, but they would spend a

22 considerab.le amount of time with the chart ana.lyst.

23 Q We're bullding a record. Would you telÌ us what they do

24 with the chart anaÌyst? Then we'ÌÌ go down the tist of the

25 others.
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1 A Absolutely.

2 Q !{hy don't you give us first alÌ of the titÌes that they

3 work with and then werff go back and what they do with each

4 tit Le ?

5 A Okay.

6 Q Chart analyst ?

7 A The chart anaÌyst, the abstractot: of health information

I management, the HIM data specialist, the HIM processing

9 speciaÌist, and the office assistant. And one of the things

10 that the department has requested .is for each of these

11 individuals to be cross-trained in as many of those jobs as

L2 possible to provide adequate coverage during vacatíons, during

13 times when someone from that department woutd lle out sick. And

L4 that is someth.ing that they have been doing for a number of

15 years now/. cross-training and covering for one another. So it
f6 would not be uncommon for the abstractor to be covering for the

L7 chart anaÌyst. while the chart ana.Lyst is on vacation.

18 Q What is the area or vJhat do the unit clerks interact with

1,9 the char:t ana.lyst on¡ on a daily basis I believe you said?

20 A The chart anafyst would visit each of the 12 lnpatient
2L units on a daily basis and they would meet with the unit clerk.
22 And they would obtaín any paper documentation that had been

23 generated for each of the patients during the last 24 hours.

24 Q So if I understand what you are saying is the chart
25 analyst goes to each of Lhle 12 units on a da.ily basis?
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1 A The multiple chart analysts go to the multiple unlts each

2 day to obtain the paper documentation that would need to be,

3 obviously would need to have a patlent's signature and it couÌd

4 be a physician order, it could be a medicaf note, could b,e a

5 progress note, for any reason, ewen if the Eclipsys XA system,

6 for exampfe, say there was a power outage and say the redundant

7 systems faifed and there was no electronic med.ical record for a

I day, they could actua.Lly go muftiple times during the day to get

9 the paper medicaL record.

10 And the char:t analyst, aftel: receiving that from the unit

11 clerk, would take that back to the HTM department v¡here they

12 wou.Ld scan and upload the eÌectronic documents into the medicaÌ

13 record, but they woufd also be required to index and organize

L4 the paper documents into a paper medicat chart that they

15 maintain because those are officlal. lega] documents with
'L6 patients' signatures on them. So in additlon to the electronic
L7 medical record or the scanned documents that we placed into the

18 record, they wou.Ld aLso maintain the papel: documents that wel:e

L9 generated from or on the units.

20 Q So the chart ana.Iyst physicalÌy waÌks onto the unit to get

2L LhLs .nrormaLionî

22 A Yes- They wouÌd meet the unit clerk in the nursing

23 station.

24 Q And who else ls in the nursing station during the day that
25 the chart analyst may run into on a routine basis?
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1 A T,PNs. There would be staff nurses. There are staff

2 nurses. There are LPNs. Psychiatric technicians.

3 Q Would there be mental health workers?

4 A Mental health workers. They alÌ work as a team.

5 Q What is the ADT lnformation to admitting system?

6 A I don't know the technicaf ins and outs of the ADT system-

7 Q Can you tel] us gener:aLLy what 1t is?

I A I know it is tied to the admitting process and to the

9 admitting computer system and software -

10 Q It is another computer system for admissions?

11 A Correct. Tt is tled to the admissions process.

L2 Q What is the census recognition?

13 A The census recognition, my understanding of that is that

14 it is tied to bed avaiÌability, and that it wouÌd tie the two

15 areas, one woufd be the Eagle system and the other woufd be the

L6 redundant feature that lvou.Ld be maintained in the access service

a7 department- That is the whiteboard that I referenced earl.ier.

18 And it is maintained with markers and it describes each of the

19 units, each of the patients/ and t'he current census of that

20 unit. And it wouÌd be a different color marker that wou.Ld be

2L used for anticipated discharged, deÌayed discharges, and those

22 that are recently admitted to the unit-

23 Q And where is the whiteboar:d kept?

24 A The whiteboard is maintained on the first fLoor of the

25 hospÍtal in the south winq, in the access service department of
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1 the far wafl. As you enter the office/ it woufd i:,e right in

2 front of you, actually.

3 Q And the EC clerks would have access to that whiteboard?

4 A The EC c.Ierks work across the haIL They may be 50 feet

5 aþray from access services. But the EC cferk would visit and can

6 wisit as frequentÌy as they wish the access servlce depat:tment.

7 The EC clerk, for example, when the EC clerk is not working. the

I access services representative actuafly takes on the

9 responsibiÌity of the EC clerk, so the two ro.Les are wery

10 integrally related. So nights, for exampÌe, between m.idnight

11 and 8:30 a.m., there are nô EC clerks. evaÌuation center clerks
L2 that are scheduled.

13 The access services rep would actuaÌly fuÌfiÌl three l:oles

14 during that shift. The access serwices representatives would be

15 the evaluation center cferk and they would also be the patient

L6 account rep from patient finance because they would need to
L7 interface wlth each of the patients. They woufd be the

18 .individual that was doing the prescreening assessment of the

19 patient. And they wouÌd also be the individuaÌ during that
20 night shift that woufd greet the patient and to ensure that the

21 paper documents, the prior medical record, if there was a prior
22 hospitaLization, that it was ready for the evaluators to review-

23 They would also be responsible for verifying whether or not the

24 individual, the patient that v.ras in the evafuation center had

25 insurance. lf they did not, they wouÌd leave a very special
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1 notation for the Medicaid counselor, for example. Many of our

2 patients wouÌd be eligible for Medlcaid or social servlces. And

3 the next morning or on the next shift that the Medicaid

4 counselor were working, that individua.L wou.Ld hand off part of

5 that chart and the responsibility for ensuring that the patient

6 had adequate medicaL insurance to assist that patient in

7 obta.ining Medicare throuqh the application process.

8 Q And when a chart is handed off, ís that a physical handoff

9 between two people. one to one?

10 A I can be. Aqain/ if it is a paper process, the evafuation

11 center, their initial assessment ís something that's done in a

L2 computer and lt is not yet a part of the med.ica] record. But

13 they wou.Ld do their pre-admitting checklist. They would pr:int

L4 that out so it is now a paper docurnent but .it was generated from

15 an inpatient computer program. And they would send that to the

L6 evaluation center so the evaluation center wou.ld then have a

L7 paper record of the chart.

18 Q And is that done between the n.ight shift and the day shift
L9 on a regular basis?

20 A Well, on the day shift, that process happens regularly.
2'L On the night shift, because the access services representative

22 is also the evaluation center clerk and the patient account

23 r:epresentative, they wouÌd handle that themselves, as one

24 person.

25 Q What is the unit cÌerk's responsibilities reqardinq the
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1 coord.ination of the flow of maif.

2 MR. DORN: EÌow of, I'm sorry?

3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q Coordination of the flow of mail. lfho do they interact

5 with to distr:ibute the mail and coordlnate the flow of mait?

6 A They do interact with several peopte in the process. They

7 do inter:act w.ith the maif clerk, for example. The maif clerk
I would del.iver the mail or the unit clerk would go to the

9 mallroom to pick up the mail. It is not just business mait. It
10 ls patients that receive maiÌ from foved ones and famity

11 members. It could be newspapers- There are a number of things

a2 that wouÌd come through the mailroom. The maiÌ clerk does make

13 mail deliveries to each of the units. But mail, newspapers,

L4 different things come in at different times during the day. So

15 the mail clerk may not be able to deliver to each unit multiple
16 times during the day- So the unÍt clerk often will go to the

l7 mailroom to deliver maiÌ on behalf of patients or to deliver
18 maiL on behalf of the patient care director.
1-9 Interoffice maìÌ is a big component of what the unit cÌerk
20 wouÌd compile on behalf of the staff on the unit. They would

2a take that to the mail room and have that distributed
22 appropr:iately through the interoffice mail system. But there

23 would be a lot of interchange between the mailroom. the mait

24 c.Lerk, and the unit through the unlt cterk.
25 Q And Number 3 refers to unit clerk answers telephones/ take
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1 messages.

2 A Yes.

3 Q Woufd you describe the interrelationshlp or the working

4 refationship between the unit clerks and the telephone

5 operators ?

6 A Sure. The te.Lephone in a nursing station is somethinq

7 that rings quite often. It is patients' family members would

8 call the nursing station. Other behavioral health staff from

9 different units. different individuaÌs from sociaf work, for

10 example, the soc.ial work assistants if you are preparing for

11 discharge, but a.Lso the opel:atot:s. One of the things that I had

f2 ment.ioned yeslerday is that --
13 Q You used operators. Do you mean t.elephone operators?

14 A The telephone operators. The telephone operators work in
15 the main building of the hospital, in the center building on the

L6 first floor. And they relay numerous messages a day to the

17 units through the unit c.Lerk when thet:e are visitors, when there

18 are deliveries, family members, cou.Id even be physicians.

19 Individuals who would not regularly work at the üTestchester:

20 Divis.ion or wou.Id not have access to the unit, the operator

2I would call and announce that there is a visitor at the reception

22 desk .in the center buiÌding, and they wouÌd speak to the unit
23 clerk or whoever answers the teÌephone, if it's off shift and

24 the unit cLerk were not wot:king. and they wouÌd arrange for the

25 v.isitors to gain access to the unit.
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1 Q I understand that the teLephone operators calf the unit.

2 Obviously, they can't control who is golng to answer the phone-

3 But the call is from the telephone operators to the unit c]erk

4 in the normal course?

5 A Could you say that agaln?

6 Q Is the norma] course that the telephone operators call the

7 unit cferk with telephone message? Ts that who they call? I

I mean obviously they cân't controÌ who answers the phone.

9 A Sure. The flow. I understand the question- The flow

10 actually goes both ways. If there is a vísitor, or if there

11 were food being delivered to the staff, or if there was

7-2 something that the operator needed to reach out to the

13 depar.tment for, they wouLd call the nursing station generally.

14 And the nursing station, durinq the day shift, Monday to Friday,

15 is genera.Lly staffed by the unlt clerk. And one of their
'L6 responslbilities would be to answer the phone. And they would

L7 have a dlrect exchange with the operator.

18 But the unit clerk can also contact the operatol: and they

19 do contact the operator if, for example, there were a medicaÌ

20 emergency. If, for example, there were an elopement. and in

2L psychiatry that is referred to as a Code Gray. ff there were a

22 fire precaution. they would diaÌ 2222, LlnaL, s an ìnternal phone

23 number, 22-22, and they would actlvate our "race" procedure,

24 which is our fire,/rescue procedure that aII individuals are

25 trained in- And they woufd identify the location of the fire.
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1 They wouÌd announce to the operator that's answering the phone

2 that they have a Code Red situation. And they would speak in

3 detall to the operator about that. But they could inter:act in a

4 number of other ways/ too.

5 Q Number I references the unit c.Lerks are lnvolved ín

6 confirming patient appointments.

7 A Yes.

8 Q Are those appointments like schedufing X-rays or those

9 kinds of appointments ?

10 A Abso]uteÌy. The four biggest areas that the unit clerks

11 would be responsible for, schedulinq appointments for the

L2 patients that are lnpatients in the hospitaÌ would be for X-ray

13 or radiology; EKG, if they needed that procedure; ECT/ which ls

!4 a procedure that is unique to psychiatry; or if they were going

15 for blood work in the medical clinic.

16 Q And do the unit clerks have any communications with the

L7 Ìocksmith?

18 A Do the unit cferks have communicatlon with the Ìocksm.ith?

L9 Q Yes.

20 A Yes, on a regular basis.

2L Q And what is that?

22 A Tn a psychiatric hospital, 11 out of our 12 inpatient

23 units are locked units. And if a door is kicked by a patient,

24 whìch does happen on a regular basis, on the inpatient units.
25 for exampÌe, we have a quiet room and that is used to assist in
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1 de-escafating patients. The quiet room door,. if it were shut,

2 the patients sometimes kick the door and the locksmith wouÌd

3 need to be on the unit. So it's a regufar occurrence for the

4 focksmith to be on any one or multipÌe unlts on any given day

5 because doors and doorknobs are kicked, are broken. The patient

6 rooms do not lock, but the main doors on the short hallway and

7 the long hallway of each of our inpatient units are tocked

I units. The nursing station woufd be a locked secure area.

9 Q Vfhen the locksmith is on the unit, who wouÌd he interact

10 with?

11 A The focksmith would generally report to the nursing

L2 station because they wouÌd use either the teÌephone to call the

13 Locksmith, but the locksmith generally Ís throughout the

L4 hospital. If they could not reach him by phone, they would use

15 the Sentact system and they would process a work order- Again,

16 that would be electronically routed through the pÌant operations

L7 department. And the Ìocksmith would receive that message and

18 report to the unit. But as the locksmith l:eported to the unit,
L9 would interact wlth alf of the staff that were working.

20 Tt is not uncolnmon fot: mental heafth workers, psychiatric

2I technicians, l,PNs to actuafÌy be sitting in the middLe of the

22 hall, in a chair. They have to be occupying the chair,
23 otherwise it wouÌd be a fire hazard. But if they are occupying

24 that chair whicn ls very corrrnìon in a psychia"-lc setcing, if
25 they are on constant or close observation status, that was the
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1 CO statr-Ìs we talked about yesterday, or the MO statr.ls, which is

2 maximum observation status, the locksmith would waÌk right by

3 all those individuals generally reportlng to the nursing station

4 and asklng for direction from the unit clerk, the charge nurse,

5 or any of the other staff that would be working.

6 Q Do the unit cler:ks have any interactions with the

7 uphof sterer?

I A The unit cLerks have a sÍgníficant amount of interaction

9 with the uphoÌsterer- I don't know if you have ever been on an

10 inpatient psychiatr.ic unit --
11 Q You have to assume no, since the reader of the record --
f2 A I meant as a v.isitor -

13 Q Somebody might th.ink I shouLd have been.

L4 A But the furniture on an inpatient psychiatric unit gets a

15 Ìot of wear and tear. All of the units, primarily some of the

16 more acute units, the children's unit, Nichol's Cottage;

L7 7-North, the adolescent unit; s-North, which is a h.ighly acute

18 un.it; 6-North, which is a highly acute unit, the furniture gets

L9 a]ot of abuse. So the uphoLsterer is on any of those units on

20 any given day to not only properÌy secure and transport the

2L furniture off the unit to his work area, but he wouLd then

22 uphoÌster, repail:, and bring the furniture back to the unit in a

23 repaired condition.

24 Q What is his or her communications with the unit cl erk?

25 A It would be very simiÌar to the tocksmith. If the
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1 furniture were in such disrepair that ít could not be, actually,

2 vre' ll start with if the furniture were able to be repaired, they

3 would calf the uphofstery shop, wh.ich is in the basement. ftrs

4 very cfose to the human resource department-

5 Q They being the?

6 A They being the unit clerk would generally initiate those

7 types of requests. If they were unsuccessfuf in reachlng the

8 upho.Lsterer in the upholstery shop, they wouLd then initiate a

9 Sentact request, and the work order wouÌd be generated for the

10 individual. for the upholsterer so that he or she r{ould know

11 that they needed to repor:t to such and such unit and they needed

L2 to bring a certain type of equipment with them so that they

13 could transport the broken p.iece of furnlture.

L4 Often, the upholsterer would rely on the assistance of the

15 half aides from building services to help lift a heavy couch,

L6 for example, wou.Id not be somethìng that that individuaÌ could

L7 lift. So build.ing services, that depar:tment, the halt aides in

18 particuÌar wouÌd heÌp to foad and transport the furniture.

L9 ALthough the upho.Lsterer would be do.ing alf of the work as far

20 as reupholstering or adding new fabric to the furnitul:e, they

21 would work very closeÌy with the buiÌding services department to

22 transport the furniture to and from the unit. But, agaín, in an

23 inpatient psychiatrlc hospitaÌ, we have an uphoÌsterer for a

24 reason. Because the furniture takes a lot of abuse. Whether it
25 is cuts to the ful:niture, or kicks, scuff marks, hoLes. The
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1 furniture .is constantÌy being repaired.
2 Q Does the unit clerk hawe direct contact with the genera]

3 serwice workers at times?

4 A The unlt cÌerk? Absolutely.

5 Q Would you describe that, pfease?

6 A f{e.LL, the unit cferk does work with atl of the indivÍduaÌs
7 that would be in the pfant oper:ations department, for example,

8 the maintenance mechanic.

9 O Start with the maintenance mechan.ic- Would you describe
10 the interactions between the unit cferk and the maintenance

11 mechani cs ?

L2 A Off-hours. for example. If something were to __

13 Q What do you mean by off-hours?
L4 A Off-hours in a hospitat, because it's a 24 by 1,365_day
15 operation/ we're staffed throughout afl of those shifts,
L6 generalLy speaking off-shift or off-hours would be after normal
L7 or customary business hours because we don't operate that way.

18 Q What do you describe as off-normal hours?

19 A Anything beyond 5:00 or 6:00 p.m.

20 Q up untl l ?

2L A Up untlf 7:00 a.m. For exampÌe, the malntenance mechanic
22 could be contacted by the unlt cterk, if the unit cferk were

23 stifl working for that shift, if they were working an extra
24 shift, if there were anything that was broken on the unit that
25 woufd be mechanical in nature. They could fix a door. Again,
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1 the doors take a lot of abuse in a psychiatric setting.

2 Q Do unlt clerks call the maintenance mechanics directly, if

3 there was a need for repair?

4 A They would cal.I them one of two ways off hours - They

5 woufd either caÌL them directly, or they would call them through

6 the plant operations department or through the boiler room,

7 because the maintenance mechanic and the operatÍng engineer that

I would be working in the ewening woufd be generally working in

9 the same area off-shift. So the operating engineer would be

10 working in his office and coufd accept that phone call, and

11 relay that message to the maintenance mechanlc, indicating that

L2 there were something broken on an inpatient unit. Sometimes,

13 those things can wait untÍl the next day. Oftentimes, in a

L4 psychiatric setting, they couÌd not.

15 Just Ìast week there was a patient that took apart an

L6 e.Lectrical out.let on an inpatient unit. It was otherwise a

a7 secure out.let. But the patient very cleverly took the screws

18 out of the outlet and was showing exposed wires. So the

!9 hospital needed to react immediately. That is something that

20 couÌd not --
2I Q Who reacted to that situation?

22 A I believe it was a mental heaLlh worker.

23 Q And would a maintenance mechanic or somebody else come to
24 repair the -- who would repair the electrical outlet after the

25 patient was separated ?
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1 A If the maintenance mechanic were skilLed and able to

2 handle that, they cou]d repair that. In this particuÌar case,

3 one of the other pfant operations employees who is actuaÌty a

4 plant service mechanic, who is skilÌed in electricity and

5 e.Lectricaf outÌets was caÌled at h.is home. And he actualfy came

6 in to repair that iÍìmediately. The patient had been removed

7 from the area. But the p.lant serv.ices mechanic came in

I especíally for that. I believe it was 1:00 in the morning.

9 Q When the plant serwice mechanic came in on this particular

10 occasion. who eÌse was on the unit when he came there to fix

11 this ef e ctri ca.L out]et?

L2 A Mental health worker, psychiatric technicians.

13 MR. DORN: I'm going to object unfess the witness was

L4 present.

15 BY MR. FRANK:

1-6 Q How do you know this?

17 A Well, I wou.ld know this because we never have a unit that

18 does not have a mentaL heaÌth worker on it because our patients

L9 need to be appropriate.Ly supervised at all times. There is

20 never a time when mental health workers are not on the unit.

2l HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: I mean u.Ltimately there is no

22 personal knowledge of the individual circumstance.

23 MR. FRANK: But in the normal course of business, I think

24 is the basis.

25 MR. DORN: I disagree.
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1 HEARING OEEICER GOTTÌ IEB: He really doesn't have. Why

2 dol:r' t h¡e move on then.

3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q Do the unit cferks have contact with other of the

5 maintenance employees ?

6 A Yes, they do.

7 Q trüouÌd you describe the context, say, during the day shift
I where the unit cferks may have contacts with the maintenance

9 employees ?

10 A During the day shift, when the unit cferk is prirnariÌy
11 working, they would have extensive working contact with the

L2 plant services senior mechanic, the plant serwices mechanic

13 which speciaÌizes in HVAC, refrigel:ation, cooling, and heating.
14 Again, they would hawe sign.ificant worklng relationships with
15 the p.Lant services mechanic during the day shift. The pLant

L6 serwices tradesman, as I indicated yesterday in particufar with
a7 that one job, the pfant services tradesman, they would be wery

18 instrumental in a Planetree hospitaÌ, of which we are a

19 Pfanetree affifiated hospltal, in heÌping to paint the units so

20 that they exhlbit the soothing colors. If there needed to be

2L touchup to the walls, paint for example, the unit cferk would

22 contact the plant services tradesman to assist.
23 One of our units was actually compfeteÌy renovated and

24 just reopened two weeks ago, Nichol's Cottage. which is the
25 children's unit. And the plant services tradesman did a
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1 wonderful job in painting colorful murals on the wall, cartoon

2 characters, and it was a great way to welcome the children back.

3 But they were wery involved in creating that therapeutic

4 enwironment for the patients on the children's unit.

5 Q When repairs or air conditioning issues come up on the

6 units, are the units still staffed with patients and empLoyees

7 when those repaìrs are done?

I A Yes.

9 Q And so .if heating or air conditioning needs to be adjusted

10 during the day, would you describe hoÌ,¡ the maintenance person

11 gets to the unit and dea.Ls with the unit cfel:k and h¡hoever e.Ise

a2 they deal with to effectuate those repairs?

13 A Sure. But I would also Ìike to indicate that we are an

L4 old facìllty. The Westchester Division of New York Presbyterian

15 HospÍtal is 117 years o.Ld. So the HVAC, indiwiduals get a lot
L6 of phone calls to repair heating and cooling instruments.

L7 Q I hope you are not suqgest.ing the air conditioning units
18 are 117 years old?

f9 A They are not. but the boi.Ler rooms and the heat is always

20 on.

2I Q Would you describe how they interact with other peop.Le on

22 the units?

23 A Sure. They would each be assigned a very special key that
24 members of staff at a behavioral health hospital get- I
25 referred to lt. yesterday, as a 9925 key. That's just an
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1 interna.L code that hre use.

2 Q What does that key do?

3 A The 9925 key is a key that allows individuals that have

4 access to it to gain access to a.L.l of the inpatient units that

5 are otherwise locked. Again, 11 of our 12 inpatient units are

6 locked because most of our patients are there for safety

7 reasons. They are there sometirnes aqainst their wifl. So they

8 are not allowed to come and go as they wish-

9 Q Maintenance people have access to those Ìocked units wlth

10 the specia.L key?

11 A The maintenance individuals do have the 9925 keys that

12 woufd be issued to mental health workers, or psychiatric

13 technicians. LPNs-

a4 Q Are they trained in any spec.ial precautions on what to do

15 when they go out to a .Iocked unit?

16 A They receive a Ìot of training in a behaviorâl health or

L7 psychiatric hospitaÌ.

18 Q Would you describe what they are trained in that mechanics

L9 who work on a construction site wouldn't necessarlLy be trained

20 in that are unique to your mentaL health facifities?

2L A Sure- There is a very significant difference from people

22 that would work on a house in the general community versus

23 ma.intenance mechanic or a trades indívidual that wouÌd be

24 working in a behavioral health hospital. They wouÌd gain access

25 to the hospital the same as the mentaf health workers, for
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1 example, through either the main door on the short hall, or the

2 main half on the Ìong haÌÌ, and they wouÌd use their 9925 key.

3 lf they are doing any type of repair work that requires them to
4 bring any type of tooÌs onto the unit, they wouÌd bring thelr
5 tool chest- It's on rolfers. They would bring that cart onto

6 the unit and they would need to have two indíviduals that were

7 with t.hat cart, for example. One wouÌd monitor toofs- The

I other: one would do the repairs. They do a very thorough

9 inventory with the unit clerk, actually, to ensure that each of
10 the tools that they came on with are the tooÌs that they leave

11 with.

L2 ff they are doing a paÍnt.inq job, for example, the paint
13 is somethÍng that coufd be ingested by a patient. something that
14 couLd cause them harm- Palnt is something that could be thrown

15 in the eyes of a staff member or another patient. So aÌl of
L6 those materiaÌs, all those tools are handled very carefully by

L7 all of the maintenance individuals that woutd have access on the

18 unit.

L9 Q Who does the tr:aininq of the malntenance peopte who get

20 them ready for, you know, who does the training of the

21- maintenance people on what safety precautions have to be done on

22 each of the patient units?

23 A Primarily, the tt:aining that they recelve is done through

24 their department head or through their forenan. And they have

25 deve.Loped the program and larger general meetings that I am
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1 actualLy a part of that wouÌd include clín.ical Ìeadership,

2 general servlces feadershíp, and they deve.lop the protoco.Ls and

3 the checkÌists that would then be used to train the maintenance

4 mechanics on the proper procedures-

5 Q What is the involwement of the clinical Ìeadershlp and its
6 teaching the maintenance employees what is necessary vJhen they
7 go on the cÌinicaf units? Describe that genericalÌy.
I A Well, first of alL, the clinical leadership would want to
9 educate the mechanics as to some of the uniqueness of the

10 hospital. lt's not uncommon for us to hire individuafs in the
11 hospital that have never worked in a behavioraÌ health setting
A2 before, even if they have worked in an acute care medicaf

13 center. ft is very different.
f4 Q f,ühat I'm trying to get to is when you have been there,
15 personally, wouÌd you expLaln what that educatlon is to the
1-6 maintenance people that ís unique for your particular
l-7 psychiatric hospital ?

18 A So what is discussed or: what was discussed in deweloping

1-9 that ?

20 Q Yes.

21- A It initiated a few years ago because there was a missing
22 too.L. And it was somethinq that was brought up in a larger
23 general staff meeting. And the vice president, patient care
24 services, was in the room. I was in the room. lt was a generaf

25 staff meeting. But also the director of general serv.ices was
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1 there. All of the plant operations .ind.iv.idua.Ls were identified

2 on this list, wouÌd ro11 up through the manager of plant

3 operations to the director of general serv.ices. Atl of those

4 individuaÌs hrere in the room talking about what was a near rniss,

5 what could have been a very serious incident had the patient not

6 been discovered r.¡ith the item.

7 The checkllst that was deveÌoped, it was an evofution. It
8 happened over a lengthy period of time. And it Ís sornething

9 that u]timate.Ly fed to the manager of that area training the

10 foremen for that area so that they in turn could train all of

11 the individuals that would be gaininq access to the inpatient
L2 psychiaLric uniL.s.

13 Q And what kind of things are included on this check.L.ist for
a4 the maintenance people to check when they go on and off patient

15 care un i Ls?

16 A It is a very detaiLed listing of aIÌ of the different
a7 tooÌs that would be, for exampÌe, ín their tooÌbox ol: in their
18 too.L cart- And they woufd know before they went onto the unlt
19 what tools they had- And they would verify that when they got

20 onto the unit with the unit clerk, with the other behavioral_

2L heaÌth professíonals or non-professionals. They would then do

22 whatever repair or maintenance they needed to do. They would

23 then be responsible for matchinq the Ìist that had been created 
ì

24 prior: to their arriwal on the unìt to ensure that they were

25 leaving with everything except for what they would have used for
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I materialsf such as nails, or screws/ or other things that they

2 would need to have an accounting for. So it's a very thorough

3 process and it's a wery detail-orlented process that the

4 maintenance mechanics and others go through to ensure that they

5 are contributinq to a safe and secure environment for the

6 patients and for the staff that work on those units.

7 Q And are the maintenance mechanics and the other

B ma.intenance employees held responsible for not reaching the

9 patient safety obligations ?

10 A They are held responsibÌe. They are held to a very high

11 standard, air,soLuteLy, because someone could die if they didn't.

t2 Q What is the unit clerk's responsibillty with quality

13 assurance data? I was lookinq at Number 23 on the job

14 description.

15 A Number 23, participates in QA data collection as needed?

16 Q Yes. My question is which other empfoyees does the unit

a7 c]erk interact with in deaÌing with the patient risk íssues and

18 quality assurance data ?

19 A The individuals that they would be wor:king lrith for QA or

20 quality assurance issues wouÌd be patient servlces, for example,

2I so the staff assistant or administrative assistant working in
22 patient services that primarily deal with quafity assurance and

23 risk issues- There would be a cÌose working relationship if

24 there were a patient complaint or a family complaint/ anything

25 having to do wlth quality. But also staff assistants in the
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1 nursing offíce. If it had anything to do vríth data accuracy,

2 when mistakes are identified, they woufd work to rectlfy that.
3 Q What do the staff assistants do at the nursing office?
4 A There are a number of staff assistants in the nursing

5 office. Their duties are varied. but schedufíng is a major

6 component of the staff assistants in the nurslng office. And

7 the staff assistant in the nursing office oï patient care

8 services department wouLd work very cÌosely with other staff
9 assistants and would work extremety closely with the unit clerks

10 assurÍng that they had a proper scheduÌe for the unit.
11 Q Vüould the unit clerks and the staff assistants talk to
12 each other on a daily basis or a weekly basis?

13 A Sometimes hourly, often hourfy. They speak regufarly. I
1-4 could give you numeïous examples. But we had a lot of inclement
15 weather Lhls past winLer - -there were nume(ous snow storms, ice
16 storms, delays. The unít cÌerks that were abÌe to make ít to
L7 work would take a census of the staff and they would know wjlo

18 was there and who wasn't there based on the scheduÌe. And orìe

19 of the first phone calls they would make would be to the nursing
20 staff assistant and Let them know that they would need to work

21- on gettìng per diems, other support so that the unit could be

22 adequatefy staffed. It's a challenge, but it's something that
23 the unit cferks would work very closely with that staff
24 assistant.

25 Q Do the unit clerks have any communications with the X-ray

BIIRKE COTIRT REPORTING, LIJC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wa)me , New ,fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692 - O660



160

1 techni clans ?

2 A Yes, they do.

3 Q Would you describe that, p]ease?

4 A The unít cÌerk would coordinate that service or that

5 function if a patient or when a patient had a broken bone or íf

6 thel:e .is a suspected broken bone, they woufd coordinate the

7 activity. They would place a phone call to the X-ray

8 technlcian, who works --
9 Q They wou.Id actual]y talk to each other?

10 A They wouÌd taÌk to each other- They coufd exchange

11 emails. But they would have a lot of different ways of
a2 conununicating with one another. They wouÌd set up an

13 appointment for the patient. And then the unìt clerk would

t4 assign that responsibility to transport the patient either on a

15 stretcher, or wheefchair, or )Lf the patient were able to
16 ambulate on their own, to go to the radiology department, which

L7 is in the same location as our EKG department.

18 MR- FRANK: Tf I can ask the hearing officer a question?

a9 Before we went on the record, you asked me to focus on the

20 disputed issues.

2L HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Correct.

22 MR. FRANK: I would also. and it depends if we want this
23 in the record, unit clerks have an interrelatÍon or interactj.ons

24 with a lot of the empÌoyees who are not in the disputed

25 categories that I have not yet asked about. Should I continue
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1 doing -- the unit c.Ierk has a refationship with atl of the
2 empfoyees on this list.
3 HEAR]NG OFFICER GoTTIÏEB: RighL.

4 MR- FRANK: I have focused the questions on the ones in
5 the disputed category.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yeah, and I don't really think
7 that the relation between two undísputed cateqories really is
8 that refevant.

9 MR. FRANK: Okay. But T woutd make an offer of proof that
10 the unit clerks have the same Ìevel of interaction and

11 communications wlth alÌ of the other employees on the listed job
L2 titles. And the only reason I am not asking about specific
13 information here .is that those aren,t disputed- But it Ís part
L4 of the interrelationship of their job.
15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTL]EB: Fine.
16 MR. FRANK: I don't know if we can have a stipulation to
L7 that effect.
18 MR- DORN: I'm not qoing to stlpulate.
L9 MR. FRANK: WelÌ, absent a stipulation, then I think I
20 have to go through and put the connections on this record. I
2a thouqht I cÕufd get a stipulation on the non_disputed
22 categories - If not, T think we ought to build up our record.
23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I mean the relationship, I
24 would just say that the relatlonship between categories of
25 employees who are not disputed is just not relevant here.
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1 MR. DORN: lf it's not relevant, why do we need it.
2 HEARTNG OFEICER GOTTIIEB: You don't really need a stip.
3 It's just not relevant, you know. no one disputes that they are

4 included in the unit, so what is the difference. the

5 relationship between each other.

6 MR. FRANK: Vühat's important is that aÌÌ of the

7 non-professíonals work together to provide the patient care as a

8 conmon unit- ft has nothing to do with how the Union defines

9 what's relevant and not to their bargaining unit. That's extent
10 of organizatlon. What I am tryìng to show is that afl of these

11 job titles work together on a common team and they are all
a2 interrelated.

13 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Oh, T understand that. But

14 what I'm saying is that the reader of the record has to
15 ultimately reach a concÌusion regarding whether there is a

f6 coímunity of interest between the disputed categor.ies and the

L7 non-dlsputed categories. The fact that two non-dlsputed

18 categories lnteract just reaLly isnrt reÌevant. There doesn't
19 have to be any conclusion about that. It's just not reLevant.

20 So I don't really think reafly there is a stipulation. It just
2a isn't relevant - Okay?

22 MR. FRANK: WefÌ, I don't know how to proceed because I
23 was going to ask the witness how the -- would you describe the

24 interaction between the unit cÌerks and the Laundrv

25 coordinators ?
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I HEARING OFEICER GOTTLfEB: Which coordlnators?

2 THE WITNESS: The laundry coordinator? Or the delivery.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Well, those are --
4 THE WITNESS: The X-ray tech is disputed that we were just

5 talking about.

6 MR. FRANK: Tf you donrt want me to put in testimony and

7 evldence --
8 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: The unit clerk is not disputed

9 in general. You began with that. Both the Union and the

10 EmpÌoyer agree that the unit cÌerk .is in. Now you are saying

11 what?

L2 MR. FRANK: Let me lrithdr:aw that last question. This one,

13 the X-ray tech.

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: The X-rav tech is-
15 (Pause. )

L6 THE WITNESS: Is it possible to take a break?

f7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sure, okay. Off the record.

18 (Whereupon, a btief recess v¡as taken-)

1-9 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

20 BY MR. FRANK:

2f Q Mr. O'Connor. we had some passing references to the

22 evaluation center cLerk- Describe for the record what the

23 prlncipal duties of the evaluation center cLerk are.

24 A Sure. The evaluation center clerk is prlmarily
25 responsibÌe for coordinating office or clerical activities for
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1 the evafuation center. They would primarily ensure that

2 documents that would go into the medicaÌ chart would be a part

3 of the medicaÌ record, woufd be awai.Labf e during the evaluation

4 process. If you remember the assessment process that happens

5 just prior to a patient coming through the evafuation center --
6 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Just one moment. Just to

7 intervene a moment. that's not a contested category. Could we

8 just begin with those contested cateqories and find their

9 relatlons with the others rather than going through aff of them?

10 It lvould be better: to begin with the contested, the disputed

11 titles, and then hawe their relationship to others than go

L2 through non-disputed.

13 MR. FRANK: The access service representative is a

a4 disputed category. And the next thing Irm going to be talking
15 aÌ:ìout is that job where they do the same work as the EC clerk.
L6 HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTLIEB: Okay. So just begin with that.
1-7 MR. FRANK: WelÌ, but then --
18 HEARTNG OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Tt's just a better way to
L9 begin.

20 MR. FRANK: Ma'am, ìf l may, but then I won't -- when f

2L say that the access service rep does the work of the EC clerk,
22 we wonrt have in the record what the ED cÌerk does.

23 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB; What Irm just proposing, no,

24 you certainly couÌd get that. What I am proposing is that let
25 us begin the testimony with the disputed categories. Certainly.
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1 once you begin with a disputed classification, you can go into

2 whatever comnonality they have with the non-disputed. But it's

3 just a better way to begin the --
4 MR. FRANK: May I state, I wou]d object for the record

5 being told how to put on my evidence. I think I'm entitled to
6 put on the case in what I think is a Logical order. I wilf do

7 whatever you wânt me to do.

8 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah. I mean you could state

9 that on the record, but I am just here for two reasons.

10 MR. FRANK: Are you directing me to not put in this
11 ewidence? I won't do it then, but on.Ly if you direct me not to.
f2 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No. I am directing you to
13 begin the testimony with the disputed classifications. Then you

a4 can put in whatever evidence you want regarding the disputed

15 classifications and their relation to the non-disputed

16 classifications. I/ühat I don't want to have in the record and

17 !,rhat I stated off the record both for purposes of getting a

18 better record that's more understandab.le to the reader and for
'L9 time, in terms of economy, is a whoLe record on each category

20 and the relationships between two non-dlsputed cl-assif .ications.

2f The reader of the record doesn't have to make a determination

22 regarding the non-disputed classifications.
23 Certainly, any classification that is non-dlsputed is
24 reÌevant what their relation is to the disputed. But by

25 beginning with the non-disputed ctassification, it's just more
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1 economicaf. So all f'm saying as a means of doing it, begin
2 that way. You can certainly then go into the testimony.
3 MR- FRANK: May I have an exception to the ruling?
4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sure.

5 MR. FRANK: For the record, I beÌieve you are denying us

6 the opportunity to present a fair and complete record as we

7 think is appropriate.

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q ûlhat does the access services representatives do?

10 A The access services l:epresentative is responsibLe for
11 spending a lot of time on the teÌephone, talking with patients
f2 or prospective patients I should say/ and conducting a

13 prescreening process. They would folfow a very weÌl defined set
L4 of questions to ask each of the calÌers and the lndiwìdua.Ls that
15 woufd be in the access servlces department. And either the
16 senlor access services representative position or the access

f7 servlces r.epresentative position woutd try to gather information
18 so that the cflnicaf team coufd make a determinatlon as to
L9 whether or not the individual would need to receive any type of
20 psychiatric services based on their prescl:eening questionnaire.
21, And if they were to need psychlatric services, to determine if
22 inpatient psychiatric servÍces would be the best treatment or if
23 outpatient services or perhaps even a communÍty referral woufd
24 be more appropriate for those patlents.
25 They woutd ask a numltrer of questions that pertain to the
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1 individua.L's current weÌl-being. And they wou.Id use I guess a

2 matTix or a grid, an afgorithm to determine if they felt that

3 was a high risk individual. They would share many of theír

4 findings !,¡ith their director, the director of access services to

5 make a detel:m.ination as to whether or not the person's condition

6 was imminent or severe enough to require hospitaÌization at the

7 Wes Lchesrer Divisi on.

I They wouÌd also gather information about the patient's

9 insurance status and they wouÌd add that to their questlonnaire.

10 From that portion of the questionnaire, they would send that, of

11 course assum.ing that this is Monday to Friday, day shift, when

L2 patient account representatives would be avai.Lable, would be

13 working in the patient flnance department, and they would share

t4 that portion of the questionnaire with that individual from

15 patient finance. They wouÌd then, in that different department,

16 they would do their lnsurance p.iece or hand it off to someone

17 e.lse, a Medicaid counselor for example.

18 But back to the access serwices representatives, the

19 questionnaire would then, if a determination for exampLe were

20 made that that individuaÌ who was calling or the emergency

21 department from a different hospital that had a psychiatric

22 patient or someone that was in psychiatric distress, they felt
23 they needed to transfer them to our hospita.L. that access

24 services representative would filÌ out that pre-assessment

25 questionnaire and uÌtimately a decision would be made by various
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1 indivldua]s as to whether or not that individuaÌ would be then

2 brought to our EC or evaluation center.

3 Very different from a med.ical surgical center, an acute

4 care medical center. tr{af k-ins that would come to the emergency

5 department, for example, at an acute care hospital, our patients

6 are prescreened and go through an evaluation center process, as

7 opposed to an emergency department process. And the access

I services rep wouÌd then hand off that questionnaire to the EC

9 clerk, the evafuation center clerk if the decision was made that

10 ínpatíent hospitalization was necessary. And, again/ that is

11 assuminq that this is Monday to Friday, non-hoÌiday, not during

12 the evening when the access services representative would be

13 expanded greatly.

f4 MR. DORN: l'm goìng to object to any testimony about an

15 acute care hospìtal and ask that any such testimony be stricken.

L6 It is not relevant to this proceedinq- And there is no

L7 indication that Mr. O'Connor is competent to testify about such

18 a hospital.

L9 MR. FRANK; I wouÌd disagree with that. And that is

20 certainly the subject of cross-examination. It is not subject

2I to a motion to strike.

22 MR. DORN: Sure it is. ft's not re.Ievant and there's no

23 showing that hers competent to testify about it.

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: PÌease. It's not realLy

25 reLevant, f have to agree, but just move on.
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1 MR. FRANK: Werre not striking anything.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No/ I won¡t strike it, but I
3 agree it really isnrt reLevant.

4 MR. KRUEGER: Itrs a psychiatric hospitat- lt is not

5 acute care. The ru.Les are different than --
6 MR. DORN: Objection. ülait a second. Just one second.

7 THE WITNESS: You've made the --
B MR. DORN: One attorney, I believe, has the authority to
9 speak for rne hospital.

10 MR. FRANK: Mr. Kl:ueger is co-counseL with me. He can

11 speak, Mr- Dorn.

a2 MR. DORN: I'm maklng an objection. lf the heal:ing

L4 MR- FRANK: You make a Iot of objections.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Okay. Let's move on. Let's
16 not get a rgumentarive.

L7 MR. DORN: You make a lot of statements that call for
18 obj ections .

L9 HEARTNG OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. l,et's not get

20 argumentative here. Let's move on.

21. BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q Do the access services representatives ever perform the

23 job functions of the evafuation center clerk?
24 A Yes, they do/ when they are working the night shift,
25 primarily midnight to 8:30 a.m. When the EC clerk, the
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1 evaluation center cferk woufd not be working. the access

2 servlces representative would fulfill multipÌe functions during

3 that timeframe. GeneraÌÌy, that is a quieter admission period.

4 So iL's more likely that one indiwiduaÌ can handÌe multiple

5 components, multiple jobs.

6 lf the EC c]erk role wou.Ld be fuÌfiÌled by the access

7 services representative, they would also fulfilÌ the rofe of the

I patient account representative and they would do the initiaL

9 verification of insurance. The only thing that they would not

10 be abÌe to do or one of the things that they would not be able

11 to do during that night shift wouÌd be to verify or help an

12 individual apply for Medicaid, such as the Medicaid counse.Lor

13 would assist with in the evaluation center when the Medicaid

14 counse.Lor were working, so they woufd then leave that portion

15 for their co.LÌeague from patient finance for a shift when they

7-6 were working -

1-7 Q !ùe'l.L go back to the evaluation clerk and patient account

18 rep job titles after we finish this.

19 MR. FRANK: May I have th.is marked as Employer Exhibit 9?

20 Tt is the job description for the access services

2L representative.

22 (Employer Exhibit 9 marked for identification . )

23 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Thank you.

24 BY MR. ERANK:

25 Q Wou.ld you describe what Employer Exhibit 9 .is, please?
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1 A This exhibit is an access services representative job

2 des c r lpt i on.

3 Q And what is the job grade for this position?

4 A This job is graded at W-03.

5 Q And .is this the hospital's officíaf job descrÍption for

6 this positìon?
1 L Vôê i+ iê

I Q ln the first responsibility described here, it says

9 answers the phone for the behawioral heafth. faihat other

10 employees does the access services representative interact with

11 in performing their job, teÌephone operators, unit clerks, or

12 can you describe that for us?

13 A Sure. Depending on the timeframe dul:ing the

1-4 hospitalization of a palient or the pre-assessment períod, the

15 access services representative would interact and work very

16 cÌosely wÍth a number of people - So from the onset --
I'l Q Who are those peopfe?

18 A They would work very closely wlth the individuals from

f9 patient finance such as the patient account representative.

20 They wouÌd work with the evaluation center cLerk. They wouÌd

2I vrork with unit clerks. They woufd work with social work

22 assistants at the tail end of the process, essentially when the

23 patient is ready for a discharge.

24 Q Describe their lnteractions with the patlent account

25 clerks or: patient account reps.
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1 A Sure. One of the responsibilitíes of the access services

2 representative in the pre-assessment questionnaire that they

3 conduct is to ascer:tain or to obtain insurance verification

4 information. Many of our patients do have commercial insurance.

5 Some have Medicare or Medicaid- Some are without insurance-

6 But they would obtaln that information and they would share the

7 insurance information with the patient account representatives

I or the Medicaid counselor depending on the circumstances of the

9 indiwidual that was in the pre-assessment phase.

10 Q Is that a personal interaction, telephone, or how do they

11 share the information?

L2 A Primarilyf it is done over the telephone. It coufd be a

13 personal interaction. 11 , for example, a patient or an

L4 individuaf came to the hospital without going through the

15 eva.Luat.ion center or an outpatient that was receíving outpatient
L6 treatment serv.ices suddenLy became more acute, they could meet

L7 with an access serv.ices representat.ive or they could go to the

18 evaluation center and be a part of the process of going through

L9 the initial assessment.

20 Q Does uhe access sêrv ces representative use any of the

2I electronic systems at the hospital that you described in regard

22 to your testimony with the unit clerks?

23 A Sure.

24 Q EcÌipsys, or bed-hold, or can you telÌ us what those are?

25 A The direct use of Eclipsys would primarily be used at the
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L conclusion of a patient's hospitalizatlon. The access services

2 representative would actually be the individuaf upon receiving
3 notification from the social work assÍstant and the unlt cferk
4 that a patient is not only ready for discharqe but that the

5 patient wilÌ be discharged.

6 The access serwices representative wouÌd go into the

7 Eclipsys XA system and actually discharge that patient so that
I the medicaL record would be closed for that hospitalization.
9 That then woufd trigger the bed count system or the bed tracking

10 system, the EagÌe system. Many of those systems interface so

11 that they woufd have a clear understanding of the bed

L2 avaiÌabiÌity on any of the given inpatient unit. So that wouÌd

13 be one of the components of them actua.LLy updating the system

L4 directly.

15 Now indirectly. keep in mind that the document or the

16 questionnaire that is done or initiated electronicafly is not in
a7 the Ec.Iipsys XA system at the time of the pre-assessment. So

18 that document would be printed and given to the evaluation
L9 center cLerk. That document, the next business day, fater that
20 business day, would be obtained by one of the hea.Ith information
2L management staff such as the chart analyst or the abìstractor of
22 health information management. They woufd then take that back

23 to the HIM department or medical record department. They would

24 scan that document.

25 They wou.Ld do two things - The first would be to scan the
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1 document and to update it to the efectronic medical record.

2 They would afso index that. This, again, is the HIM department

3 would index that document and save the hardcopy because it is an

4 official document. It coufdn't be shredded or destroyed just

5 because it had been scanned and added e.Lectron.ically to the

6 medical record.

7 Q fn the job description, Number M refers to conmunlcaling

I on a daily basis. tr{ould you describe what that invo}ves and who

9 they corùnunicate with?

10 A Sure - Communication is a major component of the job of

11 the access services representatlve. They communicate on a

L2 regular basis with any nuÍìber of staff personnel ìn the

13 hospitaf. If, for example, in any -*
14 Q Can we focus on who they communicate with on units that
15 provide patlent care ?

16 A Sure. It wouÌd be on the units or it could be the

t7 operator, for exarnpÌe. may be making a phone caÌl to them if a

18 pat.ient were to come onto the property without calling the

L9 access service first. So the operator might place a phone caÌl
20 to them. They would comunicate on a regular basis with the

2L other individuals within access services. They often share

22 information among themseÌves. But they, to come up with the

23 best solution for the case being presented to them, psychiatric
24 cases can be very unique to the indlvidual, so they lvouÌd reLy

25 on the expertise of their coÌleagues.
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1 Q And why do they -- I'm sorry.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Finish what you were saying.

3 THE WITNESS: The evaluation center, they woufd work very

4 closely, they work very closely with the EC cferk. For exampÌe,

5 with the pre-hospitaLization questionnaire that the access

6 services representative wouÌd have created, that wouÌd be

7 something that is handed off to the evaluation center, of course

8 assuming that the determination is made for inpatient

t hospitaLization.

10 BY MR. FRANK:

11 Q And do they keep abreast of the patient's acu.ity status

12 while the patient is in the hospitat?

13 A They wouÌd keep track of the patientrs acuity status

14 primarily through the sociaf work assistant nearing the time of

15 discharge.

16 Q And why is that necessary? ln other words, I'm trying not

17 to lead you into this, but what is their involvement in the

18 discharge planning process and who do they interact to help the

19 patient leave the facility to go onto their next living

2o envi ronment?

2L A The access services representative .is a very important

22 component of the discharge process. They work ìn partnership

23 with the socÍal work assistants to ensure that patients are

24 discharged appropriatefy and to make sure that the patient has

25 aff of the beLongings that they came into the hospital with,
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1 their monetary credit card possessions.

2 Q How do they actualÌy do it, if you can telÌ us for the

3 re cord?

4 A How does the --
5 Q In other words, how do you get the belongings back to the

6 patient when they are about to feave? Who do they ta.Lk to?

7 A It takes a lot of coordination.

I Q For the reader of the record, what I am trylng to get to
9 is who do they talk to and who do they interact not by name but

10 by j ob , title ?

11 A The access services representat.ive would not be Ìeading

a2 that effort. They would be involved in the end of that effort.
13 But the social work assistant, the unlt clerk would be very

L4 inwoÌved with reaching out to the cashier, for exampÌe, nearing

15 the t.ime of discharge to ensure that the patient's monetar:y

L6 possessions, their credit cards were returned to them and that
L7 there were an accounting of all of the money. And it's a very

18 thorough process that they wouLd go through. They wouÌd make

a9 sure that every $5 biff or $1 biff, $20 bill that the patient
20 came ln with is what they !,rere leaving !,rith. So that money

2I would be maintained in the safe, for example.

22 So the access servlces representative would be responsible

23 for actuaÌly completing the discharge process and for
24 discharginq the patlent from the Eclípsys XA system. But they
25 would do that after they were notified by the unit. They would
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I have been in constant corìrnunlcation with the unit cferk

2 throughout the day of or the day before discharge, taÌking about

3 the anticlpated discharge of that patient. But they would also

4 be very cfosely working with the social work assistant when the

5 decision is fina.Ily made because one of the pieces that often

6 can s.Low or derai.l a discharge has to do with whether or not an

7 outs.ide entity ls abfe to receive that patient if they don't
I have a private home or apartment to be discharged to.
9 Q Now .in the section that says overnights and weekends, I

10 see Point A is the length of services rendered in the evatuation

11 center. Would you describe what that is?

a2 A What letter were you on? I'm sorry.

13 Q l,etter A on Page 2 of the job description.
L4 A A-2t yes, I see, owernights and weekends. So the access

15 services representatives are responsible for coordinating aÌ] of
L6 the services that would Õtherwise be rendered in the evaluatlon

1-7 center during the day shift or what wouÌd commonly be referred
18 to as customary business hours. Again, we are a behavioraf

19 health hospital . So our hours are not typical because we never

20 close. So the access services representatiwe would be

2L responsible for cÕordinatinq aLl of those services. So anything

22 that the eva.Luat.ion center clerk or EC clerk wouÌd be doing

23 during their shlft¡ when they are not working the night access

24 services representative would be responsib]e for fulfilling
25 those duties.
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1 Q So they do the same job at night that the EC cferks do

2 during the day?

3 A Yes' they do.

) 4 MR. DORN: Objection.

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Ìt is leading.

6 MR. FRANK: That was. Let me rephrase-

7 BY MR . FR-ANK :

I Q Are there any differences between what the access services

9 representative does -- vrould you describe the differences if any

i 10 of what the access services clerk does from what the EC cterk

11 does ?

L2 A WeÌÌ, if I may read the job descriptlon? They

13 coordinate --
L4 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTÍ,IEB: No. you realLy have to testlfy

15 from your own experience.
I

1-6 THE VüITNESS: Okay. But they coordinate all of the

L7 services that would be performed by the evaluation center cÌerk

18 during times when the evaluation center clerk is not wor:king.

L9 It's not some of those job duties, it's aÌl of the job duties

20 because none of those responsiblÌities that the evaÌuation cferk

2I wouÌd be responsible for that would be deemed unimportant to

22 prowiding a safe environment for the patients.

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q If we fook at Nunìber I, I see escorts patlents to the

25 units. Vlould you describe what those responsibilltles are on
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1 the weekend for the access service clerks?

2 A Sure. Similar to the social work assistant or the mental

3 health worker, the evalr.ration center clerk evaÌuates patients or

4 T'm sorry escorts patÍents to the uníts. So, for exampÌe, after

5 the initiaf assessment .is made in the evaluation center and if

6 the access services representatiwe is working during the night

7 when they are fulfilling the job duties of the evaÌuatlon center

I clerk, one of those responsibilities for the access servlces

9 representative who is working in the expanded capacity cowering

10 the evafuation center cÌerk responsibiÌities would be to
11 transport or escort that patient, sometimes carr.ying their

L2 be.Longings, a small bag or something, with them to the unit
13 after the very lengthy evafuation center admission process.

1-4 Q And when they got to the units, who would they interact
15 with, with the patient? Are there other staff that they would

1,6 interact with when they are escorting patìents to the un.it?

a7 A Yes. They would.

18 Q Vüho would that be?

19 A They would interact with mental heaÌth workers guaranteed

20 because we always have mental health workers on all of our

2I units, al.I shifts. That is one of the main ways that we provide

22 a safe environment for our patients. T.PNS¡ for exampÌe, if any

23 LPNS were schedufed to work that shift- Psychiatric
24 technicians, if psychiatric technicians were scheduÌed to work-

25 And keep in mind that in a psychiatric hospital, many of the
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1 patients are on some form of cfose observatlon or maximum

2 observation status. And at nighttirne perhaps it is more common

3 for patlents while they sleep to be on some form of cÌose

4 observation, so their chalr where they are sitting would l¡e in
5 the haÌlway where the patients actuaf.Ly would be walking by. So

6 if an EC cferk or the access serv.ices representative who was

7 fulfiÌling that role during the night shift weïe to escort a

I patient to the unit, they would escort them to the unit and

9 often walk by employees who are sitting in the middLe of the
10 hall in a chair- As Ìong as they are occupying that chair:, it
11 is not considered a flre hazard. They woufd then be ín cÌose
t2 .interaction with alÌ of the staff that woutd be sitting in that
13 area performinq a CO or MO slatus.
L4 Q And are they trained in having proper Ínteractions with
15 patients ?

16 A Are the access services representatiwes trained?
f7 Q Yeah. Do they hawe regular contact with patients as other
18 health workers do?

L9 A Yes. They wou.Ld receive the same general employee

20 orientation training where severat of the aspects of infection
21- control, for examp.Ie. HIPAA rlghts wouLd be covered. They

22 wouÌd go through CpI trainlng, crisis prevention intervention
23 training, which is simirar to mental hearth workers. one of the
24 thinqs that the access services representatives do as well
25 because they spend a lot of time on the telephone during the day
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1 shift, they wouÌd perhaps take phone caffs from suicidal

2 patients - They wouÌd need to be able to triage or help to

3 de-escalate patients that are on the phone that arenrt even in

4 their proximity, and to work with the team even if they arentt a

5 patient to make sure that the appropriate resources are sent to

6 heÌp that indiwidual that would be in crisis.

7 Q Looking on E-9, if you look at the third page of this,

I quality improvement, Number A, what does that refer to/

9 coffaboration with other heaÌthcare providers in the quaÌity

10 assessment and improvement program/ what does that invo.Ive?

11 A Vúelf , coflaboration is a very important part of all the

L2 jobs that we are taLking about today. But this one job in

13 particular because it is the primary point of entry for patients
'J-4 or prospective patients. They would be responsible for
15 coordinating wit.h individuaÌs within t-he hospital, individuals
16 outside the hospital. It coufd be other emergency department

L7 professionals. For exampÌe, f{hite PÌains Hospíta.L, one of the

18 areas that we receive a lot of patients from. Tf they went

1-9 through their emergency department, they wou.ldn,t need to have

20 an admission to the ED department. They can show up there for
2a any reason- And they could pot.entially, if they were in
22 psychiatric distress, some of the individuals that are

23 referenced under Quality lmprovement A. they woufd collabrorate

24 with those heaÌthcare professionaÌs from area hospitals that
25 would perhaps be wishing to transfer a patient from their
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1 .institut.ion to our psychiatric institution.

2 Q l{ithout going through alf the details of this job

3 description, is th.is an accurate description of the duties and

4 responsibilities of the access services representatlve. Employer

5 Exhibit E-9?

6 A Yes, I befieve it is.

7 MR. FRANK: I offer E-9.

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Any objection?

9 MR. DORN: One second.

10 (Pause. )

11 MR. DORN: f canrt stipufate to this.

a2 MR. FRANK: I haven't asked you to.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: I¡ihat is your objection to the

a4 document?

15 MR. DORN: T have no specific objection. I just donrt
'L6 know if it's accurate or not. So I can't agree that it should

L7 -oe su-omitted in evidence.

18 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: ú]elL, Ì'll admit it. It is

19 obviously a business record.

20 (Employer Exhibit 9 received into ewidence. )

27 MR. FRANK: Thank you.

22 HEÃRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Off the record.

23 (Ðiscussion off the tecord.)

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the tecord.

25 THE WITNESS: Yes, I do hawe Exhibit 9.
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1 BY MR. FRÀNK:

2 Q Would you exp]aín for the record how job grade relates

3 to A?

4 A Sure. There are a series of job grades that al:e created

5 and maintaíned by the human resource department. And each job

6 woufd be given a grade based on the job duties, the educational

7 requirements, and the responsibilities of that position. And

I there would be a range, a job range that would be associated

9 with the job grade. So there wouÌd be a targeted starting point

10 or entry point. There would be a first core tile job. I guess

11 it woufd be tied to Ìike the first core tile, lhe mid-point,

L2 three-quarters, or something along that but it is a range that
13 would be associated !.¡ith each job grade.

14 Q So the account serwices representative is Job Grade 3, is
15 that corre ct ?

L6 A The access services representative?

a7 Q Yeah.

18 A Is a Job crade 3, yes.

L9 Q And wou.ld you look at the psychiatric technician on

20 Exhibit 6?

2a A Okay.

22 Q What is the job grade for that position?

23 A Psychiatric techniclan, according to the job description,
24 the job code is a stamp over. is W-03.

25 Q And is that the same job grade as for the access services
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1 repres entative ?

2 A Yes. The psychiatric technician/ the job grade is the

3 same as the access services representative.

4 Q lt is the same range.

5 A It is the same range.

6 Q And are all W-3 job codes in the same ranges?

7 A All job descriptions that have a job grade of W-03 are

8 within the same saÌary range/ yes

9 Q And is that saÌary range a step higher than the W-2 range?

10 A Yes, it is.

11 Q Eor exampÌe, if you would fook at Exhiblt E-5?

L2 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Can we just have what the

13 salary range is at W-3, the amount?

14 THE WITNESS: I donrt have that off the top of my head.

15 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: You don't kno!,r/ okay.

L6 THE I{ITNESS: 1t ís tied to a salary range.

a7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I mean we would want to have

18 the actuaL salary range. A difference between a 2 or 3 could be

19 m.iniscule or it cou]d be Ìarge. So, obviously, the amount is

20 important. tr^ie obviously would need that for the record. But go

2a ahead.

22 THE üIITNESS: Irm sorry- Could you repeat the question?

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q Are all of the jobs in crade 2 in the same sa.Lary ranges.

25 in other words, on these job descriptions we've been goÍng
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1 through, they have been graded as W-2, Iri-3, are aff the W-2 in
2 the same pay ranges?

3 A Yes, they are.

4 Q And all the W-3's are in the same pay ranges?

5 A Yes.

6 Q And the 4's would be in the same pay ranges?

7 A Yes.

8 Q Now regardfess of the job grades for alf of the

9 non-professiona.L employees, do they aÌl receive the same benefit
10 packages ?

11 MR. DORN: Objection. It has been asked and answered.

1-2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Tt has been asked and answered.

13 MR- FRANK: Oh, okay. I thought you wanted me to -_
1-4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, no. That question was

15 already asked, that's alf. i{e had testimony reqarding the
16 benefit package. Vüe.Il, but not about the wages. So I think it
L7 has been asked and answered.

18 MR. ERANK: Okay.

19 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTIIEB: Do you have any documents or
20 anything here with respect to what the salary is or the wage

21- rates are ?

22 MR. FRANK: No.

23 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: So maybe you can brinq that in
24 for the next date of hearlng.

25 MR. FRANK: I don't know that that's relevant.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Oh, it's clearÌy relevant.

2 It' s one of the key factors - T mean the grade doesn't give you

3 any sense of whether the difference between qrades ls large or

4 sma]l, and salary is one of the key elements. So it's clearly

5 refevant.

6 MR. FRANK: Okay. But every emp.Loyee is paid d.ifferently.

7 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: But the salary is relevant, so

I I'm requesting that you bring that in. We have to make a

9 record. Tt is one of the key elements.

10 MR. FRANK: What is? I don't understand.

11 HEARTNG OEEICER GOTTLIEB: Salary. lt's not in dispute

L2 and I don't want to waste time going into ít. But looking at

13 community of interest factors, salary is one of the key things

L4 we look at.

15 MR. FRANK: If peop.Ie are in the same groups and qrades

f6 and treated simi.Lar, f understand that. But what individuals

L7 make? T'm not prepared to put in -- un.Less you order it, but

18 every individual salary. I mean would you like me to calÌ every

19 employee in and ask them what theìr: salary is.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No. You have documents

2l regarding what employees make.

22 MR. FRANK: Of the employees' indiv.idual safaries? I

23 don't think that's relevant.

24 MR. DORN: Documents inwolving the range.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: The range.
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1 MR. DORN: From starting to maximum.

2 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Correct. The witness has

3 testified that there are job grades and there is a range. So

4 I'd like to know the range of each of them. I mean saylnq 2 and

5 3 isn't reafly rneaningful because we have no idea whether the

6 difference between the numbers is large or smafl. It's not

7 really very informatíve. Okay, let's move on.

I MR. FRANK: Am I correct you are not asking for individual

9 sa.laries? Or are you?

10 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: No. I'm asking for the range

11 for each job grade.

L2 MR. FR-ANK: Can I have this marked as Employer Exhibit 10?

13 (Employer Exhibit 10 marked for idenÈification. )

a4 MR. FRANK: Mr. O'Connor, I've shown you what the reporter

15 has marked as Exhibit 10, which is the job descrìption for the

1-6 eva.luat.ion center clerk. Will you please review it?

L7 (Ílhereupon, the witness reviews Èhe document. )

18 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTI-TEB: Oh, wait, this is not a

19 disputed category, either. This is the EC cferk?

20 MR. FRANK: We're on the record?

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah.

22 MR- FRANK: Okay. But the prevlous category does this job

23 as weLl. The witness testif.ied that the access services

24 representative perforrns the job of the evaluation center clerk

25 on nights and weekends.
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2 MR. FRANK: So maybe, you know, itrs a different job

3 categor:y, buf we --

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, no- I understand-

5 MR. FRANK: ALL right, this is a non-disputed categor.y and

6 the prior one was disputed. Irm trying to show is that one of

7 the people that the Union doesn't want incfuded --

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, T understand-

9 MR. FRANK: -- does the same job as one of the people that

10 is in the --
11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: T aLready said T understand-

L2 Don't fight with me when I say I understand.

13 MR. FRANK: Af .L right, all rlght.

L4 BY MR . FR-A.NK :

15 Q Ìrüould you describe v/hat the document is?

L6 A Yes. This .is a joÌ: descript.ion for the evaluation center

L7 clerk that f have also referred to as EC clerk.

18 Q And when you were describinq that the access services

L9 representative on nights and weekends performed work for the

20 evaluation center, is this the job description that the access

21 cenLer service representative would be performìng?

22 A Yes. These would be the dut.ies and responsibilities that

23 the access services representative who wouÌd be performing the

24 duties of the evaluation center clerk on nights and weekends

25 wou]d do.
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1 Q What are the responsibilities of the ewaÌuation center

2 c.Lerk generalÌy?

3 A Generally, the responslbillties lnvolve accepting

4 documentat.ion from the access service department, the access

5 services representative or the senior access services

6 Tepresentative. Can we take a break for one second?

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTTIEB: Sure. Off the record.

8 (Discussion off the record. )

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

10 BY MR. FRANK:

11 Q Are you okay?

a2 A Yes, I am. Ready to continue.

13 Q In the section on patient care, there is references to
L4 escorting patients to unlts. Would you describe what the

15 evaÌuat.ion center clerk does in that --
L6 A After the initiaL assessment is cornpleted Ín the

L7 evaluation center, after the treatment team including the EC

18 clinician, the evaluation center clinician and/or the doctor

L9 worklng in the evaluation center, after they make their

20 determination as to the diagnosis of the patient, and after
2I var.ious forms, hardcopy forms and e]ectronlc documents are

22 updated or secured, the patient wouÌd then be escorted by the EC

23 cÌerk to one of the 12 inpatient units depending on what their
24 diagnosis, their age, sometimes their gender, keeping in mind we

25 have a women's unit, it's a general psychiatric unit, general
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1 acute psychiatric unit. But they would escort them through the

2 hospltal to that particular unit that they are being admitted

3 to-

4 Q Now in the admitting process, would you describe the

5 interactions w.ith patients and families, what they do in the

6 admitting proces s ?

7 A They have a number of responsibiLities that would be

8 peripheraL to the actuaf admltt.ing process. They aÌso have a

9 number of responsibilit-ies t-hat- woulci be directÌy reÌated to the

10 admitting process. So, for example. the evaluation center c.Lerk

11 would primarily be the person that wouLd welcome or greet the

L2 patient and,/or the family to the unit, assuming that the pat.ient

13 did not come in an ambulance or come through other emergency

14 services whereas they may not have a fam.ily member with them.

15 But they would still greet the patient, welcome them.

16 There is a refrigerator in the evaluation center.

17 Patients come through the evaLuation center at all hours of the

18 day and aÌl hours of the evenlng, so the evaluation center clerk
'L9 would ask the ìndividuaÌ, the patlent if they were hungry, if

20 they were thirsty/ and the family that was with them. They

2L would provide them some food, if they wished to have it, of

22 course, if the treatment team felt that it was necessary for the

23 patient.

24 But they would be responsible for a number of other duties

25 and responsibl.Lities aside from warmly welcoming in the
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1 individual . ThÍs ls very important at a ptanetree environment.

2 They would receive documentation from the access services

3 representative that would have the pre-assessment questionnaire

4 on it. They would --
5 Q What kind of clericaf duties do they do in regard to that
6 information they receive ?

7 A Vùe1I, very similar to the mental heafth worker positions
I or the staff assistant jobs. They woufd be responsible for
9 maintaining the cÌean, c]ear orqanized offlce. So ln the

10 nursing station, for example, essentlally it is an offlce and an

11 inpatient unlt. The unit clerk woufd be responsible for the

A2 clericaÌ or admÍnlstrative support for that area. The

13 evaluation center clerk wouÌd work on the floor in the

L4 evafuation center or the main admitting area/ but they would

15 also spend a considerable amount of time working in the

16 evaÌuatÍon center office. So s.imif ar to the nursing statíon on

a7 the inpatient units, the evaÌuation center has an office area

18 very similar to an environment that a staff assistant or
19 adminÍstrative assistant wouÌd work in-
20 But they would be responsible for answerlng the phone.

2I faxing, distributing mail, gettìng the mail, certalnly depends

22 on the acuity of the scene in the evaluation center. But their
23 responsibiLities could vary depending on the time of day, or the

24 number of patients, or the acuity of the patients that would be

25 in the evaluation center.
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1 One of the other responsib¡ilities that the evafuation

2 center clerk is responsib.Le for .is to assist with taking vital

3 signs. And that is something that they cou]d then add to the

4 Eclipsys XA medicaf record because their initial assessment and

5 varying assessments thr:oughout their admission process, just as

6 I would be of course throughout their stay, you would want to

7 make sure -- the menta.L health team wou]d want to make sure that

I they were aware of an e]ewated heart rate or very Ìow heart rate

9 throughout the hospitalization.

10 Q And their primary work area .is in the admitting area, not

11 on rhe Floor uni Ls, correct?

12 A Their primary work area is in the evaluation center, which

13 is on the main floor of the hospital.

f4 Q And what other job categories work in that area?

15 A Other job categories?

t6 Q Yes. Tf you look at Exhibit 1?

ti A Sure -

18 Q The EC clerk is one of the positions that is proposed to

L9 be incÌuded by the Union. Of the categories in dispute, look at

20 those categories and whÍch of those job categories work in the

2I same area as the EC cler:k?

22 A Okay. The access services representative wouÌd work

23 significantly be working in the evaluation center during the

24 night shift, between midniqht and 8:30 a.m-, when that access

25 serwices r:epresentative is doing the job of an evaLuation center
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1 cfer:k. The chart anafyst, during the day shift when the chart

2 ana]yst is working. wouÌd regularly work in the eva.Luation

3 center primarily to obtain all of the preadmission and admission

4 paper documents that woufd have the patient's signature on them,

5 release, consent, or informed consent forms. a patient's bi.ll of

6 rights, HIPAA. There is even a special document that's glven to

7 them with oMH or office of Menta.L Health .information. It gives

I them a hotline number that the patient can call. But those are

9 documents that the chart analyst wouÌd pick up so that they can

10 become a part of the eÌectronic medical record after the chart

11 analyst scans those and adds them electronically to the Eclipsys

L2 XA medical record. But, again, they would maintain the paper

13 copies with the medicaL chart .in the area of the hospita.L where

14 those records are maintained which is HTM, heaÌth information

15 management -

16 Additionally, in addition to the EC clerk and the access

L7 services representative, the ma.i1 c.Lerk wouÌd deliver mai.L and

18 newspapers to not only the evaluation center office, but also to

!9 the waiting room that is attached- Patients' families often

20 spend considerable amount of time in there. And having updated

2L newspapers/ magazines, and periodica.ls is very important to

22 helping them through that difficuÌt process of a family member

23 into o,rr hospiLar.

24 Q What about the patient registrar and the patient account

25 reps ?
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1 A Vlefl, the patient account representatives would work in

2 there. And keep in mind that the access services representative

3 also does the job of the patient account representative during

4 the hours of midnight to 8:30 a.m. But the patient registrar

5 actually has an office in the evaluation center. It is as you

6 wouÌd walk in the buílding ol: into the eva.Luation center, and go

7 up the first stairway, you wouÌd make an lmmediat'e Ieft and

I there is a patlent finance office where the registrar woufd

9 obtain all of the lnsurance information. That is also the

10 office where the Medicaid counse.Lor would work, .if a pat.ient

11 didn't have commerciaÌ insurance, was not already enroffed in

12 Medicare or Medicaid.

13 Q And aff of these peopLe are in the North buildÍng, that

L4 1-2-3 North building?

15 A Tf they are going to the evaluation center to conduct

L6 the.ir work, that is the onÌy eva.luation center so it is the one

L7 area. But there are a number of other individuals on this list

18 that wou.Ld work in the eva.Luat.ion center as weÌl . The senlor

19 access servÍces l:epresentative, very simi.lar to the access

20 serwices representative, would work, does work in the evaluation

2L center when that individuaL is coverlng off-shift assignments.

22 They all take turns dolng that.

23 Unit clerks. they also transfer patients or escort

24 pat.ients from the evaluation center. For example, if there was

25 high acuity in the evaluation center, the unit c.Lerk or the

BURKE COI]RT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wal¡ne, New .fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692- O660



195

1 evafuation center c.Lerk may call for the unit clerk to come and

2 assist, and actualfy escort the patìent to the unit to which the

3 unÍt c.Lerk is assigned.

4 The EKG technician, depending on the acuity of the

5 patient, depending on v'¡hether or not the patient was having

6 abnormal heart rhythms, the EKG techn.iclan could bring the

7 equipment that she uses from her second fÌoor work location down

B to the evafuation center.

9 The phlebotomist- A major component of the pre-assessment

10 would be to do laboratory results or co]Ìect specimens. So the

11 phlebìotomist woufd be invoLwed with that process, which is a

'L2 very important part of the admission process.

13 Q I guess we are back into the areas of the unit that the

L4 Union is seeking as opposed to those in dispute. I¡/hat is the

15 interconnection or the evaLuatiÕn center clerk, how do they

16 interact w.ith the HIM people, HIM bed and HIM processing? f'm

l7 looking under patÍent care Number 4. fdould you describe that

18 for us? Page 1.

L9 A Yes. WeLÌ, not only do they obtain the patient medical

20 record from the --
2L Q How do they obtain it? T mean do they talk to them?

22 Describe the process/ the interaction.

23 A Okay- The evaluation center clerk would, could pick up

24 the phone. They couÌd fax their request. They coutd send an

25 email request. But they wouÌd interact with them in a number of
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1 ways requesting the medical record. If lt is --
2 Q And holr frequently does that occur?

3 A Very regularÌy for patients that have had a prior

4 hospitafization with us because there would be an existing

5 record. And in order to make sure that we are buiÌdinq upon an

6 existing medicaL record, that document, the medicaÌ chart for

7 exampfe, the actual physical paper documents that are maÍntained

I in the heafth information management area wou.Id not be/

9 sometimes wouÌd not be access.ibfe through the EcL.ipsys XA

10 system.

11 So the EC clerk could request information over the phone

1-2 or in person. Again, the HIM area, the abstractor of hea.Lth

13 information management. that individual is cross-tralned as a

14 char:t analyst and one of the primary responsibilities of the

15 chart anaÌyst ls to make sure that the paper chart is accurate.

16 indexed appropriatefy, and up to date. So they would have a lot

I7 of interaction with the HIM department if, in fact, there was a

18 prior hospitalization. And that would give the evaluation

19 center team an appropriate resource form which to base their:

20 current diagnosis on and also to anticipate or identify the best

2l treatment.

22 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibit E-10.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Any objection?

24 MR. DORN: Just one second?

25 MR. FRÀNK: Admitted?
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1 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB: Irm waitinq for them to

2 respond.

3 MR. DORN: At this tlme, I cannot.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Vlefl, I'm going to admít

5 it. Itrs received.

6 (Enployer Exhibit. 10 received into ewidence. )

7 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Employer Exhibit 11?

8 (Employer Exhibit 11 marked for idêntification. )

9 HEARÍNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Thank you.

10 BY MR. FRANK:

11 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you pLease take a moment to rewiew

t2 r.¡hat has been marked as Employer Exhibit 11, which is a job

13 descriptlon for the senior access services representative.

L4 A Okay.

15 Q I beÌieve that is one of the disputed job cateqories.

1-6 A Alf right. I'lL reviei.¡ it.
A7 (IVhereupon, the witness rewiews the documenÈ. )

18 BY MR. FRANK:

19 Q Would you describe the duties of the senlor access

20 services representative. pleas e ?

2I A The senior access services representative is responsible

22 for all the duties of the access services representative- The

23 individual that would be in this job would be senior .in the

24 sense that they had at Ìeast a few years of experience as an

25 access services representative. They would be a very
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1 knowledgeable resource to the other individuafs in the access

2 services department. If a new indívidual were to join the

3 access services team, lt would not be uncommon for the senior
4 person to kind of show them how things were done and to orient
5 them or to assist ln orienting them to the business of the

6 access services department -

7 Q Do they pel:form the duties and responsibiÌities of the

I access services representatives ?

9 A Yes, they do. They answer phone calls. They do the

10 pre-assessment questionnaires just l.ike the access serwices

11 representatives.

L2 Q And do they do the same responsibiLities as the evafuation
13 center cÌerks ?

L4 A Yes- When the senior access services representative is
15 working a nightshift between the hours of midnight and B:30 in
16 the morning and the seníor does work that shift on occasion,

a7 that individual will be responsib.le for doing all of the job
18 requirements, atl of the components of the job that the

L9 ewaluation center clerk, the patient account representative, and

20 the access servlces representative wou.Ld be responsÍble for in
2L the evafuation center environment-

22 Q And what is the senior access services representat.ive's
23 invofvement with the Haven and eating disorder programs? How do

24 they interact with them in that?
25 A They woufd work with the staff on each of those units.
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1 The eating disorders program/ 2-South. is an inpatient program.

2 The Haven, 5-South, is an inpatient psychiatric program as weff.

3 But they would help to coordinate those two units in particular

4 because they are busy Ìike every other unit but those are two

5 units that hawe been carved out as needing speciaÌ attention

6 from someone in access services.

7 Q And who do they interact with?

I A The unit clerks. They would interact on a regular basis

9 with mentaf heafth workers and psychiatric technicians.

10 Q What woufd that interaction be?

11 A The interaction would not be ].inited to those individuals.

L2 They would also interact with the social work assistant during

13 t.imes of discharge- They would interact very cÌosely with the

L4 evaluation center clerk during times of admission when they

15 would be working in the evaluation center. When they are

16 escol:ting patients to a particuLar unit, they could lnteract

a7 with every empLoyee that's working on that shift on that

18 particular Ínpatient unlt. So if they were escorting a patient

L9 from the evaluation center to 2-South for example, which is the

20 eating disorders unit, they would not only escort the patient

2L and to asslst in carrying the belongings, they would unlock the

22 .Locked door- They would have a hand-off using the SBAR

23 technique, which is again situation, background, assessment, and

24 recommendatÍon.

25 Q Vfhat is the SBAR technique?
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1 A SBAR technique is something that helps keep mental health

2 professionaÌs on the same page. And it's a technique that alt

3 of the individuals would use whenewer there is a patient

4 procedure such as X-ray, phfebotomy. They wouÌd use this

5 technique. And they wouÌd describe the situatlon. It's

6 essentÍal.Ly when there is a handoff, when a patient is being

7 handed off from one employee to anothel:. Not every employee can

I i:e expected to know everythinq about every patient. There are a

9 ]ot of admissions. And certainly not everyone has access to the

10 full medicaf chart at any one time. So the technique that

11 mental health professionals use 1s referred to as SBAR. It -is

12 seen as a best practice by the Joint Commission.

13 And the individuaÌ that would be handing the patient off

a4 to another behav.ioraÌ healthcare professionaL would describe the

15 situation. that's the S- They would give a background update on

1,6 the individual that they are handing off, that's the B. The A

'L7 is the assessment, what their assessment is of the situation or

18 the patient's condition. And that's the A. And the R is the.ir

L9 recommendation. And that's one of the ways that all healthcare

20 professionals, behawioraÌ healthcare profess.ionals can be sure

2a that they know about that patient.

22 And if the senior access services representative for
23 example or the access servíces representative were working in
24 the evaluation center/ some of the very critical documents that
25 wouÌd be obtained by the patient thr:ough that process wouJ,d be,
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1 for example, a DNR or do not resuscitate. If a patient's wishes

2 were to not be resusc.itated should they go into cardiac arrest
3 whiÌe they're in the hospitat/ or they woufd be asked for a

4 living will for exampÌe, if they have a healthcare pïoxy. those

5 documents that woufd be obtained by the senior access services
6 representative ol: the evaluation center clerk woufd be very
7 important to handoff from that individuaf to the receiving
I entity because it may not be apparent that a patient has a DNR

9 rvithout going to the medical record. And certainÌy one of the

10 things that we wish to do is to honor a patient's wishes. So

11 that would be a very important way of communicating vitaL
L2 information just after the admlssion process and as the escort
13 process is taking place to the unit that the patlent is being
L4 assigned to.
15 Q Who is the dir:ector of access service?

1-6 A The director of access service is Ruth Mendefowitz, M-E-N-

L7 D-E-L-O-W-T-1-2.

18 Q And what are the director,s responsibilities for access

L9 s e rwice ?

20 A Well, the director, by training/ Ms. Mendelowitz is a

2L social worker- She is responsible, therefore, she can make many

22 of the cfinicaf assessments that the access services staff or
23 the senior access servlces repl:esentative may not be able to
24 make. She is a tlrained clinician, trained social worker, and

25 she would be able to make those assessments. But her
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1 responsibllity would be to ensure that the staff of the access

2 services is properly trained in all of their responsib.iLities,

3 not just Ìlmited to the access services department, but aLso

4 theiT additional responsibi.lities in the evaluation center. Ms.

5 Mendelowitz would partner on the train.ing that is provided to

6 the access services representatives with two other individuals,

7 two other areas, the patient care director that is responslble

8 for the evaluation center, for example, the EC clerk. She wouLd

9 partner with that lndiwidua.L on the training thal the access

10 services repr:esentative woufd receive for the times that they

11 are covering the -- I'm sorry, I just heard some talking-

t2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Go ahead.

13 THE WITNESS: Okay. So the access serwices representatÍve

L4 or the director of access services would also coord.inate or

15 partner w.ith the director of patient finance to ensure that the

L6 patient finance representative responsibilities that her

17 employees in access services, that they woufd be responsibfe for

18 while they were fulfilling the job of the EC cler.k, that they

19 would be properly trained. She would be responsiÌ:,le for

20 ensuring that there is adequate scheduÌing- She would be

2a responslble for ensuring again the training orientatlon, that

22 the individuaLs are being properly supervised. She woutd be

23 responsible or the individual .in that ro.Ie would be responsible

24 for performance management. conducting annua.L performance

25 reviews that would be tied to annLlaÌ salary increases for alÌ of
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1 the empfoyees. She would be responsible for providing alL lypes

2 of patient center care training.

3 Some of the training that Ms. Mendefowitz has used would

4 be some of the PCC or patient center care training moduÌes that

5 are offered by our patient center care department/ such as

6 telephone etiquette because they spend a Ìot of time on the

7 tefephone. Some of the other trainings would be how to deal

I with, lt's called when serv.ice Ínteractions go bad, when you

t have an opportunity to use our service recovery tool kit. The

10 access service staff have two identified pat.ient center care

11 champions that wouÌd be responsible for utiÌizing the serv.ice

L2 recovery too.L kit.

13 And essentially she is responsible for making sure that

L4 she has a welf-trained staff that is ab.Le to ident.ify

15 prospective patients, clinical or psychiatric lssues, so that
'J-6 she can make the proper determination with her team as to

L7 whether or not they would require inpatient psychiatric services

18 oul: outpatient psychiatric services.

19 But because her team, her department in access services is

20 pr.imarily the first person ol: potential.Ly the first person that

2I a patient or patient's famlly member would talk to, customer

22 service, empathy are very important to the role and to the team

23 that she is leading.

24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q Is the director of access service the individual
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1 responsible for the performance of this department, the access

2 service department?

3 A Yes, she is.

4 Q And if discipÌine 1s needed among employees in that

5 department, what is lhe role of the director in imposing and

6 deciding those issues?

7 A Well, !,re refer to it as correctlve action --

I MR. DORN: I'm going to object. I think r.re already agreed

9 and stipufated that directors are supervisory and shouLd be

10 excluded- So I am not certain why we are going ínto aff of this

11 test.imony.

'L2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTL]EB: Do you want to respond?

13 MR. FRANK: Irm going in this dlrectìon because there is

!4 some description of responsibi.Lities in this par:ticu.lar job

15 description that night be confusing on the supervisory issue. T

L6 think the senior person has a lead role, but I don't think it is

L7 a statutory supervisor. And what I am trying to establish. if

18 you .Look at the job description, that the senior person's role

L9 is advisory as opposed to meet.ing the statutory test of the

20 statutory supervisor. And if we can stipulate to that, that's

2I fine. If you fook at the job, there is some references to

22 superv.is.ion in how the document is written-

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right.

24 MR. FRANK: And T'm trying to estabÌish that it is

25 advlsory and stilÌ a workinq person, a leader, but not a
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1 statutory supervisor.

2 HEARING OEFICER GOTTI-IEB: I see.

3 MR. FRANK: It's wl:itten supervisory duties. I'm trying

4 to not confuse the record as to this person. We contend it is a

5 lead person who ought to lf,e ln the bargaining unit. not a

6 statutory supervisor.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: tr{ell, they are not raÍsing any

I issues with respect to the superwisor issue. The Union is not

9 raisinq any issue with respect to the supervisory issue.

10 MR. FRANK: Well, they say it should be included.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: The onLy issue is with the

T2 CNCT.

13 MR. FRANK: No. They are raising the issue that this

L4 titLe should be excluded. I don't know why they woutd want to

15 exc.lude it. I don't know why they want to exclude most of the

t6 people.

17 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. I mean as far as I

18 understand from what has been put on the record and aÌ1 my

L9 discussions with alf the pal:ties, it is simply based on a

20 coÏnmunity of interest. And that the onfy title that is in

2I displlte with respect to the supervisory status is the chef,

22 which the Union contends is a statutory supervisor and the

23 Employer contends is not.

24 MR. FRANK: If Mr. Dorn agrees with you, I'll stop. But I

25 donrt know that.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Is that correct?

2 MR. DORN: I don't know whether this individual or this

3 classification has supervisory duties or not. So I am not going

4 to st.ipulate that the individuals or the classification do not

5 have superwisory duties. I havenrt seen this document before 1t

6 was just introduced.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: So it may be the Union's

I contention that this category is a statutory supervisor?

9 MR. DORN: I don't know. It could be, yes.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. wel.L. then it .is

11 obviously reÌevant- okay, so proceed.

12 Off ùhe record.

13 (li?rereupon, at L:00 p-m-, a luncheon recess r,Jas taken.)

L4
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1 AFTERNOON SESSION

2 (Time NoÈed: 2:15 p.rn. )

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

4 MR. FRANK: Did I offer E-10?

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,TEB: E-10 is in, but not E-11.

6 MR. FRANK: Before we qo on the record/ is --
7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: We are on the record now.

I MR. FRANK: Okay. I assume we do not have a stipulation

9 on the supervisory status issue?

10 HEARING OFFICER COTTLIEB: No.

11 MR. DORN: No, we do not.

L2 HEARING OFFÍCER GOTTLIEB: Do you !,¡ant to state on the

13 record more fuÌly what your position is with respect to this
L4 matter ?

15 MR. DORN: E-11, whlch has been offet:ed for identification

16 by the hospital, indicates that the senior access servÍces

f7 Tepresentative might have some supervisory duties. I saw this
18 document for the first time this morning lvhen it was introduced.

L9 In light of that, I cannot at this point stìpulate that the

20 senior access services representative is not a supervisor,

2a MR. FRANK: In that case, do you withdraw your objectÍon

22 to the testimony about how the process works addressing the

23 supervisory issue?

24 MR. DORN: I don't think that my objection was sustained.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. So the Union very weLL
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1 may contend that the position is statutory supervisor, so that's
2 an issue that remains. Okay.

3 MR. FRANK: For planning purposes as we go forward, we

4 have fike a job category senior grounds person, wilf t¡e hawe the

5 same issue with afl the senior categories? ln other words, on

6 the job list, there is senior hall aide. senior sociaf worker

7 assistant, senlor grounds person, senior Medicare rep account/

I senior CASAC, which were titles that the Union wanted to include

9 in the bargaining unit. I am more than prepared to dea.L with

10 those job descriptions, but they're on the side of the equation

.L.L OI __

1-2 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: Yeah, why don,t we go off the

13 record.

14 MR. FRAIiK: I'd rather have it on the record so l know

15 what their positions are.

16 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, off tl¡e record-

A7 (Discussion off the record. )

18 HEÄRfNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

L9 Do you have a position with respect to this?
20 MR. DORN: We will agree that the seniors are not

2I suoe' vlsory, not supe v' sor .

22 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTT-TEB: lncluding the senior access

23 services repre sentative ?

24 MR. DORN: Yes .

25 HEARING OEEICER GOTTLIEB: Al1 right.
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1 MR. FRANK: We'lf agree to that stipufation.
2 HEARING OFFTCER GoTTLIEB: okay.

3 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhlbit E-11.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Any objectlon?
5 MR. DORN: I can't agree or disagree.
6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIfEB: Afl right. Vtefl, it wilL be

7 received.

8 (Elnployer Exhibit L1 received into ewidence. )

9 MR. FRANK: So f understand it, you stlll contend the
10 senior access serwíces representative shoufd not be in the unit
11 but on other than not supervisory grounds?

f2 MR. DORN: That's correct.
13 BY MR. FRANK:

L4 Q Looking at Employer Exhibit 11, what are the chemicaÌ
15 dependency phone catls that are referred to in point A and who

L6 do -he senior access servlces reptesenLarive . nter¿ct_ wjth in
17 ltegard to chemical dependency phone calls?
18 A The senior access services representative would be an

L9 individuaÌ that woufd take phone cafls from prospective patlents
20 prior to their initial assessment or their initiaf evaÌuati.r¡r.
2I And some of those phone caÌls could be from patients that would

22 potentialÌy be addicted to drugs or alcohof- And if they had a

23 chemicaf dependency addiction, they woutd need to be screened

24 the same as a psychiatric patient or someone that may have a

25 general or acute psychialric condition, noting that there are
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1 differences between illnesses, mental illnesses dealing with

2 addlctlon and those dealing wlth more psychiatric conditions.

3 So this indiwidual woufd be responsible for fielding those

4 phone calls, answering the questions that the individual or the

5 treating care provider on the outside may have about the types

6 of serv.ices that we offer in the hospital, either our inpatient

7 unit/ actualLy, in our inpatient unit or a different area of the

8 hospital that may be able to help an individual with.

9 Q And which inpatient units wouLd they communicate with?

10 A Primarily, 4-South, which is the addiction recovery

11 inpatient unit. That is the unit that is unlocked- Tt is one

L2 of our 12 inpatient un.its. But that Ís the one unit where

13 patients are actually free to come and go as they see fit.

L4 Q And what categories of employees work on the 4-South

15 lnpatíent unit ?

16 A 4-South has menta.l health workers, unit c.Lerks, and

'L7 psychialric technìcians. They could have LPNs. Irm not

18 entlre]y certain .if they would be assigned to that unit, but it

L9 would not be uncommon for them to f.Loat to that unit if there

20 were a need. There would be regístered nurses, a unit cferk

2L that would be assigned to that unit. But also there woufd be

22 two speciaÌty professions. One wouÌd be CASAC and the other

23 would l¡e senior CASAC. C-A-S-A-C. CASAC stands for credentialed

24 alcohoLism and substance abuse counse.Ior and senior CASAC wouLd

25 be a senior credentialed alcoholism and substance abuse
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1 counselor.

2 Q And how would the senior access services representatives

3 interact with the CASAC or senlor CASAC or regarding chemica.L

4 dependency patients ?

5 A If there were questions about the patient's current

6 condition- If there were questions about the appropriate

7 treatment program that a CASAC that is actually certified to
I treat addlction, or a senior CASAC, they wouÌd confer with one

9 of those indlviduafs about the uniqueness of the patient that
10 was on the phone or that was 1n the hosp.ital seek.inq assistance

11 or guidance about what treatment options wouLd be availabÌe to
'L2 them.

13 Q And how wou.Ld they effectuate this conununlcation, by

a4 person, telephone, email ?

15 A They would effectuate the communication in a number of

f6 ways. Over the telephone, they wouÌd be able tô contact the

L7 individual from the access serwices work Ìocation, again that's
18 on the first floor near the evaluation center. lf they were in
a9 the presence of 4-South, whìch is on the fal: south side of the

20 hospital, they couÌd ask the CASAC or senior CASAC for their
27- guidance- An email is a common form of co[ununication at a

22 hospital, in a behavioraÌ health hospitat to speed communication

23 and to have access to information quicker.

24 Q Do the senior access service rept:esentatives have contact

25 with the senior socia.L work assistants or the social work
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1 assistants regarding discharge planning or transfer information?

2 A Yes. They would work --
3 Q trdould you pÌease describe that?

4 A They would work with both of the jobs that you had

5 mentioned, the social work assistant and the senior social work

6 assistant. Again, the access services representallve or the

7 senior access services representative wouÌd be responsible for a

I number of dutÍes. But where they would interface and work very

9 closely with the sociaf work assistant or senlor social work

10 assistant in particular wouÌd have to do prímarily with the

11 discharge process.

L2 lf and when it is determined that a patient is ready for

13 discharge, assuming that all the hang-ups and hold-ups that
a4 happen and do occur on a regular basis in a psychiatrlc

15 environment, once that is determined that the patient is truly
16 ready for a discharge, then the social work assistant or the

77 senior social work assistant wouÌd communicate that with access

18 services, either the access services representative or the

f9 senior access services representative so the patient couÌd

20 forma].ly be discharged through Ectipsys XA, which is the

2l inpatient patient medlcal record.

22 Q And do these peopte talk to each other to perform their
23 duties?

24 A Constantly, yes

25 Q Now is there s.imilar contact with the other staff that we
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t have discussed ln regard to the children's areas of the

2 hospital? tr^ie have taÌked about the chemicaf dependency area.

3 Whär is the seníor access services represenLaLlve's inL-ecact.ions

4 with the children's unit or the adolescence unit and who do they

5 interact with, that unit?

6 A If the child or adolescent patient is in the process of

7 be.ing prescreened if you w111 through the access services

I department, they would generalÌy need a guardian or legal adult

9 to assÍst Ín the process. So that may lengthen the process/ the

10 initial evaluation or pre-assessment questionnaire process. But

11 assuming that the senior access services representative is

L2 working in the access services department. they would primarily

13 be working wÍth or assisting that individual or that lndividual

14 with their legal guardian or parent over the phone.

15 However, if the senior access services representatíve is

16 work.ing a night shift where they would be covering for the

L7 evaluation center clerk, they would be responsible for aIÌ of

18 the duties of the evaluation center cÌerk and the patient

L9 account representative. And when the process for screening and

20 admission were complete in that instance, the senior access

2L services representative could wery welÌ be the individual that

22 would escort the child or adolescent patient to Nichot's

23 Cottage, which is our inpatient child psychiatric unit/ or

24 7-North, which is the adoÌescent psychiatric unit.

25 In transporting or escorting the child or adolescent to
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1 one of those units, they woufd likefy interact with the mentaÌ

2 heafth workers. Again, there are aÌways mentaf heafth workers

3 24/1 on al1 of our inpatient units - Psychiatric technic.ians,

4 LPNS, should they bìe assigned to be working that shift; a un.it

5 cferk, if the unit clerk were workinq extra hours or an extra

6 shift, if the unit clerk were working off shift, if the unit

7 clerk were working early between those hours of midnlght and

I 8:30 a.m. So there would be a number of staff on the inpatient

9 units that the senior access services representative wouÌd

10 interact with on the units on in that capacity.

11 Q ChiÌdren and adolescent units are which units in the

L2 hospital, going back referring to the diagram?

13 A They are both on the north side of the main psychiatric

L4 hospital build.ing. So Ìooking at the center building which is

15 the center of the multi*cofored map that I am --
a6 Q What color is the area, since I think everyone has the

L7 cofored one ?

18 A Tt doesn't have a color. It's the one area that you'll

19 notice, for example, 7-North would be blue, but NichoL's Cottaqe

20 is completely white so it's not shaded in or co.lored in. ARS

2L wou.Id be - -
22 Q So Nicholrs Cottaqe is part of the main hospital building,
23 even though it is not colored. That's the chiÌdren's unit.
24 A Yes, it is.

25 Q And what is ARS just beyond that?
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1 A ARS stands for addiction recovery services. That is no

2 longer an active program- But primariÌy that was the outpatient

3 counter program to the 4-South inpatient addiction recovery

4 program. The ARS program formaLÌy closed the last day of

5 December last year. And, again, it was primarily due to cuts in
6 reimbursement by the state.

7 Q And the Tay.Lor building, that's part of this same hospital
8 bui.Lding ?

9 A The Taylor building is a part of the same hospitaÌ

10 building. And there are numerous ways to access the buÍlding,
11 the Taylor buiÌding. All of the areas that you see on the map

L2 wouLd have ínterconnecting basement level tunnels. You would

13 also be abfe to access the Tayfor building from the driveway or

a4 the north parking .lot. And you I beÌleve can access it through

15 the back of the Taylor building as well, but that is connected

7-6 to the main hospital buiÌding. And that is the gymnasium that
f7 is used for PSR or psycho social rehabiÌitation. Those

18 therapeutic actlvities woufd take place in thet:e. The children,
L9 for exampLe, on a ralny or snowy day where they wouldn't be abÌe

20 to get outside and pLay on the playground could participate in
2a lherapeutic activities in TayÌor gym.

22 Q And the employees, the job categories l.isted on Employer

23 Exhibit 1, use that TayÌor gym facility?
24 A They can- They need to request permission through the

25 psycho sociaf rehabilitation department primarily to ensure that
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1 patient services are not interfered with. Obviously, patlents

2 come first.

3 Q I understand, times when it is not being used for patient

4 care.

5 A Both the gymnasiums can be used, employees can use those,

6 the Taylor gym and the Rogel:s buiÌding, which is again where the

7 staff fitness center is and where the pooÌ would be located.

I Q And is the staff business center facility open to alL of

9 the staff?

10 A ft's open to aÌÌ of the staff and it's also open to the

11 employees' famifies.

L2 Q Now going back to the senior access services

13 representat.ive job description, what is there interaction with

L4 the geriatric unit? I'm looking at Nurìlf,er L on Page 2 be]ow the

15 chitdren and adolescence, there is geriatrics-

f6 A Yes.

!7 Q Vühat buílding of the hospÍtal is that?

18 A The geriatrlcs unit, aÌso the mature adult unit, is

1-9 2-North. That would be the purpÌe sectíon of the map.

20 Q So what you had described previously as the mature adults,
2L that is what this document is referring to as qeriatrics?

22 A The geriatrics progl:am. It's a combined program. And it
23 serves not just geriatrlc patient but adult patients primarily 

i

24 that may need more assistance with -- ,

25 Q I/ühat coÍìmunication is there between the senior access l
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1 serwices representative and the other proposed unit employees

2 who work on 2-North in the geriatric unit? What do they

3 coromunicate about?

4 A tr{ell, there wouÌd be a number of things that would be

5 different about communicating with the qerìatrics unit in

6 particu.Lar because many of the patients that wouÌd be admitted

7 through the evafuation center may have rnobility issues, for

8 exampÌe. So there woufd be additional coordination required.

9 Q tr{ould you describe the type of coordination that woufd be

10 required for the older adult population?

11 A Sure. Tf a patient who wouldn't have to be an older

f2 adult, but if the patient were an older individual that needed

13 assistance and needed a wheelchair to he.lp them get to their

f4 un.it after their initial assessment, after evaLuation and after

15 lhey were admitted into the hospital, the evaluation center

L6 staff or the access services staff if they were fulfilling that

L7 roLe would contact building servlces, generally a hall aide

18 would have access to the supply of stretchers or wheelchairs,

L9 and they wouÌd help to facilitate the transportation of the

20 geriatric patient from the evaluation center where the access

2'L services representative or the ewaluation center clerk or the

22 senior access services representative working in that capacity,

23 agaín during the n.ight shift, they would help to coordinate that
24 transportation.

25 Q And part of the hall aide's responsibÍIity is to
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1 effectuate transportation on a patient?

2 A No. Primarily the halL aide is responsibÌe for cÌeaning

3 the hospj-ta], the rooms, making sure that the halls, the

4 côrridors are c.Iean. But they a.Lso have access to suppfy or

5 closets that would house the wheefchairs when they are not in

6 use. And since their: department afso cfeans the wheelchairs

7 after they have been in use, in addition to att of the staff,

I they wouÌd be responsibLe for cleaning the wheefchairs for

9 example, but every month the hall aídes would be l:esponsible for

10 a top to bottom thorough cleaning of each of the transportation

11 devices, such as a wheelchaír. So they would have access to the

L2 closes where they are ma.intalned typicalÌy in the basement.

13 Q What is the intervention responsibiÌities for the senior

L4 access services representatives in regard to aggressive

15 patients? Under envirÕnment, Number C, can you eLaborate on

L6 that, pÌease ?

17 A Environment C, emergency safety procedures ìncluding BT-S?

18 Q I'm sorry, B.

L9 A B as in boy?

20 Q I'm getting to be a senior and I can't read sometimes. I

2L was looking at Section B-

22 A lntervenes in a safe and therapeutic manner with

23 aggressÍve patients.

24 Q Who do they interact with?

25 A Well, they may just be interacting with the aggressive
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1 patient. And at the time they would reÌy on the CPI tralning,

2 crisis prewention intervention training that they woufd hawe

3 received, and the access serwices representatives would have

4 received, simiÌar training to what the mental health workers and

5 the indiwiduaÌs who work on the inpatient units woufd receive-

6 That training aLLows them to effectivefy or more effectively
7 de-escalate an agitated patient.

I I know we were talking about geriatric patients just a

9 moment ago, but any pat.ient can certainfy become agitated, but

10 the geriatric patient may take a different ski1l set if the

11 patlent, for example, is hard of hearing and can't hear the

f2 instructions of the staff member of the access services

13 indiwidual. So they wouÌd intervene in a number of ways. But

a4 also the access services representative could attempt to
15 de-escalate a suicidal patient during the inítial assessment

L6 because .it is not unconìmon for patients to catt the hospital
L7 when they are severely depressed or agitated. So they would use

18 thelr skills to try to assist that individuaf ín crisis.
19 Q ülhat does the social work asslstant or assistant sociaf

20 work do in general terms?

2L A The social work assistant is an important component of the

22 sociaÌ work department. The individuaÌs that work in that
23 capacity are responslble for assisting social workers but also

24 worklng very closeÌy with other behavioral health staff in
25 preparing patients effectlvely for discharge. And discharge in

BTIRKE COURT REPORTING, IJLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wa)me , Ner^/ Jersey 07 47 O

(973) 692- 0660



220

1 a behavioraf heaÌth hospital can be a very lengthy process. So

2 the social work assistanl would work very closeLy with the unit

3 cÌerk, with our medical records team/ with a nunlcer of others to

4 ensure that the patient record is accurate. Patients very often

5 as they are being discharged, again if they are not being

6 discharged to a home enwironment, they may be discharged to a

7 corununity group home environment. Many of our patients are

I actualfy discharged to a New Yor:k State hosp.ital, and that

9 process can be very fengthy. So sometlmes if a state hospital

10 doesn't have enough beds to accept a very sick patient, the

11 discharge process can take a long time.

L2 But the social work assistants wouLd be very ìnwolved with

13 making phone calls to the entity in which the individual will be

14 discharged to. They will work again to ensure that the medical-

15 record is complete because the entity that wiLl be accepting

16 that patient may request other paper or electron.ic copies of the
'L7 medica.L record that the HIM, health information management

18 department/ wouÌd be responsible for maintaining.

f9 And they would work extremely closefy with the unlt clerk,

20 for example, because the unit clerk wouLd be coordinating much

2L of the effort on the individual unit. And although it may be

22 ant.icipated that a patient will be discharged, until the time

23 that it is announced that it is, the patient is ready for

24 discharge, there wouÌd be a lot of personal interaction, phone

25 contact between the social work assistant and the unit clerk on
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1 the unit, when the decision is uftimately made to discharge the

2 patient -

3 When the patient is ready to leave the hospitaÌ, the

4 social work assistant woufd extremely closely lrith the access

5 se.v ices team, Lhe access services represenLaL ive, or the senior

6 access services representatlve to ensure that the patient ls

7 properLy discharged in the electronic medical record, which is

8 Eclipsys XA. And that would trÍgger a series of other

9 lnterfaces to ensure that the bed count is accurate and to

10 ensure that the access services team and the evaÌuation center

11 team are abfe to start accepting new patients off the bed that

L2 was just vacated. So the social work assistant is extremely

l-3 important in that aspect of discharge or hospitaLization.

L4 Q Can you descr.ibe the work relationship between the sociaf

15 work assistant and the social workers?

L6 A Sure. The social workers are licensed cfínicians. At the

17 l¡lestchester Division, they're afl masters prepared license-

18 Q Do they have an MSW degree?

L9 A MSI{ or LCSW, .licensed cÌinicaÌ sociaÌ worker.

20 Q They are one of the excluded professional categories?

2L A They are an excluded professional category.

22 Q Can you descrille how the social work assistants work with

23 the -- is there any kind of analogy between the relationship

24 between nurses, and mental health workers, and soclal workers.

25 and sociaÌ work assistants?
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1 A Sure, there would be a fot of corunonality.

2 MR. DORN: Objection. Objection. I don't know what that

3 means, is there ana]ogy. What does that mean?

4 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: It's a compound question.

5 Ultimately, I think you should rephrase the question.

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q Can you describe the working relationship between the

I sociaf workers and the social work assistants?

9 A Sure. The socia.L workers would direct the work of the

10 social work assistants/ although the sociaÌ work assistants

1l would work with a number of other non-profe s s i onal indivlduals
L2 throughout the hospital to ensure that the discharge pLanning

13 process is correct and accurate. and that it is movÍng along-

L4 They would take much of the dlrection if there were cÌinical
15 questions/ things that came up that perhaps were not accurate -in

16 the med.ical record, they would take their direction from the

L'7 licensed clinicaÌ social work staff.

18 Q And do the social workers have interactions wÍth the other

f9 professional staff at the facility?

20 A Sure- Tt's a coordinated care approach.

2L Q !¡lould you generally describe how the professíonal level
22 employees interact with each other at the facility?
23 MR. DORN: Objection. 

i

24 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: What is the relevance of this
25 area that we are goinq into?
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1 MR. FRANK: Draw.ing a distinction between the professional

2 and non-professiona.L unit. In other words, slnce the petition

3 is not for any presumptively appropriate un.it, what we bel.ieve

4 is that the appropriate unit is all non-professiona.ls as

5 distinguished from the professional unit-

6 HEARING OFEICER GOTTI,IEB: That .is really not at issue

7 here so I would rather not go lnto an area that vre don't need to

I go into. Why don't we just move on?

9 MR. FRANK: WelÌ, I'll do whatever the hearing officer

10 wouÌd like, but I thought it would be significant to show the

11 reader of the record how thís institution is organized. The

L2 .Logícal unit distinct.ions here in terms of what the board has

13 considered would be professional versus non-professional -

L4 That's a rat.ional distinction in how to approach the approprÍate

15 unit issue for a psychiatrìc hospitaÌ.
'L6 MR. DORN: I'm going to object. Professionals can't be

L7 included in the same bargaining unit in any event without giving

18 them a seff-determination eÌection. No one has petitioned for
19 professiona.Is here. And I think it is just going to c]utter the

20 record to determine whether there shouÌd be separate units of

2f professionaL or a single unit of professionaÌs. I don't think
22 that's at issue.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I would agree. T just don't
24 Lhink it's necessary ar at I

25 MR. FRANK: That's fine with me. But the reason I'm doing
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1 it is on the job description which we'll get to there ís a

2 prefer:ence for college degrees - And I wanted to dÍstinguish

3 that the socíal work assistant is in a dlfferent capacity than

4 professional employees, even though there is a preference for a

5 college degree. In other words. .it is not an MSW like the

6 social workers, who are the professionals. The fact that this

7 particufar there is a preference for a coÌÌege degree, we'd

I still contend is not a professiona.L category but beÌongs in the

9 non-professiona.l unit. I was trying to show that there is a

10 distinction. If there is no contention that this would become a

11 professional emp.Loyee, I certain.Iy don't have to qo there.

1-2 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: Okay. Yes. So let's just move

a3 on.

!4 MR. FRANK: !feÌÌ, is there an agreement that just because

15 the lob description says college degree preferred that there is

L6 not qoing to be an argument that this person should be excluded

L7 because they are professionals.

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes. This has not been raised

19 here at aÌl -

20 MR. FRANK: We.Ll, the Union -- no, t.he Union has raised

2l the issue that the sociaf work assistant shouLd not be included

22 in the unit. They didn't tell us why.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No. But they have sa.id from

24 the very beginning that it simply ìs a communlty of interest.

25 MR. DORN: We don't beLieve that busÍness office clericaÌ
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1 employees or technicaÌ employees belong in the same unit as

2 service emp loyees.

3 MR. FRANK: They changed their positíon on the senior

4 category a few minutes ago.

5 MR. DORN: i{e didn't change our positlon.

6 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: No, I don't want to go into

7 this because we are wasting time. One category came up that the

I Union thought might be supervisory based on the document. It

9 ended up that that issue has been resoLve. Ther:e is no issue

10 about professionaf status, so Ietrs just move on.

11 MR. FRANK: Even .if a colleqe degree ls part of it.

12 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes. They haven't raised the

13 issue, so I don't want to waste any more time on this.

a4 MR. FRANK: Are you suggesting I'm !,¡asting time?

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right now I thlnk this

16 discussion isn't productive. So --
l7 MR- FRANK: Can f have this marked as Exhibit 12?

18 (Employer Exhibit 12 marked for identification . )

L9 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB: Thank you.

20 MR. FRANK: My on.Ly goaÌ is to buÍld a full record for the

2L Board to decide because I reaLly think this is a major undecided

22 issue of board .Iaw, at this point.

23 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yes, but that isn't raised

24 here.

25 MR. FRANK: No. but what I believe our obligation here is
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1 to create a record where the Board can decide what is an

2 appropriate in a psychiatric hospital. This is an area where

3 the Board has not engaged in rule-making. In another context

4 not invoÌving a psychiatric hospital that asked for amícus

5 bríefs to try to contempfate rufe-making or \n¡hat would be

6 appropriate in long-term care facifities. The Board, I don't
7 know how many years, 10, 15 years ago sort of made some passing

I references to psychiatric hospitals, and we're not dealing with
9 the issues, and we're going to use traditional community of

10 interest tests.
11 And it seems to me in the absence of a fot of precedent it
12 woufd be most usefuf to give the Board or the Regionaf Director
13 a complete record so the Board might be able to determine what

L4 is appropriate in psychiatric hospitals, in a ratlonaÌ and

15 reasoned decisÍon. And I wouÌd think a full record would be a

L6 good idea, rather than excluding parts of it where the Board

17 just wouldn't know that.
18 MR. DORN: I think we are making, more than making a full
1-9 record. And I don't see how getting invofved in the status of
20 professionaÌs in this hearing with this petition is at all
2l reÌevant or necessary.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And T would agree - Okay.

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you pÌease Look at what I have had

25 marked by the court reporter as Exhibit 12?
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1 A Okay.

2 (Whereupon, the $titness reviews the document. )

3 MR. FRANK: Can we go off the record for just a second?

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, off the record.

5 (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q Mr. O'Connor, what are the general duties of the social

9 work assistant, of the lvestchester: Division. of New York

10 Pre sbyte rian?

11 MR. DORN: Objection. I thought r,ne went through that.

12 didn't we?

13 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTT,IEB: Can you repeat the question?

L4 MR. FRANK: Sure. Coufd the reporter read it back/

1tr ñl ô-eô"

1-6 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Or you could just repeat the

17 question if itrs quicker.

18 (Pause. )

L9 MR. FRANK: Ì lost my tra.in of thought. I'11 ask a

20 different question.

21. BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q The socia.L work assistants escort pat.ients to community

23 interviews from what areas of the faciÌit.ies?

24 A Yes. They would actuafly escort patients that are nearing

25 discharge- That generally is one of the flnal steps prior to
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1 discharge, but lt can afso be one of the lengthier components of

2 the discharge process.

3 Q Vühat is ínvolved in escorting patìents?

4 A The after-care services that are referred to Ín the job

5 description for the socia.L work assistant would be a residence,

6 for example. It cou.Ld be a community group home. Ìt coufd be a

7 state hospital . And oftentimes a socíal work asslstant wouÌd

I accompany the patient one-on-one and they viould go to whatever

9 that home or home setting would be, if it is not their own

10 private home, and they would conduct a series of interviews with

11 the individuals that perhaps ran that group home or perhaps ran

a2 the state hospital to ensure that the patient and the after-care

13 that the patient would receive woufd be adequate for their
14 condit.ion.

15 So the socia.L work assistant wou.Ld leave the hospitaÌ with

L6 the patient, Ìeave the hospital grounds/ and have wíth them

L7 reLevant portions of the medical history or the medica.I record

18 so that that could be shared with the facility, the after-care

L9 facility, residentiaÌ facility that the patient was being

20 discharged to. And this can become one of the hang-ups or one

2I of the things that can lengthen the discharge process.

22 Tf through the series of interview questions that the

23 patient would hawe of the facllity or the residence, ol: the

24 social work assistant wouÌd have of that residence, if it ls not

25 deemed to be an appropriate fit then the patient would obviously
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1 not be discharged to that faciLity. And then the whofe process

2 woufd begin again where the social work assistant, the staff

3 assistant, or the administratÍve assistant in the social work

4 department would help to identify coíìrnunity resources -

5 There is an extensive community resource log and database

6 that the office staff. the social work assístant staff, staff

7 assistant, administrative assistant wouÌd maintain. And if that

8 facility, for example, were not abfe to accept the patient, they

9 would start making additional phone calls and try to match up

10 another facility or residence with the patient on a different

11 day, schedule those interwiews, and the social work assistant

1-2 would accompany that patient to that particular facility as

13 well, again tTying to find a suitabfe and appropriate res.idence

14 for them to discharge to.

15 Q How does is transportation facllitated off campus? trdho

16 does the drivlng? Is that what the chauffeurs do?

L7 MR. DORN: Obj ec L ion.

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: lt is leading.

L9 MR. FRANK: Okay. Isn't this a non-adversarial hearing

20 where we're trying to buiÌd a record?

2L MR- DORN: You asked the question who does the driving.
22 So you don't have to then add to that.
23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; True. All right, go ahead. co

24 ahead.

25 BY MR. FRANK:
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1 Q trdho does the driving or transporting of the patients to

2 the other: facili tie s ?

3 A Commonly, they wouÌd utiÌize a taxi service or a car

4 servlce to qet the patient and the social work assìstant to the

5 intended location -

6 Q Now when they go to get the patient from the unit, who do

7 they interact with, soclal work assistants?

I A The sociaÌ work assistants interact with alL of the

9 empÌoyees on the unit, but primarily the unit clerk- The unit

10 clerk wouLd be responsible for, exampÌe. ensuring that all of

11 the paper documents thât wou.Id have been psychiatïic documents,

L2 release forms, information that could not be added without being

13 scanned, for example, to the electronic medical record. They

L4 would interface with those individuals to ensure that the

15 medica.L record was up to date. Because on the day that the
'L6 patient were set to go to the colûnunity interview, for example,

L7 or the residential interview/ there may have been other

18 documents or papers that the heafth information management

L9 officer or: the clerk chart anaÌyst from HIM may not have picked

20 those up yet. So they may not have been digitized. or scanned,

2L or added to the record.

22 So the social work assistant would need tÕ ensure that all
23 of the documents were in that flle so when they were brinqing
24 reLevant portions of the medicaf chart with them to the

25 residence, that they wouÌd have an accurate copy of that record.
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1 So the unit clerk would be the primary point of contact on the

2 unit- But, again, when the decision is made to actualfy

3 discharge the patient, assuming that the residential interview

4 went weÌl, then the social work assistant wouÌd the communlcate

5 that wlth the access serwices representative so that the access

6 servíces representatlve could formally discharge the patient

7 from the Eclipsys XA system.

8 But lf there were a need for transportation assistance as

9 far as internal hospltaL transportation assistance, the sociaf

10 work assistant would contact a hafl aide or someone from the

11 building services department to bring a wheelchair to the unit

L2 so that they could transport them to the front of the hospitaÌ/

13 where the taxi or car service wouÌd be walting for them.

L4 Q And social work assistants are in Job Grade W-04?

15 A Yes, they are.

f6 Q By the same grading system that we taÌked about with other

L7 people ?

18 A Yes, the exact same grading system.

19 Q And do they receÍve the same benefits that you've

20 previously described for other peopÌe in this bargaining unit?

2L A Yes, the same benefits.

22 MR. FRANK: I offer E-12.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Same objection? Okay.

24 MR- FRANK: What? i^lhat's the objection?

25 MR. DORN: I didn't object. I said I cannot agree, at
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1 this point, to the íntroduction of the document, period.

2 MR. FR-ANK: So there is no objection.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Yeah, he's not --

4 MR. DORN: I'm not agreeing.

5 HEARfNG OFFICER GOTT],IEB: -- agreeing to admit it. Okay.

6 But it is admitted anyway.

7 (Emp1oyer Exhibit 12 receiwed into ewidence- )

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q Can you describe what the sen.ior social work assistant

10 does general ly ?

11 A The senlor social work assistant would do similar r.¡ork to

a2 the sociaf work assistant- The individual would have more years

13 of experience, would have therefore more experiences to draw

L4 upon or resources that the indivìdual may know from their own

15 experiences working at the l/üestchester Diwision. But thelr

16 duties and responsibilities wouLd be very similar to those of

I7 the social work assistant.

18 Q Do the social work assistants or the senior social work

19 assistants have any interactions with the Medicaid counselors?

20 A Yes.

2I Q Either or both? Can you describe the interactions?

22 A Sure - Tf you'll recal] during the initiaL assessment,

23 prescreening phase of the admission process, insurance

24 information is obtaíned in the evaluatÍon center by either the

25 access services representative, the senior access services
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1 representative, or: the EC c1erk. But in that environment, there
2 may be a question, for example, as to someone,s continuing
3 social benefits, for exampfe Medicaid. And if there is a

4 question as to the continuing coverage of the Medicaid insurance
5 that the person would have, then there would be a meetÍng that
6 could be facifitated between the senlor sociaf work assistanr or
7 the socia.L work assistant with the Medicaid counse.Lor. And that
I indlvidual primariÌy works in the patient finance area of the
t hospital .

10 Q And what does the senior social worker do in regard to
11 direct discharge ptanning for high risk patlents? I,d draw your
72 attention to Number 5 on the job description.
13 A For the social work assistant?
L4 Q Senior sociaf worker.

15 A f don't have that.
L6 Q Oh, I,m sorry.
17 MR. FRÀNK: May I have this marked as Exhibit 13.

18 (Employer Exhibit 13 marked for identification . )

19 MR. FRANK: My apologles.
20 BY MR. FRÄNK:

2I Q Number 5 refers to provlding direct discharge planning
22 services to high risk patients.
23 A One of the more important aspects Õf this role, the senior
24 sociaf work assistant, would be to intervene and to use the
25 years of experience that would be incuml¡ent upon a senior or
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1 lead level person in that sociaL work assistant roÌe to asslst

2 with complex discharge, patients that are very difficuÌt to

3 discharge- Some of those examples I had mentÍoned earlier, but

4 there can be even more comp.Iicated issues. Eor exampfe, if a

5 chi.Ld were lnwolved, it is not as easy to dlscharge a child if

6 the chifd were hospitaÌlzed due to abuse for example. or

7 maltreatment, or neg.Lect by a parent or guardian.

8 So the seniol: sociaf work assistant wouÌd lntervene w.ith

9 the behavioral health team to ensure that that hígh risk patient

10 or the patient that is being discharqed, this is one of many

11 examples of how a senior socia.L worker wouÌd íntervene and they

L2 would draw upon their expertise, the resources that they were

13 aware of in the com.rnunity to assist in heLping to get the

L4 pat.ient discharged as soon as possible, because no patient likes
15 to be in the hospital but especially not a child.
a6 Q And the pay qrade for senior social work assistant is?

17 A The pay grade for the senior soclaf work assistant is
18 W-05.

19 Q One higher than the sociaL worker (sic)?

20 A One higher than the socia] work assistant.

2L Q And Number 7, like escort.ing patients, is that any

22 different than what you described that the social worker does?

23 A It wouÌd be very simiLar to the function --
24 Q I'm tryinq not to dupÌicate it. But to the extent that it
25 has the same duties in this job description as in E-1,2, does the
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1 senlor sociaf work assistant perform the same duties as the

2 sociaf work as si stant ?

3 A Yes. But they wou.Id have again a Ìead roLe, it's a

4 non-supervisory role, but one that would have more years of

5 experience generally to drop on to assist in the discharge

6 planning process or the care of patients at our hospital.

7 Q And what .is the interaction between the senior sociaf work

I assistant and who do they interact with and for what reasons?

9 A The senior social work assistant woufd work very closely

10 with the medicaÌ record staff/ the chart analyst, the

11 abstractor, the health information management, any of the
'l-2 individuaLs in health lnformation management or the medical

13 record area of the hospital that wou.Ld have access to the

a4 medlcal chart, the compÌete medicaL chart of the patient, who

15 wouÌd aLso have access to the complete e.lectronic medical record

L6 of the patient.

I7 And in working very closely Ì{ith those individuals from

18 HIM, they would assemble what they felt was necessary to
a9 accompany them or to go with them to the residential interview

20 with the patient. But in addition, in going to get the patient,

2! depending on the unit they were on, they would work very closely
22 with the unit cÌerk on that unit to make sure that a.LÌ of the

23 documents and everything were in order for the patient. They

24 wouÌd perhaps ask questions about the tast meal the person had,

25 trying to anticipate whether or not the individual would need
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1 lunch or a meaf on the trip. They would perhaps speak with the

2 LPN trying to determine what the medication regime vras, the fast

3 dosaqe. They would just want to make sure that the patient was

4 tru]y ready to go for what could potentially be a fong car ride

5 or a taxi ride with the senior soc.iaf work assistant.

6 And, again/ at the time of discharge, when the lnterview
7 1s successful at the residentíal treatment faci.Iity. the patient

I !,,ould accompany the senior sociaf worker back because they

t haven't ]:een discharged yet, they wouÌd still need to go through

10 the whole process of getting aÌÌ of their belongings in the

11 hospital and interfacÍng with the cashier, for example, the

L2 security department. The cashier because they could have cash

13 or waluabfes that would be in the safe, credit cards. The

A4 security department because they maintain the lugqage room. And

15 when the decision is made to díscharge, then the senior soc.iaÌ

L6 work assistant would coordinate with the access servlces

17 representative or the senior access services representative so

18 that they could formaÌly or officially discharge the individual
19 or the patlent from the EcLipsys XA system, which would then

20 trÍgger alÌ of the other systems to open up the bed for the next

2'L patient.

22 Q What interactions do the senior social workers have with

23 the senior CASAC or CASAC emp.Loyees?

24 A If the patient were an inpatient on the 4-South unit,
25 which is our inpatient addiction recovery program, that uniL,
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1 they woufd work very cfosefy with the CASAC or the senior CASAC

2 because part of the after-care for the patient, once they are

3 discharged from our hospitaf, might very well determine the type

4 of residential treatment setting that they are selecting for

5 that patient.

6 Q Would you go into a litt.Le detail on that? In other

7 words. you have the aLcohol abuse or drug abuse, the CASAC

I population, would you explain for the record the interaction

9 between the senior soclal worker and therapeutic placement

10 issues, and after-care that goes with that population.

11 A Well, in the exampLe that you had mentioned just

12 previously for a patient that woufd be on our 4-South unlt
13 suffering from some form of addiction, be it aÌcohofism or druq

a4 abuse, the after-care woufd be very important. The therapeutic
15 activlties of the program/ the residential treatment program

16 that that individual would be eventuatLy discharged to woufd

L7 take some extra coordlnation. And in additìon, many of the

18 after treatment outpatíent servlces, the patient could very

19 ÌikeÌy need to transport back and for.th to one of our outpatient
20 programs depending on if they have an secondary psychiatric

2L lssues that could be treated in the outpatient department, for
't) ôv-ññl ô

23 So the after-care is not simply discharglng the patient or

24 working on the therapeutic activities with the care providers on

25 the outside. lt wouÌd be thinking two or thl:ee steps ahead,
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1 multiple steps ahead on the part of the senior social work

2 assistant or the social work assistant to coordlnate the care,

3 to coordinate the benefits, the continuum of care, if you wlÌÌ,

4 to ensure that the patient not only receives the treatment that

5 they need in the residential faci.Lity to which they have been

6 discharged to, but also to ensure that they hawe relatively easy

7 access to continue wlth their outpatient treatment shoutd that
8 be deemed necessary.

9 Q i{ho would arrange the outpatient treatment for a former

10 ínpatient. substance abuse patients?

11 A Formerly, that was done -- untiL very recently, that was

12 done in our ARS program, the addiction recovery serwices. Many

13 of those staff have joined other departments, other units within
L4 the hospita.L. So we stilf have that expertise, not as a

15 centr:afized program. So primarily !,¡e would treat those patients

L6 in the outpatient setting. If they had substance abuse or

L7 addiction .issues or chalÌenges and if that were a secondary

18 diagnosis, that woufd be something that we could contlnue to
19 treat in the outpatient setting because those professionals are

20 working in the outpatient setting.
21- Q I'm trying to stay away frorn -- I may have got you too far
22 into the professional practice. Are the social work assistants

23 or senior socìal work assistants lnvo]ved in that pLacement in
24 Lhe oL,Lpatient lacility?

25 A They could be.
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1 Q And what would that role be?

2 A The role would be to ensure that they would be th.inking

3 not so much on the clÍnical side of things, the sociaÌ work

4 assistants, but to ensure that they weren't finding an after-
5 care residential facility that was 80 miles away knowlng that
6 the patient doesnrt drive. They would work very cfosety to
7 ensure that the residentiaÌ facilÍty were very close shou.Ld they

8 be in need of outpatient servlces. But the medical record

9 portion that they would take with them to the residential
10 interview woutd afso be a major component of their outpatient
11 treatment should that be necessary. But that would primarily be

a2 obta.ined or gotten through the HIM department, health
13 information management.

L4 Q Is Employer Exhibit 13, the job description for the senior
15 sociaÌ work assistant/ a l:egular business record of the

1,6 hospital ?

17 A Yes, it is.
18 Q And is it an accurate description of the job

L9 responsibiÌitles of the senior sociaÌ work assistant?
20 A Yes.

2I MR. FRANK: I offer exhibi t E-13.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Objection?

23 MR. DORN: Same comment.

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. It's received.
25 (Employer ExhibiÈ 13 receiwed into evidence. )
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1 MR. FRÂNK: Have aÌf the exhibits through 13 now been

2 rece íved?

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes.

4 BY MR . FR,ANK :

5 Q what are the general job responsibilities of the

6 purchasing as s is tant ?

7 A The purchasing assistant would primarily be an

I administrative support, clericaf support role. ALthough not

9 working ín an inpatient psychiatric unit, it would be wery

10 simiÌar to many of the job duties of the unit clerk, for

11 example. But the purchasing assistant is primarily assigned to

7-2 assist the manager or director of the purchasing department and

13 can also, does a.Iso assist the food and nutrition department

L4 with major purchases of food. for exampfe/ for the hospitaÌ, for

15 the patìents.

L6 HEARING OFFÏCER GOTTI,IEB: Just for one minute- Just so

I"7 the recor:d reflects on the Employer 1, it says

18 assistant-purchase, and that's the same positions, correct?

L9 THE WITNESS: Yes, it is.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Just to make it clear

2a fÕr the record.

22 MR. FRANK: T think, for the record, when this document

23 was put together, that transposition happened on a.If of the

24 assistant and senior. no. on aÌÌ of the titÌes? It started

25 alphabeticalfy, assistant-purchase.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: All right, no probfem/ just so

2 i:L's clear.

3 MR. FRANK: It's apparently what happens on spreadsheets.

4 BY MR. FRANK:

5 Q Who does the purchasing assistant work with in the

6 nutrition area regarding purchasing?

7 A tr{ork wlth many of the different job titles, any individual
8 that wou.Id be responsible for restocking or ordering food

9 supplies or accessories, napkins, plastic silverware.

10 Q Is there any interaction with the nutritlon assistants or

11 assistants-nutritlon?

1-2 A There could be, but they would not be doìng a fot of the

13 ordering of the food.

a4 Q I/úhat secretarial support does the purchasing assistant
15 provide in the food servlce department?

L6 A They couÌd answer the phone if there were an overflow

L7 issue as far as the office not be.ing adequâtely staffed for the

18 day. for example, making copies. faxing on beha.If of indivlduals
L9 within that department. So they wouÌd be assisting ín ordering

20 food primarily for the hospital in .lar:ge quantities. They wouÌd

2l also be responsible for general office administration.
22 secretarial suppor:t for that very large and important

23 department.

24 Q And which employees on Exhibit 1 do the purchasinq

25 assistants have communications with?
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1 A The purchasing assistant v.rould have a lot of interaction

2 with the administrative assistants/ the staff assistants, the

3 unit cÌerks -

4 Q Would you describe what their interactions with the unit

5 clerks woufd be?

6 A When the unit were in need of supplies, paper stock,

7 different things that woufd be needed, the unit clerk, for

I example/ ls responsible for clerical support and office

9 administration on the units. If they needed to reorder paper.

10 for example, for the fax machÍne, or for the copier, they would

11 work directfy with the purchasing assistant fiÌling out a post

L2 offlce and submitting that requisitlon to that individual so

13 that it coufd be processed-

a4 Q And they do that dir:ectly?

15 A Yes.

L6 Q Between the unit cÌerks and the purchasing assistants?

L7 A Yes-

18 Q One of the rnajor job responsibiÌ1ties of the unit clerk is
1-9 to order supplies, which is a similar responsibiÌity for office
20 assistants, staff assistants, and administrative assistant.
2L Q And do the purchasing assistants have the same benefits
22 and terms of employment as the other empLoyees we have been

23 talking about ?

24 A Yes, they do.

25 Q And are they on the same pay scaÌe?
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1 A Yes, they are.

2 MR. DORN: Objection. The same pay scale as whom?

3 MR. FRANK: As the ôther employees we have been talking
4 about -

5 MR. DORN: !üe11, that's so Jlroad, I don't know what that
6 means.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: The other empÌoyees hawe

I different pay scales.

9 MR- FRANK: This is with.in the same system, rlght.
10 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLfEB: The question was whether they
11 have a similar pay scale. But the emp]oyees that are in the
f2 record here have dlfferent pay scaÌes, so it doesn't make sense.

13 Do we have a job description for it?
L4 MR. ERANK; yes, we do.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. So that will have the
L6 pay scale.

17 MR. FRANK: Mark this Exhiblt 14.

18 (Employer Exhibit 14 ¡narked for identificaÈion. )

19 MR. FRANK: Woufd you please take a look at ExhìbÍt 14.

20 which the reporter has marked?

2L (litrereupon, the wiÈness reviews the document. )

22 THE WITNESS: Okav.

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q I haven't had a chance to revÍew Exhibit E-14. Is this a

25 regular hospital record?

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
L044 Route 23 North, Suíte 316

V'Ial¡ne, Nev, ,fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692- O660



244

1 A Yes, this ls.

2 Q And thls describes the job of the purchasing assistant?

3 A Yes. And it describes some of the additional

4 responsibilities that I haven't yet had a chance to discuss.

5 Q And what .is the job's pay grade?

6 A The pay grade for the purchasing assistant is Vü-05.

7 Q In the job summary, I see it says daily contact with alf
I hospitaÌ personnel.

9 A Yes.

10 Q We've aÌready described the contact w.ith the unit clerks

11 and the need for suppLies for restocking. What other personnef

L2 in the Ìist of people on Employer Exhibit 1 does the purchasíng

13 assistant have contact with?

L4 A If you look at the first butlet for the other peopÌe, the

15 unit cÌerk and individuals from the genera.L services department.

L6 This is something that is very important in a psychiatric

L7 hosp.itaL. Vie undergo department renovat.ions on a regular basis.

18 There is something that I referred to yesterday as 8-Nol:th,

L9 which is our swlng unit, which is on the north side of the

20 hospital. That unit, as an example, yestel:day there tvas a unìt
2f transfer. There was a unit change. So 5-North, which is the

22 seÌf-injurious behavior unit or the borderline personalÍty
23 disorder L.init was moved. It is in the process of being moved

24 today. So the patìents are going from their current unit to the

25 8-North swing unit- And the reason that is so important and so
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1 vitaÌ to this job title, for exampLe, is because the phones need

2 to bìe transferred as wefl- It is not just mowing the staff or

3 the personnel and moving the patients. You are also moving fax

4 fínes. You are mowing phone Ìines to ensure that there is

5 continuity of care so when someone is calÌing s-North, they wiÌl

6 actua]]y get the same unit.

7 So all of the indivíduals from our malntenance department.

8 for example, that would be involved, if they had to pull cables,

9 or if they had to do anything to ensure that that phone transfer

10 took p]ace would be very important. So s-North, for example, is

11 in the process of mowing today and it will be referred to as

a2 S-North on 8A-North for the next two months. I know that is

13 very confusinq, ltrut to ensure that the phone systems are working

L4 and in proper order is very impor:tant to providíng great patient

15 care.

L6 So this individual, the purchasing assistant, would work

L7 very c]osely with the unit. clerk and with others on the units.

18 And thls is just one example- But every unit withln the

L9 hospital has a scheduÌe for being renovated. lie can't renovate

20 them aÌl at once. But as they swing into the 8-North unit, the

21 same process wou.Id occur. So the purchasing assistant would be

22 extremely important ín that that impacts direct --
23 Q And would they talk directly with the maintenance

24 employees who are responsible for effectuating the telephone

25 hook-ups and the other hook-ups involwed?
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1 A Yes, they would/ and other general services employees.

2 Q hlould they talk to other empLoyees who are involved in

3 this -- what other empfoyees would be involved in the transition

4 to the swing un.it and vice versa?

5 A All of the employees that would be staffinq any of the

6 un.its/ but s-North, for example, afl of the mentaÌ heaÌth

7 workers and the T.PNS. The purchasing assistant could spend time

8 on that unit looking at the size and scope of the job, or to

9 ensure that they understood what resources would be necessary.

10 So throuqh their wafkthrough of the unit, alÌ of the employees

11 that wou]d be working on s-Nor:th, the mental health workers, the

7-2 psychiatric technicíans, the LPNS/ unit clerk, othel:s they would

L3 come into contact with.

L4 Q lalhat about the hall aides, do they have an involvement in
15 this proces s ?

L6 A Sure. The haff aides are a big component of the process

L7 of actuafly moving the department or moving the unit 5-North.

18 Q l{hat do hal.L aides do?

19 A Hall aides would be generaÌ cÌeaning services employees or

20 housekeepìng. In a different environment, they would be known

2L as housekeepers. But the hall aides, that is their title at the

22 Wes -ches t.er Div i sion.

23 Q And what is the.ir involvement in preparíng the swinq space

24 area including the group that is in today and may have been

25 there last week?
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1 A [a]el.L, there are a number of dif f erent regulatory standal:ds

2 that the Joint Com,'nission or the Office of Mentaf HeaÌth. the

3 Department of Health sanitary requirements that would require

4 any unit/ but the swing unit that we are talking about right now

5 to be properLy cÌeaned, sanitized, disinfected before one

6 population would move ln and another population were to foÌÌow.

7 So the halL aides would be very instrumenta.l in that. They

I would utilize the training that they received in general

9 employee orientation on infection control and prevention.

10 But the hafl aides are also very important, as T had

11 indicated earÌier, in loading and mowing furniture. In the

L2 behavioraÌ health setting, they could be assisting the

13 upholsterer. Often, furniture vJoufd be damaged in a move tike
14 the one that is being undertaken right now from s-North to
15 8A-North.

16 But, generally, that's !.nhat the hafl aides do, they clean.

L7 And not just in the inpatient setting. They are also

18 responsible for cleaning offices, private offlces, and work

19 suites. They woufd be responsible for cleaning and maìntaining

20 the cafeteria, the general haÌlways and corridors where patients

2I and visitors are located. and also to c.lean the auditorium

22 conference space, the outpatient department.

23 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Exhibit 15, please?

24 (Employer Exhibit L5 marked for identifieation . )

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: You want to offer 14?
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1 MR. FRANK: T havenrt yet, no-

2 HEþ,RING OEFTCER GOTTLIEB: Okav.

3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q Mr. O'Connor, the reporter is going to be showing you

5 what's been marked as Employer Exhibit 15. Can you describe

6 what the document is?

7 A This is a business document which is a job descriptlon for
8 hall aide.

9 Q And is it an accurate descrlption of what the hal.l aide's

10 principal job duties are and t:esponsibllities?

11 A Yes, it is.

f2 Q And are these the people that you were just referring to
13 who are inwolved in the swing space moving when we were

14 discussing the purchasíng assistants?

15 A Yes. This 1s the same group of employees.

16 Q And do the hall aìdes perform their duties throughout the

L7 hospital premises?

18 A Yes, throughout the entire hospita.l premises, both

L9 inpatient and outpatient areas, and general business areas.

20 MR. FRÄNK: I would offer Exhibit 15 and Exhilrit 14-

2L HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: Same cor¡ment?

22 MR. DORN: Yes .

23 HEARfNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. It's admitted.

24 (Employer Exhibits 14 and 15 receiwed inÈo ewidence. )

25 BY MR. FRÀNK:
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1 Q Now going back to the purchasing assístant, in addition

2 with having contact with the unit assistants and the hall aides,

3 as you have described, what other hospital personnel do they

4 have regu.Lar contact with?

5 A They would have reguÌar contact with any number of
6 employees/ sLatF dssistanLs-

7 Q And would you describe the nature of the purchasing

8 assistant's regular contact with staff assistants?

9 A Sure. Similar to their re.Lat.ionship with unit clerks, the

10 staff assistants r,¡oufd order suppÌies. It could be regular

11 office supplies. If they are ordering larger pleces of
L2 equipment, they would facilitate that through the purchasing

13 office or the purchasing assistant. That would be likely the
'J-4 first person that they woufd be interacting with.
15 Q And do they directÌy talk to each other?

16 A Yes.

L7 Q Can you describe the personaÌ interaction?

18 A Yes. Anyone that is working with the purchasing

L9 assistant. they are located on one floor, the individuaÌ, of the

20 hospítal and many of the documents and forms, sadly we are

2L somewhat antiquated in that sense where many of the documents

22 that we use are stilÌ hardcopy, colored documents/ muÌti-copy

23 documents. So it would be tikely that the staff assistant or

24 whomever was going to the purchasing assistant would qo to get a

25 stack of whatever documents they needed to transact whatever
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1 purchase they needed to. lt is not an onfine form. It is a

2 speciaf i:Ìue form for the check request. Some of the forms are

3 muÌti-copy documents that would only be carbon press. So they

4 woufd need to actuatly go and request those. and obtain those

5 from the purchasing assistant.
6 Q So they actualÌy talk to each other?

7 A Yes, they do.

I Q The staff asslstants and the purchasing assistants?
9 A Yes.

10 Q Are there other categorles? We have covered hall aides,

11 staff assistants, unit cÌerks. Are there other categories of
A2 employees on Employer Exhibit 1 in the non-disputed categories
13 that the purchasing assistants interact with?

a4 A The non-disputed categorles? T don.t have a list of the
15 non-disputed.

L6 Q Faír enough- Just go through the Ìvhote list then.

L7 A The administrative assistants would work regularly very
18 cÌosely with the purchasing assistant.
f9 Q I'm sorry. tr{outd you repeat that?
20 A Sure. The ad¡ninistrative assistânt.
2I Q Thank you.

22 A The EC cferk, primarily because the EC clerk is
23 responsibLe for maintaining the EC clerical function, and to
24 order suppÌ1es or to order things that would be needed in the

25 patient waiting room, in the evafuation center. The EC cferk
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1 wouÌd work directfy wíth the purchasing assistant for that.
2 Q Anybody in the maintenance aïeas?

3 A I know several of the individuafs that would directly !,¡oïk

4 with the purchasing assistant through the plant ops areas, but
5 prlmarily through the foreman of those areas to order supplies.
6 The office assistant is aÌso a job category that would
7 work very closely with the purchasing asslstant offer:ing
I clericaf ând administrative support in the office or department
9 that they were assigned to.

10 Q What are the job dutles and responsibiÌities of the
11 focksmith?

12 A The locksmjth is primariÌy responsible for maintaining the
13 locking integrity of afl of our inpatient units but that would
14 be the more sensitive part of the l:ole. But the locksmith is
15 also responsibÌe for atÌ offices that hawe locks, for all doors
L6 in the hospital that have locks, and all cabinetry. We have

L7 several locking bulfetin boards that may be plexigÌas covered.
18 For exampfe/ it ls a flre hazard to put something on the walÌ or
19 tape it on the waLl . so there wouLd be a number of cabinets in
20 the haLÌs or in the inpatlent units. And the locksmith would
2L aÌso be responsible for ensuring that those locking mechanisms

22 work to ensure that we have a safe environment.
23 And also very importantly in a psychiatric institution, we

24 have to be very carefuÌ. We tend to tape things to a bulletin
25 board as opposed to use pushpins, for exampLe. or thumbtacks
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2 that we would use, the Ìocksmith would l¡e responsib'le for

3 maintaining the bulletin boards that have closing locklng doors

4 so that we can stifÌ share information with oul: emptoyees, but

5 we can do so in a safe way for our patients and aLso to avoid

6 fir:e safety risks, placing things on doors, windows.

7 Q Do the locksmiths spend time on the locked units, patient

I units ?

9 A Yes. ,They spend a considerabfe amount of time on the

10 inpatlent ]ocked units prímarily because the front door and the

11 back door, each of our units has multlple means of egress or

f2 exit. The short hallway and the long halLway each have a

13 Locking door that only certain staff members are issued a key

14 to. That ls referred to as our 9925 key. And if those doors

15 are ever broken and they can be, the locksmith would need to
a6 respond to that in an emergency fashion to ensure that the lock

L7 is replaced inrnediatety. And regardless of the hour or the day,

18 that's something that would need to be addressed inìmediateÌy.

19 But also the various rooms, not the inpatient rooms but

20 t'he quiet roÕm where patients go to ca.Im down or to de-escalate

2I if it ls deemed to be clinicalÌy necessary, if a mental heafth

22 worker were to escort them to the quiet room, patients often go

23 into the quiet room or the secluslon room in a very agitated

24 state so they generally kick the doors. They may break the

25 doors. They may break the locking mechanism or the cyllnder.
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1 So the locksmith does spend cons.iderable amount of time on the

2 inpatient units because of the amount of abuse the doors take.

3 Q When the locksmith is on --
4 MR. DORN: I'rn going to -- I know making objections ísn't

5 going to do very much and probably will prolong the hearing, but

6 we have had that testimony previously about the locksmlth and

7 the doors on the units.

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: That's true.

9 MR. FRANK: So ask the next question then?

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah. Just move on.

11 MR. FRANK: I'm not perfect, Mr. Dorn.

L2 MR. DORN: Really? Could have fooled me.

a3 MR. FRANK: OnÌy trying to build a record.

!4 BY MR. FRANK:

15 Q l^ihen the locksmith is on a unit/ what employees does he

16 interact with on patient care units?

L7 A The Ìocksmith interacts with the unit clerk. Oftentimes,

18 the unit clerk woufd be the staff member that pLaced the phone

19 call to the locksmith shop and requested their immediate

20 presence to attend to a broken lock. AÌso if the un.it clerk,
2f genera.I.Iy they are the indivlduats that would start the Sentact

22 process to generate the electronic work order. So the locksmíth

23 would interact with the unit clerk perhaps to get direction as

24 to what specific door is broken.

25 They would interact with mentaÌ health workers,
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1 psychiatric technicians/ food nutrition staff what would be

2 working in the pantry area or kitchen area. Each of our units
3 has a Ìocked kitchen, locked pantry at:ea- That is a significant
4 fire risk in a psychiatric hospital. patients, for exampÌe, can

5 never be left unattended in the pantry lf,ecause they couLd then

6 potentially gain access to the kitchen where the food is
7 prepared. And thatrs something that the Ìocksmith needs to be

B very aware of as well to ensure that that door is focked as

9 wel.L. We hadn't mentloned that earlier. but that is a wery

10 significant patient safety concern.

11 Q Is there any work related interaction between the

12 Locksmith and people ln the pharmacy department?

13 A Yes/ absolutely. The pharmacy is one of the most high
1-4 r.isk secure areas in the hospital. So it actually is one of the

l-5 few areas that has a double locking mechanism in order to gain
'l-6 access. There is an efectron.ic card key reader for authorized
I7 personnel to gain entry into the pharmacy, but there is a.lso a
18 hard or manual key. So someone couldn't galn access to the

19 pharmacy without havinq both. The cand key records the time

20 that the door was opened and to whom the card belonged to. And

2A the focksmith is very invoÌved with both types of Ìocks. They

22 can lnstaÌL the eÌectronic lÕck and thev can install the

23 cyÌinder lock in the door.

24 Q Who does the locksmith interact with in the pharmacy

25 department?
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1 A The pharmacy techs, the pharmacy manager/ the pharmacist.

2 Q Generally, what do the pharmacy techs do?

3 A The pharmacy techniclans are primarily responsible for

4 assisting the professionaÌ pharmacy staff. They would be

5 responsibÌe for ensuring that the non-narcotlc, non-controlled

6 substance medications would be adequately stocked and supplied.

7 They would ensure that medication orders that wel:e being

8 reqìrested from the units through the OMNICELL- OMNICELL is the

9 techno.Logy - -
10 Q What is OMNICELL?

11 A OMNICEI,L is !,rhat the nurses and l,PNs wouÌd use. And

L2 essentia.Lly it's a mini-pharmacy on each inpatient unit- So

13 part of the initial assessment of each of the patients to the

14 eva.Iuation center would determine what medications they are

15 currently on from outside. what medications they need to be on.

L6 The pharmacy technician, under the direction of the pharmaclst.

17 would the transport the medications for that patient to the unit
18 where the patlent was admitted to and they would load a special

L9 tray for that one patient in a Ìocked pharmaceutical llin known

20 as OMNTCET,T,.

2L And it is connected to a computer to ensure that the right
22 dose is given, that it is for the right patient. But the

23 pharmacy technician wouÌd be wery much involved with

24 transporting those medications to the various fÌoors or the

25 various units to stock or restock the OMNICELL cabinet foï each
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1 of our patients. So as the requests for medications come into

2 the phaLmacy, the pharmacist would place the order, and the

3 pharmacy tech would deliver the order.

4 Q And the delivery is in the locked bins?

5 A They are delivered in non-focked but secure bins. But

6 they are deÌivered to a secure Ìocked nursing stat.ion and

7 medication room lrithin the unit. OMNÌCELL, it looks like a

8 refrigerator with a glass front.

9 Q And if there is a probLem with the locks, who repairs the

10 Ìocks ?

11 A The locksmith. Oh, you're talking about the lock on the

L2 OMNICELL machine or the fock to the medication room?

13 Q To the medication room.

L4 A The lock to the medication room woufd be fixed by the

15 locksmith -

L6 Q And it ís the pharmacy tech who stocks the medication

L7 room?

18 A The pharmacist and the pharmacy tech can both do it, but

19 more commonly it is the pharmacy tech-

20 (Ernployer Exhibit 16 marked for j-dentification - )

21. BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q Mr:. O'Connor, I'm showing you a document that's marked

23 Employer Exhibit 16- tüill you please identify the document?

24 A Sure. Thís document is a job description. It's the

25 business document for locksmith at the Westchester Division.
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1 O And does lt accurately describe the job duties of the
2 locksmith of the hospital, Westchester Division?
3 A Yes-

4 MR. FRANK: I offer E-16.

5 MR. DORN: Same comment.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. It,s received.
7 (Employer Exhibit 16 receiwed into evid.ence. )

I MR. FRÂNK: Can I have this marked as Employer Exhibit 1??

9 (Employer ExhibiÈ 1? marked for id.entification . )

10 MR. FRANK: Mr. O,Connor, wou.Ld you please review what,s
lL been marked as Employel: Exhibit 17?

f2 (Vihereupon, the Ì¡itness rewiews Èhe document- )

13 THE WITNESS: Okav _

1.4 BY MR . FR-ANK :

15 Q !úould you please describe for the record r.rhat EmpÌoyer
16 Exhibit I7 ís?

17 A This document .is a job description foï the pharmacy

18 technician of the Westchester Division-
19 Q And does it accul:ately describe the duties and

20 responsibillties of the pharmacy technician?
2].A Yes.

22 Q And can you generally descrlbe the dutles of the pharmacy
23 technician beyond what you started taÌking about in relationship
24 with the Ìocksmith.

25 A Sure. lt is a job that wouÌd have a significant amount ot
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1 interaction with patients, so customer service, patient services

2 is something that wouLd be very important. And, again, in a

3 psychiatric environment/ lt may not take a fot to agitate a

4 patient, and they woufd have the same type of customer service

5 training, P.Ianetree tralning that every other emp]oyee wou.Ld

6 receive so that they are mindful of their customer service

7 interactions wÍth patients. It is a very ímportant component of
I their job because it is so --
9 Q T,et me ask you one of the thíngs on thls job description

10 is they answer telephones?

11 A Yes.

L2 Q Vúould you describe that part of theÍl: function compared to
13 some of the other peop.Le we have talked about today?

L4 A Sure. Well, that and a few of the other components of
15 this job are very similar to that- of ê unit clerk, or that of u 

,

L6 staff assistant, or an administratìve assistant, or an off.ice l

L7 assisLanL-

18 Q i{ould you describe how 1t is simiÌar to the administrative 
l

i

a9 assistant or the staff asslstant jobs?

20 A One of the job requirements or duties of staff assistant
2f .is to answer the phone. lt is the same job requirement for that. I

.

22 of an office assistant ol: staff ass.istant to answer the phone in
23 the department in which they are assigned. I

24 MR. FRANK: Can we take a flve-minute break, please? '

25 HEARING OFFfCER GOTTLIEB: Sure. Off the record-
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1 (l¡hereupon, a brief recess !ùas taken.)

2 HEÀRING OFFfCER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

3 MR. FRANK: Let me offer Exhibit E-17.

4 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Same coÍmrent?

5 MR. DORN: Yeah, I thought it vras aLready offered.

6 MR. FRÀNK: No, I don't think I did.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, it wasn't. Okay.

8 (Employer Exhibit 17 receiwed into evidence.)

9 MR. FRANK: Can I ask counsel for the Union what the

10 Union's position is on this technical positlon? Union counse.L

11 has stated he is opposed to the inclusion of technical

L2 classifications in this, quote, service unit, to use hís

13 description. And yet this is one of the technical titles. And

L4 l'm not sure. on one had he said this is an included title, but

l-5 that they wanted to exclude the technical titÌes. Can we get

L6 clarification on the Union's position regardÍng the technical

77 titles ?

18 HEARING OEFICER GOTTT,TEB: Fa.ir enouqh- Do you want to

19 re spond?

20 MR- DORN: T wiLL just to move things aÌong; otherwlse, T

2I don't see why I should have to. But the mere fact that a

22 hosp.itaÌ or an employer caÌÌs someone or gives someone a

23 techn.ician title doesnrt mean that that employee is a technica.L

24 emp.loyee. And I note on this job description that the

25 quallficatlons are a high school dipLorna or equivalent. So f
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1 doubt wery much that the Board woufd find that this position ls

2 a technical position within the meaning of Board law.

3 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. Do you want to proceed

4 with the tes timony?

5 MR. FRANK: Then we are going to have to put in evidence

6 on afl the technician titfes that aLe on the list? In other

7 words, the Union has decided in their wiew of the worÌd that
I some technician titles shoufd be included and other technician

9 titles shouLd not be incfuded. In that circumstance, f thlnk we

10 are going to need to go into each of those jobs, because I
11 beÌiewe that all of the employees who have the technician titÌes
L2 belong in this unit.

13 UNïDENTïFIED SPEAKER: I'm sorry. Vühat is your --
1-4 UNTDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Would you like to say something on

15 the l:ecord?

16 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTT-IEB; Okay. Let's not have any

1-7 interact ion -

18 MR. DORN: You want to talk to someone¡ you talk to me,

L9 nÕt to rny cÌìent.

20 UNIDENTIEIED SPEAKER: He was talking to me.

21- HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Let's not have any interaction.
22 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I wasn't talking to you.

23 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay- Let's not have any

24 .interact ion .

25 MR. FRANK: The hearing off.icer has asked us to put
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1 testimony in regarding disputed categories.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTL]EB: Correct.

3 MR. FRANK: And the job categories that have the

4 technician title, the Union has taken an inconsistent position

5 that some are in and some are not,

6 MR. DORN: Some are technicaL employees and some are not

7 technicaÌ employees -

I MR. FRANK: That is your opinion, sir. That's not based

9 on facts. If that is going to be a dispute, then we are going

10 to have to put in evidence to show that alf the emp.Loyees have

11 simiLar qualifications and slmifar job responsibilities, and

L2 that there .is a commun.ity of interest with all of the other

13 empÌoyees. That's why T was asking. And we are prepared to put

14 forth all the evidence.

15 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Right.

16 MR- FRANK: But it woufdn't be fair to us to put in

L7 ev.idence on some titles. You wouldn't be ab]e to make the

18 comparison and see lhat they all do similar jobs, and have

19 simiLar training, and education, and all belong in this unit,

20 together.

2L HEARING OEFICER GOTTI,IEB: i{ell, Let me just take that
22 under advisement. I'm going to think about that.
23 MR- FRANK: Maybe this would Ì:re a good point to adjourn

24 for the day.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'd like to finish wíth the
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1 pharmacy technician. You haven't finished with that, correct?

2 MR. FRANK: Okay. That's fine.

3 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Why don't we just finish? I

4 mean it ls about that time, but why don't you finish with that.

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Wou.Ld you describe the intel:action of the pharmacy

7 technician with the pr:ofessional pharmacist?

I A The pharmacy technician would work under the direct

9 supervlsion of the pharmac.ists that were working primarily

10 around the pharmacist --
11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: May I interrupt. Why is this

1-2 refevant? T don't want to go into other areas that reaLly

13 aren't relevant. What's the relevance?

14 MR. FRANK: The reÌevance is that a ticensed practical

15 nurse works under the direct supervision of the professional

L6 registered nurse. A pharmacy technician works under the direct

L7 supervision of the pharmacy. And the sociaÌ work assistant

18 works under the direct supervision of the socÍal worker. AÌl of
'L9 these people have the same relationship in terms of the job

20 workforce to the pl:ofessionals- Some of them are technicals and

2! some of them are servlce. They are all in the same category-

22 And they all work directly with the professionals. These are

23 not professional empÌoyees. but they aÌl do work with

24 professionaLs.

25 So the hospital's position is that aLÌ of the empÌoyees
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1 who are non-professionals, who work rr¡ith professionals. shoufd

2 be ln this bargaining unit- The Union would Ìike to exclude

3 some of them, but not al.L of them. And what we wouLd show is

4 corununity of interest that they are all similarfy situated and

5 they should all be treated equal]y.

6 MR. DORN: The fact that certain employees work under the

7 direction of professionals, that work with professionals has

I nothing tô do with the question of whether they belong in a

9 service unit or not. That depends on their duties, their

10 responsibilities, their pay rate, who superwises them, etc.

11 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTT,IEB: Yeah, I mean I would have to

L2 agree. I don't want to burden the record with information that

13 isnrt necessary here. ü]e have a big enough record to make. So

L4 why don't we just move on?

15 BY MR. FR,ANK :

L6 Q lihat are the pharmacy technician's responsibilitles in
'L7 assisting the pharmacist in reconciling medicatíon returns?

18 lalhat are medication returns, I quess?

19 A Medication returns coufd come from the unit. They could

20 come from the evaluation center, wherever medications are

2I maintained in the hospital- lt would much more likeÌy be from

22 one of the ìnpatient units. If a medication were discovered to
23 be exp.ired, for exampÌe, or if a drug or medication that was

24 experimental for a certain patient popuÌation or segment, if
25 that patient were discharged and the medication were no longer
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1 relevant for the other patients on that unit, primarily those

2 medications need to be disposed of in an appropriate manner.

3 Generally, that is referred to as wasting in a hospital setting.
4 They wouÌd need to be destroyed and disposed of in an

5 appropriate manner. That could happen on the unit. That couÌd

6 happen in the pharmacy. But it woufd certainly be done with a

7 witness to the wasting of the medication that were expìred. But

8 that would primarily be how the pharmacy tech woufd assist in
9 that.

10 Q And Number 5, I see that the pharmacy tech is involved in
11 ordering and monitorinq expiration dates of stock. Who would

L2 the pharmacy techs work with in the job titles thât are in
13 Employer Exhibit 1 in this regard?
'l-4 A For non-pharmaceut ical materiaÌs, those would be ordered

15 bìy the pharmacist directly through the drug supplier- But for
!6 all other: materiaÌs that would be needed, for example, the

L7 printer paper. the copier paper that wouÌd be used to print the

18 drug orders or to print the patient,s MAR, medical authorization
19 record, anything that would need to be printed to paper for
20 example, but even just regular office suppÌies, the pharmacy

2a technician would be involved in that very similar to staff
22 assistants. or office assistants, or administrative assistant,
23 or unit clerks for that matter.

24 Q And !.rould they have any contact or working responsibiÌity
25 with the purchasing assistants?
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1 A Yes, they would.

2 Q And what iltould that be?

3 A They coufd have commun.ication with that individuaf or

4 interface with that individual in a number of ways.

5 Q Please describe that in detail.

6 A They could contact the individual by phone. They couÌd

7 submit an email or fax requisition for the materiaÌs that they

8 were ordering. Or as I have índicated, because of the

9 uniqueness of some of the documents that the purchasing

10 department wouÌd hawe for different purchase orders, different

11 colored documents, they wouÌd likely appear in person and work

'J-2 directÌy with the purchasing assistant to order the materials or

13 items that they needed for the pharmacy.

L4 Q Do they have any contact with the office assistants?

15 A The pharmacy techs?

16 Q Yes.

L7 A I'm sure they do in the cafeteria or other common

18 settings. But their work relationship with the office

L9 assistants, I can't say.

20 Q Vühat kind of files do they maintain?

2A MR. DORN: I'm sorry. What kind of?

22 MR- FRANK: Files do they maintain. Number 6, the record

23 says they maintain accurate files.

24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q Is that like a cÌerícaf function?
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1 A That ls a clerica.L functÍon.

2 Q vüouÌd you describe thelr clerical functions/ yes?

3 A Sure. There is a very robust filing system in the

4 pharmacy. Any of the requisítions for medication would be

5 maintained there - Any of the paper copies of medication

6 requests that wou]d come from the unit would be maintained

7 there. Other private correspondence or documentatíon that would

I come to the pharmacy that had anything to do with a patient

9 wouÌd be maintained there if it pertained to the medications

10 that they were on.

11 Q And they maintain pharmacy biÌÌing forms, they work with

12 those, what does that work involve?

1-3 A That f am not sure.

L4 Q NuÍìlcer 6, forms are delivered to appropriate departments.

15 Vlhat are the departments that pharmacy forms are deÌivered to?

L6 A Generally, that wouÌd be the inpatient psychiatric units,

f7 the departments of patient care services. So the forms that
18 they wouÌd be deLivering would primarily have to deal with

L9 medications that were needed on the unit -

20 Q And what .is the.ir participation and coordination of the

2a quaÌity assurance program?

22 A Wel.L, essentiaLly, 1n any behavioral healthcare setting/
23 accuracy is extremely important. So the pharmacy technician

24 wou.Ld rece.iwe training, for exampÌe, on how to count or double

25 count the medications that he or she wouÌd be preparing, to
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1 ensure that the right number of medication/ the right nufiìber of
2 tablets, the right dose actualÌy match the order that came to
3 the pharmacy. But the QA portion of that job is vel:y important.

4 Afso, when the pharmacy technician would be deÌiveríng

5 medications that either would have been prepared or compiled by

6 the pharmacist or in conjunction with the pharmacist and taken

7 to the units, it would be very important to ensure that the

I quality/ the medication was actually stocked in the OMNICELT,

9 cabinet appropriâte so that the right medication was in the

10 rÍght patient's OMNICELL tTay, fol: exampÌe. So that woufd be a

11 very important quality assurance aspect of the job.

12 Q Num.ber 2, .Llne pharmacy technicians prepare the labeÌs of
13 medlcations.

14 A Yes, they print the labels.

15 Q Can you describe for the record how important that
a6 function is?

a7 A WeÌl/ it is vltaffy important.

18 Q Why ís that?

f9 A Wel], it is important for a number of reasons. Medication

20 errors are one of the sing.le largest reasons for patient harm in
2a hospltals in the United States. So to ensure that patient
22 finance or the evaluation center, whoever wouÌd be. or the

23 registr.ar that wouÌd work in patlent finance registering the

24 patient to the right name, the right spelling of the name, and

25 matching that name to the correct patient record is very
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1 important. Because ult.imately what gets registered in the

2 hospital's medicaf database is what triggers printing the

3 medication or Lhe identification Ì¡and that all patients receive

4 in an inpatient psychiatric setting.

5 So, for: example, when adrninistering medications, the l,PN

6 wouÌd need to refer to the ID band that would have been directly

7 tied to the registrar, accurately inputting that information ln

I to the computer system so that the l,PN who was administering the

9 medications wouÌd then use two unique identifiers, askinq the

10 patient for example for their date of birth, ÌookÍng at the MAR,

11 the medication authorization record, and matching that up with

f2 the ID band that the patient wou.Ld have.

13 But printing the labels for the medications, you would

a4 want to ensure that the ID band and the fabel for that

15 medication matched as well/ so that the right medication --
L6 Q That is the responslbility of the pharmacy technic.ian?

L7 A Printing the labels is. But it is a very involved process

18 that .involves numerous departments to ensure that patients are

L9 receiving medication safely and accurately.

20 Q And is the pharmacy technícian responsìble for fillíng the

2L unit does orders ?

22 A Yes.

23 Q What is that?

24 A They wou.ld be responsible for resupplying OMNICELT- or the

25 dose, the amount of medication that would be requested on the
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1 inpatient units. So/ again, accuracy woufd be very important
2 and ensuring that the doses were accurate as well. So that a 50

3 niÌfigram or 200 milligram medication were not substituted for
4 one, when the other was requested.

5 Q It is a very important job, isn't it?
6 A It is a very important job.

7 MR. DORN: Obj ection.
I HEARING OFFTCER GOTTT.IEB: ActualÌy, I reafize the
9 pharmacy technician lsn't included- There is no dispute about

10 that. So it's true we are probably going too much into this
11 now.

L2 MR. FRANK: I/üeÌl, if I may? They may want to include this
13 lf a job was, quote, technical, thls wouÌd be one. And it seerns

L4 to me that the tlnion is wanting to include this position in
15 their service unit beries the validlty of thelr craim that some

L6 other titfes wit_h technical are technicians. This is a very
L7 important job with a lot of responsibitity- It is a very
18 complex job. And if this is a service job, then f would say it
19 wiÌl be very easy for the reader of the record to find that the
20 other jobs with the technical tit.Ie are also serwice jobs.
21- HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Riqht.
22 MR- FRANK: Because it is the Union,s position this is not
23 a technical job. notwithstanding that it is a job that works

24 directly with the pharmacist, deÌivers the drugs. Ìabefs the
25 drugs. and pr:ovides the medícation. In my view, that is maybe
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1 the borderfine techniclan job. We think that aff
2 non-prof ess.iona.Ls are the appropriate unit here. But if the
3 Union is goíng to make a bona fide cfaim that technician
4 employees shouÌd not be included, I would think this would be an

5 excfuded job category. And that¡s why T think the testimony is
6 re levant -

7 MR. DORN: pharmacy techs hawe been deemed to be sel:vice
8 employees in a ton of cases that the Board has declded. And the
9 mere fact that they are called technícian doesn,t mean they are

10 technical employees. And tve have gone into this ad nauseum-

11 UNIDENTTFIED SPEAKER: How do you spell that?
L2 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'd have to agree- Maybe we

13 shou]d stop at this point because T just don't think th.is is
1-4 productive for the record right now.

15 MR. FRANK: 17 is admitted?

L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yes, it has been. Okay, so why

17 don't we concÌucle today. We are meeting agaln on Monday. That
18 is the 28th, at 9:30.

a9 MR. DORN: Before we go off the record, f believe at orre

20 of the sessions we had a discussiÕn about the employees in the
2I food service department or whatever it is called. And I think
22 the Employer .indicated it was going to check to determine __

23 HEARING OEFTCER GOTTLIEB: Oh, that's true.
24 MR. DORN: -- the classifications of the employees in that
25 area. So T would hope by the next session we wouLd be able to

BURKE COT]RT REPORTTNG, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, suite 316

Wa)me , Nev/ Jeïsey 07 47 O

(973) 692 - O660



277

1 do that.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-TEB: Right. It was food service

3 empÌoyee, and pantry aid, and kitchen h¡orker.

4 MR. FRANK: I could ansvjer that question today.

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay-

6 MR. FRANK: The titÌes that Mr. Dorn identified are not

7 titfes that the hospita] uses for any employee. The titles for
I the workers in the food service area are nutrition ass.istants,

9 as we gave to the Board. We checked that out Ìast night.
10 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

11 MR. DORN: I don't know if that is okay or not.
12 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: I know. I mean that's his
13 comment,

L4 MR. DORN: Thatrs their position is, that's their
15 position.

L6 MR. FRANK: No. that is my answer to your question,

1-7 counselor.

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT.IEB; AÌÌ right, so we have concluded

L9 for today. I wiLL see you on Monday. Thank you.

20 MR- KRUEGER: Can I make a request? WouÌd it be possible

2I to include the exhibits behind the transcripts so that we have

22 them aLl together?

23 MR. FRANK: To the official record.

24 MR. KRUEGER: Tn othel: words, when you do a transcript of
25 the record, you have the exhibits behind them.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Oh, we're not involved in that.

2 That's the company.

3 MR. KRUEGER: You woufd have no objection?

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLïEB: I don't know. I wouLd speak to

5 the RegÍon abôut that. That's an unusua] th.ing. I don't even

6 want to make a comment on it.

7 MR. FRANK: The reason we are making that request is we

B are not going through the details of each of the job

9 descriptions. So to avoid reading in the entirety of the

10 contents of the job descriptions, it would be easier if they

11 were attached to the record as an exhíbit, which is sometimes

12 done.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: I mean it's normalÌy on the

L4 side- I dontt understand what the difference would be. Maybe T

15 am not understanding what you are saying. You normally have the

L6 transcript and then you have the exhibits on the s.ide. So !

a7 whatrs the difference? 
l

18 MR. FRANK: Some court reporters bind them together at the 
l

!9 end oI Lhe transcript.

20 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Yeah. I don't really see what

2L the difference is. I

22 MR- FRANK: The reader of the record wifl have them all in :

23 one place rather than -- i

24 HEARING OFFÍCER GOTTLIEB: I mean honestly I don't see

25 what the difference is. What is the Union's position on this?

BTIRKE COITRT REPORTTNG, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme , New ,]ersey 07 47 0
(973) 692- O66O



273

1 I just don't see a difference. What is the Union's position on

2 th.is ?

3 MR. DORN: I donrt have a position.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: AÌÌ right, f must speak to the

5 Region. I donrt see any difference.

6 MR. DORN: I don't think it's very impol:tant.

7 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: I'd speak to the Region and see

I what they have to say. I don't see a difference. Okay. But f

9 undersrano whaL yoJ are saying.

10 MR. ERANK: I just thought it would be easier for the

11 reader of the record to know what these job descriptions were as

L2 they wel:e reading the record, because I've referred to
13 Paragraph 7 or 2 or 4.

L4 HEARING OEFICER COTTLIEB: Oh, I see. So you mean

15 actuaÌly having it included right after --
16 MR. FRANK: At the back of the transcript.

17 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTIIEB: At the back of the transcript.
18 MR. FRANK: Yes -

1-9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: A1l right. I understand your

20 posit.ion. Okay.

2L MR. DORN: I have no problem w.ith that.
22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: T would just have to speak to
23 the Region. It's just a very unusuat thing. I mean I don't
24 know how they would feel. I don't know if the company would do

25 it.
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1 MR. KRUEGER: We've done it in court proceedings all the

2 time.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. Let me just speak to

4 them. I have no objection, personally. Itrs just an unusua.L

5 request- So let me just check on that. Okay.

6 MR. IRANK: Thank yoLr.

7 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Thank you wery much.

8 (Ílhereupon, at 4:42 p-m-. the hearing in the above-entitled

9 matter adjourned, to teconvene on Monday, March 28, 2OLL, al
10 9:00 a-¡n.)

11
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1 PROCEEDT{GS

2 (Time Noted: 9:46 a.m.)

3 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

4 This is a resumption in the matter of the New york and

5 Presbyterian Hospital, 2-RC-23583- Good morning. Ancl just

6 before we begin/ I had asked for the wage information. Did you

7 bring that in?

I MR- FRANK: I have the wage for afl of the

9 classifications, the wage grades for atl of the classifications,
10 yes.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Rlght. I had asked fôr the

1"2 wage s caf e -

13 MR. FRANK: T donrt have that information with me, no.

14 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT.IEB: Because I had asked for .it to
15 be here today. So we realÌy need .it at the next hearing. Okay.

16 MR. FRANK: Our view is that we are going to deal with the

L7 wage cÌassifications and the grades for each Õf them. Everybody

18 has an individuaL grade. And T donrt think it's reÌevant to put

19 in everybody's individual compensation.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I said that I want the r,¡age

2)- range/ not each individuaÌrs compensation but the ranqe. And we

22 need it for the record. So I am going to request that you bríng
23 that 1n. I had asked for it last time-

24 MR. FRANK: I understand your request. We'll consider it.
25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It Ís nÕt something to be
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1 considered. The Region ls requestlng, I am requestíng that it
2 be submitted. So I am orderÍng that it be here. It is
3 something that the record needs. ft's one of the criticaf
4 e.Lements. And T don't want to waste any more time. This is

5 something that I am t:equestlng.

6 MR. FRANK: I take an exception to your rufing.
7 HEARfNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Certainly.

I MR- FRANK: Thank vôu.

9 HEARING OFFICER eOftl-fEg, Okay. cood morning. You are

10 sti.L.l under oath, as you know -

11 THE WITNESS: Okay.

L2 (vúhereupon,

13 SEDRTCK ,t. O ' CONNOR/

L4 was recalled as a !,r.itness by and on behalf of the Employer and.

15 after having been previously duly sworn¡ was examined and

L6 testified as follows: )

1.7 DIRECT EXAMTNATION

18 BY MR. FRANK:

L9 Q Mr. O'Connor, what do the staff assistants do generaÌly?

20 A Generally, the staff assistants are a secretaria.I or

21- c.Ierical support position- They ar:e assigned to various

22 departments throughout the tr{estchester Divislon. And their
23 responsibiÌities are similar to those of the unit cterks. The

24 inpatient units, for examp.Le, they wouLd be responslble for
25 answering telephones, for filing important documents. They
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1 woufd be responslbfe for managing schedules, for opening mail.
2 for rout.ing the mail, for sharing important information with

3 other members of the department in whlch they are assiqned. But

4 essentially they are secretariaÌ, a little c]erica.L support

5 positions.

6 Q And what units do they work on?

7 A The staff assistants would work in a number of departments

8 throughout the hospitaL. They wouLd work, for exarnpÌe. in the

9 patient care services department- That would encompass the

10 department of nursing, nursing support, social work, the

11 department of psycho sociaL rehabilltation or PSR.

L2 Q What is PSR?

1-3 A PSR stands for psycho soc.ial rehabilitation. But any

a4 nuÍìbe r of departments within the hospital.

15 Q In the nursing department, what other classifications of
L6 employees identified on Employer Exhibít 1 work in that area, 1n

L7 the nursing department ?

18 A The nursing department falfs under the patient care

L9 servlces department. And the jobs from the nonprofessionals job

20 title classification that I am looking at here would be mentaL

2L hea.Lth workers, unit clerks, EC or evaÌuation center clerks.
22 CASACS, senior CASACS, X-ray technician, EEGIEKG technician,

23 psychiatric technician, social work assistant/ senlor social
24 work assistant.

25 Q And v,/hat categories of empÌoyees on Employer Exhibit 1
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1 also work in the social work department?

2 MR. DORN: T'm going to object- lle've gone through this
3 in other classifications. You donrt have to keep going through

4 the same materia.I over and over again.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: That's true. Ìûe have gone

6 thr:ough that.

7 MR. FRANK: tr{el.L, the Union takes the position that the

I staff assistant should be excluded from the unit. I want to

9 shoÌ,n --
10 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: No, but the testimony regardlng

11 this is aÌready in the record as to who works in the department.

L2 MR. FRANK: I don't recaÌl where there was testimony about

13 who the staff assistants were.

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, who is in the sociaf work

15 department. You are going over all the employees in speclfic

L6 departments. It's a different question than who works with

17 whom.

18 MR. FRANK: I don't l:ecall doìng that.

19 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB; I do remenlf,er the testimony.

20 But, a]l right, go ahead.

2L BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q You may conrinue.

23 A The staff assistant in the social work department would

24 work very closeÌy with the staff assistant in the psycho social

25 rehabilitation department, would also work very closely with the
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1 var.ious staff assistants .in the nursing department. And those

2 are all under the umbreÌta of patlent care servlces. The social
3 work staff assistant would work very closefy with the unit
4 cÌerks on the inpatient units for a variety of impol:tant

5 functions primarily regarding discharge planning of patients
6 f(om Lhe inpatienL setring.

7 Q What is involved in discharge planning?

I MR. DORN: Obj ection.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, we've gone over all of
10 this- T don't want the same testimony. ülhy don,t we move on?

11 MR. FRANK: Okay.

12 BY MR. FRANK:

13 Q What do the staff assistants do in regard to the discharge

L4 pÌannlng? Do they participate in the process r,rith the peopÌe

15 nho make the deter.minations about how to do discharge planning?

16 A Yes, sir. They wouÌd be a very important component of the

L7 discharge planning process.

18 Q And what do they do in the process with the other

L9 employees who are invoÌwed in discharge planning?

20 A They wouLd spend a considerab.Le amount of tlme on the

2A teÌephone with unit clerks, with other social work assistants,
22 ,,rith the medical records department. They would primarily be

23 responsible for ensurlng that the medicaf chart or the paper

24 version of the medicaÌ record that afl the documents were

25 avallabÌe so that the discharge process could happen as quickly,
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1 and as eff.icientÌy, and as completefy as posslble to ensure that
2 patients are discharged to the proper aftercare residentiaL

3 settings with aff of the appropriate documents.

4 Q And do the staff assistants receive the same benefits as

5 the other employees we discussed?

6 A Yes, they do.

7 Q And where do they eat lunch?

I A They eat lunch in the cafeteria, which is on the main

9 floor of the hospital.

10 Q And the tränsportation from the trains that you discussed

11 earlier, are they able to participate in that same program?

12 A Yes. They have access to the free shuttle service to and

13 from the train station and from the bus stops in White Plains.

14 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Exhibit 18?

15 (Employer Exhibit 18 marked for idenÈification. )

16 BY MR. FRANK:

!7 Q Mr. O'Connor, take a moment and review what I have marked

18 as Employer Exhibit 18.

19 A Okay.

20 Q Would you please describe what Exhibit 18 is?

2I A Exhibit 18 is the Westchester Division job description for
22 staff assistant.

23 Q And does it accurateLy refLect the duties and

24 responsibÍlities of the staff asslstant?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q And is this a document that's maintained in the normaf

2 course of business at the hospitaÌ?

3 A Yes.

4 MR. FRANK: I offer 18.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Same colûnent?

6 MR. DORN: Same coÍìnent.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. It's admitted.

I (Employer Exhibit 18 receiwed into ewidence.)

9 MR. FRANK: No objection, is that -- is there any

10 obj ection?

11 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: He's not objecting but he's not

L2 agreeing to lt.

13 MR. DORN: Not objecting but lrm not agreeing to admit it-
a4 T donrt have sufficient --
15 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: But it's admitted, so it
L6 doesnrt matter. Okay.

]-7 BY MR. FRANK:

18 Q Mr. O'Connor what do office assistants do?

L9 MR. DORN: I'm sorry, what cÌassification?

20 MR. FRANK: Office assistant.

21- THE WITNESS: The office assistantrs job l:esponsibiÌities
22 wou.Ld be very closely related to those of the administration
23 assistant in that they are responsible for general cferical and

24 secretarial support to the depârtments that they are assÍgned

25 to. Their duties would be for answerìng te.Lephones within those
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1 departments that they are assigned to for answering the
2 teÌephone, for eÍther receiving, opening, distributing maii.
3 interoff.ice memoranda !,¡ithín their department, for a gïeat deal
4 of data entry, work on an office computer, and for assistlng to
5 maintain department files and records _

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q And what departments of the hospital or units do office
B assistants h¡ork in?

9 A Office assistants can be assigned to any unit wlthln the
10 hospitaÌ. The primary difference between an office assistant
11 and a staff asslstant would be the number of years of prior
1-2 experience that an indiv.iduar woufd need prior to accepting that
13 position. But they really could be assigned to any depar:tment
14 that had an openlng for an office assistant.
15 O And those depal:tments would include what departments
16 speci fical ly?

L7 A Health information management and some of the outpatient
18 areas,

19 Q Please describe those for: the record because the reader ot
20 the record doesn't know anything other than what you teÌl us on

2L this l:ecord.

22 A In the adult outpatient department or child outpatient
23 department, Lhere are currently no incumbents in the positions.
24 but they have worked in the outpatlent depal:tment from time to
25 time and there is nothinq that would preclude a job openinq in
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1 any of those areas or any of the departments within the

2 hospital. But it tends to be a Ìower graded staff assistant
3 position or very simiÌar job responsibilities.

4 Q And for the staff assistants that worked in the nursing

5 department, would office assistants aLso work there?

6 A They could, yes.

7 Q And social work?

8 A In the sociaÌ work department, yes, under the umbreÌÌa of
9 patient care serv.ices, certainÌy.

10 Q Can you describe their intel:aclion if any with unit
11 clerks ?

12 MR- DORN: I'm going to object again. T mean we've gone

13 over this interaction with other cfassifications. I just don't
a4 see the basls for go.inq over it and ower it again and again.

15 MR. FR-ANK: Mr. Dorn, would you stipulate that all of

16 these cÌassifications work together and have interrelated job

L7 duties and functions where they have a comrnunity of interest?
18 MR. DORN: I'm not going to stipulate to anything,

a9 Mr- Frank.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'11 aLlow it just to go

2I throuqh the offÍce assistant. co ahead.

22 MR. ERANK: ls Mr. Dorn sighing or just having an attack

23 or --
24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No. Go on wilh the question-

25 MR. ERANK: I don't want to distress him-
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1 MR. DORN: Don't make conments about me, pÌease.

2 HEA,RING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: YeS.

3 MR. DORN: Just control yourself-

4 MR. FRANK: If you wouÌd agree to stipulations, we

5 woufdn't have to --

6 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. Hers not going to agree

7 to stipulate. Let's not get into this. Let's just go lrith the

I quest.ions.

9 BY MR. FRANK:

10 Q WouLd you please describe the interaction of the office

11 assistants with the unit clerks, if any?

a2 A Sure. The office assistant would be a primary poìnt of

13 contâct for the medicaL record department or the HIM department.

L4 The office assistant in that area would catl the unit cÌerk on

15 the various units to which the unit c.Lerks were assigned and

16 they would request various pieces of informatiÕn generally ôn

l7 behaff of a char:t analyst. The chart analyst again is the job

18 function that is responsible for wisiting the inpatient Llnits on

19 at .least a daily basis. But also for that particular job

20 function the chart analyst wouÌd be responsible for obtaining

2a paper documents that were obtalned or: that were signed by the

22 patient during their inpatient hospitalization.

23 So the office assistant would be responsible for helping

24 to ensure that those documents were ready for the chart analyst

25 on their arrivaÌ. And would be responsibÌe for working very
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1 cÌosely with the unit clerks to ensure that those documents were

2 aval.Labfe and added to the medlcal record-
3 Q Can the chart anaLyst actually taÌk to the patients on the
4 units ?

5 A Absofutely, yes. The chart analyst couÌd and h¡oufd speak
6 w.ith the patients because the long halÌway and the short
7 hallway. and aLl of our inpatient units have those. depending on

I which area they entered, they would need to travel to the middfe
9 sectíon of the unit which is where the nursing station is- And

10 afl of our patient rooms are on eìther the Ìeft or the right
11 side of the long hallway or the short haflway, and at the end of
a2 both of those hal lways where they intersect would be the nursing
13 station. And that's where the unit clerk wouÌd be working and

L4 that's where t_he unit clerk would rnaintain the various types of
15 paper documents that the chart anaÌyst wouÌd need to pick up.
L6 O And when the chart analyst picks up those documents from
a7 the unit clerk, they wourd take them to an offlce assistant for
18 further proce s s ing?

19 MR. DORN: Objection. Leading.

20 MR. FRANK: Thank you. I'll withdraw that.
2I BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q Would you describe the process of how the office assistant
23 gets the paperwork from the chart analyst? Do they do it face
24 to face or descrlbe that process fol: the record.
25 A Yes. There would be a face to face handoff of the various
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1 documents that the chart anaÌyst would have obtained because

2 there are muÌtipÌe chart analysts that would be visiting afl of

3 our inpatient units on a regular basis. So as you can imagine,

4 the wolume of paper can vary. But it can be quite significant

5 on a day to day basis. So there woufd be a face to face

6 interaction between the chart analyst, between the medical

7 record abstractor, and between the office assistant- They are

I alf trained in various aspects of their jobs for cross coverage

9 purposes, but afso at the request of the HfM or medical record

10 staff they wished to have cross trainlng for the purposes of job

11 enrichment so that they could not only cover for each other but

A2 they could learn additionaÌ skilÌs within that department.

13 So the specific reference that you have indicated, the

L4 office assístant wouÌd be a very lmportant component on a heavy

15 volume day where there was a lot of paper volume that had been

L6 obtalned from the various inpatlent units to assist wÍth

L7 identifying, indexing, and scanning the paper documents to

18 ensure that the electr:on.ic medical record were accurate and up

L9 to date and to assist with filing of those documents in the

20 chart room or the medical records room in the HTM depal:tment.

2f So they woufd have a lot of face to face direct interaction with

22 all of the different jobs within the HIM department incÌuding

23 Lhe chart an¿ . ys L.

24 Q Is there any cross training of people in the chart analyst

25 positíon lrith other positíons?
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1 A Yes. There is cross training in the HIM department so

2 that the abstractor of heaÌth information management, the chart
3 anafyst, the various HIM data specialists, the HIM processing

4 specialist/ the office assistant wouÌd afl be able to cover and

5 do cover for one another when individuals are out sick or o¡r

6 vacation, different extended medicaf leaves for example or
7 personaÌ leaves. They are a]f cross trained to cover for one

I another.

9 Q Do office assistants receive the same benefits as other
10 empÌoyees described on Employer Exhibit 1?

11 A Yes, they do-

L2 MR. DORN: Objection. We,ve already established they all
13 receive the same benefits.
14 HEARING OFEICER GOTTIIEB: It's true. you don't have to
15 ask that question with respect to each one because there is
L6 the *-

L7 MR. FRANK: Is that stipuÌated as a fact?
18 HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTT-IEB: Well, it's not stìpped. It's
L9 testimony- He doesn't have to stipulate. The witness has

20 already testified that they alÌ get the same benefits, so why

2A continue to ask with respect to each one-

22 MR. FRANK: ls that a stipuLated fact then? If it's a

23 stipulate fact --
24 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTI,ÌEB: It's the witness' testimony-
25 MR. FRANK: WeÌl, Mr. Dorn is refusing to stipufate to it
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1 for each job category.

2 MR. DORN: Why do I have to stipufate to it? It's your

3 wítness. He testified to it.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: He doesn't stipulate to that.

5 l don't want to get into it. He doesn't stipuÌate to the

6 testimony of your witness. Your witness has testified to it

7 already. Go ahead. So you don't have to ask the question wíth

I respect 1-o each one because he's aLready testified that they a1l

9 get the same benefÍts. It's just been asked and answered-

10 Okay, go ahead.

11 MR. FRANK: I take exception to your limiting my abiÌity

L2 to prepare a fuÌÌ record.

13 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Okay. Next question, please.

L4 BY MR . FR.ANK :

15 Q Where do the staff assistants have lunch -- office

16 assistants, excuse me?

L7 A The office assistants would eat at the hospitat's

18 caf eter.ia.

f9 Q And can you descr.ibe their participation if any in social

20 activities with other employees in the proposed unit?

2l MR. DORN: I'm going to object again. The witness has

22 testified, I believe, that aÌl the employees have the

23 opportunity if they wish to participate in various sociaÌ

24 activities.

25 MR. FRANK: If the witness has any knowledge of actual
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1 participation.

2 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTIIEB: I'fl permlt it.
3 THE WITNESS: Sure. The office assistant partlcipates or
4 the offlce assistants would participate in any number of
5 hosp.ital recognition and celebratory events, including the

6 Spring Fling, which is the hospital,s cocktaif party. This witl
7 be our sixth annual this month. The office assistants are

B regular participants at those events. Generally, those ar.e held
9 in Staff Annex 2. but they have aLso been heÌd at Sturgis Hall.

10 Sturgis Hall is where we conduct a lot of the employee

11 trainings, Planetree trainlng, patient center care traininq.
1-2 But those office assistants would aÌso participate in --
13 MR. FRANK: That I don't think was funny, Mr. Dorn-

L4 Excuse me, Mr. Dorn asked hi¡n if he had a gun- I think that's
15 inappropriate. I wouÌd ask the hearing officer to ìnstruct him

1-6 not to make comments like that.
L'/ MR. DORN: I didn't make any comment to you.

18 MR. FRANK: f heard lt. Excuse me.

1-9 MR. DORN: I think you probabty heard it .incorrectÌy.
20 But, anyway, Let's proceed.

21- MR. FRANK: I didn't think lt was funny.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. I didn,t hear the

23 comment, so I don't want to comment on somethlng I'm not privy
24 to. But certainÌy let's all of us behave professionally here

25 and just everyone keep atÌ comments¡ personal corìments to
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1 themselves. Okay, letrs just move on.

2 THE WITNESS: The office assistants wouÌd also participate

3 in various pool partles that we host throughout the summer; the

4 hospital's employee appLeciation day picnic. Tt is hefd on

5 TayÌor lawn every sulnmer, qenerally in July or August. They

6 would also participate in the holiday tea, which is hefd

7 annuaffy in the auditorium. And that Ís where hospital

I employees includlng office assistants coufd be nominated for the

9 Hamilton Award.

10 BY MR. FRANK:

11 Q tlhat is the Hamllton Award?

L2 A The Hamilton Award is an award that was established in

13 1980 by a doctor, Dr. Ham.ilton. And he estabÌished the award to

14 recognize exceptionaL service, exceptional care at the

15 Westchester Divis.ion. A.l.l employees who would demonstrate an

16 exceptionaL ÌeveL of care, service, or teamwork wouLd be

L7 eligible for that. Primarily, it's an award that empÌoyees

18 nominate their co.lleagues for, but it's one that there is a lot

19 of excitement and fanfare each Novemlf,er as the award nominations

20 are being assembled, as recognition petitions are being

2L circulated throughout the hospital. And essentially or

22 eventually those petitions would be subm.itled to me for

23 processing and to asseÍrbÌe a team of management to review the

24 exceptional nominations that we have rece.ived and to select up

25 to three Hamilton award winners. There would be a significant
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I monetary award that goes with that and also a very n.ice framed

2 award certificate.

3 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Exhibit 19 please.

4 (Employer Exhibi-t 19 marked fo¡ identification. )

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Mr. O'Connor, wouÌd you please look at the document b,eing

7 handed to you that's been marked as EmpÌoyer Exhibit 19.

8 A Okay.

9 Q P]ease .identify what ExhiÌ:rit 19 is.

10 A Exhibit 19 is the job description for the office assistant

11 position at the Westchester Division.

LZ Q Is this a document thatrs kept in the normaÌ course of

13 business at the Westchester Division?

L4 A Yes. This is a bus.iness document.

15 Q And does it accurately describe the duties and

16 responsibilities and job grade Õf the office assìstant?
1'7 

^ 
Vôc

18 MR. FRANK: T offer Exhibit 19.

!9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Same conmenL?

20 MR. DORN: Same conìment .

2l HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTLIEB: It's admitted.

22 (Enployer Exhibit 19 receiwed into evidence.)

23 HEARING OEFICER GOTTI-TEB: And the social activities you

24 lust testified to, all the nonprofesslonals that al:e listed in

25 Employer 1 would be abÌe to attend those, correct?
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1 THE WITNESS: Yes, they wouÌd. There are various

2 recognition events that would be unique to several of the

3 departments. There are 20 additionaÌ recognition events. Eor

4 staff assistants, for example, we would ceLebrate in ApriÌ/ the

5 Administrative Professionals Day, so at that event only staff
6 assistants or office assistants or administrative professionals

7 would be abÌe to be recognized in that forum. And then the

8 other 19 or so for various departments and jobs wouÌd be unique

9 to various departments. So there are some special recognition
10 events that are unique to jobs and job cÌassificatlons.
11 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Okay, thank yoL.1 .

12 BY MR. FRANK:

13 Q So the recol:d is cÌear, whích of the sociaÌ functions are

L4 appÌicable to alt of the people in the nonprofessional unit?
15 A The recognltion events, ce.Lebratory events throughout the

16 year. that would be open to all employees would incÌude but

17 certainly not be Ìimited to the Spring EÌing cockLall party, the

18 various pool parties, softball games, and barbecues that we

L9 would host for the employees. On our qrounds, we have a Large

20 pool . We hawe a softbalÌ field. Different events that would be

2a held on campus would be --
22 Q Stick to the softbaLl one. The emp.loyees on the softbalf
23 team are from what job categories? Do you participate in the

24 sof tba].l?

25 MR. DORN: T'm going to object. üie are getting pretty far
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1 afie Ld, you know.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: yeah- tr{e have already had

3 testimony. I just wanted to cÌarify to make things economical.

4 Vüe don't need aÌÌ the detaiÌ of softba.It.
5 MR. FRANK: If I cân make an offer of proof. The

6 maintenance department employees. the unit clerks, the office
7 clericafs, the cafeteria peopÌe, they alf !,¡ork together and play
I together on the softbaÌÌ team.

9 THE WITNESS: Correct.

10 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: We don't need the details of
11 the softball game, though, you know. Okay, Ìet's just move on

L2 then.

13 MR. FRANK: But isn't that part of connunity of interest?
L4 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTT,IEB: tt's in the t:ecord.

15 MR. DORN: I would submit no, by the way. It has nothing
16 to do v,/ith their j ob.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Thatts true. But let's move

18 on. Some of this testimony is rehashed and it's just not

L9 necessary. tr{e have many days of hearing here, so]et's move on.

20 MR. FRANK; YÕu asked the questlon of which soclal
2L activities.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yes. I think he answered it
23 sufficiently. We don't need the detalls of baseÌ:all games. We

24 are wasting time right now. So Ìetrs move on.

25 THE WITNESS: Díd you want me to flnish answering the

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walrrle, New ,fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692-O66O



300

1 question?

2 MR. FRANK: Yes, please.

3 MR. DORN: I objected.

4 HEARTNG OFEICER GOTTLTEB: It has been asked and answered.

5 So fet's move on from this.

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q Are there other social activities that all employees in

8 the unit participate in?

9 A Yes.

10 MR. DORN: I'm going to object.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; It has been asked and answered.

L2 CouÌd we move on? We asked him that.

13 MR. ERANK: Al:e you directing me not to put in additionaL

L4 te stimony?

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: lt has been asked and answered.

L6 Yes.

L'7 MR. FRANK: I was going to ask him if there are additional

18 topics that he has not yet described, additiÕnal activities.

19 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Ask the question.

20 BY MR- FRANK:

2L Q Are there additionaL social activities that you have not

22 yet descr.ibed that all of the nonprofessionaL employees

23 participate in togethe r ?

24 A Yes, there are.

25 Q Would you pLease describe those fol: the record?
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1 A For the last several years, as we have been recognized

2 through U.S. News & Wor.Ld Report as being one of the top 10

3 hospitaÌs in the company, we have a very special recognition

4 event that is unique to that ranking. Eor the last three years,

5 we ranked as the Number 6 hospital in the Un.ited States, and

6 either Number 3 or NuÍìltrer 4 in the division of psychiatry in the

7 United States, also recognized by the U-S. News & WorÌd Report.

8 That event ol¡viousÌy is tied dir:ectly to our maintaining that

9 very noteworthy recognition through U.S. News & World Report.

10 And that event would specificalÌy or generally be hefd in the

11 summer months because it is generally a Ju.Iy ranking. And it is

L2 announced in the Ìate summer. So the event would correlate with

13 Lha t.

L4 Q And what is the event for all employees? What kind of

15 event do you hold for all the employees together?

a6 A It's a ceÌebratory event that .is general.ly hosted by

17 hosp.ital Ìeadership. There is a lot of good food. There are

18 gìveaways of gifts.

19 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. We don't need any more

20 deta.i I s on that.

2L THE WITNESS: Some of the addit.lonal events would be PCC

22 or patient center care awards and recognition for the various

23 departments. At those different events, we just had one three

24 weeks ago, we would recognize --
25 BY MR. FRÀNK:
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1 Q Let me just stop you. I know the hearing officer doesn't

2 want to hear .it. Just give us the names of the events.

3 A The names of the events? So the pat.ient center care

4 r:ecognition event, Shining Star Award recognition event, and the

5 holiday tea. Those are afÌ I can think of right now, but I'm

6 sure I've Ìeft some out.

7 Q [dhat do the admin.istrative assistants do?

I A The administrative assistants are responsibÌe for qeneraÌ

9 clerical and secretariaf work within the departments that they

10 are ass.igned to. They would generally, in additlon to answering

1l the teÌephone, receiving, reviewing, opening, routing mail, they

L2 wou.Ld be responsible for fiLing within their department. They

13 would be responsible for additionaf department specific

14 projects, compiLing various data and reports, creating

15 Power:Point pr:esentations for their departments. lt would

L6 typicalLy be a higher leveÌ suppor:t staff posltion. but many of

f7 the job responsibiLlties would be very similar to that of the

18 purchaslng assistant or the unit clerks, for example-

L9 Q Would it be accurate to say that the admlnistrative

20 assistants perform the same duties and have the same general

21 interreLationships as the staff assistants and the office

22 assistants that you previously described?

23 A Yes.

24 Q And do they have the same interactions with peopLe that

25 you have previously described in the other job categories?
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1 A Yes, they do.

2 MR- FRANK: Can I have this next exhibit marked as E-20?

3 (Enployer ExhibiÈ 20 marked fo¡ identification. )

4 MR . DORN : I s th.i s onÌy one page ?

5 MR. FRANK: Yes.

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q Mr. O'Connor, I'm showing you what's been marked as

8 Employer Exhibit 20. Can you please identify the document?

9 A Exhibit 20 is a ¡ob description for the administrative

10 assistant role at the Westchester Division.

11 Q And is this a record that's kept in the normaÌ course of

12 bus.iness ar the hospital?

13 A Yes, it ls-

14 Q And does it accurateLy describe the duties and

15 responsibilities of the administrative assistant job?

16 A Yes-

L7 MR. FRANK: I offer E-10.

18 MR. DORN: Same comments.

A9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: It'S admitted.

20 (Employer Exhibj-È 20 receiwed into ewidence. )

2I MR. FRANK: Would the hearing officer prefer that T go

22 through the same duties, that I d.id a summary question, is that

23 sufficient for this record on this job or would you like me to

24 go through the details of --
25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTf.TEB: No, that's fine.
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1 MR. FRANK: Not necessary.

2 BY MR . FR.ANK :

3 Q What does the gener:al service worker do?

4 A The general service worker is responsible for a number of

5 general malntenance and support serwices responsibiÌities in the

6 plant operations department. The general service worker would

7 be responsible for assisting a number of people throughout the

I hospitaL including ma.intenance mechanics, senior maintenance

9 mechanics, different pfant services tradesmen and warious

10 aspects of their jobs. They would be responsible for assisting

11 the uphoÌsterer, for exampLe/ the assistant uphoLsterer, and

L2 the draper:y maker. whenever there are maintenance, construction,

13 or repair projects throughout the hospital.

L4 But in additíon they are aLso very important components of
15 maintaining the 22A or so acres of the Vüestchestel: Division.

L6 They would work very closely with the groundskeeper, the senior

17 grounds person, and one of the requirements for this particuÌar

18 job is that they have had prior experience working with

L9 gardening or horticulture/ or different grounds and landscaping

20 type l:espons ibiÌities -

2L Depending on the season, these individua.Is are also very

22 invofwed with snow removaL, snow shoveling, putting down snow

23 melt or rock salt. They would be responsible for operating

24 pLows generally on the truck, but they could also and do work

25 with various equipment such as Ìawn mowing equipment, any type
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1 of heavy machinery, frontend loaders, tractors, for exampÌe.

2 But they would be responsibÌe for service and maintenance type
3 work wlthin in the hospital and woutd work very closely with
4 numerous departments and jobs throughout the hospltal to
5 maintain the building and the grounds.

6 Q Do they hawe any responsibifities for dealing with the
7 tlghting fixtures on varlous units of the hosÐital?
I A Yes.

9 Q Would you describe their responsibiÌities on the patient
10 care units of the hospital?

11 A The Ìightlng fixtul:es, for example, ìn our hospitat are
f2 very old. The wirlng is very oÌd within the buiLding. The

13 plant servlces mechanics wou.Id generally take the lead in
L4 actuafly wiring if there needed to be a project to rewire a unit
15 or a department. But the individuals that i,\¡e are referring
1-6 to --
I7 Q Stay with the general service workers.

18 A The general serwice workers would asslst.
19 Q Oo they go onto the units at times?

20 A Yes. They would be on the unlts a significant portion of
2L any doy thâL rhey --
22 Q Would you describe for the record when general servlce
23 workers go on patient care units during the day?

24 A If there were a repair that needed to be made on the unit.
25 If there were a Ì:roken doorframe, for exampÌe, they would be
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1 elther assistÍng the indÍviduals who would be fixing that. Or

2 they cou]d actua]]y take the ]ead if their skilLset allowed them

3 to do so. They could be responsibÌe. would be responsibfe for

4 painting. They cou.Ld be responsible for changlng doors,

5 doorknobs, hinges. That is something that is very important in

6 a psychiatric facility. As the OMH or other reguLatory

8 Q I have to stop you. What is OMH?

9 A The Office of MentaL Health. That is one of the primary

10 reguLatory bodies. It's a New York State departrnent that

11 regulates and owersees psychiatric hospitals wlthin the state.

12 Q Sorry for .interrupting you. Continue-

13 A But as hardware, for example, needs to be -- oMH

L4 regulations requlre that various hardware components need to be

15 taken off of a unit l¡ecause there may have been an adverse

L6eVent.Apatientmayhaveharmedhimse}for:herSeÌf,oraStaff

L7 member. It doesn't have to be at our hospital, at any

l8 psychiatric faci.Lity in the State of New York. If a patíent

L9 were to use a bed sheet, for exampÌe. and loop it, it would be a

20 looping hazard around the hardware.

2I Something that would be very ornate and unlque to the

22 Westchester: Divisíon and a very important part of our histol:y.

23 for example, might be a 120 year old doorknob. But that

24 doorknob may be a very unsafe píece of hardware at least through i

25 the eyes of OMH. Or the door hinges on the inpatient units or
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1 the bedrooms where the patients would sfeep, if OMH were to

2 determine that that is an unsafe piece of hardware, the general

3 service workers would be very involved with removing those items

4 and repÌacing them with safer, newer, OMH approved hardware.

5 Q And at t.he Westchester Division, have you had to change

6 the door hardware because of a safety concern?

7 A Severa.l times. SeveraÌ different regulations. They

I sometimes change from year to year.

9 Q And the general servíce workers actually did that work on

10 the units, is that correct?

11 A Yes.

L2 Q When the generaÌ service workers are on the unit, what

13 other employees in the bargaining unit do they interact with?

L4 MR. DORN: Objection. We have gone through who is on the

15 unlt, so we don't have to keep goj-ng through the same issue

16 again and again.

a7 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTIIEB: It's true. Does he have

18 anything to add? I don't want to go through the same testimony

f9 continually.

20 MR- FRANK: WeÌl, the Union has taken the position that

2l the general service worker has no community of interest with the

22 other people in the unit in terms of work functlons. He

23 objected on social functions. Irm tryíng to keep this focused

24 on work functlons.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: In describing the other titÌes,
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1 that testimony comes out. So I don't want 1t to be repetitive.

2 Tf there is something more specific with this tit.Le, it's one

3 thing. But it aLready comes out in describing the other t.itfes.

4 So the reader of the record is just go.ing to be reading things

5 and it is just aÌl going to be repetitive. If there is

6 something new or different that has been omítted with respect to

7 this title, that's one thing. But just to go over the same

8 things continuaLLy doesn't make any sense. It just makes for a

9 poor record.

10 MR. FRANK: There are some titfes that the Union seeks in

11 the bargaining unit that you have told me not to put testimony

L2 on about. I mean I don't know how we are going to show that all

13 of the job titles are .interre.Lated when you've instructed me not

L4 to put in ewidence on the titÌes that the Union seeks but only

15 to focus on the titles the Union does not want. Don't t have to

L6 put .in testimony to show that the people 1n both the tit.Les the

L7 Union seeks and does not seek interact wlth each other?

18 HEAR1NG OFEICER GOTTI,IEB: Oh, certainly. What I am

19 simpLy saying is that we have a 1ot of testimony in going

20 through other tit.les that it comes out who interacts so some of

2L it is just repetitive. I'm not saylng that you shou.Idn/t put

22 the ewidence in. BuL let's not have it aLl be repetitive.

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q t¡7ouÌd you describe where the general servlce workers

25 perform duties regarding the air conditioning and heating
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1 systems ?

2 A The generaÌ serwice workers in that capacity would be

3 worklnq in any of the hospitaL departments or units r'¡here there

4 is an air cond.itioning unit or there would be centraÌ heating.

5 Q Does that include the patient care units?

6 A Yes, it would. It wou]d include the nurs.ing station where

7 many of the employees work. It would inc]ude patient rooms. It

I wouLd include the medication room. Tt wouÌd inc.Lude the chart

9 room, which is where many of the hard copy documents are

10 mainta.ined on the units before they go to HIM or the data area

11 of the hospital -- or excuse me, the medical record area of the

t2 hospitaf. But, yes, they would work wherever there were central

13 heating, central air. or even if there were a window mounted

L4 singLe ÀC unit, air: conditioning unit.

15 Q i{ould it be accurate to say that lhey work throughout the

16 220 acres of the Westchester Division property?

L7 A Yes. They work throughout the entire 220 acres of the

18 l¡/estchester Division. One of the special areas that they are

L9 responsible for working in would be the two courtyards on the

20 north side and the south side of the hospital- one of the p.rior

2I exhibits is a map of the facility. And I had alluded tÕ the

22 nor:th courtyard and the south courtyar:d. That's an area where

23 patients, when they are properly escorted by mental health

24 workers, or a unit clerk, or an LPN, for exampÌe, because they

25 may be at risk for elopement or leaving the hospital in an
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1 unauthorized fashion, they may be in such a fragile state that

2 they would not be able to generalÌy go on their own.

3 If a menta.L heaLth worker, for example. were to escort a

4 patient to one of those courtyards, they would generaÌÌy very

5 likely run into someone from the grounds department. either the

6 senlor grounds person or the grounds person, or the general

7 service workers. They work in those areas doing a nuÍìltrer of

I very important functions. But one that is unique to a

9 psychlatric hospital is that anyone ìncÌuding the generaL

10 serwlce workers and the grounds people !,¡orking in those areas

11 would work very closeÌy with the clinicaf team to ensure that

72 t.he right types of plants and horticulture wou.ld be in those

13 areas -

L4 And one of the reasons that's so important is that many of

15 our patients may be at risk to har:m themselves such as s-North.

16 whlch is the se.If-injurlous behavior unit, or the borderLine

L7 personalities disorder unit- Those patients have been known to

18 ingest plants or different things that they may find in those

19 courtyards. And we need to work very cÌoseÌy with the general

20 service workers to ensure that the types of plants that were

21 being planted in those areas would not be poisonous, would not

22 be harmful to Lhe patients. And that ís something that we try

23 to obviously provide for a very safe environment, but we would

24 like something in a Planetree hospital that is very asceticalÌy

25 pÌeasing to the patients. So to have t.rees, shrubs, and
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I different plants, it woufd be very lmportant to ensure that

2 plants with berrles, for example/ were not pLanted.

3 So the mental hea.Ith workers that are generally the

4 individuals that would be escorting patients to the north

5 courtyar:d or the south courtyard, itrs not just those 2 areas/

6 it's 220 acres, but to ensure that we are planting plants that

7 woufd not cause harm to patients if ingested. Or that potted

I plants, for example, lrould not be able to be picked up and

9 thrown as a projectile if a pat.ient were to de-escalate Õr to

10 become agitated, that could put other patlents or staff in

11 harm's way. But those ind.ividuaÌs from the grounds department

L2 and also genera.l services, because they spend so rnuch tlme in

13 the good weather planting pÌants, trees, and maìntaining the

L4 property, wou.ld work very c.Losely with the menta.L health workers

15 that wouLd be escorting those patients.

L6 There are a number of picnic tabfes in those two areas

L7 that patients woufd be abfe to get outside and have some fresh

18 air. If the picnic tabLe in one of those courtyards were to be

L9 broken or found .in a state of disrepair, the unit cferk would be

20 notified by the mental health worker. and the un.it clerk would

2I caLÌ the plant services department, and those individuals would

22 be d.ispatched to repair the broken picnic table.

23 There are a.Lso large Adirondack style chairs that would be

24 . in those courtyards. If any of that property were broken or if

25 the weather. -- if it were in disrepair due to the weather, harsh
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1 winter, that wouÌd also be a department that were contacted not

2 only to repair it but to paint it with an approved paint to

3 ensure that it is safe and aestheticalÌy pÌeasÍng to the

¿ ñâl-iônl-c

5 Q What kind of vehicles do the general service workers

6 drive? Do they have licenses?

7 A It's a requirement of the job that they have a clean New

8 York State or actualÌy a clean driver's license. Some of our

9 genel:al services employees wouLd come from d.if ferent states. New

l0 Jersey or Connecticut. But they have to have a cÌean and vaLid

11 driver's license in order to work in that department. They

L2 would drive any number of pickup trucks. They wouLd drive goÌf

13 cart type vehic.les to and from some of the smafler repair

L4 projects. They wouLd drive tractors, lawn mowing equlpment- I

15 had mentioned earlier skidders or frontend loaders pr.imarily

76 when they are working outside to plow snow or if they were

77 moving mulch. or sod, or topsoiÌ from one part of the hospital

18 grounds to another. They would be responsib.Le for operating aÌÌ

19 types of vehicLes and machinery.

20 Q And do the generaÌ service workers perform duties in the

21 storeroom or other areas of the hospitaL?

22 A If there were someth.ing broken. The front door of the

23 general stores area of the hospita.I, which is located in the

24 basement, is obvlously an important area of hospital because all

25 of the general stores and supplies would Ì:e maintained there-
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1 They would, similar to the locksmith, if the lock was broken or

2 malfunctioning. either the front door to that area that would be

3 accessible through one of the main corridors in the basement

4 wher:e the supply delivery ramp, if there was something broken in

5 that area, generaL repairs, they would be contacted for that.

6 But they can also assist in ensuring that the locks in that area

7 wou.Ld be properly work.ing and in good worklng order.

I MR. FRANK: Can I have this document marked as Employer

9 Exhibit 21. please ?

10 (Employer Exhibit 21 marked for identification. )

11 BY MR. FRANK:

Lz Q Mr. o'Connor, would you please review Employer Exhil¡it 21?

13 A Okay.

L4 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you pÌease describe what Exhibit 21

15 is?

L6 A Exhibit 21 is a job description for the general service

L7 worker job function at the Westchester Division.

18 Q And is this document maintained in the normal course of

19 business at the tralestchester DivisiÕn?

20 A Yes, it is-

2L Q And does it accurately describe the general job duties of

22 the general servíce worker?

23 A Yes, it does-

24 MR. FRANK: f offer Exhibit 21.

25 MR. DORN: Same comment.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Admitted.

2 (Employer ExhibiÈ 21 receiwed into ewidence. )

3 BY MR. FRÄNK:

4 Q üIhat Ìevel of training is required for somebody in the

5 generaÌ service worker position? ls there an apprenticeship

6 program or anything?

7 A The training that they wou]d receive would primar.ily come

8 through the foreman of their area. the plant operations.

9 Q On the job at the hospital?

10 A Yes. at the hospital . But due to the unique nature of a

1l psychiatríc hospital, they would also receìve a number of

L2 speclfic trainings as to how they can elim.inate or lessen the

13 .Ilkef ihood of a patient elopement, for examp.le. which is known

14 as a code gray in a psychiatric hospital. A psychiatric code

15 gray elopement, for example, cou]d occur in any number of areas

16 of the hospital. But one of the largest or one of the biggest

L7 risk areas is when an individuaL/ and it coufd be the genera.L

18 service worker coming onto a locked inpatient unit with a large

L9 toolbox or tool cart, if they were to prop the door open for

20 just a few seconds, a patient could elope without authorization.

2I So they need to have very specific training as to how to enter

22 and how to leave the inpat.ient un.its and to ensure that doors

23 are properÌy closed and locked behind them.

24 They would receive special training if they were entering

25 on the long-haul of most of our ìnpatient psychiatric units to
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1 enter through h¡hatrs known as the unit annex. And in entering

2 the unit fl:om the annex, they would actually have two barriers

3 or two doors between the main haÌl that they wouLd be accessing

4 it from and the inpatient un.it. but they !,/ould a.Lso receive

5 special trainlng on how to enter the unit if they had to, if a

6 door were broken on the short end of the ha.L.L. There .is no

7 annex on the short end of the hafl and there is only one door.

8 So a patient that was contemplating eÌopement miqht wait at the

9 short end of the hall because there is onÌy one door that would

10 need to be opened. So they would receive tra.ining on how to

11 minimize the likelihood that a patlent was to elope.

L2 But they would also receive train.ing on how to intervene

13 if a code gray were in progress. ff, for examp.Le, they were

L4 mowing any of the hospital grounds and if they were to see an

15 individuaL running away that perhaps could be a patient, they

16 would recelve training on how to notify our security department

L7 and to give a very accurate description not onLy of the

18 individual but the direction in which they were moving and some

19 of the, I guess the cLothing features or a descrìption of the

20 individual . That would l:e a very important first step sometímes

2L in the eÌopement prevention.

22 But they would also receive very speclfic OSHA training to

23 ensu rô tha they were wearÍng proper eye qoggl es, [o' exampl e,

24 if they wer.e cutting wood, or to even something that would seem

25 as simple as ladder safety. The llght fixtures that we were
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1 talking about earÌíer. they may need to climb a slgnificant

2 height in order to change a llght bulb or to paint something

3 that would be high up on the ceiLing. So OSHA safety

4 requirement train.ing is something that they spend a fot of time

5 doing in pLant operations with general service workers.

6 Q Thank you. I not.ice there are not, is it correct. there

7 are no educational requirements for this job description? It's

8 an entry lewel kind of job?

9 A Yes, lt is-

10 Q There's no technical training or anything like that?

11 A There is no technical training, although it is a

L2 quaLification of the job to have some gardening and snow removal

13 experience. Because the job afso functions as a mechanics

L4 helper, they actualLy to your earller question, they wou.Ld treat

15 that or use that position as a type of apprenticeship program.

16 Ìt is an entrance leveÌ position, but they would work very

L7 closely with other indiwiduaÌs in the pÌant operatíons, pÌant

18 services departments, the various plant servlces tradesmen, and

L9 plant services rnechanics -

20 Q What do the telephone operators do?

2L A Telephone operators are generally primarily responsible

22 for answering the main hospital phones. They are Ìocated at the

23 hospital's main entrance, just behind the welcome desk. Duríng

24 the day shift, as we have tafked ab,out before, their job

25 responsibilities would vary from when they are working off

BIIRKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wayne, New ,Jersey 07470
(973') 692- o66O



1 shíft, evenings or nights/ but they are generafly responsible

2 for answering not only the hospital's main phones and for

3 routing telephonicaÌIy the incoming caÌls, they would also be

4 responsibÌe for sending out hospital emergency pages. They

5 wouÌd be responsibfe for contacting the security department.

6 And when there is a code pink, which is a child ab,duction or the

7 threat of a child abduction in the hospita.L, or the code gray

I that we spoke about earfÍer, if there were a pat.ient efopement,

9 the units would generaÌÌy call the security department. If the

10 secur.ity department personnel were not there. that phone would

11 then be routed automat.ically to the operator because the

L2 operators are always at thelr consoÌe or workstation. And that

13 individual, the opiniÕn wouLd then be responsib,le for relaying

L4 the message that came from the un.it genera.lly from the unit

15 c]erk if it is during the day shift, or it couÌd be from a

a6 mentaÌ health worker or from any other staff member on the unit

L7 at other times of the day.

18 In addition, they also provide a very important customer

L9 service responsibilÍty.

20 Q What is that customer service responsibiLity?

2l A Well/ during the day, as the reception area, the welcome

22 desk is staffed, .it would be less of a responsibility- But as

23 the welcome desk ls unstaffed during the evenlng, the operator

24 that woufd be working d.irectly behind the welcome desk would

25 take on the responsibility of we.lcoming guests and visitors to
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1 the patients, in a PÌanetree facility we try to not have

2 signiflcant restrictions on the visiting hours for oul: patients.

3 But it's not unconìmon duríng the day patients wilÌ be ín group

4 therapy so most of the visitinq does occur dur.ing the late

5 afternoon and even.ing hours, around mealtime or after. And that

6 would be the time where the weÌcome desk would not be staffed.

7 Q Who normally staffs the welcome desk?

I A A staff assistant.

9 Q So after the daytlme hours. the telephone operator would

10 assume some of the responsibilities of the staff assistant at

11 the welcome desk?

L2 A Absofutely, yes, wouLd assume aÌÌ of the responsibilities

13 of the welcome desk staff assistant. But as those individuals,

14 visitors, or guests wou.Ld be coming to the hospital, the

15 operator would then phone the inpatient units and speak with the

16 unit clerk. the mental health worker, the charge nurse, whoever

L7 was working in the nursing station on the unìt. They would give

18 accurate directions for ho!,r the visitors could get to the un.it,

19 because it can sometimes be a little confusing Ín an older

20 facility such as the Westchester Division.

2I But that roLe, depending again on the time of day, can

22 also cover for phone cal.Ls that would be coming into the

23 evaluation center, times where the evaluation center clerk woufd

24 not be working. People may call the front desk of the hospita.L

25 tryìng to determ.ine the status of a Ìoved one who may be stilÌ
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1 in the evaluation center, still belng evaluated, stiÌÌ in the

2 preadrnission phase of their hospitalization.
3 Q What is the telephone operator's responsibility for
4 recelving or handling deliveries and packages?

5 A During the off shlft hours when the mai.l room clerk is not

6 worklng, if a FedEx package or .if maif were to come into the

7 hospitaL, then they r,rould be responsible for covering.
8 Q And what are the off shift hours?

9 A The off shift hours vary by department but it wouÌd

10 generally be Ìate afternoon. Generally, after 5:00 p.m. wouÌd

11 be seen as an off shift, the start of the off shift. and also
12 going through about 8:00 a-m. But the individua.L works very

13 closeLy with the maif room cÌerk. Tf, for example, the maif

14 roorn clerk were not about to sort afl of the maiÌ for the day,

15 during the evening and night shift, the operator during times

16 where the phone may not be ringing actually would be responsible
I7 fÕr sorting maif that hadn't been gotten to earlier in the day¡

18 if it came in Ìate in the day for example. And also if there
f9 are pieces of maiÌ that maybe the address isn't clear on it.
20 they woufd work very closeLy wíth the mail cÌerk to determine

2I where that mail should be routed and if it needed to be returned
22 to the U.S. Post Office they would do so. Or if it were an

23 interoffice piece of mail. they wouf cl return that to the sender

24 if the final destination, the address were unknown or illegible
25 for some reason -
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1 Q The mail c.Ler:k works normal.Ly during the day shift?

2 A Yes.

3 Q And delivery of mail that comes afterward or is handled by

4 the switchboard operator is the same way as the mail cÌerk in

5 terms of .Iog-in -- is there a Log-in process when things come

6 in?

7 A Yes. The operator woufd maintain the actuaf package log

B or mail Ìog that would generalÌy be maintained by the mail clerk

9 dur.ing the day shift Monday through Friday. But because it is

10 so important to be able to track important correspondence or

11 mai.L documents that come into the hospitaL at any hour of the

a2 day, the operator would fulfil] that impor:tant responsibility.

13 Q In the same way that the mail c]erk does Ít; I mean is it

a4 the same log ?

15 A Yes, it 1s the same log.

16 Q Are there other people who sometimes perform these

I7 functions as well as the mail clerk and the telephone operator?

18 A WeÌI, the mail clerk depending on -- if it's a snowstorm,

L9 for example, just this wlnter, I mean the mail clerk is trained

20 to act as a backup to the operator if the operator were not able

2a to rnake it to campus. Durinq times of inclement weather, the

22 mail clerk could shut down the maif room which is maybe 50 feet

23 down the haÌÌ from the main welcome desk whìch is where the

24 operator wouÌd work and that individual woufd be responsÍble for

25 performing a1l of the essential job functions of the telephone
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1 operator, including aff the safety responsibilities, contacting

2 the fire department if there were a fire, which is a code red in

3 a hospital, or making sure that units would be properLy patched

4 through to the security department if needed, if there l¡ere a

5 patient eLopement/ if there were a code pink or a chiLd

6 abduction. This is something that doesn't happen very often in

7 a focked psychiatric unit, but it is something that we all train

I for and it is something that the mail cLerk, the telephone

9 operator, when the mail cÌerk is covering for the teÌephone

10 operator would be very trained in, so that we can respond

11 quickÌy to any of those situations-

L2 Q And during lunch breaks, who covers for the telephone

13 operator, the mail clerk. the asslstant or --
'L4 MR. DORN: Obj ection.

15 THE WITNESS: It would be the staff assistant --
16 HEARING OFF]CER GOTTLIEB: What's your objection?

I7 MR. DORN: Leading question.

18 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: I'Ìl permlt it.

L9 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q You may continue.

2L A Vühen the operator takes a break, they wou.Id be covered

22 during the day shift by the welcome desk staff assistant because

23 their work staLions. one is right in front of the other, the

24 we.Lcome desk si-tuated in front of the telephone operator

25 console. They are onLy separated by a glass wall so that they
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1 can see who is coming into the hospìta.l and they can still

2 perform their welcome desk functions from the operator's

3 workstation. But the mail cferk again is someone that does on a

4 reguLar basis cover for the operator. And the operator is

5 someone that on occasion does cover for the mail cÌerk.
6 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Employer ExLllbit 22?

7 (Employer Exhibit 22 marked for idenÈificatíon. )

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q Mr. O'Connor, I would apprecíate it if you woufd review

10 what's been marked as Employer Exhibit 22.

11 A Okay.

12 Q Please descrlbe what EmpÌoyer Exhibit 22 is.

13 A Exhibi:L 22 is the job description for the te.Lephone

L4 operator job at the Westchester Division-

15 Q Is it a document that is regularÌy maint.ained by the

L6 hospitaÌ, trdestchester Diwision?

I7 A Yes, it is.

18 Q And does it accurately describe the dut.les and

19 responsibilities of the teÌephone operator?

20 A Yes/ it does.

2A MR. FRANK: I offer E-22.

22 MR. DORN: Sâme comment.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Yes. It's admitted.

24 (Employer Exhibit 22 receíved into ewidence.)

25 BY MR. FRANK:
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1 Q Now ]ooking at Exhibit R-22t and if you go back to E-2Il

2 where it says the job grades, W-2t is it the same job grade for

3 both?

4 A Yes. The generaf service worker is graded as a Irû-02 and

5 the telephone operator also has the same job grade, Id-02.

6 Q And so alf of the W-02's are the same grade in aff those

7 documents ?

8 A Yes. And 3's are all the same? Each one of the grades is

9 the same across al.L the job descriptions?

10 A Yes.

11 Q What is the telephone operator's responsibility with

!2 regard to updating the patient listings via the computer? What

13 is involved ther:e ?

L4 A WeLÌ, it would be a secure electronlc document. ft's

15 something that would be used internaÌly to ensure that the

L6 patient registry is up to date. lt is not something that would

L7 be released to the outside public or to any individuaÌ that did

18 not have pl:oper authorizat.ion to obtain that information.

19 Q t¡lho internally would use this lnformation, the patient

20 listings ?

21 A The physicians of the hospital. any of the staff

22 throughout the hospital that would need to have an accurate and

23 current census of the hospital. It would be very similar to the

24 information that were obtained through the Eagle registration

25 and discharge database that we discussed .Last week. That
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1 maintains bed count. This wouÌd accurately identify individuals

2 by name and by the unit that they are assigned to.

3 Q And does the lelephone operator lnteract at all with the

4 outpatient departments ?

5 A Yes-

6 Q What is that intel:action?

7 A The operator would relay any number of phone cal]s that

I may be coming into the rnain hospitaL as opposed to the

9 outpatient department- Both the inpatient hospitaÌ setting and

10 the outpatient areas, the chifd OPD, and the adu.It OPD are on

11 the same piece of property. They are very close in location.

L2 But when phone ca.Ils come .in, somebody may be looking for a

13 patient that is in the continuing day treatment program or the

L4 Z-cltnic, which is a step down unit for the schizophrenic

15 program, or 3-South on the inpatient side. If they were looking l

16 for a patient, those caÌls couÌd come through the main hospital

L7 number, and they would inter:act with any number of staff

18 assistants in the outpatient department depending on lf it's a

L9 chiLd or an aduLt or the family member of a chiLd that sÕmeone

20 were looking to connect w.ith.

2I Q What are CSS calls referred to .in Paragraph 1?

22 A You know, I don't know.

23 Q And what are the teLephone operator's responsibilities

24 regarding the suicide crisis line?

25 A It's a very important responsibiÌity. Tf somebody is
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1 contacting, there woufd be a suicide hotfine for the state of

2 New York for the county of White Plains, but if someone were to

3 contact, as they regularly do, the main number of the hospital,

4 the operator would be the first person to answer that phone.

5 Some people would have a prior hospita.Iizat.ion. They may know

6 to contact the evaluation center. Or they may actually have a

7 referraf phone number to access services. But most of the

8 community at large would not know that an access servíces

9 department or an evaluation center would exist so they wou.Id

10 perhaps --
11 Q What does the telephone operator do if she gets one of

L2 those calls, the suicide hotline ca.l.l?

13 A Well, she would do a number of thinqs or he, if there were

f4 a male operator. They try to mainta.in a state of calm. They

15 get as much information about the patient or about the

!6 individual that's making the call on the outside as possibÌe.

!7 And they woufd operate a secondary phone line to alert either

18 the White PÌains poLice department or the fire department, if

L9 they were able to get an address for example. If it were not an

20 individual that were a patlent in our hospital, we wouÌd not be

2r abÌe to asslst dlrectÌy, but that operator wouÌd do everything

22 they could to de-escaÌate the patient, to get as much vital

23 information about their locatìon, whether or not they took

24 pills, whether or not they have any type of firearm or knife,

25 something that the patient couÌd harm themselves ol: others with.
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1 And they would pass that on promptly to the appropriate resource

2 in the community to assist.

3 Q And do the telephone operators receiwe the same general

4 training and orientation that you have previously described?

5 A Yes, they do.

6 MR. FRANK: Would thls be a good time for a short break?

7 HEARING OFETCER GOTTIIEB: Sure, fet's take 5 minutes.

8 MR. FRANK: Did I offer 22?

9 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, you didn't.
10 MR. FRANK: I offer Ex]ntbiL 22.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: It's admitted.

A2 Off the record.

13 (!{hereupon, a btief recess was taken.)

L4 HEÀRING OFE'ICER GOTTLIEB: On the record-

15 So as a result of off the record discussions, the parties
A6 have informed me that they both agree the chef is a statutory
!7 superwisor and so that tltle no longer is in correct. Is that
18 correct ?

L9 MR. FRÀNK: That is corl:ect.

20 MR. DORN: That's correct.

2l HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. The parties so

22 stipulate. Okay, do you want to continue/ please?

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q Mr. O'Connor, what does the cashier do in her job?

25 A The cashier wouÌd primarily be responsible for I quess
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t handing out to individuals that would have a reimbr.lrsement

2 request form. wouÌd be responsiÌlle for smaÌl monetary

3 transactions from the cashier's booth, primari]y wou.ld be where

4 the individual would work. But it could be monetary cash

5 transactions for visitors, for staff, for patients, visitors.

6 Q And where does the cashier work?

7 A In the main hospital building or the center building on

I the first floor directly adjacent to the mail room.

9 Q How far from the mail room is it?

10 A Less than five feet.

11 Q And would you describe the cashier's contact with other

L2 employees in the nonprofessionaÌ unit of the hospital?

13 A Sure. fndividuals, mental health workers, staff

14 assistants, individuals that may go for training wíthin

15 ùlestchester County, different associatlons, if they paid for

16 parking, for example, they would need to flÌ] out appropriate

L7 petty cash reimbursement slips. And as long as .i t. were Less

18 than $50, and have the appropriate signatures on it with the

19 appropriate receipts, they wou.ld bring that to the cashier to

20 obtain the $50 or .Less petty cash reimbursement-

2I Q ù/ou1d you describe the cashier's invoLvement ìn

22 distributing payroll checks to employees?

23 A Sure. The finance department would generate the

24 paychecks. Eighty percent of our employees have direct depos.it

25 so they wouÌd also, the cashier would be responsible for helpinq
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1 to distribute the paystubs to the individuaÌs from the finance

2 department through the mai.L room clerk to the varlous units that

3 the employees would work on. And the maif clerk on behalf of

4 the finance department. in partnership with the cashier. would

5 take either the paycheck or the paystubs to the unit clerks on

6 the lnpatient units or any number of staff assistants or

7 administrative assistants working throuqhout the hospital.

I At the end of the process, after two weeks, lf paystubs

9 for whatever reason have not been picked up on the inpatient

10 units, in the nursinq station/ or from the various departments,

11 they would come back through the mail room to the cashier's

12 department. And she would maintain, generaÌly it's not a check

13 that's not picked up but the paystubs are Less commonly picked

'L4 up, and would hold those for one month. And then they would be

15 disposed of confidentialÌy- They would be shredded.

16 Q What Ís the process of cashing personal checks for

I7 employee s ?

18 A EmpLoyees befow that $50 leveL. It used to be a much

19 larger amount. They cou]d cash up to the entíre amount of their

20 paycheck. But for those smaÌ] monetary transactions, employees

2L can have personal checks cashed at the cashier's office with

22 proper identification and as long as it is under that monetary

23 limit -

24 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Employer Exhlbit 23,

tE ^l ^iêô
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1 (Employer ExhibiÈ 23 marked for identification. )

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you please rewiew L¡hat the repoïter
4 has handed you and marked as Employer Exhibit 23.

5 A Thank you. yes.

6 Q Please describe what Employer 23 is.
7 A Exhibit 23 is a job descríptlon for the cashler role at
I the Westchester Division.
9 Q What is its job grade?

10 A Job crade W-03.

11 Q And is this record maintained in the ordlnary course of
f2 buslness?

13 A yes, it is.
L4 MR. FRANK: f offer it.
15 MR. DORN: Same comment.

16 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTIIEB; Okay. tt,s admitted.
'J-7 (Employer Exhibít 23 received. into ewidencer. )

18 BY MR. ERANK:

L9 Q Does Exhlbit 23 accurately reflect the duties and

20 responslbilities of a cashier?

2L A I'm sorry?

22 Q Does Exhibit 23 accurateÌy reflect the dutles and

23 responsibifities of the cashier?

24 A Yes, i r_ does .

25 Q ülhat does the Lead cashier cafeteria do?
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1 A Lead cash.ier in the cafeteria is primarily responsible for
2 accepting money, making monetary change at one of the two

3 cashier stations in the cafeteria where many of our empLoyees

4 and patients eat on a daÍly basis. The individuaf in the lead

5 cashier role wouÌd also be responsibÌe for counting money-

6 Accuracy is a wery important part of the lob/ very similar to
7 the cashier role. The lead cashier would be responsible for
I bringing the money that they had counted to the cashier in the

t hospitaf and actually handing off the money that they wouLd have

10 obta.ined throughout the course of the day's business. They

11 wouÌd maintain their own cash tray that woufd be maintained in
1-2 the food and nutritlon department so that they would have enough

13 cash to start the next day for bt:eakfast. For example, the

14 evening shift dinner is done. They would maintain money to
15 start the next day's cash drawer, but all extra money would be

L6 given to the cashier. And that would be part of the cashier's

L7 responsibiLities to couple that with the money that she had

18 obtained so that a cash deposit couÌd be made to one of the

L9 locaÌ banks that we do business with in White Pfains.

20 MR. FRÀNK: Can I have this marked as Employer Exhibit 24,

2L pleas e ?

22 (Employer Exhibit 24 marked for identificatj-on. )

23 MR. FRANK: Am I correct, Madam Hearing Officer, that the

24 lead cafeteria cashier is a titÌe the Union wants to include,

25 whereas the other cashiel: is an excÌude?
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1 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: The lead cashier cafeteria

2 actuaLLy the Union does want to incLude -

3 MR. DORN: That's correct.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Correct.

5 MR. FRANK: But the cashier they want to exc.Lude?

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Correct. That's what T have-

7 MR. FRANK: Okay. It struck me as sort of odd, but I just

I wanted to make sure I understood their positlon.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: That's correct.

10 MR. DORN: We want to include the lead cashier in the

11 cafeteria and exclude the other cashier.

L2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Okay.

13 MR. FRANK: Can I ask why so I understand what evidence

L4 might be relevant? i{hy one cashiel: is Ín and one is not?

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, do you want to explaín

L6 that, that pos ition ?

L7 MR. DORN: Well, T don't know why I have to explain to the

18 EmpÌoyer. But in order to move this aLong/ we believe the

L9 cashler is a busíness office cferical and the lead cashier

20 cafeteria is not.

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Okay.

22 BY MR . FR-ANK :

23 Q Mr - O'Connor, wou.ld you p.Lease .Iook at lrhat's been marked

24 as EmpÌoyer Exhibit 24 and identify the document, please.

25 A ExhibiL 24 ts the job description for the lead cashier
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1 cafeteria job function at the Westchester Division.

2 Q ls this a document that is maintained in the normal course

3 of business at the hospital?

4 A Yes/ it is.

5 Q And does it accurately describe the duties and

6 responsibilities of the cashier in the cafeteria?

7 A Yes.

8 MR. FRANK: T offer Employer Exhibit 24.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Same comment, Mr. Dorn?

10 MR. DORN: Same comment.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. It's admitted.

L2 (Employer Exhibit 24 receiwed into ewidence.)

13 BY MR. FRANK:

L4 Q l{hat are the pLant serv.ices tradesman job duties?

15 A Plant services tradesmen work in the plant operations

L6 department at the itüestchester Dlvlsion and they are primar.ily

L'l responsible for general maintenance at the Westchester Division.

18 They typlca]ly take the r:ole working very closeÌy with plant

19 services tradesmen, and the maintenance mechanics, and the

20 general serwice ¡rorkers to ensure that the intel:ior of the

2L buiLdings are in sound working order and are safe for our

22 patients. Again depending on the weather, these individuaÌs,

23 plant services tradesmen, can also be inwolved with snow

24 removal. And in an emergency situation, they are trained to do

25 so and to operate tractors, pÌows. And if they are not
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2 to keep the hospital entrances safe for a.L.L patients.

3 Q Do they genera.Lly perform the same types of duties as the

4 general service workers ?

5 A They do. The genera] serv.ice worker would generally be

6 assisting as the mechanic's helper- They would assist in

7 various ways. But, yes, very similar roles.

I Q And what patient care areas of the hospital to the plant

9 services tradesmen work?

10 A In every area of the hospital/ wherever repair work wouÌd

11 be necessary/ painting, carpentry, minor electrica.I, a break

L2 fix, if they needed to assist in changing a Ìight bulb, the

13 tradesmen are responsibÌe for those areas throughout the entire

L4 hospital .

15 Q And do they go into patient care units? Do their

16 responsibilities take them into the various patient care units

L7 of the hospi tal ?

18 A Yes- And not only the patient care unlts, but the

L9 individual patient bedrooms, and bathrooms. and comnìunity areas

20 for patients.

2L Q And would you descrlbe the frequency with which the pLant

22 services tradesmen go onto the different patient care units of

23 the hospital ?

24 A They are on unìts on a daify basis, when the hospital is

25 renovating a program or a unit under the Face proqram. which is
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1 the aesthetic or cosmetic repair of a unit. The pÌant services

2 tr:adesmen, in conjunction with other jobs, are primariLy

3 responsible for ma.intenance services on those indiwidual units

4 and the patient rooms. They could be on routine break/fix

5 maintenance in additíon to prescheduLed Face projects.

6 Q And when there is routine maintenance, who do they come in

7 contact with? How do they get to the units and perform their

8 assignments on the partícular units? l¡lho do they contact on the

9 unit, describe that.

10 A Well, they would know that there was something broken if

11 the unlt clerk cafled them. Commonly, that is how they are

L2 alerted to the fact that something is broken or needs repair on

13 the unit, or through the Sentact system that e.Lectronica.Ily

L4 sends them thr:ough their pager or through their phone in a page

15 indicating that a work order has been generated. But that wou.Ld

L6 be prior to them coming to one of the inpatient units.

L7 But the staff assistants, for example, if one of the other

18 departments in the hospital or patient care services needed

19 somethinq, a nindow were leaking, or an office needed to be

20 repalnted, or a windowsiLl needed to be repaired, they wou.Id

2L contact the generaÌ service workers, the pLant services

22 tradesmen, aÌl of the individuals that would be responsible for

23 repaír.

24 Q And when they get to the units, who do they contact or

25 interact with when they are on the patient care units?
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1 A Afl the employees that would be working on that inpatient

2 unit.

3 Q For the reader of the record, wilÌ you describe the job

4 titles ?

5 MR. DORN: Objection. We all:eady know who wôrks on

6 pat.ient care units.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,TEB: That's true.

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q WouÌd you describe the responsibilities regarding

10 installing focks and dealing with Ìock issues on the un.its,

11 please, referring to Ttem 1 on E-25.

L2 A Sure. As a part of their --

13 MR. DORN: I object. Counsel is referring f believe to a

L4 job description for the pfant services tradesman which hasn't

15 been introduced and T don't have a copy. I believe that's what

L6 you were referring to.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you want to go off the

18 record?

19 MR. ERANK: What ?

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Off the record for a moment.

2L (Discussion off Èhe record.)

22 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

23 MR- FRANK: My apotogies. Can I have this document marked

24 as Employer Exhibit 25?

25 (Employer Exhibit 25 marked for identification. )
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q Mr. O'Connor, wouÌd you please review EmpÌoyel: Exhibit 25?

3 A Okay.

4 Q Would you please describe for the record what EmpÌoyer

5 ExhibÍt 25 consists of?

6 A Exhibit 25 is a job description for the plant services

7 tradesman job function at the ldestchester Division.

I Q Does it accurately describe the principal duties and

9 responsibilities of the plant services tradesman?

10 A Yes, it does.

11 Q Is the document maintained in the normal course of
12 busìness at the Westchester Division?
12 

^ 
V^a ir ;ô

L4 MR. FRANK: I offer Employer Exhibit 25.

15 MR. DORN: Same coÍìment.

L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Admltted-

17 (Employer Exhibít 25 receiwed into evidence.)

18 BY MR. FRANK:

L9 Q Now, Mr. O'Connor, let me dìrect your attention to
20 Item 1(d) and (e), and would you please describe what the plant

2I services tradesman's duties include regarding locks and keys?

22 A Sure. This is a very impol:tant job responsibility in a

23 locked psychíatric hospitaÌ. But in addition to the locksmith

24 that wouLd generalÌy respond to broken locks or cylinders within
25 the hospitaÌ, if that individual were on vacation, that
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1 individual were out sick, the plant serwices tradesmen are

2 trained not only in replacing the .Iocks that may become broken,

3 the cyÌinders and the doors that would need to house those

4 locks, but afso to cut the keys ln the hospital that various

5 units and departments would request through the pÌant services

6 tradesmen.

7 Q And wouÌd you describe the type of work that the p]ant

I services tradesmen do in repairing beds, and wheelchairs, and

9 medical equipment ?

10 A Sure. The beds on the inpatient units are a special type

11 of bed that linit the patíent's ability to fift them or to move

L2 them. GeneraÌÌy, those patient beds are bofted or tethered to

13 the floor so that patients cannot use them as barricades. I{e

14 have had situations where patients, for exampÌe/ have barricaded

15 themselves in their room if they had an unbolted bed or a wooden

16 wardrobe, for example. Some of the patients wouÌd be in those

17 rooms for severaL weeks at a time and it would not be uncommon

18 for some of our patienls to rock lhose back and forth to unboÌt
'L9 them from the waf .l or the floor. And we have actualÌy had

20 sltuations where patients have taken the furniture in the room,

2L it could be a chair, a bed/ a wardrobe, a dresser, and they line

22 them up. And they actuaÌ.ly use the bed on one side of the wall,

23 and they wouÌd bulld a barricade into the room.

24 The plant servíces tradesmen and severa.l other jobs within

25 the plant serv.ices department play an essentiaÌ role- They
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1 would be notified by genera.Lly the unit clerk, but they wouÌd

2 come up with very special tools that we have purchased at the

3 Vlestchester Division w.ithin the Ìast year. They receive special

4 training on how to use these tooÌs- And those tools are used

5 similar to fire department personnel using the Jaws of Life to

6 take someone out of a car if it were bad.Ly mangled, the plant

7 services tradesmen and other individuafs in the plant servlces

8 department/ plant operations department would use a saw that

9 allows them to cut through a door on an inpatient unit where a

10 patient wou.Ld have barricaded himself or herse.Lf Ín there. But

11 the cutting surface .is just deep enough where it cuts through

f2 the door but would not cut human fÌesh if the patient were

13 holding the door as wefl as barricading .it with the furniture in

14 the room. So they pÌay a very important role in provid.ing for a

15 save env.ironment for patients. They would generaÌÌy cut that

16 door aÌong the hinges so that it could be removed. AI] of the

L'7 inpatient unit doors swing inward so they donrt create a fire

18 hazard. But this would alfow the pfant services tradesmen and

L9 other pLant services department employees to intervene when

20 necessary.

21 Q When a patient has barricaded themselves in the room or

22 created one of these situations, how is the maintenance

23 tradesman or the plant servlces Lradesman contacted and who does

24 he work with of the units to regain entrance into the patient's

25 room?
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1 MR. DORN: Irm going to object. Vúe've had simi.Lar

2 testimony with regard to other classifications who come onto the

3 units, how they are notified and how they get on the unít.

4 MR- FRANK: What I'm trying to estab,lish is these are not

5 mechanicaÌ employees who work in a separate shop and never have

6 contact with the social workers and the mental heaLth workers on

7 the units. Many of the Boal:d cases where there is an issue of

8 whether the maintenance employees beÌong to the same unit as the

9 servlce employees is because they have dissimiLar work locations

10 and there is no interconnection. They lvork in a carpentry shop

11 or electrical shop and they never have interaction with the

L2 nurse's aldes -

13 What Irm trying to show here is that the tradesmen

!4 actually work with the mentaÌ heaÌth workers to work on a

15 patlent care situation on the units for the corìmon betterment of

16 the patients in their work together. That's why a psychlatric

L7 hospital is different than what you wouÌd get in a normal

18 hospital.

L9 MR. DORN: In the first pÌace, I disagree that the

20 maintenance employees who have been deemed to be a separate

2I bargaining unit must work in a separate area. There are nany

22 hospltal cases in which maintenance workers come onto the floors

23 to perform work, just as these malntenance workers come onto the

24 units to perform work. And in addition, this hospital has

25 either: agreed that a separate maintenance unlt is appropriate or
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1 the Region or the Board has found that such a unít ìs

2 appropriate. And I'd like either the Region or the EmpÌoyer to

3 furnish me with the information concerning that certification

4 which has bìeen referred to.

5 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. We are going far afiefd

6 from the question here. f understand I can certainly provlde

7 that informatÍon to you, Mr. Dorn, but Ìet's just go back to the

I question here.

9 MR. FRANK: T don't understand Mr. Dorn's objection-

10 MR. DORN: My objection was that we have had that

11 testimony and we don't need to keep repeating it.

L2 MR. FRANK: Mr. Dorn is wrong in his position. The

_LJ uoard --

A4 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: Wefl, it's not a position. I

15 think what the --
A6 MR. FRÄNK: On whether the ma.intenance --
17 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: It's not a legal position that

18 Mr. Dorn is argu.ing about. What he's objecting to is that the

19 ìnformation is aLready in the record. It's not a legal

20 position. It's simply an issue of whether it's repetltive.

2L MR. FRANK: I don't think there is any information in the

22 record of how the p.Lant services tradesmen interact with people

23 to get a patienL out of the room that they locked themseLves

24 into. I don't think that's in the record.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I think the last question was
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I about who they would contact. It was a different question.

2 MR. ERANK: Okay. What T'm trying to estabLlsh is if a

3 patient .Locks themselves in the room, barricades them in, the

4 p.lant services tradesmen comes to the f1oor, what does he do

5 when he gets to the unit? He doesn't do it all by himself.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, no, no, we'we aÌready had

7 that, aLL right.

8 MR. FRANK: I/úho does he work with and what is the --
9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: That !,¡e already have. Let's

10 jusl oo on.

11 MR. FRANK: I don't think we have it. I mean this is a

12 dlr:ect patient care .issue. Somebody has locked themselves in a

13 room. What do you do?

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. WeII, he's just

15 LesLil.eo .o th¿--

L6 MR. ERANK; He didn't do it by himself.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, go ahead, just contlnue-

18 BY MR. FRANK:

L9 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you pfease continue and describe the

20 process of when the plant services tradesmen gets to a unit and

2L a patient has barricaded themsefves lnto a l:oom¡ what does he do

22 when he gets there?

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Well, that he a.lready just

24 testified to.

25 BY MR. FRANK;
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1 Q With whom does he interact?

2 A Well, there are a number of people that he would interact

3 with, he or she. And this is a wery unique situation where

4 after receiving notification from the unit clerk or from someone

5 in the nursing station that a patient had barricaded hlmself or

6 herself lnto the unit, although it's very customary for these

7 individuals to use their secure keys, their 9925 keys to obtain

I entrance to the focked inpatient unit, in these situations there

9 are other unique ways in which these indiwiduaLs, the pÌant

10 serwices tradesmen, malntenance mechanics, and others would gain

11 access to the pat.ient rooms.

12 They have been asked, these individuals and others in

13 plant operations, to develop plans for example for how they can

14 gain entrance to a patient's room from outside the hospita.L,

15 where they wouldn't even come through one of the locked un.it

16 doors. The windows, although they are T,exan and they are

l7 unbreakable, and they would have screens so that they can open

18 them up to the four inches that would be a.Ilowed under OMH

19 regulations, pfant services tradesmen, generaL services

20 mechanics pLay a vital important roLe in patient center care and

2L safety ìn the case of a patient barricading himse.lf for herself

22 in their room. And they have actually drawn up pÌans.

23 If, for example, the saw that they use that would not cut

24 a.l.I the way through the door were not operable, they may need to

25 go -- these are the gentlemen that woufd be trained or the
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1 indiwiduafs that woufd be trained to use fadders to perhaps go

2 up to the third fÌoor. if necessary and to use special toofs to

3 get into a patient's room from outside the hospital if they were

4 not able to cut the door or break the door. They play a very

5 important role. And ín those situations, they woufd take the

6 fead of the patient care services staff on the unit. And in

7 those situations/ the pLans that they have developed woufd

8 incorporate working with local fire department staff if it were

9 deemed necessary.

10 A patient, for example, could barricade himseÌf or herself

11 in an inpatient room and have rnatches. And they might light the

1-2 mattress on fire or: attempt to light the blinds on flre. So

13 there would be a 1ot of coordination that the ptant serwices

14 tradesmen, the maintenance mechanics wouLd take the lead from

15 the patient care services team primarily through the nursing

L6 station where the conÌrnuni cat i on s devices would be maintained.

17 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Exhibit 26?

18 (Employer Exhibit 26 marked for identification . )

19 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q Mr:. Orconnor, f 've had the reporter marked Employer 26,

2L which I belleve he has just handed to you. Would you please

22 review it for a second?

23 A Sure -

24 Q Please identify Exhibit 26.

25 A Exhibit 26 is a job description for the mail clerk job
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1 function at the Westchester Diwision-

2 Q And is this a document that's ma.intained in the norma]

3 course of busines s ?

4 A Yes, it is.

5 Q And does it accuratefy describe the duties and

6 responsibllitles of the malÌ clerk?

7 A Yes, it does.

I MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibit E-26.

9 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It's admitted.

10 (Employer Exhibit 26 receiwed into ewidence. )

11 BY MR. FRANK:

f2 Q Now looking at NuÍìltrer 1, I see that the mail cLerk

13 distributes morning papers. WouLd you descr.ibe the area --
L4 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Before we proceed. the maiL

15 cLerk everyone agrees to is in the unit, correct?

L6 MR. DORN: Yes. I certainly agree.

L7 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTIIEB: [/üe don't reaÌly need to get

18 into this.

L9 MR. FRANK: Weff, the w.itness testified that there is

20 interchange and the cashier performs the duties of the mai.L

21 cLerk at times, and the cashier is not included.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Riqht. There was specific

23 testimony about that. He testified to what aspect, how he took

24 over. I don't know if 1t's necessary to go through a]l the

25 others.
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1 MR. FRANK: Well, if the cashier did some of these duties

2 of the mail clerk, ln¡ouldnrt that be relevant to the record?

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: But he's already testified to

4 what duties of the mail clerk he did. I mean if you want to go

5 into a little more if there are any other duties, T just don't

6 want to go into long, you know --
7 MR . FR-ANK: T f you would .Like to direct me not to put .in

8 any testimony about this mail cferk's job, I'ÌÌ Ìisten to your

9 direction. Otherwise, I would prefer to be abÌe to put in a

10 full record. If you are ordering me not to put in testimony, I

11 won't. But I would prefer to ask this witness to describe th.is

L2 job duty to show that it is part of the integrated complete

13 unit, just Ìike every other job- I don't make a distinction

f4 between what lre are pulting testimony in and what the Union

15 wants and what the HospitaL wants. I'm trying to give you a

L6 pictul:e and the reader of the record of alÌ of the

L7 nonprofess.ional jobs.

18 MR- DORN: T'm qoing to object to counsef making

L9 statements on the record wh.ich are in the nature of arqument

20 rather than dealing with the issue.

21 MR. ERANK: I'lI withdraw the last question-

22 BY MR. FRANK:

23 Q Mr- o'Connor, wouÌd you describe what contact the mail

24 cÌerk may have on a daiLy basis with the adm.inistrative c.Lel:k or

25 the chart analyst ?
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I A The chart analyst is primarily responsible for assernbLing

2 paper¿ medical records of our patients. They would work very

3 cfosefy with the social work department, the social work

4 ass.istants, and --

5 Q My question was, trylng to keep it focused, would you

6 describe how the maiL clerk interacts with the analyst or the

7 chart anafyst.

I A Sure. Once the chart analyst wouÌd comp.ile the requested

9 documents at the request of the social work department, if those

10 documents needed to be mailed to an outside treating facility,

11 if they needed to be mailed to an after-care residential

f2 facility, generaLly the docurnents would accompany the social

13 work department. But say for exampÌe one document were excÌuded

1-4 or additiona.l documents were request post-discharge of a

15 patient/ it !,rouLd not be possibLe for someone to drive the

16 document to the after-care treatment facÍlity or residentiaf

f7 facility, then the mail clerk would be responsible for either

18 owernighting that by EedEx, for example, or sending that by

19 United States Postal Service mai.l to the requesting entity.

20 Q And would you describe what job contact the mail clerk has

2f w.ith 1-he HTM processìng department?

22 A It wouÌd l¡e very simiLar to that of the chart analyst.

23 AÌl of the individuafs in health .information management have

24 been cross tr.ained and couÌd produce. would produce requested

25 portions of th-e medical chart. And if it needed to be mailed,
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1 woufd do so through the maiÌ room and the mail cLerk.

2 Q And woufd you describe the interaction, if there is any,

3 between the mail clerk and the patient account representatives
4 or the patient registrars?

5 A Sure. The patient account representatiwes primarily deal

6 with registering patients. Information is generally obtained by

7 them, requested by them by fax or email. But if something, for
8 example, from an insurance company needed to be sent, say it is
9 in such a large quantity or of a size it coutdn,t be faxed, if

10 it were FedEx'd or if it were maiÌed, it would go through the
11 mall room- And the maiL clerk would then be responsible for
1-2 transporting it to the patient account repr:esentative or the

13 Medicaid counseLor that had requested that inforrnation.
l-4 Q And would you describe the interactions of the mail cferk
15 with the plant services tradesmen or the other people in the
L6 maintenance departments ?

L7 A Sure. Tf maiÌ were sent either incoming to the plant
18 operatiÕns department or to any of the indivìduals that worked

19 there, the pÌant services tradesmen, it could be contracts for
20 exarnple, documents that would be needed to continue a project on

2I an inpatient unit. tf they were malled, they would go through

22 the mail cferk and the maif room.

23 Q Can you describe what contacts if any there are between

24 the sociaL work assistants and the mail cferks?

25 A Sure- The social work assistants would hand confidential
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1 patient information off to the mail cLerk if it needed to be

2 sent out, if it were not avaiLable at the time the patient were

3 reLeased, or it couÌd be in anticipation of a patient being

4 released not just to an after-care treatment faciÌity or

5 residential facility.

6 It could be an outside psychiatrlst or an outside social

7 worker for exampÌe that might be requesting different portions

I of the medical record- A physician, for example, may only be

9 interested in one portion of the medical record and may request

10 an ongoing accounting of the treatment plan or the progress

11 notes. Those could be obtained by the socia.l work assistant and

L2 nailed through the mail cler:k or the mail room-

13 Q And would you describe what the interactions are between

L4 the mail clerk and the senior Medicare account rep?

15 MR. DORN: f'm going to object at this point. I think

L6 it's obvious from the testimony that when something has to be

L7 mailed, it's going to go to the maif clerk to mail. T don't see

18 why we have to go through every classification.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: That's true.

20 MR. FRANK: I have not understood why the Union has

2L decided some classifications should be included and some

22 shouldn't be. Irm trying to show that all these people talk to

23 each other and interact with each other on a regular and daily

24 basís to provide patient care. And Mr- Dorn is refusing to

25 agree to that fact. Tf he wouÌd stipulate to the fact that aÌl
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1 of the people in this unit work together and daily interact with

2 each other, we'd have a much shorter hearinq. lt's only because

3 he is refusing to do that that I have to go through thÍs.

4 MR. DORN: That's true of most hospita.Ls. And the Board

5 has long held that there are separate appropr.iate bargaining

6 units -

7 MR. FRANK: Counsel, the Board has explicitÌy and

B expressly excluded psychiatric hospitals --
9 MR. DORN: T understand what the Boai:d has done.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: We are not here to argue

11 ultimatefy about the Ìaw.

L2 MR. FRANK: No, but if he would agree that these people

13 have the conìmon interaction. then we wouldn't have to do thìs.

L4 As long as he says they don't, then I have to put on testimony.

15 MR. DORN; What you define as colnmon interaction is

L6 something different than I wou.Ld def.ine it or I th.ink that the

r7 Board would define it. But we don't need to go over materiaÌ

18 time, and time, and time again.

19 MR. FRANK: I don't believe there is any testimony on this

20 record about mail clerk interactlon with the senior Medicare

2L account representatives, If I'm wrong, please so advise me.

22 But I don't be.lieve ther:e is anything like that in the record,

23 which is why I asked this witness that question.

24 MR. DORN: I assume if something is going to be mailed,

25 it's going to be mailed by the maiÌ clerk no matter who wants it
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1 to be malled. If a physician wants something to be mailed,

2 maybe the mail clerk wlll do Ít. So what?

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Why don't you just proceed?

4 BY MR. FRÀNK:

5 Q Mr. O'Connor, do you stilf remember the question? My

6 question was would you describe the interaction if any between

7 the senior Medicare account representatives and the maiL clerks.
I A Sure. The sen.ior Medicare account rep works primarily

9 wìLh pa L ìents that have Medicare às their prirnary insurance.

10 And if documentation were needed to be obtained, mailed to the

11 federal government, or to CMMS, the Center for Medicare and

L2 Medicaid Services, they would coordinate with the senior

13 MedÍcar:e account rep to ensure that those documents were sent ln
a4 an appropriate fashion and in a timely manner so that the

15 patlent's care v/as not disrupted if there was an interruption in
!6 the -- to ensure that they don't have an interruption in
L7 services.

18 Q And would the same be true of the Medica.id counseLor orÌ

a9 the state leve I ?

20 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Vüell, I have to say T agree

2L with Mr. Dorn to this degree. I mean it's just the way the

22 questions are framed, itrs just so time consuming. There is a

23 much better, more economical way of doing it. If you want to

24 ask a general question and include whatever tit]es you want to

25 so he cou.ld answer/ I mean that's fine. But this is -- yeah,
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1 why don't we do it Lhäc way.

2 MR- FRANK: I would fike to do it, but ewery time I try to

3 do that then T get an objection T'm leading.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: tdhy don't we try to do it that

5 way?

6 BY MR. ERANK:

7 Q Mr. Orconnor, does the mail clerk on a daily basis afso

I deal with the Medicaid counseÌors, patient account reps, patient

9 registrars, senior access reps. and senior account reps?

10 A Yes.

11 Q And in that context, is that personaL interaction where

L2 they talk to each other on the job?

13 A Yes.

L4 Q And does the mail clerk also have daily contact with the

15 administrative ass.istants, abstractors, health information,

L6 access service reps, administrative cLerks, ânalyst medica.L

L7 data ?

l-8 A Yes.

L9 Q And do they taLk to each other and interact on a daily

20 basis on the job'?

2f A Yes, they do-

22 MR. ERANK: Is 26 rn? I offer Exhibit 26.

23 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It's admitted.

24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q What are the job duties and responsibilities of the
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1 drapery maker?

2 A The draper makerrs responsibilities would prirnariÌy be

3 to --
4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: That's included, too. The

5 Union has incfuded that and you have agreed. So let's not begin

6 the drapery make r.

7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q Does the hospital employ upholsterers?

9 A Yes.

10 Q vlhat is the job duty of the upho.lsterers?

11 A The upholsterer's job responsibiÌity is to upholster or to

12 re-cover furniture within the hospital . They would utilize very

13 similar tools of the trade if you wil] as that of the assistant

14 upholsterer for: the drapery maker. They use sewing machines,

15 needÌes. thread- Accuracy is very important to the uphoÌsterer

16 in measuring bolts of cÌoth or fabric- The upholsterer and the

17 assistant uphofsterer work very cLoseLy with the drapery maker

18 when they are measuring windowsílls for example for hangìng

19 blinds or drapes that the drapery maker would make.

20 The upho.Lsterer is trained, the assistant upholsterer as

2L well, in not onÌy making pillows, patching up mattresses on the

22 inpatient units, but also for making shower curtains and drapes

23 when the upholsterer .is on vacation or -- when the drapery maker

24 is on vacalion or when the dr:apery maker ls running our internal

25 copy center in the hospital.
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1 Q So the upholsterer can do the same job as the drapery

2 maker?

3 A Yes- The upholsterer and the assistant upholsterer cover

4 for the drapery maker on a regular basis and they share

5 materials to ensure that cormon color schemes liith the drapes

6 and the furníture on the inpatient units are matched. And

7 that's a primary responsibility of both the drapery maker and

8 the uphoÌstel:er duríng Face or cosmetic renovation projects on

9 the inpatient units. And as we spruce up units, as we change

10 the color schemes or patterns based on the therapeutic pattern

11 that has been selected for that unit, they would work very

f2 cLosely together.

13 Q The drapery maker and the upholsterers work closeÌy

L4 Logether?

15 A Yes.

L6 MR. DORN: We wiI.L agree that the upholsterer shouLd be

1-7 inc Luded .

18 HEARTNG OFF]CER GOTTLIEB: OKay.

L9 MR- FRANK: And the assistant upholsterer?

20 MR. DORN: Yes .

21 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: off the record for a moment.

22 (Dj-scussion off the record.)

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

24 I just nôticed that Employer Exhibit 1 does not contain

25 the assistant upholsterer posltion and inquired about that.
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1 MR. FRANK: It was inadvertently .Left off. It is

2 current.Iy an unfilled position because the incumbent left. lt

3 is belng recruited and wouÌd beÌong in the unit with the

4 upholsterer.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And it's the Union's position

6 that the upholsterer and the assistant upholsterer wlll be

7 included now?

I MR. DORN: That's correct.

9 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

10 MR. FRANK: For the record, I would be prepared to put all

11 three job descriptions in. Tf you would rather not have them

'L2 in/ I won't continue going forward.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Yeah, what do we really need

L4 them for t.hen?

15 MR. DORN: I don't have any objection if they are just

L6 going to go in, whatever you wish.

A7 MR. FRANK: The stipu.Lation is agreed to on the three?

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes. Correct?

19 MR. DORN; Yes .

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Well, the drapery maker was

2a aÌready. The Union a]ready agreed that that wou.Ld be in the

22 unit. And hÕ¡¡ they have agreed the upholsterer and the

23 assistant Llpholsterer will be. Okay.

24 MR. FRANK: And the uphoÌsterer .is in the building

25 services department. AÌl right, Ìet me ask a question.
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q In what department does the upholsterer work?

3 A Tn bullding services department.

4 MR- FRANK: Is it your preference that I put job

5 descriptions in for these tit.Les or not, ma'am?

6 HEARING OEEICER GOTTLIEB: If you want to put them in. it

7 doesn't reaÌ]y make that much of a difference. It doesn't

I appear that given they are not in dispute that it's that

9 reÌevant. Do you prefer to just put them in?

10 MR. FRANK: For the record, I would like to amend Employer

11 ExhiÌ¡it 1 to include Lhe assistant uphoÌsterer.

1.2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTL]EB: OKay.

13 MR. DORN; No objection.

!4 HEARING OEFTCER GOTTLIEB: Okay. It's amended-

15 MR. ERANK: Can I have this marked as Exhibit 27.

16 (Employer Exhibit 27 marked for identifieation . )

1.7 BY MR. FRANK

18 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you please identify what the reporLer

L9 has marked as Employer Exhibit 27, please?

20 A Sure. Exhibit 21 is a job descript.ion for the grounds

2I person role at the Westchester Div.ision.

22 Q And is the document maintained ln the normal course of

23 business?

24 A Yes. it is.

25 Q What are the generaL duties of the grounds person?
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1 MR. DORN: I'm going to object because the Union agrees

2 that the grounds person shou.ld be included.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,TEB: That's true. The senior

4 grounds person, it says here.

5 MR- FRANK: There are two-

6 HEARING OEEICER GOTTLIEB: There are two? The senior

7 grounds person.

I MR- FRANK: That's correct.

9 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: Do T see a grounds person on

10 this.List?

11 MR. DORN: Yes, grounds person.

L2 HEARING OEFICER GOTTL]EB: WheTe iS it?

13 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: lt's on the left-hand side on the

L4 bottom, towards the bottom.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; Yes, that's correct.

L6 MR. FRANK: That's not a ÌegaÌ position, is it?

L'l HEARING OFFfCER GOTTLIEB: No, T'm saying it's correct

18 that the Union is including this.

19 MR. FRANK: This job titÌe was incÌuded in the maintenance

20 unit in the prior Board case. I mean the Union's posltlon is

2I already inconsistent. Grounds persÕns were incLuded in the

22 ma.intenance unit Ín prior Board certification.

23 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Yeah, all I'm saying glven that

24 the Union has agreed that they should b,e lncluded, you have also

25 agreed that they should be incÌuded, and I don't want to begin
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1 with these persons. I want to begin 'iith the disputed títÌes.
2 This is what I have already said.
3 MR. ERANK: In the Board,s prior determination regarding
4 unit at this facility, the grounds people were included with the

5 mainrena nce unit -

6 MR- DORN: I don't know if that is a fact or not. That,s
7 why T had indicated that the documents relating to that
I proceeding should be made awailable and perhaps made an exhibit
9 in this procêeding -

10 MR. FRANK: Mr. Dorn, you should have prepared for today.
11 MR. DORN: If you had said something before the stat:t of
f2 the hearing, we might have known about it.
13 MR. FRANK: No. your petition was for the maintenance

14 unit.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTT] IEB: AÌf right. Okay, weÌ], let,s
1-6 not get into arguinq- Let's avoid these comments. We can go

I7 back to the grounds person a bit later. Why don't we go onto

18 another topic and go back to the grounds person.

19 MR. FRANK: I don't believe it ìs proper for you to
20 exc.lude evÍdence soleLy on the bas.is of what the Union wants.

2I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It's not sole.lv on what the

22 Union wants. As T stated --
23 MR. ERANK: I think it's relevant to this case.

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: -- that beginning with disputed
25 categories makes more sense for the economy of the record. To
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1 go through titles that are not disputed and then --
2 MR. FRANK: But the Union wants to exclude the maintenance

3 department.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right.

5 MR. FRANK: Or they are plcking and choosing within the

6 maintenance department. That's not proper. In other words,

7 when the Board determined the maintenance unit, the

8 groundskeeper was included in the maintenance unit. Now the

9 Union doesn't want the ma.intenance unit and they said/ oh, we

10 don't want any evidence of that.

11 MR. DORN: As far as we know, the grounds peopÌe are in

L2 the housekeeping department -

13 MR. FRANK: WelÌ, T'll represent to you they are in the

L4 plant opel:ations department, counseÌor. That's lrhy I was

15 offerinq the exhibit which says they exist in the plant

a6 operations department. The problem is I'm not being allowed to

17 put in a record just because Mr. Dorn decides what he wants and

18 doesn't want.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It has nothing to do wjth

20 what --
2I MR. FRANK: He's not accurate in saying the housekeeping

22 department.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: trdell, why don't you just offer

24 this and we'lÌ have this in the record.

25 MR. FRANK: I'm sorry you are so unhappy that I'm trying
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1 to build a record, maram- I really am.

2 MR. DORN: I'm goíng to object to the coÍments made by Mr-

3 Frank.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'm not unhappy with your

5 building a record. I have to agree. We've atready had an

6 agreement that for the economy of the record we would begin with

7 contested titles, that it makes no sense to go through

I non-contested titles. ObviousÌy/ you can go through each

9 contested title and dhow their relationship to the non-contested

10 title. But to begin with massive descriptions of evel:y

11 category, ones that are not even in dispute, makes no sense.

a2 And it's for the economy of the record and that's what it's
13 about. That's what I'm interested in. And that's what I an

A4 he"ê for.

15 MR. FRANK: But the Board previously found a unit
16 including the groundskeeper with the maintenãnce people.

a7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: T undet:stand what you are

18 s aying -

L9 MR. FRANK: And they are currently represented by

20 Local 30, by the way. T mean they are sti.ll in a certified
2l unit -

22 MR- DORN: lf they are currently represented in a

23 certif.ied unit, then why are \,,/e wasting time?

24 MR. FRANK: Because you want to incÌude them .in your

25 bargaining unit.
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1 MR. DORN: No, I don't want to include them-

2 MR. FRANK: You want to incLude the groundskeepers, yes,

3 you do.

4 MR- DORN: If the groundskeepers are currently

5 represented --
6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: You saíd you wanted to inc]ude

7 them.

I MR. DORN: Yes, you sa.id you wanted to include al] of

9 maintenance,

10 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTITEB: lf they are already

11 represented, then holv are they going to be included?

12 MR- DORN: That's why I wanted the informat.ion about that

13 certification.

L4 MR. FRANK: they're in a represented unit.

15 MR. DORN: WelÌ, then T don't see why we have tÕ go

L6 through testimony on people who are already represented.

Li HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Thatrs true.

18 MR. ERANK: Because you filed the petition, sir.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: But you have a.lso stated that

20 it's your position that they shouÌd be in the unit. But. look,

2L let's just go onto another group of employees.

22 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibit 27.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: We'lÌ lust receive it and move

24 on.

25 (Employer ExhibíÈ 27 receiwed into ewidence- )
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q Would you describe the interaction between the

3 groundskeepers and the general service workers --
4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Let's not go into the

5 grounds person. At this point. if you are stating that they're

6 a.Lready represented, then obviousÌy they are not at issue in

7 this hearing.

I MR. FRANK: Yes, they are. Yesf they are.

9 MR. DORN: They are not.

10 MR. FRANK: Therers no contract bar.

11 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: What would be the Union's

12 pos i t.ion if --
13 MR. DORN: If the maintenance workers are already

14 represented/ the Union wouLd take the position that we don't

15 seek them.

16 MR. FRANK: That's not determinative of anything what the

17 Union is seeking.

18 MR. DORN: But lf there is an outstandlng certificatlon,

L9 then I don't think the Union can represent them. And we don't

20 seek to represent them.

21- MR. FRANK: There cou.Ld be an e]ection among al-l

22 nonprofessional employees.

23 MR- DORN: Not if there is an outstanding certification

24 for a specific unit of those employees.

25 MR. FRANK: There's no bar.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. Vüe'1.1 get back to the

2 grounds persons. Let's just go onto a different issue, at this

3 point.

4 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Exhibit 28, please?

5 (Ernployer Exhibit 28 marked for ídentification. )

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q Mr- O'Connor, would you please identify what's been marked

I as Emp.loyer Exh.ibit 28?

9 A Sure. Th.is is a job descriptlon of the senior grounds

10 person roÌe at the Westchester Dlvisíon.

11 Q Is this document maintained in the ordinary course of

L2 bus.ines s ?

L3 A Yes, it is.

L4 Q And does it accurate.ly describe the duties and

15 responsibiÌities of the senior grounds person?

L6 A Yes, it does.

L7 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibit 28.

18 HEARTNG OEFICER GOTTLTEB: T'll just receive it in

L9 evidence. As I said, werre not going to take any testimony on

20 this at this poínt and we'Il get back to th.is lssue, b,ut just

2L adnìit it into the record.

22 (Employer Exhibit 28 receiwed into evidence. )

23 MR. FRANK: May I have an exception to your ruling

24 precÌuding testimony on this subject-

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I haven't ruled. I said I'd
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1 qet back to it.

2 MR. FRANK: Oh, Irm sorry- Can I have this marked as

3 Exhibit 29, please?

4 (Employer Exhibit 29 marked for identification. )

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Mr. O'Connor, wouÌd you please revlew what's been marked

7 as Employer Exhlbit 29.

I A Okay.

9 Q Would you pÌease describe for the record what Employer

10 Exhiblt 29 ts?

11 A ExhibiL 29 ts the job description for the maintenance

12 mechanic posltion ât the tralestchester Division.

13 Q Is the document maintained in the normaL course of

L4 business at the hosÐital?

15 A Yes, it is.

L6 Q And does it accurately describe the job duties of the

L7 ma.intenance me chanic?

18 A Yes.

a9 MR. FRANK: T offer Exhibit 29.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTITEB: Any objection?

2L MR. DORN: Same comment.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Same corunent. It's admltted.

23 (Employer Exhibit 29 receiwed into ewidence.)

24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q Now Ìooking at Exhibit 29t al Number 2, would you describe
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1 where the maintenance mechanic works in unclogging dralns,

2 sinks, toilets, etc., in regard to the patient care areas?

3 A Sure.

4 MR. DORN: I'm going to object to the question. This is

5 another cfassification that is a maintenance unit

6 cLassification. And I think we shoufd clarify the status of the

7 ma.intenance unit before we have testimony in this proceeding on

I that cfassification, those c.Iass.if ications.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: The Union is no Ìonger seeking

10 the maintenance workers.

11 MR. FRANK: The hospital believes these workers should be

L2 voters and included in the bargaining unit. The hospitat

13 believes all of the employees on Employer Exhibit 1 should be

14 aÌlowed to vote in th.is efectlon and that is the only

15 appropriate unit.

L6 MR. DORN: This is another c.lassification which is

a7 apparent.Ly stil] under a prior certif.ication of the Board. So

18 until I say we get cÌarification as to the status of the

19 maintenance workers, I don't think we should waste time going

20 forward on this record.

21 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I wou.ld agr:ee with that.

22 Let us go off the record-

23 (Whereupon. aE L2:24 p.m., a recess was taken. )

24
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L AETERNOON SESSION

2 (Time Noted: 1:39 p.m.)

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

4 Whlle we were off the record, I have handed the part.ies

5 some documents, a certification of representatlve between the

6 EmpÌoyer and LocaÌ 30 showinq that there is a coÌÌective
7 bargaining reÌatlonship between the Employer and certain

I categor.ies of employees. This had been raised by the Emptoyer

9 prevÍously and we now hawe some documents regarding this matter.

10 I'd like to have everyone's position with respect to this
11 matter. Mr. Dorn, do you trant to begin?

A2 MR. DORN: AÌl right. WelÌ, first, I think this shou.ld be

13 an exhibit in thls proceeding. T don't care if it's a Board

!4 exhibit or a Union exhibit, but .it should be made an exhibir.
15 And these documents indicate that there was a stipulated
L6 eÌection agreement in JuLy of 2000 between thìs Employel: and the

L7 lnternational Uníon of Operating Engineers/ l,ocal 30. The

18 stipulation was signed by Mr. Frank on behalf of the Employer.

L9 The Union nas certified on October 6, 2000, ìn a unlt of all
20 fuÌl-time and regular part-time opel:at.ing engineers, maintenance

2L mechanìcs, pfant sel:vices senior mechanics, plant services

22 mechanlcs, plant services senior tradesmen, plant services

23 tradesmen, senior grounds people, grounds people, generaL

24 services workers, and steamfitters employed by the Employer at

25 its facility located at White Plains, New Yol:k.
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1 Thereafter, the Employer fifed an RM petition in a letter

2 dated March 23, 2003- The Reglon, based on the fact that the

3 union had filed unfair Ìabor practices, stated that inasmuch as

4 the Region has determined that the Empf oyer: failed to bargain in

5 good faith, the Region concluded that no valid question

6 concerning representation existed. At that tlme, the Employer

7 filed a request for review dated June 8, sorry, in an order

8 dated June 8, 2404, and the Board granted the request. And in a

9 decision on review and order dated Eellr:uary 22, 2AQ1 --

10 MR. FRANK: You asked hím for a position. He's reading

11 the documents that T think are going to go into evldence.

L2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: f 'Ìf all-ow it. It's leading

13 up.

L4 MR- DORN: I think the record should r:eflect what the

15 documents say.

16 MR. FRANK: cenerally, the reader of the record looks at

)-7 exhibits, Mr. Dorn.

18 MR. DORN: Tf you don't want me to read it, I won't read

L9 it. It's up to you- I thought it would be helpful to read it.

20 fn any event, in thÍs decision and order, February 22, 2001 , tlne

2r Board affirmed the regional director's dismissal of the

22 petltion. The Union's position is in light of this document,

23 the maintenance employees in question are stiÌl represented by

24 another union and 1199, in this proceeding, is not seeking to

25 represent them.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. So you are not seeking I

2 to represent any of the titles that are listed in that

3 certif .icate of representative.

4 MR. DORN: That's correct.

5 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Mr. Frank, do you have

6 any comment?

7 MR. FRANK: One. Has the Region contacted T,ocal 30 about

I appearinq in this case?

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: No, we have not.

10 MR. FRANK: At the stal:t of this hearing, I did raise that

11 issue. And I believe Board procedure does require that they be

L2 asked if they want to intervene. And I think it's reversible

13 error for the Region not to even ask them if they want to

L4 intervene in this proceeding-

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right- :

L6 MR- FRANK: We did br.ought .it to everybody attention at

L7 the first day Õf hearing.

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: As T said, if the Region

19 determined it was necessary to do so, it will do so. At this

20 point --
2I MR. FRANK: But let the recol:d reflect that the Region

22 didn't, so we don't know what Local 30's position is-

23 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB: At this point, the Union isn't

24 seeking these employees. They are not at issue now.

25 MR. FRANK: But the Employer --
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1 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Excuse me. I am talking now

2 and T am going to state what I have to state, if you would

3 permit that, please.

4 MR- FRANK: My apologies.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: At this point, we have tracked

6 down the file- Tt shows that this group of empÌoyees that are

7 contained ín the certificate of representative are represented

I by locaÌ 30. The Union is not seeking to represent them.

9 Therefore, it does not appear at this polnt we need any

10 testimony or that it ís particuÌarly reÌevant. They are

11 represented by another union. The Union doesn,t seek to
t2 represent them. And I think that is it.
13 MR. FRANK: May I be heard now?

L4 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Certainly.
15 MR. FRANK: The Empfoyer believes that aÌÌ of the

L6 employees shoufd be included ín the voting unit and that there

L7 is no coÌÌective bargaining agreement so there ls no bar to a

18 representation petition and these employees voting at this time.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Okay. WeÌf, if you would like
20 you can make an offer of proof.

21- MR. FRANK: I will make an offer of proof that there is no

22 collectlve bargaining agreement between the hospital and Local

23 30 of the Operating Engineers cowering any of these employees.

24 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. I'm still going to

25 maintain my position that ultimately we are not qoing to have
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1 any testimony regarding these categoríes of emp.Loyees who are

2 not at issue now.

3 MR. FRANK: May I request speciaL permission. They are at

4 issue because the Employer is saying they should be allowed to

5 vote in the eÌection. Are yotl determinlng that under no

6 circumstances these employees can be alfowed to vote and you

7 don't want any record?

I HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, I am determininq that I

9 don't think the evidence is necessary. And I toÌd you that you

10 can make an offer of proof.

11 MR. FRANK: Requesting special permission to appeal.

L2 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Do you Ìvant to contlnue

13 with this witness, pLease?

L4 MR. FRANK: Now is the Union dropping its request to

15 inc.lude the grounds people in this unil-? They wanted that tltle

L6 in the unit.

a7 MR. DORN: We didn't know at the time that Local 30 was

18 a.Lr:eady representing them.

19 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, they stated their

20 posit.ion on the record. So that's cfear. Okay.

2L MR. FRANK: So they are withdrawing that.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Yes. They have already saÍd

23 that.

24 MR. FRANK: And they are withdrawing on the seníor grounds

25 pers ons ?
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1 MR. DORN: Yes .

2 UNIDENTIFTED SPEAKER: Af] t-itÌes __

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: All titles that are there,

4 okay. It's cf ear:. Let's go.

5 MR. FRANK: I woufd also make a second offer of proof that

6 l,ocal 30 has abandoned representation of the empLoyees in the

7 certified unit and that they have not asked for bargaining or

I sough to represent the emp.Loyees during the ]ast year.

9 MR. DORN: I don't think that's a proper offer of proof.

10 MR. FRANK: What's not proper about that as an offer of

11 proof, so I can correct whatever deficlency you th.ink there is?

L2 MR. DORN: Well, Mr. Frank, T'm aLways glad to give you

13 lessons. But I don't think that's appropriate at this time.

a4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Let us --
15 MR. FRANK: Ts the offer of proof accepted then?

L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Accept your offer of proof.

17 BY MR. FRANK:

18 Q Mr. O'Connor, when the drapery maker is not fuLly engaged,

f9 does she have any alternate dut.ies?

20 A Yes, she does.

2L Q l¡lou.ld you describe those, please -- one second before you

22 do that.

23 MR- FRANK: Can we put in the record the Board exhibit?

24 Since Mr. Dorn read it inaccurately, I think lt shouÌd qo into

25 the recorcl ês a Roarci exhibit-
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, he did say he wanted -- you

2 cou.Ld do it as a UnÍon exhibit.

3 MR. DORN: AlÌ right. I'd ask that it be admitted as

4 Union Exhibit 1.

5 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: He did.
6 MR. FRANK: Shalf we cafl it Union Exhibit 1?

7 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: YeS.

I (Union Exhibit 1 marked for ídentification. )

9 MR. FRANK: So T understand, Union Exhibit I .is the

10 stipuLated efection agreement; the certification of
11 representative daled Octo]ler 6t 2000; a letter from the Board

!2 dated March 13, 2043, addressed to me and signed by a Celeste J-

13 Matina, Regional Director; there is a decision, and review, and

L4 order dated February 22, 2001 ; and there is an order of the NLRB

15 dated June 8, 2AA4.

L6 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: CorTect.

L7 MR. FRANK: That's going to be Union 1?

18 MR. DORN: That's correct.

L9 (Union Exhibit 1 receiwed into ewidence. )

20 MR. FRANK: I wÕuÌd ask the hearing officer if the

2I complete file from these cases couÌd be made avaifable to the

22 part.ies.

23 HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTLIEB: T donrt know why that rvould be

24 necessary, leaving our complete files open. But f ,ve heard your

25 request.
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1 MR. ERANK: For the record, I think it is Ímproper for you

2 to glve Mr. Dorn selected exhib'its from the fife and not make

3 the entire fife available to the Emptoyer.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: First of alÌ, the entire file

5 is avaifabÌe to you. It was your case and you were the attorney

6 on th.is matter- You raìsed an issue the day of the hearing

7 which you had not prev.iously raised- You didn't follow-up and

8 give us any information. It's a reÌevant thing. So per the

9 information you gave me, I checked the file and found

10 information. Itrs as simple as that. You raised the issue but

11 you didn't br:ing any documents/ so f had to get them. And let's

12 move on with the testimony.

13 MR. FRANK: And is it stipulated that the Region has not

1,4 contacted LocaÌ 30?

15 HEARING OEFICER GOTTI,IEB: lrm not stipuÌating anything.

1,6 I'm not here to participate in stipulations- I'm requesting

l7 that you go on with the witness.

18 BY MR. FRANK:

f9 Q Would you descrlbe the other duties that the drapery maker

20 performs rnrhen not making draperies?

2a A The drapery maker is also responsib.Le for l:Ltnning the

22 1n-house photocopy center that's located in the basement next to

23 the building serv.ices department.

24 Q And what classificatiÕn of empÌoyee otherwise performs

25 photocopying responsibilities?
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1 A Staff assistants, unit clerks, office ass.istants,

2 evaLuation center clerks. administrative assistants,

3 administratlwe cLerks, also board staff positions within the

4 hospital wouÌd be responsible for photocopying e.ither on their

5 department, in their unit or for Ìarqe copy projects through the

6 copy center that the drapery maker works in.

7 Q And where is the photo copy center located?

I A Tt's in the basement ÌeveÌ, next to the buildinq services

9 department- If you were lookinq at the front of the hospitaÌ,

10 the center building being direct.ly in the middle, it r,vould be to

11 the right. So that would be on the north side of the hospital.

L2 Q vühat does the X-ray technician do?

13 A The X-ray technician ls responslble for routine X-ray

14 imaginq within the hospitaL. The individual woufd be

15 responsible for develop.ing f.ilm that would }ater be sent out for

L6 rewiew and diaqnostic comment by a professiona.L in a different

17 hospital .

18 Q So the X-rays are sent to another hospitaÌ?

19 A Yes. They are sent by contract to White Plains Hospital

20 Center.

2I Q And !,rhat interactions does the X-ray technician have with

22 patlents ?

23 A Almost exclusively this is a patient facing position that

24 would be responsible for preppíng patients for the X-ray

25 servlce, for ensuring that they were ready for the procedure,
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1 and making sure that relevant documents were not only s.igned or

2 obtained by the patient, but that they uÌtimately got filed

3 appropriately with HIM, heaÌth information management, or

4 certa.in documents would be sent back to the unit with the

5 patient. They would routine.Ly work with mentaL heaÌth workers

6 primar.ily because menta.L hea.Lth workers are respons.ible for

7 escorting patients that wouÌd leave any of the locked-in

8 psychiatric units to bring them to the X-ray and EKG suite,

9 which are housed in the same area.

10 Q And where is the X-ray technician's workplace compared to

11 the EEG te chnicians ?

12 A The EEG/EKG techn.ician's office, .it's in the same suite,

13 which is in the X-raylEKG suite and theÍr offices are next door

14 to one another. They are in a common locked area toqether

15 that's not accessibÌe to the generaL public. visitors, or

16 patients- But if you were to enter the X-ray/EKG area of the

17 hospitaÌ, you would have access to mu.Ltip.Le rooms. one is the

18 X-ray location. One is an EKG testing or diagnostic room. And

19 there are two offices in there. one is for the EKG technician

20 and one is for the X-ray technician.

2l Q And how fr:equent.Ly do the EKG technicians and the X-ray

22 technlcians meet with each other and work together?

23 A Quite often because they work in the same generaÌ

24 vicinity. And if patients wouLd be ìn need of - it's not

25 unconmon for patients to need multipLe services. And if it
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1 could be arranged for patients to receive EKG diagnostic testing
2 while they were coming to that area of the hospital for an

3 X-ray, it certainty wouÌd present economic -- to have both
4 individuals perforrn their services on the patient, if necessary.

5 Q When you say they work in the same suite. the X-ray
6 technlcians and the EEG/EKG technicians, how far apart are they?
7 A The doors woufd be next door to one another. so five feet.
8 They would be in the same area.

9 Q And do they have the same worklng hours?

10 A Yes, they do.

11 Q The normal daytime shift?
12 A Gener:ally, it's a Monday to Frlday day shift job. yes.

13 O Are there any differences between the working condítions
f4 of the EEG technicians and the X-ray technicians?
15 A The wor:king conditions would be Lhe same for both jobs.
1-6 (Pause. )

L7 BY MR. FRANK:

18 Q Am I correct you do not have job descriptions like EEG

L9 technicians because that's in the unit?
20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT IEB: yeah, I don't want to begin
2a w i -h rhose tn i ngs.

22 MR. FRANK: Okay. In other words, I have the EEG

23 technician's job descrlption, but I'm not going to identify it
24 and offer it based on your direction that you don't want it.
25 Otherwise, I would.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I mean you can put in the

2 description. What I sald is that I do not want the testimony to
3 begin with the non-disputed categories.

4 MR. FRANK: I believe EEc is one of the categories the

5 Union woufd fike to include in the unit.

6 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Right. But if you slmply want

7 to put the job description in, you can do that.

I MR. FRANK: But I can't put testimony in? I'm just trying
9 to under:stand what vou want me to do.

10 HEARING OffiCSn GOTTLIEB: What I have earlier stated is
11 that in providing testimony, to beg.in w.ith the categorles of
12 employees that are in dispute, nÕt go into the non-d.isputed.

13 Obviously, you can provide testimony reqarding the relation
14 between the disputed and the non-disputed. So if you want to
15 put that exhibit in, certainly you can do so.

16 MR. FRANK: Thank you. Vihat's the next number?

I7 COURT REPORTER: The next number is 30.

18 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as Employer Exhibit 30,

19 please ?

20 (Employer Exhibit 30 marked for identification . )

2L MR. FRANK: Mr. O'Connor, couÌd you please review !,¡hat the

22 court reporter has marked as Emp.Loyer Exhibit 30?

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: So the focus here would be

24 whatever reLation exists between the X-ray techniclan and the

25 EEG/EKG technician. What I want to just avoid is a Ìengthy
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1 testimony regarding the job duties of a non-disputed category,

2 just to make cfear.

3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you please describe Exhibít 30,

5 p]ease ?

6 A Exhibit 30 is the job description for that of the EEGIEKG

7 technician.

I Q Is that a job descript.ion maintained by the hospital in

9 the norrnaf course of l:usiness?

10 A Yes. it is.

11 Q And does it accurately describe the dutles of the EEG/EKG

L2 technlcian?

13 A Yes, it does.

14 MR. FRANK: I of fer: Employer Exhibit 30.

15 HEÀRING OFFTCER GOTTI-IEB: Same comment?

L6 MR. DORN: Same.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; Okay. It's incLuded.

18 (Employer ExhibiÈ 30 receiwed into evidence. )

19 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q In preparing and describing the reports that are referred

2L to in Paragraphs 4 and 6 of the job description, can you

22 identify which of the employees that the Union seeks to exclude

23 from the unít that the EKG technicians or EEG technicians work

24 w.ith from Emp.Loyer Exhibìt 1?

25 A Sure. They would certa.inly work with the unit clerks in
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1 sharing r.¡hatever statistical reports were being generated- If
2 they were for a serles of patients, for example, that had

3 rece.ived treatment or --
4 Q Let me stop you. T thínk the hearing officer didn't want

5 unit c.Lerks. My question was trying to focus on the job

6 categories that the Union does not want to incÌude 1n the votlng
7 groups -

I A Okay- The EKG technician, T think it is important to
9 point out that this job, the EKc technlcian, would compile

10 primarily reports for the manager of that department- And

11 that's the same manager for the X-ray technician. So they have

L2 a coInmon manager. So the reports that would be qenerated woufd

13 primarily be sent to the famiLy nurse practÍtioner in the

t4 medica.l clinic, which is where patients wouÌd go to receive

15 bÌood work. The phlebotomist would work in that area. But the

1-6 reports wouÌd be primarily sent to the medical cÌinic, but

17 uÌtimately they would become a part of the inpatient medical

18 record; or, if it's an outpatient, the outpatient medical

L9 record.

20 Q And who is the common supervisor or what's the title of
2I the coÍìJnon superwisor for the X-ray technlcian and the EEG

22 te chni cians ?

23 A The conmon supervisor would be the manager of our medicaÌ

24 clinic. which is also known as !^lHS, workforce hea.lth and safety.
25 So if an employee were going fÕr their annual heafth assessment,
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1 they would go to the same Ìocation as a patient would go, if the

2 patient were not feelÍng well.

3 Q What is the HIM processing specialist's job

4 responsibilities ?

5 MR. DORN: Excuse me/ can I interrupt for one second. Are

6 you going to put in the X-ray tech job description? Because you

7 referred to the X-ray tech, but I don't befieve --
I MR. FRANK: I have not at the moment, no.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, we don't have that one.

10 You didn't want to submit that?

11 MR. FRANK: f haven't yet, no- I haven't gotten up to
12 that.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT.IEB: Okay.

L4 MR. FRANK: ide donrt have the upholsterer or the

15 assistant -

16 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. co ahead.

1-7 MR. FRANK: Can the reporter remind me what my last

18 question was? I lost track?

19 COURT REPORTER: The common supervisor.

20 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: You mentioned HIM in the

2L beginning of the question.

22 MR. FRANK: Thank vou.

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q What are the duties and responsibilities of the HIM

25 processing speciallst?
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1 A The HIM processinq specialist wor:ks in the health

2 information management department, which is medica.L records.

3 These individuaLs would be responsible for processing requests

4 for re.Lease of informatíon from an inpatient medical record- lt

5 couÌd be the paper medical chart, could be the electronic

6 medica] record. But the role primarily functions to process

7 requests for information that may be pertaining to court

I appearances that the patients lrould need to make.

9 SeveraL of the patients .in an inpatient psychiatric

10 facility are hospitalized against their will and maybe vrith a

11 famiLy member's consent/ or the consent of the state or other

L2 healthcare provider, so several of our patients would argue that

13 their hospitaÌization is not needed. And when requests for

L4 medicaL information or the med.ical record information would be

15 made to prepare the patient for court appearances that generaÌly

L6 happen on Fr.iday but they can happen any day of the week, that

L7 individual would ensure that the requests are appropriate and

18 that the proper signatures have been obtained, and that the

L9 medical record is released only to those authorized persons that

20 would be ava.ilable to revlew it.

2l Q And who does the HIM processing specialist work with or

22 near ?

23 A The HfM processing speciaList would work very closeLy with

24 a1L of the positions in the heaLth information management

25 office- Aqain, each of those jobs including the abstractor of
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t health informat.ion management, the chart analyst, the medicaf

2 data ana]yst. the HIM data technlcian. they would al1 work

3 together to prepare various components of the medícal record-

4 And they have aÌf been cross-trained to support and cover one

5 another while the other ís on vacation or on an extended ]eave

6 of absence for example.

7 Q And would you describe their interactions with the unit

I c]erks ?

9 A Wel1, the un.it c.lerk wouLd generally be the person or the

10 persons from the warious inpatient departments that woufd work

11 not only with the social work assistant. The social work

L2 assistant conmonly would be the person that would accompany the

13 patients to their court hearings. But they would work very

L4 closely with the HIM team to compiLe the medicaÌ record on

15 behalf of the patient, the court, the social work team that

16 would be accompanying the patient to ensure that it was accurate

L7 and that it was ready to go when the patient was going to court.

18 It cou.Ld be something as simple as they were refusing to
L9 take the medication that the treating psychiatrist had

20 prescribed, or that they feÌt that their hospitaLization was a

2L vioLation of theìr rights and they couÌd feel perhaps that they

22 were being confined against their wilÌ. Depending on what was

23 r:equested by the court or the nature of the patientrs request to

2+ have their case heard, they would prepare various components of

25 that. But the unit clerk would provide that lnformation to the
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1 HIM department and to thÍs job in particular.

2 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as EmpLoyer Exhibit 31,

4 (Employer Exhibit 3L marked for idenÈification. )

5 BY MR. FRÄNK:

6 Q After the reporter has marked the exh.ibit, would you

7 please review it/ Mr. OrConnor?

8 A Sure.

9 Q Would you pfease describe Employer Exhibit 31?

10 A Exhibit 31 is a job description for the HIM processing

11 specialist, health information management processing speciatist
L2 j ob.

13 Q And is thls a record that is routinely maintained by the

14 hospital ?

15 A Yes, it is-

1-6 Q And does it accurately describe the job responsibilities

L7 of the HIM processing specialist?
18 A Yes/ it does.

19 MR. FRANK: T offer Employer 31.

20 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTT],IEB: AdmiIted.

21 (Enployer ExhibiÈ 31 receiwed into evidence. )

22 BY MR. FRANK:

23 Q What does the medicaf records abstractor do with their
24 j ob?

25 A The medicaL record abstractor/ or the HIM abstractor, is
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1 responsible for working directLy on patient requests, physician
2 l:equests. or other mentaL hea.Lth care providers' requests for
3 the re.Lease of information. They would abstract the record.
4 They would summarize on a welf-estabÌished form certain types of
5 information that rnay be requested or that would be requested.

6 It doesnrt have to be for the court appearances that I have

7 previousÌy described, but that cou.Id be one example where the

8 HIM abstractor would work wery closely with the chart analyst on

9 behalf of the unit clerks and those that were preparing the

10 patient for court visit, but physlcians, insurance companies,

11 others would request portions of or the entire medicaf record at
L2 various states of hospitalization or discharge. And the

13 abstractor wouÌd prepare, summarize, abstract various portions
L4 Õf the medicaf record upon request. This individuaÌ has a.Lso

15 been cross-traìned to support the chart analyst rofe.
16 Q WouÌd you descrlbe the cross tralning, p]ease?

L7 A Sure. The chart analyst is prirnarily responsible for
18 going to each of the inpatlent units to get the paper documents

L9 or the evaluatlon center that were not or are not yet a part of
20 the efectronìc medicaÌ record. And the abstractor has been

2L cross trained so that he or she would be abÌe to actually go to
22 the units, come into contact with patients, work with staff on

23 the units while obtaining the paper documents, the re.leases,

24 medication information, bill of rights, anything where the

25 patients would have signed a hard copy.

BURKE COTIRT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme , New ,fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692- O66O



384

1 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as EmpLoyer Exhibit 32,

2 please ?

3 (Enployer ExhibiÈ 32 marked for identification. )

4 BY MR. FRANK:

5 Q Wou]d you please review EmpÌoyer Exhibit 32 for a moment,

6 Mr. O'Connor?

7 A Sure. Okay.

I Q Woufd you please identify Exhlblt 32?

9 A Exhibit 32 is a job description for the medical record

10 abstractor or the HIM abstractor job function at the lfestchester

11 Division.

12 Q Is that the title that's referred to on the list as

13 abstractor, health .information management?

a4 A Yes- It's the same job titÌe.

15 Q And is this a document that is routinely kept at the

a6 Westchester Divi s ion?

a7 A Yes, it is.

18 Q And does it accurately describe the duties and

J-9 responsibilities of the position?

20 A les, ic does.

2L MR. FRANK: I offer EmpÌÕyer 32.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Same comment? Admitted-

23 (Employer Exhibit 32 receiwed into evidence. )

24 BY MR. FR-ANK :

25 Q Now where does the altrstractor work .locationally?
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1 A They work in the basement, in the HIM department or the

2 medical records department. Those terms are used

3 inte rchanqe abl y . But it woufd be in the south section of the

4 basement- And it wouLd be in the rear of the bu.ilding.

5 Q ln the main hospltal building?

6 A In the main hospitaL building. And it wou.Ld be directly

7 underneath on the map 7-South.

I Q And do the abstractors have the same terms and conditions

9 of employment as alÌ the other empÌoyees we've been talking

10 about here?

11 A Yes, they do.

L2 Q Same lunch hours/ meaL breaks/ entitlement as everybody

13 else?

L4 A Same access to meal breaks, but the times would vary.

15 Q Where do they eat lunch, same location?

L6 A Yes, in the cafeteria.

L7 Q What do the data technicians do?

18 A The data technicians are again an essentia.l component of

19 the health information management department. HTM. They would

20 be responsible for entering data into various medicaÌ databases.

2L Accuracy is a very important compÕnent of their job similar to

22 all other job funct.ions in the nonprofessional grouping that we

23 are discussing. But they wouÌd be responsible for entering that

24 data into varlous databases that would .interface with various

25 computer systems such as Ecllpsys XA, which is the inpatient
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1 medical record; Eagle, which woufd be the frontend registration
2 and afso discharge and bed tracking database.

3 Q And where do they get this data from? From what other
4 employees do they get their data from?

5 A They would get this data primarily from the units if it's
6 an ínpatient. It would come from the unit cferk. It coutd be

7 sent routinefy through interoffice mail, which would go throuqh

I the mailroom, if it were something that was non-emergent. They

9 would interact and work very closely with the social work

10 assistants if they needed to update the medicaf record just
11 prior to discharge of a patient or post discharge of patient to
12 ensure that the eÌectronic medicaL record were complete and

13 accurate- They wouLd work with the evafuatlon center cferk to
14 ensure that aLl of the admission paperwork, all of the waivers.
15 releases, bifl of rights, etc., wouÌd be added into the med.icaÌ

L6 record. They would routinely work with those jobs.

17 Q l¡lhen you mentioned that they work wìth the evaluation
18 center clerk, is that face to face?

19 A Yes.

20 Q And do they share the same coInmon conditions as everybody

2A else that we have been talking about?

22 A Yes.

23 MR. FRANK: Can I have thìs marked as EmpLoyer Exhibit 33,

24 please?

25 (Employer Exhibit 33 marked for identificaÈion . )

BTIRKE COURT REPORTTNG, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Inlalme, Ner,í .fersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692 - O660



387

1 BY MR. FRANK;

2 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you pfease review what's b,een marked

3 as Emp.Loyer Exhibit 33?

4 A Okay.

5 Q WouLd you please describe for the record what Employer

6 Exhibit 33 cons titutes ?

7 A Exhibit 33 is a job description for the data technician in

I the health information management department.

9 Q Is it kept in the normal course of business at the

10 hospital ?

11 A Yes, it is.

12 Q DÕes it accurateÌy sumrnarize the job duties and

13 responsibilities of the data technician?

L4 A Yes.

15 MR. FRANK: I offer Employer 33.

L6 HEARÌNG OFFTCER GOTTT,TEB: It's admitted.

L7 (EmpJ.oyer Exhibit 33 receiwed inÈo ewidence.)

18 BY MR. FRANK:

L9 Q Does the data technician have the same benefits and

20 entitlements as aÌL the other employees that we have discussed?

2L MR. DORN: I'm going to object. We have gone through

22 that.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Asked and answered more than

24 once. We a.lready have on the record that they have the same

25 benef.its.
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q And do they have the same hours and working conditions as

3 the other employees in the unit?

4 A GeneraLly/ yes, in that department, yes, amongst day shift

5 empÌoyees -

6 (Pause. )

7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q What do the data spec.ialists do?

9 A The data specia.Lists work in the HIM, health information

10 management department as welÌ. They can input data as weff.

11 But one of the primary responsibilities of the job would be to

L2 ensure that data is accurate. They would review medical record

13 .informat.ion that had been entered prior to ensure that it was

A4 accurate. It's very important in a behavioral health setting.

15 A number of the other jobs within t.he HIM department, for

16 example/ would rely on the patient identif.ication number, which

L7 is a unique identification numJ:er that would be generated in

l-8 part at the time that the patient is registered by the patient

19 finance department, or the EC clerk, or the access services

20 l:epresentative, if they were coverlng for the evaluation center

2L clerk. That unìque patient identification number would then tie

22 to a unique medical record number to ensure that the right

23 patient is receiving the right treatment, care, serwices, and

24 u.Itimately the right charges are bilÌed for the serwices that

25 woul d be provided.
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1 MR- FRANK: Can I have this marked as Employer Exhibit 34?

2 (Employer Exhibit 34 marked for id.entif ication. )

3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q !üould you please revlew Exhibit 34? pfease describe
5 Empfoyer Exhibit 34.

6 A Exhlbit 34 is a job description for the data specialist
7 job in the health information management department, health
I information management department, at the ù/estchesteï Dlvision.
9 Q And is it kept in the normal cÕurse of business at the

10 hospital ?

11 A yes. it is.
L2 Q And does it accurately describe the duties and

13 responslbilities of the data speciaÌist?
L4 A Yes. It appears to.
15 MR- FRANK; I offer: E-34.

L6 HEARING OFFICER GoTT],IEB: Admitted.
L7 (Employer Exhj_bit 34 received inÈo ewid.ence. )

18 BY MR. FRANK:

L9 Q What does the chart analyst do?

20 A The chart analyst is another member of the heafth
21 information management department. primarily ìt woutd be

22 responsibÌe for ensuring that the paper medicaÌ chart is
23 accurate and that alf of the documents that a patient woufd be

24 asked to sign, that rnouf d not for whatever reason ire abre to be

25 added to the etectronic medical record. Ìt could be a
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1 proceduraÌ waiver and refease. The documents couÌd be the

2 patient's b'111 of ríghls - Many patients request those numerous

3 times throughout their hospitalization. lt could be something

4 as simple as a medication information, but the paper documents

5 that wou]d be obtained.

6 If they, for example, when they come in through the

7 evaluation center were too s.ick or too acute, which is commonÌy

I the case, they may not recaÌl having been given this information

9 before or advised of their rights, so they woufd be offered
10 simiÌar orientation to that information at varlous times

11 throughout their: hospitafization.

12 Q What contact do they have or work do they have on the

13 units with the patients?

L4 A Daily. They are responsible for going to each of the

15 inpatient units and worklng very closely with the unit clerks,
16 primarily. They can certainÌy work with others on the unit-
L7 But they would work with the unit clerk to obtain the patient
18 med.icaL information that is in paper form. Usuatly, it,s
L9 maintained in the chart room, whlch wouÌd be in the middle of
20 the nursing station -- the middLe room .in the nursing station.
2L And if you recall, the unit clerk pl:ovides secretarial or

22 clerical support to the nursing station ol: to the unit that they

23 are assigned to.

24 MR. FRANK: May I have this document marked as Employer

25 ExhÍbit 35?
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1 (Employer Exhibít 35 marked fot identification. )

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q After the reporter has had a chance to mark the exhibits,

4 woufd you p]ease review it?

5 A Sure. Okay.

6 Q Mr. O'Connor, what is Employer Exhibit 35, pLease describe

7 ir.

8 A This .is a job description for the chart anaÌyst in the

t heaÌth .information manaqement department at the tlestchester

10 Division -

11 Q And is this a document that's regularly maintained by the

L2 hospital ?

-1 2 
^ 

Vôô i] i-

a4 Q And does it accurateLy summarize the duties and

15 responsibiLitìes of the chat:t analyst?

16 A It does. I wouLd offer that in the first buÌÌet under

L7 principal duties and responsibiÌities, sìnce the program closure

18 of Bart House (ph.). add.itional- responsìbil ities have b'-oen adcled

L9 to support the inpatient units in the hospital as opposed to an

20 outpatient department.

2)- MR. FRANK: I offer Employer's 35.

22 HEARING OÉFICER GOTTLIEB: Same comment? It's admitted.

23 (Employer Exhibit 35 received into evidence.)

24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q la/hat does a patient account rep do?
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1 A Patient account representative is a very important job in

2 the patient finance department. And the patient account

3 representative would be responsible for a number of things

4 inc.luding working very closely with the EC cÌerk and/or the

5 registrar depending on the individual that registered a patient

6 Ín the eva.Luation center. They would work very close.Ly w.ith the

7 access serwices representatiwes, but essentiaLLy to ensure that

I pat.ients are registered appropriate.

9 And as I have lndicated prior, it's very important for

10 accurate information to be obtaíned at the tíme of registratlon,

11 correct spelling of a name so that the right John Smith received

L2 serv.ices. If that individuaf needed inpatient hospitalization

13 or treatment --
L4 Q I'm sorry. What is their interaction with the EC clerk?

15 A Their interaction with the EC cLerk, the EC cÌerk again is

16 primarily respons.ible for working in the evaluat.ion center to

17 ensure that the pat.ient admission process moves along smoothly

18 and that the EC cLerk would be very important for obtaining

L9 documentation or the pre-hospitaÌization questionnaire for the

20 access services representative team. But the EC clerk would be

2L responsible for passing on information that had been obtained in

22 access services about the patient's insurance. lf they had

23 commercial insurance or if they had Medicare or Medicaid, that

24 information would be passed on- But aLso if the EC clerk or the

25 access services representative who wou.Id be fulfiLLing the ro.le
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1 of the EC cÌerk durinq off shift hours. again evenings, nights,

2 could not deteLmine whether or not a patient in the evaluation

3 center had insurance, that individuaÌ, the EC clerk could pass

4 that lnformation onto the access servlces representative or to

5 the Medicaid counse.Lor to assist a patient in registering for or

6 looking into whether or not various social services or Medícaid

7 insurance wouÌd be avaiÌabLe for them.

8 MR. FRANK; Can I have this marked as Empfoyer Exhib,it 36?

9 (Ernployer Exhibit 36 marked for identification. )

10 BY MR. FRANK:

11 Q Mr. O'Connor, if you wouLd look at Employer 36 for a

L2 moment?

13 A Okay.

7-4 Q what is Employer: Exhibit 36?

15 A Exhibit 36 is a job description for the patient account

L6 repl:esentative from the patient finance department of the

77 ûües rches te r DÍvlsion.

18 Q Is it kept in the normaf course of business at the

L9 hospital ?

20 A Yes, it is.

2l Q Does it accurately describe the duties and

22 responsibilities of the patient account representative?

23 A Yes-

24 MR. FRANK: I offer 36.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Adnìitted.
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1 (Employer Exhibit 36 received into ewidence. )

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q Let me direct your attention to Item 6 on Exhibit 36.

4 What other employees does the patient account representat.ive

5 work with in conducting the discharge interv.iews?

6 A The sociaf work ass.istants would be very involved if the

7 interview is done pre-discharge but in anticipation of a

I discharge. The social work assístants and unit cferks wouÌd be

9 responsible for or wouLd work very closely with the patient

10 account representative. If the interview were takíng place by

11 phone, the social work assistants wouÌd be a vital resource for
L2 providing informatíon as to the aftercare residential contact

13 .information. The patient that needed to have the interview may

a4 not have a cell phone or a prìvate phone, so they would need to

15 coordinate with that department or that function. the sociaÌ
t6 work assistants, as to how to reach the .individua] for the

l7 discharge interview.

18 Q And what is the contact or working reÌationship with the

L9 unlt clerks ?

20 A lf they are attemptinq to hawe a discharge interview

2I pre-discharge but in anticipation of the discharge, the unit

22 clerk would be contacted because patients do not have private

23 telephones on the inpatìent units, so the unit clerk wouÌd be

24 contacted by the patient account representatiwe and wouÌd help

25 coordinate that interface between patient account representative
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1 and the patient.

2 MR. FRANK: I offer 36.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Admitted.

4 BY MR. FRANK:

5 Q t{hat do the Medíca.id counselors do as their primary job?

6 A The Medicaid counsefors are primariÌy engaged in assisting
7 patients who would come into the hospita.l through the evaluation

I center and may not have any type of heaLth lnsurance, whether

9 that be commercial insurance or a government payer provided

10 insurance - The Medlcaid counselor would routineÌy work in the

11 evaluation center during the day shift when that individuaÌ was

!2 working. If the patient were stable enough to have a

13 conversation with the Medicaíd counselor. they wouÌd do so. And

L4 there is actually an office that patient finance maintains in
15 the evaluation center. Tt's just across the hall, but in the

a6 same evaLuation center suite. So the EC clerk would work in the

f7 EC office, there woufd be a main reception area -
18 Q How far apart are they?

19 A Maybe 25 feeL, but it's in the same suite. And there

20 woufd be warious screening rooms to meet with patients

2a privately- But the patient finance department and the Medicaid

22 counselor would meet with patients to attempt to obtain

23 information from them. And oftentimes the Medlcaid counselor is

24 successful in helping them obtain benefits that the patient may

25 not have even known that she or she was eÌigible for-

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Iala)me, New ,fersey 0747O
(973], 692-O660



396

1 Q And do the Medicaid counselors get the same initial

2 training as everybody eÌse does?

3 A Yes, they do-

4 Q And they have the same benefit's?

5 A Yes.

6 Q Work the same hours on day shift?

7 A Correct. But their function, although it would be

I partiaLly covered by the access servíces representatlve

9 off-shift who wouLd be cowering for the evaluatlon center cÌerk

10 off-shift, there would be a high degree of partnership between

11 the EC clerk because something that woufd be left over from say

L2 the night before if a patient did not have insurance but the

13 patient were sick enough or acute enough to be hospitalized in

14 our hospitaL, the EC cÌerk would be left some information from

15 the access services repl:esentative from the shift prlor, the

16 evening shift prior, and the EC cferk would then carry that file

17 forward to the Medicaid counselor for them to process the next

18 business morning.

L9 Q So are they cross trained to help each other do the same

20 work ?

2I A The Medlcaid counseLor is not, but the access services

22 representative who would have been cowering for the evaÌuation

23 center clerk, they would be cross trained. But that information

24 wouÌd be Ìeft by the evening or n.ight access services

25 representative working in the EC capacity. The next business
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1 morning, the evafuatíon center clerk coming into their shift

2 wouÌd have documents that were in need of routlng to the

3 Medicaid counselor so that the Medicaid counse.Lor could then

4 process the.ir appÌication for social security benefits or for

5 government benefits, T should say, the Medicaid. And once that

6 is obtained, they would work with the unit clerk to ensure that

7 that information is added to their record.

8 Q And for the record Medicaid Ís the state system of

9 bene fits ?

10 A Correct, partiaffy funded by the federal government, but

11 it is a state system.

12 Q As distinguished from Medicare.

13 A Correct. Which is primarily for the aged, yes.

L4 MR. ERANK: Can I have this marked as Exhibit 37?

15 (Employer Exhibit 37 marked for identification . )

L6 BY MR. FRANK:

L7 Q Mr. OrConnor, would you please ídentify Employer Exhibit

18 A 37 after you have had a chance to review it?

19 Q Okay.

20 Q Pfease identify what's k¡een marked as Employer Exhibit 37.

2I A Exhibit 37 .is a job description for the Medicaid counselor

22 at the Westchester: Division.

23 Q And is it kept by the hospitaÌ in the norma.L course of

24 bus ines s ?

25 A Yes, it is.
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1 Q And does lt accuratefy describe the duties and

2 responsibilities of the MedÍcaid counseÌor?

3 A Yes, it does.

4 Q And does the Med.icaid counselor work in the same area ds

5 the other peopfe we have been talklng about and under the same

6 ter:ms and conditions of employment?

7 A Yes.

I MR. FRANK: I offer 37.

9 HEARING OEF]CER GOTTLIEB: Adnitted-

10 (Employer Exhibit 37 receiwed into ewidence.)

11 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Off the record.

12 (Ilhereupon. a brief recess was taken.)

13 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

1-4 MR. FRANK: Before the break, we admitted 37?

15 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, we did.
1.6 BY MR . FR,ANK :

L7 Q Mr. O'Connor, what does the patient registrar do at the

18 trdestchestel: Division?

1,9 A The patient registrar is responsible for registering
20 patients generally through the evaluation center, the EC- They

2A would work in the evaluation center, in the office that j s a

22 part of the evaluation center- And if the determination is made

23 after the initial questionnaire and assessment is taken by the

24 access services department to have the patient come to the

25 evaluation center for a more thorough evaluation by a
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1 psychiatrist or a nurse practitioner, part of the registration

2 process or part of the admission process is to register them.

3 The registrar would obtain working very close.Iy with the EC

4 clerk .important information from the patient. Somet.imes that

5 can be very chaÌlenqing in a psychiatric setting where a

6 psychiatric patient may be in distress. But they wouÌd work

7 very closely with the EC clerk and others in the ewaLuation

8 center to obtâin accurate information as to the spelÌing of the

9 patient's name and to make sure that they are assigning a unique

10 patient .identification number to that patient. And if the

11 patient has had prior hospitalizations, that .inf ormation would

f2 have been obtained by the EC clerk working with the access

13 services representative so they coufd reassign and contínue to
L4 build upon the medical record that was already established.

15 Q Vühere does the patient regìstrar work physically?

16 A They can work in two areas. But generally when patients

L7 are coming into the hospital, they are working in the eva.luation

18 center. But there is another portion of the hospitaÌ. They

f9 can't aÌÌ, there are multiple registrars. They would work just

20 outside of the ewaÌuation center beyond the locked door. And

2l there is another work location where the representatives, next

22 door to the Medlcaid counselor for example, next door to access

23 services, but if there are no inpatients, that's where they

24 would spend more of their time.

25 Q And what is their workinq retationship with the HIM
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1 department?

2 A The relationship between the two is very important and

3 they work very closely together. All of the paper documents

4 that would be obtained in the evaluation center. you have to

5 keep in mind this is a very, the medical record for a

6 psychiatrlc patient is a very large document and many people

7 throughout the hospitaL are invofved in obtaining different

8 signatures or orienting the patient to different portions ot

9 what wiÌl eventually become a part of that medical chart. So

10 any of the documentatlon that a physician wouÌd not be able to
11 enter into the Eclipsys XA system. the medica.L record, those

L2 paper documents/ the registrar would hand off through the

13 evaluation center cLerk to the HIM department or if the EC clerk
14 lvere not able to do so. any of the paper documents that would

15 need to be scanned and added to the electronic medicâl record.

16 So they couÌd work directly with the HTM staff.

L7 Q And do the patíent l:egistrars get the same orientation and

18 tralning as the other categories we have talked about?

a9 A Yes, they do.

20 Q And do they have the same working conditions as the other

2L people we have taLked about?

22 A Yes.

23 MR. FRANK; May I have this next document marked as

24 Employer Exhibit 38?

25 (Employer Exhibit 38 marked for identification. )

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LIJC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, New .f ersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692 - O660



401,

1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q Mr. O'Connor. ìf you woufd review the document after the

3 reporter has had a chance to mark it?

4 A Thank you. Okay.

5 Q Would you describe EmpÌoyer Exhibit 38, please?

6 A Exhibit 38 is a job description for the pat.ient registrar

7 job title or job descríptíon of the Westchester Divísion.
I Q Is it kept in the normal course of business?

o n w^o ì+ io

10 Q And does it accul:ate.ly describe the principal duties and

11 responsibilities of the patient registrar?

12 A Yes, it does.

13 MR. FRANK: I offer Employer 38.

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Admi-tted.

15 (Employer Exhibit 38 received into ewidence. )

16 BY MR. FRÄNK:

17 Q What does the administrative clerk do?

18 A The administrative cferk is a generaÌ cÌerical support

A9 staff position that would support the various departments that
20 they would be assigned to. But their roLe and responsibility

2f would be simiÌar to that of the offìce assístant or staff
22 assistant. They wou.Ìd be responsibÌe for answering Lelephones,

23 maintaining department files simifat: to the unit cÌerk on any of
24 the inpatient units. They are responsible for faxing documents.

25 They would be responsibLe for worklng on various data input into
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1 varlous hospital computer systems for large printing collating

2 projects that they wouLd work very closeÌy wíth the drapery

3 maker, for example, who would run or work in our copy center in

4 the hospitaÌ. But primarily they are a clerical or secretariaÌ

5 support position.

6 Q And would you describe their Ínteraction with the unit

7 cÌerks ?

8 A If they needed to obtain any information about any of the

9 inpatients on that part.icu.Lar unit, they wouÌd regularly make

10 phone calls to the unit clerk or to the nursing station and

11 request whatever information they were seeking to obtain for

12 their department or department head, whoever they were

13 requesting it on behaÌf of.

14 MR. FRANK: May f have this document marked as Employer

1s Exhlbit 39?

16 (Employer Exhibit 39 marked for identification - )

L7 BY MR. FRANK:

18 Q Mr. O'Connor, the reporter has handed you Emp]oyer Exhibit

L9 39. Would you p.lease review it?

20 A Okay.

2L Q Whal- is Employer Exhiblt 39?

22 A Exhibit 39 is a job description for the administratíve

23 cLerk roLe at the ù/estchester Division.

24 Q Is it kept in the normaL course of business at the

25 hospital ?
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1 A Yes. it is.

2 Q And does it accurately describe the duties and

3 responsibilities of the administrative c.Lerk?

4 A Yes, it does.

5 MR. FRANK: I offer EmpLoyer 39.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Admitted-

7 (Employer Exhibit 39 received j-nto evidence. )

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q What does the anafyst medical data do?

10 A That job is responsible for a number of clericaL or

11 adminlstrative support responsibilities. But additlonalÌy it

!2 would be respons.ib]e for coding the medical record in the health

13 information management department so working in partnership with

L4 a number of different jobs and departments wìthin the hospital-

15 It would ensure that the medica] record is accurate from a

1-6 qua.lity assurance standpoint so that as this individual wouLd

17 use the DSM-4, the diagnostic statistic manuaL, which is the

18 equivalent to the Bible 1n psychiatry. They would use that to

19 properly code any of the treatments or procedures that a patient

20 would have received that would have been updated at any point

2l during the patient's hospitaLization so that it can properLy be

22 submitted for billing or l:eimbursement. So any tests or any

23 services that wouLd be performed from the very onset of a

24 hospitaLization including in the evaluation center, for example.

25 would need to be coded appropriately so that the appropl:iate
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1 code or diagnostic code could be assigned to it-

2 Q And what categories of ernployees does the medical data

3 analyst work wlth in the bargalning unit?
4 A Staff assistants, unit cferks, office ass.istants, social

5 work assistants, the EC clerk.

6 Q Ìúould you describe for example the working relationship
7 with the EC cferk?

B A At the time of the patient's admission, a significant

9 amount of information would be obìtained. Much of that would be

10 coded ínto the EcÌipsys XA system. Some of it would not be abÌe

11 to be coded electronically. So this individual wouÌd work very

12 closely with some of the other individuaÌs in the HIM

13 department, chart anaLysts and others, to ensure that the

a4 medica.L record was accurate, if there was something on paper to
15 ensure that there was no transposition, changing one number by

L6 m.istake, so that the appropriate diagnostic code cou.Id be

a7 assigned to it-

18 Q Can you describe the interaction if any with the EEG/EKG

19 cler k?

20 A Well, the EKG tech, that individuaÌ --
2)- Q Excuse me, I meant the EEG (sic) tech. yes.

22 A Tf a quest.ion were needed or lf a question needed to be

23 answered about the procedure, if something were missing for

24 exampLe, although the nedicaL record would l:e accurate through

25 the medical cl1nic, if there were an important piece of
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f .information that for whatever reason v¡as not obtained, a paper

2 waiver, or re.Iease, or consent form was not sent from the EKG

3 technician to the medical clinic and uftimately made its way to

4 the HTM department/ then this individual could pick up the

5 phone/ couÌd walk over to the EKG tech. They are on the same

6 side of the hospital. They are onLy t\,,¡o ffoors apart. You

7 cou]d walk between those two areas for example in Ìess than a

I minute. and couLd obtain that document, if it were missing. But

9 prìmariLy the accuracy piece is what they would work together

10 on.

11 Q The medical data analyst, what is their working

L2 relationship with the unit clerks?

13 A Very simi.lar to that of the EKG tech or the X-ray

L4 technician. They work with the unit clerk to ensure that thêv

15 are properly coding any procedures that wouÌd have been

L6 performed on the inpatient unit.

L7 MR. ERANK: I offer Exhibit 40.

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTT],]EB: AdmitIed.

L9 MR. DORN: I don't think I have it.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: After I said that, I'm looking.

2L MR. FRANK: I'm sorry?

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, I don't have it, either.

23 MR. FRANK: I'm sorry. Letrs back up a second. It's been

24 a long day.

25 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: That's trìre.
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1 (Employer Exhibit 40 marked for identification. )

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q Mr. O'Connor, I'm showing you now what's been marked as

4 Emp]oyer Exhibit 40. Can you identify the document, please?

5 A Exhibit 40 is a job description for the medical data

6 anaÌyst at the Westchester Division.

7 Q ls it kept in the normal course of business at the

I hospital ?

o 
^ 

v^c i+ ìô

10 Q And does it accurately describe the principaf duties and

11 responsibilities of the medical data anafyst?

L2 A Yes, it does.

13 MR. FRANK: I now re-offer Exhibit 40.

14 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI.TEB: ]tIS admitted.

15 (Employer Exhibit 40 receiwed into evidence. )

!6 MR. FRANK: The next one f have is the ph.Lebotomist.

L7 That's a title the Union seeks to include. Is that one you do

18 not want to spend time on? Phlebotomist belongs in the

L9 bargaininq unit.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. I am just looking at my

2r llst_.

22 MR. DORN: It's on the left.

23 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Oh, I see it- Yeah. Let's not

24 start with that because that job cÌassification is not in

2\ al r sl)ille -
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1 MR. FRANK: I wouÌd offer that it has colÌìmon terms and

2 conditions wíth all the other titÌes that are Ín dispute.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Well, you could always begin

4 with a disputed tit.Le and show whatever reÌation it has to the

5 phfebotomist.

6 MR. ERANK: T woufd offer the job description.

7 HEARING OEEICER GOTTT,IEB: If you want to put in the job

8 description, that's fine.

9 MR- FRANK: Thatrs fine? Okay-

10 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yes.

11 MR. FRANK: Can f have this marked as Employer Exhibit 41.

12 (Employer Exhibit 41 marked fot identificatíon . )

13 MR. ERANK: And the reason I do that is the phÌebotomists

14 and the LPNs, in our view, are not dissimilar kinds of jobs.

15 BY MR. FRANK:

16 Q Mr.. OrConnor, the court reporter has handed you whatrs

L7 been marked as EmpÌoyer Exhibit 41.

18 A Yes.

19 Q WouÌd you p.Lease review it?

20 A Okay.

2I Q What is Exhibit 41?

22 A Exhibit 41 is a job description for the phlebotomist at

23 the Wes L chesrer D.ivision.

24 Q What does a phlebotomist do?

25 A Generally, they are responsibÌe for drawing bfood --
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,ÌEB: I'lL stop you. I don't mind

2 the exhibit going in, but I don't want to get into the whofe

3 testimony about what the phlebotomist does since it,s not a

4 disputed category. If there are disputed classifications that
5 have a reÌation with the phlebotomist. when we go into the

6 disputed ones you can bríng that out.

7 MR. FRANK: I offer 41.

I HEARING OFEICER GOTTT,IEB; That's acceÐted. It's
9 received.

10 (EmI)loyet Exhibit 41 received into ewidence. )

11 MR. FRANK: An offer of proof. I think there is a

12 similarity ln job duties between LpNs at the institution and

13 phÌebotomists. They hawe direct patient care contact - They

14 draw bloods. And they have similar duties in many respects -

15 LPNS are a title that the Union does not want to include. And I
L6 think the offer of pl:oof is that the phfebotomists and the LpNs

17 share a lot of conìmon duties and ought to be in the same unit
18 togethel:.

L9 MR- DORN: T'm going to object again to counsel making

20 argument on the record lnstead of just presentlng whatever

2I testimony is relevant.
22 MR. FRANK: Il/efl/ I asked him what the phtebotomist did
23 and you told me not to do that-
24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: What I've asked, you certainly
25 can draw out any evidence regardinq relations.
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1 MR. FRANK: I asked what the phlebotomists do.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: What I'm asking is this that we

3 begin with the dlsputed job categories. If there is a disputed

4 job category that has a refation to a non-disputed job category,

5 you are certainly welcome to have evidence on it. tr{hat I don't
6 want to do is begin with non-disputed job categories and just go

7 into long testimony about what they do when it's not in dispute -

8 It's a much wiser and quicker way to begin with the disputed and

t have thelr relation to the non-disputed. So I don't want to
10 have long testimony about what the phÌebotomist does.

11 MR. FRANK: Well, the IPN, if I may, is a disputed

12 category.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-IEB: Rioht.

f4 MR. FRANK: ü7e have had some 
j."ti*ony about nhat LPNs do-

15 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Correct-

L6 MR. FRANK: T want to put in testimony to show that the

17 phlebotomists do similar things to the LPNS.

18 MR. DORN: A phÌebotomlst is not licensed as an LPN.

L9 MR- FRANK: Mr. Dorn is testifying?
20 MR. DORN: You put. the job description of the LPN ln
21 already. And that's one of the quatifications, that they have

22 to bre licensed. And everyone knows that an LPN has to be

23 Iicensed.

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: All right. Why don,t you. Mr:.

25 Erank, ask some questions with respect to that- Following on
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1 that relation with the assistant nurse -- I'm sorry-

2 MR. FRANK: l-lcensed pt:acticaÌ nurse.

3 HEARfNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Excuse me, licensed practical

4 nurse. I don't want to just go into them in general, but go

5 ahead.

6 BY MR. FRANK:

7 Q What do phlebotomists do brieffy?
8 A The phfebotomists are responsible for drawing blood

9 samples on the inpatient units and also in the medicaÌ cLinic.
10 Q And what duties do phlebotomists do that t-PNs can also do?

11 A Welf, they would work very closely together. The

L2 phlebotomist would typicalÌy draw the b.Lood, but they would not

13 do so a.Ione. In a psychiatric envlronment, an escort would be

f4 responsible for ensuring that the patient, psychiatr.ic patient
15 may not be dissimilar to you or me, may not like needles, but

16 they may react much more aggressiveÌy. So an LPN for example

L7 would be a typical escort to the area where the phfebotomist was

18 going to perform their blood draws eithel: on the inpatlent unit
19 or if they needed to be escorted to the medical clinic, if there

20 were other issue with the patient. But they wouÌd work very

2L closely- The phlebotomist would never work independently. And

22 when they are on any of the inpatient un.its, the mental health

23 workers, the LPNS would commonly be the escort to the procedure

24 room or the treatment room on any of the inpatient unlts with

25 the patient.
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1 MR. FRANK: 41 was adnltted?

2 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It is nolv if it hasn't been.

3 MR. FRANK: I offer 41.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes.

5 THE WITNESS: Additionallv --
6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, there,s no question.

7 BY MR. FR.ANK :

8 Q Are there add.itionaÌ similarities or relationships bìetween

9 the phfebotomist's and the LPN'S !,/ork?

10 A Yes.

11 Q The T,PN would be responsible for administering medications

L2 to the patients - That would be one of the responsibi.Lities,
13 although the majority of their responsibiÌity, the LpN's

!4 responsibilities would be very similar to that of the mental

15 health worker. The phlebotomist woufd general.Iy be required or

16 requested to come to an inpatient unit by a unit clerk, but they

f7 woufd work wery closely to ensure that a patient did not have a

18 blood sampÌe drawn by the phlebotomist ifl for example, the LpN

19 had just admlnistet:ed a medication that could give a faÌse
20 reading in the laboratory. So there wouLd be a high degree of
2l coordination between when medications were administered. when

22 blood samples v¡ere drawn, and even between the dietary staff as

23 to when the patient last ate, so that there would be accurare

24 critical vafue samples that viere taken.

25 Q What does the data entry techniclan do?
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1 A The data entry technician is primarìLy responsible for

2 entering data into the hospítal's databases, primarily a

3 clerical support position where a significant amount of typinq

4 and data entry would bre required.

5 Q They don't hawe any technical tr:ainj-ng?

6 A No.

7 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as EmpLoyer Exhibit 42.

I (Enployer Exhibit 42 marked for identificaÈion. )

9 BY MR. FRANK:

10 Q After you have had a chance to revlew Exhlbit 42. would

1l you please describe for the record what Exhibit 42 is2

!2 A Emp.Ioyer Exhibit 42 is a job description for the data

13 entry techn.ician job at the Westchester Divisìon.

t4 Q And the qualificatlons for this job are?

15 A A h.igh school graduate or equivaÌent, similar to alÌ of

16 the other support staff. adm.in.istrative assistant, staff
'L7 assistant, unit clerk positions.

18 Q And .is th.is Employer Exhibit 42 kept in the normaL course

L9 of bus ines s ?

20 A Yes, it is-

2I Q And does it accurately describe the principal duties and

22 responsibi.lities of the data entry technician?

23 A Yes.

24 Q And this .is an entry job grade, 01?

25 A Yes, it is.
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1 MR. FRANK: I offer E-42.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: It's accepted, rece.ived-

3 (Ernployer Exhibit 42 receiwed into ewidence. )

4 BY MR. FRANK:

5 Q What is the senior Medicare account rep?

6 A Senior Medicare account rep would primariÌy be respons.ible

7 for ensuring that Medicare documents were accurate so that they

8 could be utiÌized in particular for Part B physician billinq

9 under. Medicare.

10 Q And who does the Medlcare account rep work with?

11 A This individuaf would work very closely with any number of

f2 staff assistants, administrative assistants, unit clerks,
13 wherever Med.icare serwices woufd be provided to patients. They

L4 would work to support any indiwiduaÌ that wouÌd be updating the

15 medical record as to the services that viould be rendered, that

1-6 would otherwise be covered under the Medicare program.

17 MR. FRANK: Can I have the reporter mark Exhibit 43?

18 (Enployer Exhibit 43 marked for identification. )

19 BY MR- FRANK:

20 Q Mr. O'Connor, would you please review what's been marked

2L as Employer Exhibit 43? Would you please describe Exhibit 43?

22 A Exhibit 43 is a job description for the senior Medicare

23 account representative at the Vüestchester Divlsion.

24 Q And is it kept in the norma.l course of business at the

25 hosp ital ?
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1 A Yes, it is.

2 Q And does it accurateÌy describe the generaf duties and

3 responsibifities of the senior Medicare account rep?

4 A Yes, it does-

5 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibit 43.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTT],IEB: Admitted.

7 (Enployer Exhibit re receiwed inÈo evidence- )

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q And does the senior Medicare account t:ep have the same

10 terms and conditions of employment as the other peopfe you have

11 been describing this morning?

L2 A Yes-

13 MR. FRANK: I believe that at thís point I have introduced
a4 the job descriptions of aLl of the disputed titÌes except for
15 operating englneer, pÌant set:vice mechanic, plant service
16 mechanlc HVAC, and patient service senior mechanic, which you

17 have told me not to introduce -

18 MR. DORN: And the X-ray technician-

1-9 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: The titles again that you

20 haven't introduced are what? Could you repeat it a fittle
2A sfower?

22 MR. FRANK: I'lL put that in. Mr. Dorn correctly noted,

23 let me mark as Employer Exhlbit 44 --
24 (Employet Exhibit 44 marked for identification. )

25 BY MR. FRANK:
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1 Q Mr. O'Connor, the court reporter is showing you Exhibit
2 E-44. Please identify the document-

3 A Exhib'it 44 is the job descrlption for the X-ray technician
4 at the tr{estchester Division.

5 Q Is it kept in the normaÌ course of b,usiness?

6 A Yes, it is.

7 Q Does it accurately describe the duties and

I responsibiÌities of the X-ray technician?

9 A Yes, it does.

10 MR. FRANK: I offer E-44.

11 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. It's received.
a2 (Employer Exhibit 44 receiwed into evidence. )

13 MR. FRANK: Can I have this marked as E-45?

1-4 (Employer Exhibit 45 marked for identification - )

15 BY MR. FRANK:

16 Q Mr. Orconnor/ I'm showing you what's been marked as E-45.

L7 Please describe the document.

18 A Exhibit 45 is the job description for the drapery maker at
L9 Lhe Westchest.er D ivision.
20 Q ls Ít kept in the normaf course of business?

2L A Yes, it is.

22 Q And does it accurately describe the dutles and

23 responsibiLities of the drapery maker?

24 Ä Vôê ir 
^^^-

25 MR. FRANK: I offer E-45.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. It's admitted.

2 (Enployer ExhibiÈ 45 receíved into evidence. )

3 MR. FRANK: Can T have this marked as E-46?

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Do you have a group that you

5 could maybe submit them alÌ at one time?

6 (Employer ExhibiÈ 46 marked for identification - )

7 BY MR. FRANK:

B Q Mr. O'Connor, Ìooking at Exhibit E*46, would you please

9 identify the document?

10 A Exhibit 46 is a job description for the uphoÌsterer job at

11 rhe Wesrchester Divis'on.

L2 Q Ts it kept in the normal course of business?

12 
^ 

Vôô i ] i-

a4 Q And does it accurately describe the dutìes and

15 responsibiLities of the position?

L6 A Yes, it does.

L7 MR. FRANK: I offer E-46.

18 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB; It's admitted.

1-9 (Employer Exhibit 46 receiwed inÈo ewidence.)

20 MR. FRANK: I aÌso have job descriptions for four

2'J- additional titles in the maintenance area that the hospital

22 believes shouÌd be included in the bargaining unit that the

23 Union disagrees with. T am prepared to offer them, although yÕu

24 previousLy directed me not to.

25 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLTEB: Okay. tr{hat tlt.les rvere those?
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1 MR. FRANK: That would be operating engineer, patient

2 servíce mechanic, plant service mechanic HVAC, and plant serwice

3 senior mechanic.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Yeah. No. as I previous.Iy

5 stated, I don't thlnk that's relevant.

6 MR. FRANK: I would like to have an exception on the

7 Tecord that these have been rejected.

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Certain.ly.

9 MR. FRANK: Now I also have job descriptions for the

10 foÌlow.ing jobs which the Union wants to incÌude in the unit that

11 I woufd put into the record and again taking your direction not

t2 to do that- They wouÌd be the CASAC/ C-A-S-A-C --
13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: If you have a qroup, you

14 certainLy couLd put the documents in the record. You coufd put

15 any of the classifications here, you can put those documents in.

L6 MR. FRANK: Well, I'd put testimony in with it as well
'L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,TEB: I don't want to have testimony

18 on just classifications that are not in dispute. lengthy

L9 testimony as to what they do. When you have a classification in

20 dispute, if you want to reLate them to any other job

2L cÌassification. that's fine. You are welcome to put those

22 things in the record, but we're not goinq to have lengthy

23 test.imony on what non-dlsputed job categories do.

24 MR- FRANK: For example, I don't know what to do with

25 this. Like the chauffeur drives vehic.Les as do other people
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1 that werve heard testimony on today. T wouÌd put that in to
2 show that the chauffeur's duties and responsibiÌities aïe not

3 different than those who drive other vehj,cf es of the Employer.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: As I said. you are weÌcome to
5 put it in.

6 MR. FRANK: But I would need to put on testimony from this
7 witness that the chauffeur in fact drives vehicles on the
I property and off the property as do otheî people that he has

9 testified to- And I don,t see why the chauffeur should be in
10 the bargaining unit and other people who drive vehicfes should

11 be excluded from the unit. The Union has this notion that we

a2 don't. And I think it wouÌd be appropriate to put that ín and

13 some testlmony about what the chauffeur does to show that he has

A4 a comrnunity of interest with other peopte in the bargainíng
15 unit, incLuding the laundry drive. you know the Ìaundry driver
a6 is lncluded and the chauffeur is in, but we heard the Union

l7 opposes to other people who drive vehicles from being incfuded
18 in the unit. And I don't understand why. I think f'm entitÌed
19 to put in testimony.

20 MR. DORN: T don't know what other tltles counseÌ is
2L referring to.
22 HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTLIEB: When you do the disputed
23 titles, obviously, at that point you can link them or soÌicit
24 testimony regarding their commonallty with other job

25 classifications, certainly. I mean what categories are you
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1 referring to?

2 MR. FRANK: Can I ask the witness a question and let him

3 testify what the categories are?

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: WelÌ, I donrt want to get into

5 lengthy testimony.

6 MR. FRANK: Let me ask a question and .if he objects, you

7 sustain it --
I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, go ahead.

9 BY MR. FRANK:

10 Q Mr- O'Connor, what categories of employees of the hospital

11 drive vehicles besides the chauffeur and the laundry drivers?

a2 MR. DORN: Obj ection.

13 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Basis of your objectj-on?

a4 MR. DORN: First of all, I think it's a question that

15 should have been gone into when we had testimony about alf the

16 dlsputed c.Lassif.ications. I didn't hear any testimony that I

I7 recall about any of those classifications which inc.Luded the lob
18 requirement of driving other than perhaps some people who are .in

L9 the ma.intenance department who are not/ as far as the Union is

20 concerned, in question.

2a MR- FRANK: Mr. Dorn now recogn.izes that there was such

22 testimony about the people in the maintenance department who do

23 similar duties and responsibilities as people in the unit sought

24 by the Union. This is the exact point of this.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Why don't you just answer the
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1 question ?

2 THE WITNESS: Sure. The chauffeur, for example, could

3 work very closely wlth the X-ray tech. The X-ray --
4 MR. DORN: Objection. Objectlon. That is not a

5 Lesponsive answer.

6 THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the question? Irm sorry.

7 MR. FRANK: I agree r^¡e got lost there. Could the reporter

I pÌease read back the quest.ion? I be.lieve the question was to

9 the effect what other tit.Ies of employees drive vehicles ÌÍke

10 the laundry drlwer and the chauffeurs.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, you don't have to -- go

a2 ahead.

13 BY MR. FR-ANK :

a4 Q I don't remember the exact question, but I believe you

15 testified earlier today about some empLoyees driving vehicles.

16 A Yes.

l7 Q Do the chauffeurs dl:ive vehic.les?

18 A Yes/ they do-

L9 Q Is that a category the hospital has, chauffeur?

20 A Yes.

2a Q And is there a category Ìaundry driver?

22 A Yes, Lhere ìs.

23 Q Do they drive vehicles?

24 A Yes-

25 Q Vlhat are the other categories of empÌoyees that drive
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1 vehicles on the property of the hospital?

2 A The Ìocksmith for example. Our maintenance mechan.ics, any

3 of the individuals that wou.Ld be responsibfe for repairing any

4 of the hospital equipment such as HVAC or doing generaL repairs

5 on the inpatient units. But they assist in other ways as well-
6 Q And what klnd of ficense must the chauffeul: have?

7 A I believe they need to have a clean and valid driver's
I license. And depending on -- l,m not sure. I don't recafl.
9 Q The laundry drivers, what kind of license do they have?

10 A They need to have a clean and walid driver's license-
11 Q And would that be the same as the general service workers

!2 as you have described?

13 A Yes.

L4 Q And does the delivery person also drive vehicles?

15 A Yes.

16 Q Which klnd of vehicles does the deÌivery person drive?

L7 A They couÌd drive any vehicle that would requlre a Class B

18 driver's .l.i cense -

L9 Q Now the del.ivery people, do they interact with any of the

20 people in the maintenance department?

2L A Yes/ they do.

22 Q And what is the interactíon --
23 MR. DORN: Obj e ct lon .

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yes.

25 MR. DORN: I'm going to object.
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1 MR. FRANK: May I finish the question first-
2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: You did finish the question.

3 MR. FRANK: Could you describe the working reÌatlonship
4 between the delivery persons and the people 1n the maintenance

5 department ?

6 MR. DORN: I object.
7 HEARING OEEICER GOTTLIEB: yes. I'ff sustain that
I objection. The maintenance people are not in question here-

9 MR. FRANK: Yes/ they are, ma,am. I believe the

10 maintenance peopte should be in the bargain.ing unit or the

11 voting unit. They are in question. Unless you have determined

12 that they are nôt already. I think they,re in issue.

13 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: The Union isn't seeking them

L4 and they are represented by another union that you have a

15 colfectiwe bargaining retatlon wíth. So I don't \,,¡ant to get

L6 into this issue.

L7 MR. FRANK: The Employer beÌieves the maintenance people

18 shou.ld be in the voting unit. I think we are entitled to that
f9 position. Unless you say we are not entitLed to that.
20 HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTLIEB: I've alt:eady stated, made my

2l ruling on that so I'm not going to go into that issue.

22 MR. FRANK: Offer of proof?

23 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLTEB: CertainLy.

24 MR. FRANK: The delivery persons have a reguÌar working

25 relationship with the empÌoyees in the maintenance department,
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2 share duties and responsibilities, and they have daily

3 interchange. May T proceed or is that rejected?

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: No. As I said, I'm not going

5 to take any testimony on thls.

6 MR. FRANK: May I make an offer of proof for the Ìaundry

7 driwer ?

I HEARING OFFTCER GOTTIIEB: Certainly.

9 MR. FRANK: The same offer of proof that the laundry

10 drlver interacts with other empÌoyees in the bargaining unit.

11 They have daily interchange. They have the same terms and

L2 condÍtions of employment- And they also interact with the

13 employees .in the maintenance department. And they should be

a4 included in the bargaining unit.

15 MR. DORN: I don't think that's a proper offer of proof.

1-6 Because when counseÌ says they interact with empÌoyees in the

a7 maintenance department, that is meanlngless, so broad and vague

18 it doesn't convey anything-

f9 MR- FRANK: I am prepared to put on detaiLed testÍmony.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: fn an offer of proof, you wouÌd

2a generally state what the evidence that you would present wouÌd

22 be. That's true.

23 MR. FRANK; I wou.ld present ewidence that the drivers talk

24 with employees in the maintenance department, interact with

25 them. tafk about their vehicles, and have other intel:actlons on
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1 a daiLy basis regarding employment at the Emptoyer's facilities.

2 MR. DORN: T still don't believe that that is a proper

3 offer of proof to show that there is a commonality of interest

4 between the laundry driver and the maintenance employees.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: All right.

6 MR. FRANK: f'd make the same offer of proof regarding the

7 chauffeur. And I would add that the chauffeur drives the same

8 types of vehicÌes as employees in the maintenance department,

9 specificalÌy the generaL service worker and the locksmith, and

10 the other titles that I have not been permitted to put evidence

11 in on-

!2 HEARING OFFICER COTTLIEB: You have presented evidence on

13 the .locksmith.

14 MR. FRANK: Yes/ but T am also referring to the other

15 maintenance tit]es that I have not been permitted to put

16 ewidence in-

17 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okav.

18 MR. ERANK: For the record, tne e^pfoy.t would a,[so

L9 provide the job descriptions of aÌl the other job titles that

20 are incÌuded .in the unit to show their comrnonafity wílh alÌ the

2L job tit.Ies that the Union wants to exclude. Those titles would

22 be the assistant nutrition, cook/ storeroom clerk, coordinator

23 laundry services, concierge, sen.ior hall aide, senior CASAC,

24 buildings service attendant, CASAC, pÌant service senior

25 mechanic, planr service --
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: You can just bring the

2 documents. Do you have the documents now?

3 MR- FRANK: VüeÌl, I have the documents - I can put in the

4 documents without testimony? okay.

5 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: You have a witness here if you

6 want to put the documents in. Do you want to?

7 MR- FRANK: Yes. I'd like to put the documents in. As

I Exhibit 47 --
9 HEARING OFEICER GOTTI-ÏEB: ln terms of economy, why don't.

10 you just bring a]l the documents. number them and have him look

11 at them aLl at one time rather than introducing one after the

12 other.

13 MR. FRANK: Okay. Wou.Ld you mark as Exhlbit 47, the job

L4 description for nutrition assistant?

15 Mark for Number 48, the job description for cook.

L6 E-49 wo.r ld be concìerge.

L7 E-50, senior hall aide.

18 (Employer ExhibiÈ 47 to 50 marked for idenÈificatíon. )

1-9 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q Mr:. o'Connor, looking at Exhibits 41 , 48, 49, and 50.

2I A Yes-

22 Q Are they each kept in the regulal: course of business at

23 the hospit aÌ ?

24 A Yes, they ar:e.

25 Q And does Exhibit 47 accurately describe the duties ani
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1 responsibilities of the nutrition assistant?

2 A Yes, it does.

3 Q Does Exhibit 48 generally describe the dutles and

4 responsibiÌitles of the cook?

5 A Yes.

6 Q Does Exhiblt 49 describe the duties and responsibi.tities
7 of the concierge ?

I A Yes.

9 Q And does Exhibit E-50 describe the duties and

10 responsibilitìes of the senlor half aide?

11 A Yes.

L2 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhibits 41 , 48, 49, and 50.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Same comnent? It's admitted.

a4 (Employer Exhibit 47 Èo 50 received into ewidence.)

15 MR. FRANK: As Exhibit 51, mark the job descl:iption for
a6 coordinator/ laundry serv.ices, Job Grade 5.

1-7 E-52, lob descriptlon for pÌant service mechanlc.

18 E-53, storeroom clerk.
L9 E-54, plant services senior mechan.ic.

20 E-55, credentialed aÌcoholísm and substance abuse

2L counselor, which I think has been referred to as CASAC.

22 E-56, buiÌding services attendant.

23 E-57, senior mechanic HVAC.

24 E-58, ope-aLing eng ineer.

25 And E-59, senior CASAC.

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

trûa)me, Ne\¡, ,fersey 07 4'/ 0
(973) 692- 0660



427

1 (Ernployer Exhibits 5L to 59 marked for identification. )

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q Mr. O'Connor, looking at Exhibits 5I,52,53,54t t5,56,

4 51 ,58, and 59 in front of you. are each of those documents kept

5 in the normal course of business at the hospital?

6 A Yes, they are.

7 Q And does Exhibit 51 accurately describe the duties and

8 responsibifities of the coordinator laundry services?

9 A Yes, it does.

10 Q Does Exhibit 52 accurately describe the duties of the

11 p.Lant service me chanic?

f2 A Yes.

13 Q Does Exhibit 53 accurately describe the duties and

L4 responsibilítìes of the storeroom clerk?

15 A Yes, it does.

16 Q Does Exhibit 54 accurately describe the duties and

!7 responsibllities of the plant servíce senior mechanic?

18 A Yes.

L9 Q Does Exhibit 55 accurately describe the duties and

20 responslbiÌities of the credentialed aÌcoholism and substance

2L abuse counselor (CASAC) ?

22 A Yes, :L does.

23 Q Does Exhibit 56 accur.ateLy describe the job dut.ies and

24 responsibilities of the building services attendant?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q Does Exhibit 57 describe the dutles and responsibilities
2 of the plant service senior mechanic HvAc/refr:igeration?

3 A Yes, it does-

4 Q Does Exhibit 58 accurateÌy describe the duties and

5 responsibilities of the operating engineer?

6 A Yes.

7 Q Does Exhibit 59 accurately describe the duties and

I responsibilitles of the senior credential alcoholism substa¡rce

9 abuse counselor or senlor CASAC?

10 A Yes, Ít does.

11 MR. FRANK: I offer Exhlbit 51 through 59.

L2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Wlth respect to EmpÌoyer 52l

13 which is the pÌant service senlor mechanic; 54, the pLant

14 service mechanic -- excuse me,

15 MR. DORN: I think it's the opposite, 54 is the senior.
L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Oh. excuse me. yes. So it's
L7 52 is the plant service mechanic; 54 is the pÌant servlce senior
18 mechanic,' Empfoyer 57, pÌant service senior mechanic
'L9 HVAC/refrigeration; and Employer Exhibit 58, the operatlng
20 engineer, I am not qoing to admit those into evidence. Those

2L are obviously documents l:eferring to the unlt that,s already

22 represented by Local 30 and really it is not reÌevant tÕ thls
23 proceeding ar a I r

24 MR- FRANK: I wouÌd like thern in a l:ejected exhibit fife
25 then ?
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1 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: CertainLy.

2 MR. DORN: I was just going to ask for a five-minute

3 bl:eak, but I'LL wait.

4 MR. FRANK: So 51 is admitted?

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Correct. the others are.

6 MR. FRANK: 51, 53f 55, 56, and 59 are admitted?

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Correct.

8 (Employer Exhibits 51 , 53, 55, 56, & 59 received into evidence. )

9 MR- FRANK: And 52. 54, 51 , and 58 are in the rejected

10 exh.ibit f i.Le ?

11 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTIIEB: YeS.

L2 MR. FRANK: May T ask the hearing officer why she is --
13 why people ín these four titles can't be aÌlowed to vote in an

L4 e.Iection where there is no contract bar? That's !,¡hat I don't

15 understand. If there was a contract, f would understand the

16 bar -

a7 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: I don't want to go into it-

18 T've all:eady stated the reasons.

!9 MR. DORN: Can we have a f.ive-minute break?

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sure. Off Èhe record.

2L (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

23 MR. FRANK: May I have exception to your ruling on the

24 exhibits ?

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sure.
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q Mr. O'Connor, wou.Ld you describe for the record the work

3 interact.ions betv.Jeen the X-ray technician and the chauffeur,

4 p.Lease ?

5 A Sure. Although the X-ray services wouÌd be rendered on

6 site at the Westchester Division, the X-ray technician would be

7 responsible for obtaining the X-ray and for developing the

I s.Iides of the X-rays, those would need to be transported to the

9 Westchester Medical Center. The Vlestchester Diwision has a

10 contract to provide those services where a radiologist, someone

11 that wouLd be skilled to review those X-rays and to render an

L2 opinion as to what they stated. The chauffeur wouLd be one of

13 the ways in which the deve.Ioped X-ray fi]m wou.Ld be delivered to

L4 the White P.Iains Hosp.ital, which is only a few miLes from our

15 facility.

L6 Q No\,,¡ we have talked about a lot of j obs in here . Vüe put in

L7 59 job categories and 55 are in evidence- Do any of those jobs

18 require college degrees ?

L9 A No. none of these jobs requlre a coLLege degree.

20 Q Do any of these jobs requ.ire professional licenses?

2I A No.

22 MR. DORN: I'm going to object to that. What is a

23 professional Ìicens e ?

24 MR. FRANK: I'lf refrain from making a comment. I would

25 sugqesi- you look at the educational law of the State of New York
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1 that defines them.

2 MR. DORN: Well, that doesnrt def.ine it for the record.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Go ahead. Itrs fine.

4 BY MR. FRANK:

5 Q Are any of the jobs that we've referred to in pay grades

6 above Level 6 or are they alÌ in crades 1 through 6?

7 A A.I1 of these jobs that we have been discussing are within

I the ranges of I{-01 through üi-06.

9 MR. FRANK; I have no ful:ther questions at this time.

10 HEARING OI'FICER GOTTTIEB: Okay. Off the record.

11 (Whereupon, the hearing in Èhe âbove-entitled matter adjourned. )

L2
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1 PROCEEDINGS
2 lTime Noted: L1:39 a.m.)

3 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.
4 This is a resumption in the matter of the New york and

5 Presbyterlan Hospital, 2-RC-23583. Good morning. you are stiÌÌ
6 under oath.

7 (Whereupon,

8 SEDRICK ,J . O ' CONNOR /

9 was recalled as a wltness by and on behalf of the GeneraL

10 Counsel and, after havlng been previously duty sworn/ was

11 examined and testifled as follows: )

12 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Before we proceed, the Union is
13 going to cross-examine the witness, T just wanted to state on

L4 the record that the Employer had made an offer of proof with
15 respect to the empÌoyees that are listed on Union Exhibit 1.

L6 MR. DORN: Union ?

17 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: yes. Oh, excuse me. Union

18 Exhibit 1, that are represented by local 30, and you had made an

L9 offer of proof regarding the fact that if you could provide
20 evidence it would show that the union had abandoned the unit and

2L that you believe it is appropriate for them to be in the unit
22 involved herein- I reaÌized, in thinking about it, it is
23 incompÌete. I just wanted for you to be able to either make a

24 broader offer of proof because thel:e are two issues. One, the
25 issue that they are represented by Locat 30. But even assuming
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1 what you are saying is true, and I am obviousÌy not taking a

2 position with respect to that, the lssue is that the titles that
3 are in T,ocaf 30's unit or these titles that you Ìtrelieve shouLd

4 be ÍncLuded here are generalÌy, whether an acute or non-acute

5 facility, generaÌfy pursuant to Board precedent not in this type
6 of unit here. So I am asking you to make a broader offer of
7 proof regardlng the functlon of the peopfe that work I those job
I titles and their skilÌs, and to what degree they share a
9 community of interest with the empÌoyees involved here.

10 MR. DORN: I'm going to object to that for the record. I
11 think if Mr. Frank wanted to make a broadel: offer of proof, he

12 should have done it at the time.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: WelÌ, we're requesting that.
!4 So I just want to make sure the record is clear here and we have

15 everyth.ing- So I'll overrule that.
16 MR. FRANK: The empfoyees in the maintenance department

f7 have the same terms and conditions of employment. They are

18 hired under the same basis. They are subject to the same ruLes

L9 of discipline. There is coInmon management for the institutlon-
20 They are included in the same pay grades as other employees.

2L They receive the same benefits as other employees in the unit.
22 And the history over the last 10 years shows that they have been

23 treated the same as other employees in the petitioned-for unit.
24 And the fact that they were in a certified unit did not affect
25 the fact that they received the same terms, and benefits, and
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1 conditions as other empÌoyees in the unit.
2 And, in fact, the Board took the position, I believe, in
3 2004, that the terms and conditions of the employees in the
4 maintenance unit needed to be maintained on the same basis as

5 other employees in the petitioned-for unit at the westchester
6 Dlvlsion. And that was the basis of a settlement agreement that
7 was entered into. And they have been treated the same for all
I purposes since then.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTÌ tEB: Okay.

10 MR. FRANK: That's in addition to what we said yesterday.
11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT_TEB: A.LL r:ight. I,m still going to
12 exc.lude all the testlmony.

13 MR. FRANK: !{e wouÌd like to appeaÌ that to the regional
f4 dil:ector.

15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, you may.

16 MR. FRANK: Would you like us to give you a copy to
L7 deliver to the regionaÌ director?
18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: you can do that at the
19 concÌus.ion of the testìmony. I'm not going to stop the hearing
20 for that. Th.is is a short day. But certainly I can br:inq that
2L in.

22 MR. FRANK: I take exception to that ruling. We have an

23 appeal. And I would think it would be better to put in the
24 whoÌe case together.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Mr. Dor:n?
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1 CROSS -EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. DORN:

3 Q Mr. O'Connor, how long have you been employed at the

4 Presbyterian ?

5 A Just over six years.

6 Q What are your hours of work?

7 A They vary greatly, anywhere from 7:00 in the moïning to
I 7:00 p.m.

9 Q Does Presbyterian have a table of organization?

10 A T'm not aware.

11 MR. FRANK: Objection. Are yÕu referring to the

L2 Westchester Divi s lon ?

13 MR. DORN: Of course, I am referring to the Westchester

14 Division.

15 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTTIEB: Okay, qo ahead. _Answer the

L6 question.

L7 THE I/úITNESS: I believe there wouÌd be through the

18 electronic database PeopLesoft that would roll up to department

L9 heads. for exampfe/ aÌl the individuals that would r.eport

20 through a unit or department. But I don't believe it is
2a dispLayed as a table of organization.

22 BY MR. DORN:

23 Q Does Presbyterian have a diagram of the physicaÌ fayout of
24 the various units other than what has been introduced as

25 Employer Exhibit 3?
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1 A I'm not aware of anv others.

2 MR. DORN: l'd ask tfr. l.it.r""" to be given Employer,s

3 Exhibit 2, plea se .

4 BY MR. DORN:

5 Q You have Exhibit 2?

6 A Yes, I do.

7 Q Okay, thank you. Refel:rinq to Exhibit 2, Number 3 on the

I map key is the Brown Villa, is that correct?

9 A Yes, it is. The ch.ildren's outpatient department.

10 Q And that is not connected to the main building, .is that
11 so?

12 A Not above surfac^, no.

13 Q Which classifications of employees work in the Brown

t4 Vilfa ?

15 A Which classlfications of employees from EmpÌoyer's

L6 Exhibit 1?

1-7 Q Yes.

18 A Staff assistants, maiÌ clerk, office assistant, patient

19 account representatives, CASACS, senìor CASACS, delivery person,

20 drapery maker, grounds persons, halÌ aides, mental health

2a workers, psychiatric technicians, senior grounds person/ senior

22 halÌ aide, storeroom c.lerk, general service wôrker, Ìocksmith,

23 maintenance mechanlc, operating engineer, plant services

24 tradesman, p.Lant services mechanic, pfant services mechanic

25 HVAC ¡ plant servìces seníor mechanic. and upholsterer. And I
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1 l¡elieve staff assistants, actually. I'm sure of staff
2 asslstants, adminlstratlve clerks.
3 Q Approximately how many employees work in the Brown Villa? I

4 A From Exhibit l?

5 Q Yes.

6 A It woul-d range depending on the day and depending on the

7 shift but anywhere from 10 to 20.

I Q When you say depending on the day, for example, a

9 locksmith. would a focksmith work there every day?

10 A If there were a broken lock, he woufd be caÌled to service
11 thal lock.

L2 Q Are there any employees who are pel:manently assigned to
13 the Brown Vi LÌa?

14 A Yes.
:15 Q Who are they? 
l

L6 A Staff assistants, patient registl:ars working at the

17 we.lcome desk, CASACS, senior CASACS/ hall aides, the grounds

18 people that would maintain the entrance, the doors, the

L9 sldewalks to the bu.ilding.

20 Q Do they work in the build.ing, itself?
2I A Which individual s ?

22 Q Grounds people.

23 A I'm not aware.

24 Q To whom do these empfoyees report?

25 MR- FRANK: Objection to form. Which category are you
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1 talking about ?

2 BY MR. DORN:

3 Q I'm talking about aÌl the empfoyees who work in that
4 buifdinq, do they alf ïeport to the same person or persons?
5 A UÌtlmately, they would afl report through the vice
6 president of patient care servíces. yes.
7 Q Who is their immediate supel:vlsoï?
I A Dlfferent individuals would have different supervisors.
9 Q All right. Who is the supervisor tor the staff

10 assistants ?

11 A The staff assistants in the chifd OpD woufd be supervisor
f2 of the outpatient clinic.
13 Q ü/ho is the supervisor of the patient registrar?
L4 A They wouÌd report through the manager of patient finarrce.
15 Q And the CASACS and the senior CASACS?

!6 A CASACS ancl sen.ior CASACS report to the director of the
17 anìbulatory program or the outpatient department.
18 Q HaÌl aides ?

L9 A Hafl aìdes report to the manager of building services.
20 Q Are any of those sLrpervisors located in the building?
2I A yes, they are-
22 Q Which ones ?

23 A All of the individuals that I ment.ioned except for the
24 manager of building serv.ices-
25 Q Do they each have ân office there?
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1 A Each of the managers?

2 Q Yes.

3 A Yes, they do.

4 Q Do the different classifications work in different

5 offices ?

6 MR. FRANK: Objection. It's vague.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: What is the objection?

8 MR- FRANK: What? I don't understand which category are

9 vre talking about.

10 MR. DORN: AlÌ of the categories that he named there.

11 MR. FRANK: He named a lot of jobs. Whlch one are we

12 asking about ?

13 MR. DORN: No. He named four jobs permanently assigned to
L4 that Brown Villa.

15 MR. FRANK: I object- I believe he identified six.
16 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Vriell, do you rlrant to just
1'7 cñ^^i Ê"t

18 BY MR. DORN:

L9 Q Do the staff assistants work in a separate office within
20 the bui lding?

2a A They work throughout the buiÌding, yes. They are not in
22 the same office. They are throughout the entire outpat.ient

23 department. One side would be the adult outpatient department,

24 the one that you referenced to in EmpÌoyer's Exhibit 3, I
25 believe/ or excuse me, EmpÌoyer Exhibit 2 is the Brown Villa,
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1 thatrs the chifd outpatient department, but it's one bui.Iding

2 separated by an open door because the children and aduÌt

3 patients are not affowed to co-mingle.

4 Q What about the patient registrars, are they .in a separate

5 office within the building?

6 A They are actualÌy in an open space at the we]come desk of

7 the outpatient department.

8 Q And r.¡hat about the aduÌt outpatient department in

9 Emp.loyer 2, whLichl is Nunùler 4, are the same classifications of
10 employees permanentÌy assigned to that building as weÌl?

11 MR. FRANK: Objection to form.

12 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: I'lÌ permlt it, okay.

13 MR. FRANK: Tf vou can answer ìl-

L4 THE I{ïTNESST 
".=, 

the same classÍfications that we hawe

15 al r eody discussed.

1-6 MR. FRÀNK: So the record ìs clear, I don't kno!,¡ if that

1-7 is just the permanent ones or alÌ the titles the w.itness

18 described who worked in the former buiLding. Iiùe have a

L9 mJtL;-parL question here.

20 MR. DORN: No, no. I asked for the permanent empÌoyees.

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Was that clear to you?

22 THE WITNESS: No, it's not.

23 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. You want to just clarify
24 that then?

25 BY MR. DORN:
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1 O Do all the employees who you stated work on a permanent

2 basis in the Brown Villa also work in the adutt outpatient
3 department. which is Number 4 on EmpÌoyer Exhibit 2?

4 A We.Ll/ it's one building. So. yes. they would work in the
5 same space. lt's two sections of the same buifding identified
6 as NuÍìber 3 ancl Number 4 on the map that you are referring to.
7 Q With a door between the buildings.
8 A tr{elÌ. it,s the same buildlng. There woufd be a child
9 waiting room. for example- The door is generalLy open. It is

10 right near the welcome desk- And there is an aduft waiting
11 room. But the door is generally open. There is a colnmon

L2 vending machine that's there, but they are two separate areas of
13 rhe same bu i Lding.

L4 Q What classifications of empÌoyees work in the medicaÌ
15 library, Number 5 on EmpLoyer's Exhibit 2?

16 A There is one employee that woufd consistentÌy work there
L7 and that is the psychiatric medical librarian.
18 Q That title is not listed on Employer Exhibit 1, is it?
L9 A The aÌf non-professionals --
20 Q Yes-

2I A -- job classifications? No, it is not. That job requires
22 a four-year degree.

23 Q NichoÌ's Cottage, Nurnber 6, which cÌassificatlons of
24 employees permanentÌy work in that building?
25 A I'm referring to Exhibit 1. Unit clerks, mental health
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1 workers. per diem mentaÌ heaÌth worker¡. psychiatric technician,
2 ha]l aides, sociaÌ work assistants, LpNs. and for example food

3 and nutrition- The nutrition assistants woufd be generatly
4 assigned to work on one or a series of adjoíning un.its. So if
5 they worked in the adolescent unit that's next door as well,
6 would you refer to that as permanently working there, if they

7 wor:ked there on a reguLar basis?

8 Q Let's just take the ones that you've mentioned already.
9 To whom do the unit clerks report?

10 A The unit clerks report to the patient care director, the
11 PCD.

L2 Q Does that person have an office on the premises?

13 A Yes.

14 Q What about the mentaL health worker and the --
15 MR. FRANK: I'm golng to object- He's using the word

a6 premlses. I don't know what that term means. We're going to
17 get a very confusing record- Is he talking about that
18 particular building or the campus is the premises?

19 MR. DORN: T'm taÌking about the buiÌding, itself.
20 MR. FRANK: ft was not clear in the question.

2L MR- DORN: Perhaps it wasn't clear to you.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Go ahead.

23 BY MR. DORN:

24 Q Is your answer that the patient care director has an

25 office in the Nichol's buiLding?
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1 A NichoÌ's Cottage ?

2 Q Cottage, yeah.

3 A Some of the patient care directors have their offices on

4 the annex wh.ich is attached to each of the inpatient units.

5 Some of them !,¡ould have their offices just outside the annex or

6 just outside the unlt. Space .is of a premium on the inpatient
7 units, so primarily those are for patient care, sÌeeping

8 quarters, treatment rooms. So some of the patient care

9 directors would have their office on the unit; some woutd have

10 them just off the unit.

11 Q What abÕut ìn Nichol's Cottaqe?

12 A lt's in the Nichol's Cottage area/ but it's in the annex

13 of Nichol's Cottage. That's where the PCD would have her

L4 office.

15 Q To whom do the mentaL heaÌth workers report?

16 A The mental health workers report to the patient care

L7 director of the unit to which they are assigned.

18 Q What about the psych techs?

!9 A The same. They would report to the patíent care d.irector

20 of t.he i r unit.

2L Q And ha]l aides?

22 A HalÌ aides report to the manager of buiÌding services and

23 they would take direction frÕm psych techs or mental health

24 workers, individuals that miqht be aware that there were a splll
25 or a dlrty room, for example.
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1 Q What about the social work assistant?
2 A The social work assistants report ultlmately to the

3 dlrector of sociaL work/ but there is a coordinator of sociaÌ
4 work servÍces that T believe they wouÌd l:eport directfy to.
5 Q Does that person work in the Nichof's Cottage?

6 A The coordinator or the manager?

7 Q Yes.

I A T don'L be_ieve so.

9 Q What about the LpNs?

10 A ThE ],PNS ?

11 Q To whom do they repot:t?

L2 A They would report to the patient care director.
13 Q Oo all of these classiflcations work diffel:ent shifts?
14 A Yes/ they do.

15 Q Three shi fts ?

1-6 A To my knornledge, yes.

11 Q Do they work on weekends?

18 A Yes.

L9 Q What about the TayÌor Building, NLtmber 7, which

20 cl as s.i f i cati ons work there?

21 A If you will recall from last week's testimony, Number 7,

22 which is the Taylor: Building, that is a gymnasium. It is
23 primarily used for patient recreation or psycho-social
24 rehabilitatlon therapy. So the pSR staff, activìties
25 therapists, recreatíon therapists would work there, mental
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t heaÌth workers that woufd be required to escort patients to
2 various activiti es in that locatíon would work there,
3 psychiatric technicians, hall aides, per diem mental heafth
4 workers, staff assistants, drapery maker, grounds people.
5 Q Are aff of those people permanently assigned?

6 MR. FRANK: Objection. I believe the wltness hasn,t
7 finlshed. I thjnk you have to let the witness finish going
8 Lhrough Lhe I ist-
9 HEARING OFFICER GOTT¡IEB: Ar:e you finished?

10 THE WITNESS: f was stilL going through the list.
11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTÍ,IEB: Okay. co ahead.

72 THE I¡IITNESS: General service workers, Ìocksmith,
13 malntenance mechanics, operating engineer, patlent services
L4 tradesmen, patient services mechanlcs, plant services mechanic
15 HVAC' patient services sen.ior mechanics. nutrition assistants-
16 BY MR. DORN:

L7 Q Are all of those classificatlons permanentÌy assigned to
18 work in the Taytor Bullding?
19 A Not permanently assigned, but reguÌarÌy they could work
20 there, yes.

2I Q Are any classifications of employees permanentÌy assigned
22 to work in that buiLdÍng?

23 A ln the gymnasium?

24 Q Yes.

25 A Not permanently assigned, no.
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1 Q On EmpÌoyer Exhibit I, are the activities theraplsts
2 listed the re ?

3 A The activities therapists are not .Iisted primariLy because

4 that job requÍres a four-year degree unÌike any of the jobs on

5 Employer Exhibit 1-

6 Q What about the recreation therapists?

7 A I need to correct myseLf. I believe it's activities
I therapists and recreation specialists. But the recreation

9 specialists are not listed on here, either, again as T believe

10 their job requires a four-year degree unÌike any of the jobs on

11 Emp.l oy e r Exhibit 1.

a2 MR. FRANK: If it would hefp the record, none of the

13 professiÕnal categories are listed on it.
14 MR. DORN: I just wanted to cÌarify the record.

15 MR. FRANK: Okay. I mean there are a lot of titles that l

r6Weren,tlisted.What,S1ístedonEmp1oyer1arethe

17 non -p ro fess íonaf --
18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: I understand.

19 MR. FRANK: If you would like to go through every titLe, T

20 have no object.ion to that. There is a large number of tltÌes.
2L MR. DORN: I understand, Ml:. Frank, that profess.ionals are

22 excluded. I just want to make sure that the record is clear

23 that when the witness mentions a classificat.ion who works i¡r a

24 particular area that we are not talking about someone who might

25 be inc.luded in the unit sought by the Union.
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1 MR. FRÀNK: So the record is clear, in atl of the

2 testimony we put in, we did not put in any testimony regarding

3 where professionaÌs work and their interaction with people in
4 these units.

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, I know.

6 MR. DORN: It's not necessary. They're excluded.

7 HEARINC OEFICER GOTTI,IEB: Rlght. Okay, go ahead.

8 BY MR. DORN:

9 Q tr¡ihich classifications of employees work in the education

10 school annex ?

11 A The educat.ion school annex, which is Number 8 on the map

12 exhibit, hall aides, the drapery maker, deÌivery person/

13 nutrition assistants, CASACS, senior CASACS, if the student

L4 popu.Iation required it, staff asslstants, mai.I clerk, chart

15 anaÌyst, hea.Ith information management abstractor. That i-s

16 primarily a schoof-based program.

17 Q Are any of the c.lassifications you just mentÍoned

18 permanently assigned to that area?

L9 A I'm noL. en¡irely sure.

20 Q Which cLassìfications of empÌoyees if any are permanently

2a asslgned to the Mason ViÌla, Number. 9 on Emplôyer's Exhibit 2?

22 A I'm not certain- That's office space primarily. And it
23 is 1n the process of being renovated currently.

24 Q You don't know which emp.Ìoyees work there?

25 A Not current.ly.
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1 MR. FRANK: Objection. That's not what the witness

2 testified to.

3 MR. DORN: I'm asking him does he know which empÌoyees

4 work .in that building -

5 THE WITNESS: I don't know.

6 BY MR. DORN:

7 Q That buifding is not attached to the main building, is Ít?
I A Itrs attached. Most of our buildings are attached through

9 underground corridors.

10 Q But not on the surface?

11 A No-

12 Q Do any classifications of employees other than office
13 empÌoyees work in that building?

14 MR. FRANK: Objection to form.

15 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: I'lI permit it.
16 THE WITNESS: T'm sorry. Could you repeat the question?

1-7 BY MR . DORN :

18 Q Do any class.ifications of employees other than office
19 employees permanently work ln that building?

20 MR. FRANK: Objection. There is no basis for there is
2L office employees working in that buildinq. Mr. Dorn isn't
22 testifying.

23 MR. DORN: He testified to it.

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I thought he testifled as well.
25 THE WITNESS: That it is office space. It is currently
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I under renovaLion.

2 BY MR. DORN:

3 Q How fong has it been under renovation?

4 A I'm not sr1re. I know it is under renovation right now. I
5 don't know when the renovation started -

6 Q Do you know which employees formerly worked in the
7 building before it was under renovatlon?

I MR. FRANK: Objection. What's the relevance of that?
9 MR. DORN: It shows what type of employees work in the

10 office building.

11 MR. FRANK: It,s being renovated into something other than
a2 what it was, so what difference wou.Id it make what was there
13 five years âgo?

L4 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: All right, I'Ìf permit it.
15 THE WITNESS: T'm not aware of any hospital employees

16 actually wol:king that building- I believe it was physician
1-7 office space. And if you will r:ecall, physicians are not

18 empÌoyees of the hospitat -

19 BY MR. DORN:

20 Q What about Number 10. the Banker ViÌla, which

2L cÌassÍfication of empÌoyees are permanentfy assigned to that
22 bui lding?

23 A From EmpLoyer: Exhibit 1, none- That is a resource center
24 for the borderline personatíty disorder unit and clinic.
25 Q What about Number 11, the RusselÌ Building?
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1 A Irm not aware of any empfoyees that would permanentlv Ì,¡ol:k

2 in tha t. bui iding.

3 Q What is the bullding used for?
4 A The RusselL Building, I think it was primarily research.
5 Q I thought on dlrect examination you testlfied it was a

6 shed where malnt_enance workers keep thelr equipment. And I
7 corrected myself t:ight after and indlcated that that was

I Number: 12 on the map.

9 A Number 12 js listed as the Bourne Research tab (ph.).
10 Q Correct, on the top floor. And the basement of that
11 building is where maíntenance equipment would be maintained,
1-2 ÌawnmoÌ,¡ers, smafl tt:ucks, things that the grounds people, senior
13 grounds peopÌe would use.

L4 Q Do any classifications of employees permanently work in
15 the building ?

16 A The grounds employees.

I7 Q any other ctassifications?
18 A Not that I'm aware of, no.

L9 Q Who works 1n the areas above the basement?

20 A No one that T,m aware of. lt,s not an active research
2l- laboratory. That's what the buiÌding historicaÌfy was used tor.
22 Q Number 13, the staff annex lf is a residential apartments/
23 is that correct ?

24 A lt's primarily staff houslnq, but there is aÌso a large
25 conrnunity room that the hospital uses for a number of
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1 recognition events, ceÌebration events. But primarily it would

2 be studio apartments, single bedl:oom apartments. and two bedroom

3 apartments for our employees and their famifies.
4 Q Number 14, the Walf Bullding. is leased to a bÌood center,

5 is that correct?

6 A Yes.

7 Q Number 16, the Bard House, ls no longer in existence, is
8 that so?

9 A Yes.

10 Q Num-ber 17, community residence. Which classifications of
11 employees if any permanently work in that building?

12 A None that I'm aware of.
13 Q ülhat is it used for?

14 A I don't believe it is currently .in use for anything right
15 now. There are several bulldings on the property that would be

L6 used for storage or are no longer activeLy being used.

L7 Q Vúhat about Number 18, Sturgis Half/ are there any

18 cfassification of empÌoyees who permanently work there?

f9 A No cfassificatj-ons of employees that would permanently

20 work there. But that, again/ is our onsite training center

21 where aÌl employees would receive Planetree tralning or other

22 service oriented training sessions. lt,s prirnarily a trainirrg
23 site.

24 Q Mr- O'Connor, looking at Employer's Exhibit 3. that's the

25 diagram of the main building, is it not?
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1 A Yes, LL is.
2 Q I believe you testified there are three floors, a

3 basement. and a sub-basement, is that so?

4 A There are three primary fÌoors for inpatient hospltal
5 care. There is a basement in addition to that, a sub_basement

6 in addltion to that. Some of the other areas like 3A-South or
7 6A-North wouÌd actually be a separate floor, but it's almost a

8 half f.Loor above. But the primary patient care is delivered on

9 three fLoors, yes.

10 Q Let's take the top floor of the building which is a

11 patient care area, is that correct?
12 A Yes.

13 Q What units are on the third fÌoor?
L4 MR. FRANK: I'm going to object because Exhibít 3

15 specìfies exactly what units are on which floor. I guess we

16 could hawe the witness read the exhibit into evidence. But if
L7 you look at Exhibìt 3, it goes through each unit and says what

18 floor they are on. lf you would like him to read that. I guess

L9 I don't -- it seems Ìike we are wasting time.
20 MR. DORN: I want the witness to testify which units work

2L on the third ffoor.
22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT IEB: Okay. Go ahead.

23 THE VúITNESS: Okay. Using Exhlbit 3 as a reference,
24 3-South would be located on the third floor. 6-South wou.ld be

25 located on the third floor- 3-North woufd be tocated on the
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1 third floor. And 6-North would be located on the third floor.

2 And I believe 8A-North.

3 BY MR. DORN:

4Q8A?

5 A 84, as in appfe, north. That's in the blue section on the

6 map. I believe that's on the third ffoor as well. And

7 8A-South.

8 Q Each of these units is locked, is that correct?

9 A Each of the units that I just referenced, yes/ they wouÌd

10 be locked inpatient psychiatric unlts.

11 Q Are there rooms within each unit?

L2 A Yes, many different types of rooms.

13 Q Which classifications of employees work in 3-South?

14 MR- FRANK: So the record ls clear, we are talking

15 permanent for the question now? Or is that -- sometìmes we ask

A6 for permanent employees and sometimes we don't.

!7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLÍEB: Do you want to specify?

18 BY MR. DORN:

19 Q AÌÌ right. Letrs ask which classifications of empÌoyees

20 permanently work in 3-South.

21- A Okay- The unìt clerk, hall aides, mental health worker,

22 per diem menta.L heaLth wÕrker, psychiatric technician, sociaf

23 work ass.istant, and possibly an LPN. We don't have one LPN for

24 every unit. so not every unit as an LPN. But they do work on

25 our inpatient units.
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1 Q How many LPNS are employed by the hospitaÌ?

2 A T believe four to sÍx.

3 Q Do alL of these cLassifications of employees report to the

4 same supervis or?

5 A No, they do not.

6 Q Who do the unit cÌerks report to?

7 A They report to the 3-South patient care dlrector.

8 Q Is that director located in 3-South?

9 A The patient care director for 3-South, her office is

10 .Located on the annex which is attached to the unit, but it's in

11 a non-patient area. It v,rould have a Iocked door.

12 Q And who does the hall aide report to?

13 A To the manager of building services - And again to the

14 patlent care director or to any of the onsite staff. if a --
15 Q What about -- sorry. What about the mentaÌ heaÌth worker

16 and per diem rnental heaÌth worker?

L7 A They. too, would report to the patient care d.irector.

18 Q And the psych tech?

19 A To the patient care director.

20 Q The LPN ?

2I A To the patient care director.

22 Q Soc.ia] work assistant?

23 A To the coord.inator: of soc.ial work.

24 Q And where is that person .Located?

25 A That person being the coordinator?
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1 Q Yes.

2 A looking at Employer Exhibit 3, if you Ìook at the orange

3 section, I, 2, 3, 3A-South, there ís a white corridor. Right

4 above that. the office woufd be just about where that is

5 located.

6 Q Do al1 of these cfassif.ications work three shlfts?

7 A To my know.Iedge/ yes. Itrs a 24/1 hospital, yes.

I Q And they work on weekends?

9 A Yes, they do.

10 Q And the same types of classification work in 6-South?

11 A Yes, they do. CouÌd T correct one thing that I just said?

L2 You're askinq about afl of the ctasslfications, do they work aÌl
13 shifts? Many of them do. Unit cferks, for example, would

L4 primarìLy work day or evenlng, not a night shift- Hall aides.

15 for example, would primarily work day, ewening, but not

a6 necessarily niqht. There would be someone that woutd be

L7 assigned to the hospital that could cÌean something up, a spiÌl
18 for example on a unit Ìate at night. But mental health workers,

L9 psychiatric technicians, LPNS, for example, wouÌd reguÌarly work

20 all three shifts, but not unit cÌerks, not hall aides.

2I Q What are the three shifts? I{hat's the day shift at the

22 hospi ta I ?

23 A They vary by department.

24 Q Vühat is the shift for the unit cÌerk?

25 A For: the unit c.lerk, T believe it is traditionalÌy an 8:00
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1 to 4:00 shift_ Many of them work extra hours, overtime hours,
2 but I believe that it is more tr:aditionally an g:00 to 4:00
3 shift.

4 Q And what's the evening shlft for the unit clerk?
5 A Irm not entireÌy certain, but it would be after the day

6 shift ends.

7 Q Would they work a full shift, for example, from 4:00 to
8 midnight ?

9 A I'm not certaln-
10 Q And the same classifications that we have been talkinq
11 about also work in 3-North?

f2 MR- FRANK; Objection. Are we only talking about __

13 MR. DORN: permanent 
-

f4 MR. FRANK: One of the things that is going to happen is
15 when we go back to this, we are going to ask for other people
76 who work on those shifts who are not permanently assigned, if
L7 they work on two units. So I don't know. Counsel can do it
18 this lvay, but we're going to have to go over all of this again
a9 for other people who work at times on these units but not o,. a

20 permanentÌy assigned basis- And it seems to me this is an

2f inefficient way of --
22 MR. DORN: We've already done that. lrie've already done

23 that during the direct testimony. I want to know who is
24 permanentfy assigned to these units.
25 HEARfNG OFFTCER GOTTÌ tEB: Okay. Go ahead.
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1 BY MR. DORN:

2 Q Í{hat about 3-North?

3 A Could you repeat the whole question? I'm sorry.
4 MR. FRANK: T thought you were asking about 6-South?

5 MR. DORN: No. 6-South was alreadv testified to-
6 BY MR. DORN:

7 Q I want to know about 3-North, which cLassifications of
8 employees are permanently assigned tÕ 3-North?

9 A Okay. SimiÌar job cÌassificatlons to those on 6-South.

10 Q And what about 6-North?

11 A 6-North?

12 Q Yes.

13 A They, too. wouLd be simiÌar to those on 3-North and

A4 6-South.

15 Q What about 8A-North?

1-6 A If you recall, 8A-North ls a swing unit. That is where a

a7 unit that is undergoing construction or renovation through the

18 Heal crant process or the Eace program that we have, they would

19 temporat:ily relocate to that area. So depending on the unit
20 that is being relocated to 8A-North temporarily, atÌ the

2L employees that wôuld be assigned to that unit wouLd move to that
22 swlng unit.

23 Q And what about 8A-South?

24 A 8A-South, again, is primarily office space for physlcials,
25 researchers/ non-hospitaÌ employees.
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1 Q Alf right, let's go to the second floor. Which units or

2 offices are ]ocated on the second floor?

3 A S-South, 2-South. 2-North, s-North, and I beÌieve thatrs

4 it for inpatient units.

5 Q Are there any other units or offices Ìocated on the second

6 floor?

7 A 8-South and 8-North, although I'm not quite certaln what

B areas or what individuafs would work there- Those are not

9 Ínpatient psychiatTic unlts. That's not an area of the hospital

10 that I have worked in-

11 Q What k.ind of units are 8-Soutn and 8-North?

L2 A They are not units.

13 Q What are they?

L4 A O'tice spðce, -t beÌ.ieve.

15 Q You don't know which classifications of employees

L6 pernanenr Ly work --

17 A I don't beÌieve any c.Iassif .ications of employees

18 permanently work there. MedicaL college staff, others.

19 Q Vühich classificatíons of employees currentLy work at

20 5 -South?

2'L A 5-South would be simiÌar to those on 6-South, for example.

22 Q Is that trr.le of 2-South, 2-North, an 5-North?

23 A So you said 2-South?

24 Q 2-North and S-North.

25 A Genera.Ily speaking, yes.
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1 Q Let's go to the first ffoor. What units or offlces are

2 Ìocated on the flrst floor?
3 A 4-South, 1-South, 1-North, 4-North, 7-North, Nichol,s
4 Cottage/ 7-South, the Star program, the medicaf Ìibrary, the
5 Tay.Ior Building.

6 Q That's it?
7 A I befieve so-

I O Do the same classifications of employees that you have

9 discussed working in the units on the second and third floor
10 also work on the first floor in 4-South, 1-South, 1_North,

11 4-North, 7-North, and 7-South?

L2 A There worrlcl be some differences. 4_South, for example, is
13 an addiction recovery unít, so you would have a larger presence

1,4 of CASACS, senior CASACS. l-South and 2-North, weLl, l'll start
15 with 1-South- 1-South ìs primarlLy office space for
a6 professional staff, social workers, some of the hospital
f7 administration. There are conference spaces in that area.
18 1-North, that wouÌd be, if I cou.Id direct you to EmpÌoyer

L9 Éxhibìt 2, l-haL wouÌd Numbel: 2, for example, on that map- That.

20 is the evaluation center. That is unique to a psychiatric
21, facility. That would be the intake unit. So you would have EC

22 clerks, evaluation center clerks, access services
23 representatives, in addition to aÌl of the other employees

24 referenced on the other floors. you would additionally have EC

25 clerks. You would have staff that woufd work in that settinq.
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1 You would have patient registrars, patient account

2 representatives. And then the rest of 1-North would be

3 prlmarily office space for professional staff-

4 4-North would have simifar staff.ing to s-North and

5 6-North.

6 Q What about 7-North and 7-South?

7 A 7-North would have similar employees, yes. Nichol's

I Cottage, the same.

9 Q In 1-North, the evaluation center, are patients treated in

10 that area ?

11 A They are eva.Luated to determine if inpatient psychiatric

L2 services or perhaps outpatient serv.ices would be more

13 appropriate for them-

a4 Q They are not actually given the treatment riqht there, are

15 they?

a6 A Not that I am aware of. Their treatment is normally, if

a7 they are admltted, inpatient would be one to several weeks to

18 severa.I months of intensive psychotherapy on an inpatient unit.

19 Q Which classification of employees work in the kitchen?

20 A Nutrition assistants, cooks, hall aides, building services

2L attendants. delivery person.

22 Q To whom to the nutrition assistants and cooks repot:t?

23 A They would report thrÕugh one of four or five supervisors

24 in the food and nutrition department -

25 Q Do they work different shifts?

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, New Jersey 07470
(973) 692 - O66O



466

1 A The supervisors ?

2 Q No, nutrítion assistants and the cooks.

3 A Yes, they do. They are nat a 24 by 7 department, though.

4 They wouÌd tend to work more the hours of 5:00 in the morning to
5 6:00 p.m.

6 Q So that woufd be two shifts?
7 A Yes, that would overfap around lunchtime.

8 0 Which cfassifications of employees if any permanently work

9 in the s toreroom?

10 A The delivery person/ storeroom clerk. I beÌieve that's
11 it.

L2 Q To whom do they report?

13 A They report to the manager of strategic sourcing or

f4 purchasing.

15 Q Vühich classifications of employees permanentÌy work in the

L6 cafeteri a ?

17 A The lead cashier cafetel:ia, nutrition assistants, cooks.

18 - t.hink that's i--

19 Q And to whom do they l:eport?

20 A They would report to one of the same supervisors

21 referenced before. There are four or five different superv.isors

22 in that department.

23 Q How long has the hospital, if you know, used the titfe
24 nutrítion assistants?

25 A Almost three years.
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1 Q Was there another titfe used pl:ior to that?
2 MR. FRANK: Objection. What's the relevance of that to
3 thls current pos ition?
4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: What would be the relevance?

5 BY MR. DORN:

6 Q What offices are Ìocated in the basement?

7 A There are a number of offices. It would be work areas as

8 weÌÌ. not just offices. In the Center Building, for example,

9 the department of human resources is located on the basement

10 leve1. the pÌant operations department, the kitchen, security
11 department, voÌunteer services, information technology/IT, the
a2 pharrnacy, the staff computer training room/ some of the
13 hospital's arch.ives. and thet:e are some offices down there,
1-4 standalone offices for people that just work in that al:ea-

15 Q Do any of the people who work in those offices that you

L6 just mentioned -- strike that. Are thel:e any classifications of
L7 empÌoyees Llsted on Employer Exhibit 1 that work in those

18 offices that you just referred to?

1-9 A Yes. Also, heaÌth information management is ìn the

20 basement.

2I Q Which classifications work in the offices?
22 A AÌÌ the areas that I just referenced woutd have the
23 abstractor for health information management/ food and nutrition
24 assistants, administrative assistants, hall aldes, building
25 services is afso located in the basement, administratiwe clerk,
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1 medica.L data anafyst, data technicían, lead cashier cafetet:ia,
2 HIM data specialist, staff assistant, pharmacy technician,
3 building services attendant, cook, coordinator of laundry
4 services, de.Livery person, drapery rnaker, haÌÌ alde, storeroom

5 cferk, locksmíth, operat.ing engineer, maintenance mechanic,

6 patient services mechanic, patient services tradesman, patient
7 servÍces mechanic HVAC, patient serv.ices senior mechanic,

I uphofsterer.

9 Q Are there separate departments in the basement?

10 A Separate departments, yes.

11 Q What are the departments that are tocated in the basement?

L2 MR. FRANK: Objection. Asked and answered.

13 MR. DORN: I didn't ask it. He didn't answer it-
L4 MR. FRANK: I think he went through, started with HR,

15 plant ops, through the departments ín the basement.

16 MR. DORN; These aren't all separate departments.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'tt alfow it. Go ahead.

18 THE WITNESS: Those departments wouÌd be hurnan resources,

L9 pÌant operations/ volunteer services, security/ the pharmacy,

20 building services, upholstery, IT information services, food and

2a nutrition, the copy center, the storeroom, the archives. I
22 beÌieve chat's i L.

23 BY MR. DORN:

24 Q llihich classifications of employees permanently rvork in the
25 IT department?
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1 A Hardware analyst --
2 Q I'm sor:ry?

3 A Hardware analyst. There 1s a manager of information

4 technology, a supervísor. But I believe they are all hardware

5 analysts.

6 Q [¡lhere do the HTM data special.ists work?

7 A The HIM data speciaÌist, they woufd work in the medicaf

8 record department.

9 Q And where is that located?

10 A That is actually, it is in the basement similar to the

11 kitchen and the pharmacy, and I beÌieve if you are looking at

L2 Employer Exhìbit 3, the orange sectlon, 7/8/8A-South, it wouÌd

13 be in the basement/ in that orange area. very close to the

L4 pharmacy.

15 Q Vühich classifications of employees work with the HIM data

16 specia ll st ?

17 A Vühich classifications work with the data speciaÌist?

18 Q In that area-

19 A In that area? Yourre talking about permanently, not the

20 people that come there on a regu.lar basis.

2I Q Yeah, permanent.

22 A The abstractor health information management, I'm sorry,

23 the abstr:actor, the chart analyst, the medical data anafyst,

24 office assistant, HIM data specialist, HIM pl:ocessing

25 specialÍst, staff assistant. I think that's it.
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1 Q Do aÌl of these classificat.ions report to the same

2 supe rvi s or?

3 MR. ERANK: Objectíon to form. Which cÌassifications?

4 MR. DORN: The ones he just mentioned.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, go ahead. I think that's
6 cÌear. You understand the question, right?

7 THE WTTNESS: Yes. They wouÌd either report to a

I supervísor or a manager, because there is a supervlsor in that

9 area and a manager.

10 BY MR. DORN:

11 Q Both the supervisor and manager are Ìocated in that area?

12 A Yes, they are.

13 Q They all work the same hours, aÌl of these

a4 c]assíf icat.ions?

15 A SimiÌar to the other. classifications like unit cÌerk. yes.

L6 Q Letrs take the HIM data specialist, what hours do they

A7 work?

18 A The HIM data specia.Iist, similar to the unit clerk's

19 hours, 8;00 a.m- to 4:00 p.m./ or 8:30 to 4:30, 9:00 to 5:00.

20 Primarily, it's a day shift.

21 Q Do they work an evenìng shift?

22 A Not that I'm aware of, not regularly.

23 Q Do they work weekends?

24 A I'm not aware.

25 Q What about the HIM processing speciaÌist?
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1 A The HIM processing specia.Iist would work similar hours to
2 the EC cÌerk, the unit clerk/ others, primarily day shift.
3 Q tr{hat about the abstractors?

4 A The same.

5 Q Chart analys ts ?

6 A l¡m not certain about the chart analyst because they are

7 responsible for plcking up paper documentation from each of the
8 inpatient units on a daily basis.
9 Q ülhat about the medicaf data anaÌyst?

10 A I believe similar hours to some of the others in the H1M

11 department.

12 Q What about the office assistant?
13 A Simifar hours.

14 Q Staff assistant?

15 A They would be slmiÌar hours.

16 Q Which departments are located in the sub-basement?

L7 A The sub-basement ls where our boilers and eLectrical,
18 systems for the hospital woufd be. primarily, the pÌant
L9 operations department, actually just one area, one job primarity
20 and that would be the operating engineers. On the night shift,
21- the maintenance mechanics may use that office so there is a

22 central area for the units to call if they needed someone to
23 attend to something during non-standard hours, evening/night-
24 Q The pfant operations depal:tment I think you said was

25 located in the basement, is that correct?
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1 A The plant operations department is located in the

2 basement. The boiÌer room is in the sub-basement.

3 Q Now those areas which are Ìocated in the basement and sub-

4 basement don't treat patlents, is that correct, in those areas?

5 A Yes, that's correct.

6 Q Do you know approximately how many nutrition assistants
7 there are ?

I A Yes-

9 Q Approximatefy, how many?

10 A Thirty-four, thirty-five.
11 Q Mr. O'Connor, T'd like you to look at -- wou.Ld you take a

L2 Ìook at Employer Exhibit 59, pLease?

13 A Yes, sir/ T have it.
14 Q AII of the other job descriptions have a job grade of a

15 numl¡er. This one has a job grade of E. What does the E stand

L6 for ?

17 A The E is just a different salary classification-
18 MR. DORN: By the way, f thouqht we were golng to get the

L9 pay ranges of the grades today.

20 HEARING OFFÍCER GOTTLIEB: That's true. I mean T was

2L going to mention that as wefl- Do we have that here, today?

22 MR. FRANK: T do not have that with me, no.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And why Ís that? I mean werve

24 asked for it now two separate times for two different hearing

25 dates. And the last time I said to make certain that they be
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t here today. What is the reason that they are not here?

2 MR. FRANK: I don't have them with me.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: But why is that? tt has been

4 requested now day after day.

5 MR- FRANK: I have taken exception to your ruling, ma,am.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: tt's not a ruling. It's a

7 simpfe statement of fact. What is the reason that they are not
8 here?

9 MR. FRANK: I don't have them with me.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: A1l right. I would like to ger
11 them in here and I wouÌd like to get them in before the next
12 hearing. r mean this informatlon is re]evant. rt is a criticaf
13 area. There ls just no reason or excuse that documents are not
L4 here, absoluteÌy none. I mean there,s nothing more that can be

15 said. I 've requested it - I've requested it numerous times -

16 And it just has to be here. And I'd like it here before the
L7 next hearing date -

18 MR. FRANK: I respectfuÌly except to your rulínq. And I'd
f9 fike to appeal that.
20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: you certainlv can-

2! MR. FRANK: Thank you.

22 HEAR]NG OFFICER GoTTT.IEB: Go riqht ahead.

23 BY MR. DORN:

24 Q Is job grade E higher than any of the job grades with a

25 number on them?
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1 A Off the top of my head, I don't know, because many of the
2 sa.Ìary ranges would overlap 1n different areas. So, I,m sorry,
3 I don't know.

4 Q Also. the status of this job classification is listed as

5 exempt. Do you know why it's listed as exempt?

6 A No, .L don,L.

7 Q T,ooking at the qualifications of this cLassification, it
I indicates that a credentiafed alcoholism and substance abuse

9 counselor certificatlon is required. How long do you have to
10 attend school to get that license or certification?
11 MR. FRANK: Objectlon- This is a job category that the
12 union seeks to incfude in the unit. And we have been prohibited
13 from putting on testimony in this area. I don,t see why the
f4 Union is exploring this issue. It's one of the títfes they want
15 to include in the unit-
16 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: you haven't been prohibited
f7 from putting ln testimony. What you have been prohibited 1s

18 beg.inning with that.
19 MR. DORN: I didn't hawe these job descript.ions when we

20 initialÌy indicated which cfassification should be included or
2L excÌuded. r,ookìng at the crassifications and the quaÌifications
22 of some of these classifications may requlre the Union to make a

23 different determination.

24 MR. FRANK: My objection is we weren't altowed to put in
25 any testimony on any of the categorles that the Union wanted in.
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1 But the Union can now -- this is beyond the scope of direct
2 because there was no direct testimony on the categories the
g Union wanted.

4 HEARfNC OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Yes. But you are

5 mischal:acterizing what it .is. You certainÌy could put testimony

6 on cÌassifications that the Union wanted in if they are related
7 to classifìcations that were excfuded- So I just note for the

I record what you are saying is not really an accurate depìction

9 of what the situation is. I understand what the Union is now

10 saying, that there are certain classifícations here that they

11 just didn't have information on. But --
L2 MR. ERANK: On Exhibit 59, I was not aÌlowed to put in
13 testimony on that job category. I wanted to put in testimony

A4 and the hearing officer ruled that you weren't going to take any

15 testimony on the senior CASAC position- Now the Union is
16 cross-exam.inlng on something there was no dlrect on.

L7 MR. DORN: I'm cross-exarnining on an exhibit that was

18 admitted in ewidence, which is entirely proper.

19 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Let's just go off the record.

20 (!{hereupon, a recess was taken.)

2l HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; On the record.

22 Mr. Dorn, as the resuLt of off the record discussions, I
23 thlnk you have changed your position regarding the senior CASAC

24 posit.ion. ls that true?

25 MR- DORN: Thatrs correct. ù/e believe that that position
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1 should be exc.Luded from the service unit based on the

2 information contained in the job description/ Employer's

3 Exhib.it 59. which indicates this employee has a job gt:ade of E

4 and the status ls exempt. And the qualification incfude a

5 cert.ification which is required, minimum of three years of

6 addiction experience/ and a minimum of one year of supervísory

7 experience. Therefore, f believe that this classification

8 should not be incÌuded in a service unit.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: And Mr. Frank, do you have any

10 coruIlents to make?

11 MR- FRANK: One, the Un.ion has prev.iously stipulated this

12 was not a superv.isor position- So I don't undel:stand Mr. Dornrs

13 coÍmrent in that regard. Secondly, I understand the Union has

14 changed its position. Ide'd certainly renew our objections to

15 the Ìimitations on being able to put in testimony on categories

16 they want to include in the un.it b,ecause it doesn't build a full

l7 record. At some point, we'11 come back and address this issue.

18 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: ObviousÌy, with change of their

L9 pos.ition, if you want to expand whatever testimony you can, you

20 can.

2! MR. ERANK; What I wÕuld ask is that we be allowed to do

22 that in all of the job categories/ not just in ones that the

23 Union changes its positlon on.

24 HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTLIEB: No, I mean as I said beginning

25 lrith the excLuded cateqories and then putting testímony to their
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1 refation to any of the incÌuded categories is the best way to
2 qo. It provides a total record. You have the reÌationship

3 between people who are contested and the people who are not

4 contested. So I don't want to go back lnto that.

5 MR. ERANK: The reason I have concern though is that I
6 keep raising this in terms of Mr- Dorn's questÍons of this
7 witness. He certalnÌy put in some testimony and partial

8 ewidence about the people in the patient services department.

9 And he has put in the testimony that he thinks hetps the Un.ion's

10 position as to why they should be excÌuded. And yet the Hearing

11 Officer rejected the EmpÌoyel: exhibits on what their job duties

L2 are.

13 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: That's true. The questions

a4 were so broad that the witness ended up going into the

15 categories that ultimately, you know, the operating eng.ineer and

f6 the mechanics, all Õf those. which uftimately we have ruled that
A7 we don't need the evidence on. So that's true. I didn't reaÌly
18 want to interrupt the witness in the middle of testifying there,

19 but T think the questions really have to be more narrowly framed

20 in order to not have that problem.

2a MR- FRANK; The point I'm raising .it's not fair to the

22 Employer to aLlow the Union to ask the questions it wants and

23 then have the job descriptlons exc.Iuded from the evidence for
24 the record. That's not right.

25 MR. DORN: We made it clear at aÌÌ times that the

BURKE COURT REPORTTNG, LIJC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, New 'fersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692- 0660



1 maintenance employees shoufd be excfuded certainly because they

2 have been certified to be represented by another unlon- And

3 they are stiLl represented by that union. And it would not be

4 appropriate for that reason âlone to include them.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yes- I understand there are

6 two issues there. One is the issue that they are represented by

? another union. And the second issue is that ultimately given

8 Board precedent, this group of emptoyees would generally not be

9 deemed to be appropriate in the unit. That's why an offeï of
10 proof is more appropriate. But then you are soÌiciting
11 testlmony about it.

f2 MR. DORN: I didn't solicit testimony about it.
13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No, it,s tl:ue that the w.itness

a4 ended Ltp responding to your questions and giwing testimony about

15 it. I aqree with that.

f6 MR. FRANK: Mr. Dorn was asking whether there were

l7 patients in the sub-basement, who worked in those areas. I mean

18 hers created a partial record that there is not direct patlent
19 care províded in the sub-basement. There are other things that
20 are done in the sub-basement that are done by unit employees.

2f It's not fair to create a record where the Union shows what it
22 wants and we are precluded from putting in testimony that
23 counteracts that.

24 MR- DORN: I think we should get on with the hearing.

25 MR. FRANK: f would hope that given the fact that on cross
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1 the Union has gone into areas we were prohibited from going in.
2 that the prior rulings would be reversed.

3 MR. DORN: I didnrt go into areas where you prohibited the

4 Empfoyer from going into. The Employer introduced a lot of
5 testimony about the alleged interaction of varlous employees.

6 That went on, and on, and on. So the coÍment by Mr. Frank is
7 just not accurate and the record wilf so reffect.
I HEARING OFEICER GOTTI,ÌEB: But his point, he does make a

9 point about the testlmony regarding those categories. So I'm
10 going to consider that and maybe we strike the evidence

11 testimony regarding those categories whlch wouLd make it
a2 compatible with what the ruling really is. Okay.

13 MR. FRANK: I don't know what that means. But I find it a

14 real due process violation to try to exclude ewidence from the

15 reader of the record, maybe the Board, and a federal cou:rt that
a6 might review this someday.

f7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: you have made a specia] appeal

18 so it'1l be ruled on. There's no due process íssue- T've made

19 a ruling. You have a special appeal. There wiÌl be a decision
20 on that and that's it. There's no faiÌure of due process here.

2I Okay. Let's qo o'i.

22 MR. DORN: I made the statement about the senior CASAC

23 position- T don't know if Mr. Frank has a comment about that.
24 MR. FRANK: As we have urged previously, we believe that
25 a.L.l of the empfoyees in the job category set forth on Employer
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1 Exhibit 1, as amended, shou.Ld be allowed to vote in the

2 election.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okav.

4 MR. FRANK: And the amendment anra , think we agreed on

5 was that the chef was defeted as a supervisor.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Thatrs true. AÌL right.
7 MR. FRANK: Oh, and we also added the assistant

I upholsterer, the job category which was not on Employer

9 Exhibit 1.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI-TEB: Correct. And both the Union

11 and the EmpLoyer agree that the assistant upholsterer shouÌd be

12 included.

13 MR. FRANK: That's correct.
14 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTIIEB: Okay. AÌÌ right, I think we

15 can begin again with the questioning. Go ahead, Mr. Dorn.

16 MR. DORN: Mr. O'Connor --
17 MR. FRANK: Can T ask you what's your position on CASAC?

18 fn other words, is it onLy the senior CASAC that you want to --
1-9 MR. DORN: Yes.

20 MR. ERANK: Thank vou.

2L BY MR. DORN;

22 Q Mr. O'Connor, on the job description of the senior CASAC,

23 how do the individuals in that classification obtain their
24 certi fication ?

25 MR. ERANK: Objection. Going beyond the scope of direct -
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1 MR. DORN: This 1s not an adversary hearÍng, number one.

2 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: IrÌ1 permit it. tr{hatever extra

3 questions or testimony you want to do, you wiÌÌ be permitted.

4 So go ahead -

5 BY MR. DORN:

6 Q Answer the question, please.

7 A I don't know the specÍfics of how they obtain their CASAC

I cr:edential or what qoes into that.

9 Q But they do need a minimum of three years of addiction

10 experience, .is that correct?

11 MR- FRANK: Same object.ion.

12 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: T'11 aflow it.

13 THE WITNESS: Yes.

1.4 BY MR . DORN :

15 Q And Number 2 under qualifications indicates they must have

16 a comprehensive knowÌedge of chemÍcal dependency acquired
'L7 through education and/or training. Is that traininq obtained at

18 Presbyterian or must these individuals hawe ìt before they come

L9 to Pre sbyterian?

20 A I believe they would be required to have it before they

2I are in this position, not necessarily before they come to the

22 Vüestchester Division but before they would elther be pl:omoted

23 into that role or be hired into that role-

24 Q Do you know what the start.ing salary is for this position?

25 A T don't off the top of my head.
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1 Q Would you please look at EmpÌoyer Exhibit 44?

2 A Okay.

3 Q This is the job description of the X-ray technlcian.
L A vê< i] i<

5 Q And the qualification include completion of formal

6 radiology training from an approved schoof. ülhat schooling is

7 required to obtain the ficense and registration?

8 A I'm not entirely certain of the specific training that

9 would be requ i red.

10 Q Isn't it true that in order to obtain a license, such an

11 individua.L must go to schoo.I for at least two years?

L2 A That I don't knÕw.

13 Q This indicates prior experience is required. How much

L4 prior experience is required?

15 A I'm not certain. I would defer to the manaqer of that

16 area for that information.

a7 Q To whom does the X-ray technician report?

18 A The x-ray techn.ician reports to the same individuaL as the

79 EKG technician and Lhat ls the manager of the clinlc at the

20 WesLcheslcr Division.

2L Q The EEG and EKG technician cannot perform the duties of

22 the X-ray technician, isn't that correct?

23 A Correct.

24 Q l,ook at Employer's Exhibit 43. This is the job

25 description of the senior Medicare account representative. This
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1 indicates that these individuals must be a graduate of medical

Z bilLíng/ coding training program. Do you know how .Long that

3 program lasts ?

4 A I do not.

5 Q They also rnust have a minimum of one to two years hands-on

6 billing experience in medicine or psychiatry required, is that
7 correct ?

I A Yes, simiÌar to the psychiatrlc technician, they need two

9 to three years ln a psychiatric hospital .

10 Q Who are these individuals supervised by?

11 A These individuals are supervised by the manager -- there

!2 are two different individuaÌs that oversee different portlons of
13 the Medicar:e project, the manager of care management and the

L4 director of patient finance.

15 Q These indívidua.Ls do biLLing, do they not?

a6 A A part of their job ís to do billing and codinq from the

L7 medicaf record.

18 Q What hours do these individuaÌs work?

19 A The hours? Typícally, they woutd be day shift hours.

20 Q Do they work on weekends?

2a A T'm not certain.

22 Q And where are they located?

23 A Please refer to the map- They relocated recentÌy and they

24 are either in the I or 8A-South portion of the building, I
25 bel.ieve. But T am not exactly sure which one they're on or
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1 whÍch area they are ln. I befieve thatrs the area.

2 Q What department is that?

3 A ft's cafled the Medicare prolect.

4 Q l,et's look at Exhibit 40, p.Lease. This ls a job

5 descrlption of the medicaf data anaÌyst. These indivlduals

6 per:form data entry or data processing, is that correct?

7 A Yes.

I Q Under qual.ifÍcation, it lndicates that cofÌege levet

9 course in anatomy, physiology, and medicaf terminology required.

10 Do you know how many courses they have to take?

11 A They coufd take an A/P course in high school, for example,

L2 advance placement college Ìevel course in anatomy, physiology.

13 So I believe it's limited to one or two courses -

L4 Q Under Number 2 Ín qualifications, it says CCS or ART

15 preferred. Vühat is a CCS?

A6 A I'm not sure.

a7 Q ülhat is an ART?

18 A I'm not sure.

19 Q It a.lso indicates two to three years of medical recori

20 experlence is essential. is that correct?

2L A Two to three years of experience, yes.

22 Q Under Number 4, they have to demonstrate knowÌedge of

23 ÌCD9CM. What .is that?

24 A Medical coding, behavioraÌ health coding.

25 Q Afso know of HCPCS. What is that?
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1 A I'm not sure.

2 Q AÌso DRG qroup coding. Do you know what that is?

3 A I believe it stands for diagnosis related group and has to
4 do with coding.

5 Q trdhat hollrs do these individuals work?

6 A I believe they work typically a day shlft.

7 Q And to who do they report?

I A They wou.Id report to either the supervisor of HIM or the

9 manager of health information management.

10 Q Do they work in the medical record department?

11 A Yes, they do.

12 Q WouÌd you look at EmpÌoyer Exhibit 38, please? This is
13 the job description of a patient registrar.

3.4 A Yes.

15 Q What hours do the patient registrars work?

L6 A It depends if they are in the outpatient department or the

L7 lnpatient depal:tment. The outpatient hours, for example, would

18 be day shift and evening shift, because many of the outpatient
1,9 group therapy sessions for both child and aduÌt outpatient
20 services wouÌd happen after school for children or after work

2I for the adults. The patient registrat:'s hours on the inpatient

22 side wouLd typicalLy be during the day, but the registration
23 process happens alÌ hours of the day by this individual or by

24 someone covering that responsibility.

25 Q And where are the patíent registrars located physically?
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1 A They are Located in seweraÌ areas throughout the hospitaf.
2 In the outpatient department, they would be Ìocated at the

3 welcome desk. Again, that r.ra s Brown ViÌLa on the map, where we

4 started speaking this rnorning. They a]so have a work setting
5 that is in the evaluation center right across from the nursing

6 statlon where the EC cferk or ewaluation center cÌerk woufd

7 wor:k -

I Q And to whom do they report?

9 A In the outpatient setting, I believe they report to the

10 manager of patient finance. And the inpatient side, I befieve

11 they report to the PCD. actualfy, no, I take that back. They

a2 report to the dìrector of the patient finance department.

13 Q PÌease look at Employer Exhibit 37.

1-4 A Okay.

15 Q By the way, after the patient registrar registers the

L6 pat.ient, does he or she have any contact with the patients

a7 therea fter ?

18 A Yes, if they had foflow-up questions for them. One of the

L9 most important components of registering them is to get

20 important information about their ìnsurance. AÌso, if they

2a needed to folÌow-up a medical record or ID number that the

22 patient would be issued. It is interesting that in an inpatient
23 setting, the patients commonly remove their patient fD band-

24 Sometimes, patíents switch the.ir ID bands for whatever reason.

25 If they needed to be reissued the patient lD band throuqhout
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1 their hospltalization, as they often are. the registrar would bìe

2 invofved in that process.

3 Q Do the registrars do any direct patient care?

4 A Direct pat.ient care? No. But the information they obta.in
5 is wital to patient care.

6 Q DÍd I ask you about Employer Exhlbit 37?

7 A You asked rne to pull it out.
I Q Right. That's the Medlcaid counseLor. To whom do these
9 individuaÌs report ?

10 A To either the manager or the director of patient finance.
11 Q l¡/hat hours do they vrork?

1-2 A f believe they work tl:adìtionaf day shift houïs.
13 Q Do they handle any finance?

L4 A I donrt think so, no. lt's mostly helping patient appfy
15 for Medicaid or other county-provided sociar services benefits.
L6 Q They don't do any actual patient care, do they?
1-7 A Not that I'm aware of.
18 Q Take a .Iook at EmpÌoyer Exh.ibit 36, please. This is the
L9 job description of the patient account representatlve- By the
20 way, going back for a second, where are the Medicaid counse lor
2L Ìocated?

22 A The Medicaj d counseLors would be Ìocated just down the
23 haÌÌ frorn the evaÌuation center.

24 Q Do they have a separate office?
25 A Yes.
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1 Q Okay, thank you. All right/ qolng back to the patient

2 account representative, to whom do these people report?

3 A The patient account representatives report to either the

4 manager or the director of patient finance.

5 Q And what are their hours?

6 A The hours I befieve are traditionally day shift, but this
7 is the job responsibifity, if you'Ll recaÌÌ, that is performed

8 alÌ hours of the day in the evaluation center by the access

9 services representative that's covering the evaluation center

10 clerk off shift. So the patient account representative, that
11 job responsibility, that function is covered 24 by 7 as patients

12 are be.ing admitted to the hospital.

13 Q Is it covered by a patient account l:epl:esentative?

14 A Tt can be, yes. But it is also covered by an access

15 services representative.

L6 Q How many pat.ient account l:epresentatives are empÌoyed at

L7 the hospital ?

fB A -L befieve s ìx or seven.

a9 Q Do you know how many only work a day shift?
20 A I don't-

2L Q Where are their offices located?

22 A Their offices would be just down the hall from the

23 eval uarion center.

24 Q Do they have a separate office?

25 A Yes, they do. But patients often go into that area.
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1 Q They don't do any actuaÌ patient care. do they?

2 A I guess you could look at communication as a very

3 important component of t.herapeutic patient care in a psychiatric

4 environment, so explaining their bilÌ, therapeuticalÌy and

5 casually, yes.

6 Q Do they give the same kind of patient care as the mentaÌ

7 health worker qiwe s ?

8 A Not the same kind, no.

9 Q What kind of patient care do they give?

10 A Wel.L, again, in psychiatry, we don't hawe fancy machines

11 or devices oftentimes so therapeutic communicatiÕn is the maln

L2 form of therapy that all patients receive. AÌl of us in a

13 Planetree hospital are caregivers. That would include menta.I

L4 health workers and patient account representatives or evaÌuation

15 center c.lerks. We talked about escalating a patient or

16 de-escalating a patient. All individuals .in a psychiatrlc

L7 environment are caregivers and therapeutic conununication is a

18 very lmportant component of all of the r^¡ork that we do.

19 Q Do they normaLLy work in one of the 12 units you referred

20 to?

2a A Do they norma.l.ly work there?

22 Q Yes.

23 A No. The patients normally visit them.

24 Q Under their qualifications, it indicates it is essential

25 for them to have prior experience working rvlth insurance
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1 companies and the ability to analyze insurance benefits. ls
2 that correct ?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Pfease .look at EmpÌoyer Exhibit 35. This is the job

5 description of the heaÌth information -- I'm sorry, of the chart

6 anaÌyst. To whom does the chart analyst report?

7 A The chart anaÌyst would report to e.ither the supervisor of

I hea]th information manaqement or the manager of heafth

9 information management.

10 Q ülhat hours do they normally work?

11 A Again, this job description. because they are t:esponsible

L2 for vislting inpatlent psychiatric units, I'm not certain. But

13 they are the individuals that are responsibfe for wisiting each

a4 of the inpatient units on a daily basis. sometimes multiple
15 tirnes during the day to get any of the paper documents that
L6 woufd have been generated for each of the patients so that they

l7 can have the electronic medical record complete or those files
18 scanned so that they can add those to the electronic medical

L9 record.

20 MR. DORN: I ask that the answer be stricken.

2I BY MR. DORN;

22 Q I ask that the answer be stricken. I asked you what hours

23 do they work?

24 A Irm not entirely certain.

25 Q In what area do they work?
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1 A Throughout the entlre hospital.
2 Q Under qualification, it indicates that they have to have

3 expel:ience in medical record operating procedures and systems.

4 And that DSM4 coding system preferred. What is a DSM4 coding

5 system?

6 A Again, that's the diagnostic statistical manual. That,s
7 the Bibfe for behavioral health. Afl professìonals and

8 nonprofessional in behavioral health refer to that for treatment
9 regimens, diagnostic information.

10 Q Do they do any data entry?

11 A The chart analvst?

L2 Q Yes.

13 A Yes, I believe they do.

1-4 Q WouLd you look at EmpÌoyer Exhibit 34. please? This is
15 the job descriptlon of the data specialist. To whom do these
16 individuaÌs l:eport ?

17 A Either t_he supervisor of health information management or
18 the manager of health information management.

1-9 Q What hours do they work?

20 A T beLieve this .is traditionally a day shift job.
2I Q And they do data entry or data processìng?

22 A They provide secretarlal support similar to unit cferk c¡r

23 an EC clerk, yes.

24 Q Where are they located?

25 A They wouÌd be Located in the medicaf records department.

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wa)me, New .fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692-o66o



492

1 Q Would you fook at Employer Exhibit 33, please- This is
2 the job description of the data technician. To whom do these

3 lndividuals report ?

4 A To either the supervisor of HIM or the manager of HIM.

5 Q And these individua.Ls also do data entry or data

6 processing, is that correct?

7 A Yes, sir-

I Q What are their hours?

9 A T befíeve day shlft primariÌy.

10 Q These employees that work the day shift generaÌly don't
11 work weekends, isn't that correct?

12 MR. FRANK: Objection. Which employees are we referring
13 to?

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I/ühat's that? People were

15 talking.

L6 MR. FRANK: We've covered a lot of cateqories. fühich one

f7 is he asking about. lt's not a clear question-

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. You want to clarify?
L9 BY MR. DORN:

20 Q Does the data technician or the data specialist work

21 wee kends ?

22 A I/m not certain.

23 Q ldhere are the data technicians Ìocated?

24 A fn the medical records department.

25 Q Would you Look at Employer Exhibit 32. please. This is
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1 the job description of the medical record abstractor- To whom

2 do rhese peop-Le report?

3 A To the supervisor of HIM or the manager of HfM.

4 Q tr{hat are thelr hours of work?

5 A That I am not certaÍn of because the medicaÌ record

6 abstractol: is also one of the many jobs that has been cross

7 trained to cover for the chart analyst. And I am not certain of
8 the chal:t analyst hours because they are responsible for picking
9 up documents from all the inpatient units on a dally basis.

10 Q l{here do the medical record abstractors work?

11 A They work in the medicaL records department.

12 Q Take a look at Employer Exhibit 31. This is the job

13 description of the HTM processing specialist. To whom do these

L4 indivlduals report ?

15 A To either the superwisor of HIM or the manager of HIM.

f6 Q What hours do they work?

A7 A I believe it's tTaditionally a day shift job.

18 Q Do they work on weekends?

L9 A ]'m nol cerLaln.

20 Q trlhere are they Ìocated?

2l A ln the medicaÌ records department.

22 Q Take a .look at Employer Exhibit 23, please.

23 A Two-three ?

24 Q Two-three, yes.

25 Q This is a job description of the cashier. To whom does
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1 this individuaf report ?

2 A To the director of fiscaL services.

3 Q Vihat hours does this individual work?

4 A TraditionaÌly/ it's a day shift job.

5 Q Do they work on weekends?

6 A I don't- lhink so-

7 Q Where do these indlviduafs work? !ühat's theit: location?
I A They're in the cashier's booth, cashier's office. It's
9 Ìocated in the center buiÌding adjacent to the mail, ïoom- They

10 wou.Id shar:e a conìmon doorway, and across the hall from where the

11 nursÍng office woufd be located.

!2 Q Under qualifications/ it indicates that an AAS in
13 accountlng or equivaÌent experience in a computerlzed accounting

f4 environment is required. [¡ihat is an AAS in accounting?

15 A I'm sorry, I don't know.

16 Q You don't know how long one would have to go to school to
77 obtain such a degree or whatever it is, do you?

18 A I do not. f believe a high school degree is aÌl that,s
L9 requ.ired. But I don't know how long they woufd have to go to
20 schooÌ beyond that. It doesnrt specify.
2f Q I want to Look at Employer Exhibit 22, pLease.

22 A Okay.

23 Q This is the job description of the telephone operator. To

24 whom does the telephone operator report?

25 A To the lead coÍìrnun i cat i ons individrral-
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1 Q And where is that individuaf located?

2 A The .lead corìmunications? This is a fead role. It's a

3 working role. So the Ìead lndividual v.routd actually work in the

4 same seat/ same location as the telephone operators. In the

5 center building. as you come up the main stairs, you enter the

6 building. There would be a reception area on the left side.
7 Just behind the welcome desk in that reception area/ there would

8 be a glass divider. Behind that would be where the telephone

9 operator would sit just in the main entrance of the center

10 buiÌding.

11 Q Does anyone efse work in the same area that the teÌephone

L2 operator is s ittlng?

13 A Sure, the staff asslstant that is the welcome desk

a4 greeter, if you wiÌÌ.
15 Q Well, the welcome desk greeter is in front of the

a6 telephone operator. is that correct?

I7 A Directly five feet in front.
18 Q And there is a glass divider?
19 A There is a dividing wall, if you wiÌL, gÌass waÌÌ that
20 slides.

2f Q Telephone operator work in an office?
22 A lt's a work area. I wouLdn,t call it an office. It's
23 more like a cubicle in an open space that has a glass wall for
24 privacy so that tefephone caLls are not overheard by the

25 visltors at the welcome desk that's rioht there-
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1 Q No one else works in the cubicle other than the tetephone

2 operator, is that correct?

3 A One at a time, yes.

4 Q What are the hours of the teÌephone operator?

s A 24 by 1, 365.

6 Q Under qualifications, it indicates that these individuals
7 need a minimum of two years' experience on consofe and

8 switchboard. Is that correct?

9 A Yes-

10 Q Take a look at Empfoyer Exhibit 20.

11 A Okay.

f2 Q Thls is the job description of the administrative
13 assistant. To whom do these individuals report?

L4 A Val:ious managers, directors, department heads thl:oughout

15 the organi z ation -

16 Q Where are they located?

L7 A Throughout the hospitaÌ.
18 Q How many administrative assistants are employed by the

A9 hospital ?

20 A -L think six or seven.

2L Q Are any of them located in the medical records department?

22 A T donrt befieve so. There is an office assistant there,
23 but not an aclministrative assistant.
24 Q Under qualification, it indicates they have to have three

25 years of secretariaÌ experlence, is that correct?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q What hours do they work?

3 A I be.Lieve they generaÌly work day shift hours.

4 Q Do they work weekends?

5 A They can, sure -

6 Q Do they?

7 A On speciaÌ projects, yes.

I Q Norma]ly, they do not, isn't that correct?

9 A But they do.

10 Q Pardon?

11 A But they do. l-ike for example we have an autism walk that
f2 we are sponsoring and the administrative assistants are some of
13 the coordinators for that event. We'11 have 10,000 people on

L4 our campus.

15 Q How often does that occur?

a6 A That one event? Once a year. But there are other events

L7 Ìike the night wafks, memory walks for Alzheimer's.

18 Q In an average month, how often do the administrative
19 assistants work on weekends?

20 A Just on speciaÌ projects.

2L Q Look at Employer Exhibit 19, please.

22 A Sure.

23 Q This is lhe job description for the office assistant- To

24 whom do these empLoyees report?

25 A They would report to any different department head or
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1 manager throughout the hospital that they were working in that
2 department.

3 Q What hours do they work?

4 A Generally, they would work day shift hours.

5 Q Do they work weekends?

6 A I don't think so, no.

'Ì Q Where are they Ìocated?

8 A Throuqhout the hospital.

9 Q Under qualifications, it .indicates a minimum of two years

10 prev.ious c]erical experience. ls that correct?

11 A Yes. That ls one of the qualifications-

1-2 Q How many office assístants are employed by the hospital?

13 A I'm not entirely certain. but less than flve.

a4 Q Take a look at Exhibit 18. please. This is the job

15 description for the staff assistant- To whom do these people

16 report ?

f7 A They wouÌd repol:t to the manager of the departments that
18 they work in. the department head.

19 Q How many staff assistants are employed by Presbyterian?

20 A Over 20.

2L Q What are their houl:s?

22 A Depending on the department they are working in, they can

23 vary. Patient care services, the staff assistants would work

24 days and evenings because one of their primary responsibllilies

25 is scheduÌing and interfacing with unit cterks. Generally, they
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1 wouÌd be day shift employees.

2 Q Do they normaLLy work weekends?

3 A Pê L ì en t. care services may .

4 Q You're not sure then?

5 A I'm not sure,

6 Q Under qualifications, it indicates two to three years of
7 secretarial experience/ is that correct?

I A Yes.

9 Q And take a .Look at Employer Exhibit 8.

10 MR. FRANK: E iqht ?

11 MR. DORN: Eight.

L2 THE WITNESS: Yes.

13 BY MR. DORN:

L4 Q To whom do these indiwiduaÌs repol:t?

15 A The LPNS wouLd report to the palient care directors on the

L6 units that they are assigned to and that they viork on.

a7 Q These indìviduals have to have graduated from an

18 accredited LPN program. Do you know hoin/ long they have to go to
L9 graduate ?

20 A I'm not certain of the length of time, no.

21- Q Do you know what they have to do in order to become

22 licensed and regi stered?

23 A Not the specifics, no- I would defer to the clinícal
24 manaqer on that -

25 Q Take a .look at Emptoyer Exhibit 9, please. This ís the
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1 jobì descrlption of the access services representative. To whom

2 do these individuals report?

3 A The access services representatlves report to the director
4 of access services.

5 Q And where is the director located?

6 A Right across the hall from the evaluation center or just

7 down the hall from the evaÌuation center.

I Q Where do these individLtals work? What Location?

9 A The access services representatives work across the hall
10 from the evaluation center.

11 Q Do they work in a separate office?
A2 A They work in a separate office and aÌso in the evaÌuation

13 center.

14 O What hours do they work?

15 A AÌÌ hours of the day. Tt's a 24 by 1 job responsibility.
'L6 Q So they work different shifts?

1-7 A Yes, they do.

18 Q How many access serwices representatives are there?

L9 A Ten or tweÌwe-

20 Q Do they all work different shifts?

2A A Yes. They alf rotate.

22 Q They don't do d.irect patient care, do they?

23 A They do not, no. A.lthough, they can take vital signs if
24 they are covering for the evaluatlon center cÌerk -- when they

25 are covering for the evaluation center cLerk.
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1 Q Take a Ìook at Employer Exhiblt 11, please.

2 A You said 11, sir?

3 Q Yes.

4 A This is the job description of the senior access servlces

5 representative. Do these índividuaLs report to the same person

6 that the access services representatives report to?

'l A Yes, to the director of access services.

8 Q What are their hours of work?

9 A This individuaÌ typically works the day shift. But this
10 indÍviduaf is also responsibÌe for covering evening and weekend

11 shifts if scheduling holes exist.

12 Q How many senior access serv.ices representatives are

13 employed by rhe hospitàl ?

L4 A Just one.

15 Q Under qualifícations, T see that a BA/BS in psychology or

L6 related field, or a minimum of two years' experience in a

I7 psychiatric setting is requíred. Is that correct?

18 A I don't beLieve the BA or BS ls required. The BLS, basic

L9 life support, is required. That's a separate sentence.

20 Q So the qualifications fisted in this job descript.ion are

2L not accurate ?

22 A Wefl, it doesn't say if it's preferred or required. The

23 qualifìcations can indicate either.
24 Q Ríght. It says BAIBS or a minimum of two years'

25 experience in a psychiatric setting.
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f A But what it doesn't say is preferred or required/ so lrm
2 not sure which it is. The BLS, the very next sentence, basic
3 life support, it says it is required and it specifies that-
4 Q How often does this indivíduaÌ work evenings or nights?

5 A I think simlÌar to the other 10 to 12 people in the

6 department, they rotate to cover those shifts- But the actual
7 number, f am not certain of.
8 Q Take a look at Employer Exhibit 12. Tt's the job

9 description of soc.iaÌ work assistant.
10 A Yes.

11 Q To whom do these individuaÌs repol:t?

L2 MR- FRANK: Objectlon -- withdrawn.

13 THE WITNESS: The sociaÌ work assìstants primarily report
14 to the coordinator of social work that I referenced earÌier this
15 morning.

16 BY MR. DORN:

L7 Q Where does the coordinator work. what locatlon?
18 A That individuaÌ again referring to Employer Exhibit 3

f9 would be at the I / 2 / 3 / 3L-Sottth, the orange portion of the map,

20 on the left-hand side of that orange sectÍon would be that
2L individual's office.
22 Q Vùhat department is that?

23 A The department of social work, patient care services.
24 Q What hours do these indiwiduals work?

25 A The social work assistants can work days and eveninqs, and

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Vlalme , Ner^¡ Jersey 07 47 O

(973) 692 -O66O



503

1 if itrs scheduÌed even on a weekend, depending on when patients
2 are going to be discharged.

3 Q How often would you say they work on a weekend?

4 A I'm not certain, but it realfy depends on the patients and

5 the.ir abiÌity to be discharged.

6 Q How many sociaf work asslstants are employed by the

7 hospital ?

I A I think around 10 to 12.

9 Q Take a look at EmpÌoyer Exhibit 13. How many sen.ior

10 sociaf work assistants are employed by the hospitaL?

11 A Either one or two.

a2 Q They report to thls same coordinator?

13 A Corl:ect.

14 Q What are their hours of work?

15 A lt woufd be similar to the social work assistants. It
a6 primarily depends on the unit that they are supporting and the

A7 patients that would be discharged from the unit- So it could be

18 Monday to Friday, could be a Saturday to Sunday. It reaÌÌy
'1,9 depends on when patients are ready for díscharge -

20 Q You don't know which units these individuals or this
2L indívidual is assigned to?

22 A They al:e aÌl assigned to different units. They support

23 different units and different patient populations. So some

24 wouÌd specifically work with chiLdren or adoÌescents. Some

25 wou.Ld work more with geriatrlc or mature aduÌt. Some nouÌd lrork
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1 more with acute psychiatric disorders.

2 Q When yôu say they aÌl, I thought you indicated there are

3 only one or t!,¡o senior social work assistants?

4 A I'm sorry. I was referring to the social work assistants.

5 Q I'm ta.Iking about the senior socìaÌ work assistants.
6 A I'm not sure where this individual or the one or two

7 .individuals, whlch units they are assigned to.

I Q Do you know their hours of work?

9 A Again. .it wouLd be simifar to the social work assistants

10 and it would depend primarlly on when patients are ready for
11 dÍscharge.

12 Q Do you know specifically which units these one or two

13 individuaÌs work with?

L4 A The senior social work assistant, I do not know which unit
15 or units they would support.

t6 Q Take a .look at Employer Exhibit 14. This is the job

L7 description of the purchasing assistant. To whom do these

18 individuaÌs report ?

L9 A To one of two people, to the manager of procurement and

20 strategic sourcing or the manager of purchasing or the manager

2I of food and nutrition-

22 Q How many purchasing assistants are employed by the

23 hospitaf ?

24 A Just one.

25 Q What are his or her hours?
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1 A Typical, day shift.
2 Q Does this individuaÌ wol:k ü¡eekends?

3 A Not that f'm aware of.
4 Q Vfhere does this individual work?

5 A f'lÌ refer to the map, Employer Exhibit 3. f believe this
6 individual works on 3A-South/ which is next door to the employee

7 or staff lounge.

I Q What department ls that?

9 A The department of purchasing.

10 Q This individual doesn't provide direct patient care, is
11 that correct ?

a2 A No, sir.

13 Q That's not correct, or he doesn't or she doesn't provide

14 direct patient care ?

15 A The individual does not provide direct patient care.

1-6 Q Thank you.

L'/ MR. DORN: Can we take a short break?

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sure.

a9 (Whereupon, a brief tecess was taken.)

20 HEARING OI'FICER GOTTLIEB: On the tecord.

2L The hearing is over for today. We will be resuming on

22 April 5th, at 9:30 a.m. Thank you very much.

23 (Ilhereupon, the trearing in the abowe-entitled mattèr adjourned,

24 to reconvene on Tuesday, ApríI 5, 2OL1-, aE 9:30 a-m.)

25
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1 PROCEEDI{GS

2 (Time Noted: 9:14 a.rn.)

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: This is a resumption in the

4 matter of the Nelr York Presbyterian Hospital, 2-RC-23583.

5 Before we proceed I would just like to state that at the last
6 hearing an issue arose because the witness testified to

7 something about the job categories are titles that are

8 represented by Local 30, and Irm not going to strike that
9 testimony. The Union didn't ask a question about those titles

10 and testimony, it just came out as a result-
11 But .in general today you don't really need any testimony

L2 those job categories since they're not at issue. I know there's
13 been a speciaL appeal taken; the Region hasn,t made a

f4 determination yet on that, so.

15 MR. FRANK: May I state for the record, the Emptoyer

16 believes those people ar:e entitled to vote. There is an 1ssue.

17 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

18 MR. FRANK: You may say there's no issue, but the Employer

19 believes they're entitled to vote.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Right, and you've made your -
21- MR. FRANK: But there ls an issue.

22 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: -- special appeaÌ

23 MR- DORN: Don't tell us that the Union doesn't want them

24 [o vote. They've

25 MR. FRANK: It's true.
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1 MR. DORN: -- a.Lready voted.

2 MR. FRANK: No/ you didn't want them

3 MR- DORN: They've already voted and their -
4 HEARING OFFTCER GOTT],IEB: Vüell, let us not argue here.

5 MR. DORN: -- represented but you don't want them _

6 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB; t-et us not argue. They made a

7 special

I MR. DORN: Okay, but -
9 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: you don't have to go on about

10 lt. You've made a speciaÌ appeal and there's going to be

11 decision on that.
a2 MR. FRANK: But how can you say there's no issue. that's
13 what you don,t understand?

L4 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTT-IEB: Okay.

15 MR. FRANK: The Employer takes the position that afl of
1-6 those categories are entitled to vote. you may disagree with
l'l that/ but there is certainly an issue-

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Well, you've made an offer of
19 proof and you've made a speciaÌ appeal, and, and -
20 MR. FRANK; IdelÌ, how can you say there's no issue?

2L MR. DORN; I'm going to object.
22 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: yes, I don't -
23 MR. DORN: It's ridÍcuÌous.
24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I agree. f don't nant to waste

25 any time. Let's beqin now with the witness, okay. WeÌI,
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1 actually, off the record, please.

2 (Off the record)

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

4 MR. FRANK: May I state someth.ing eÌse on the record so

5 oLrr posit.ion is cLear on this issue?

6 HEARING OFEICER GOTTI,IEB: Go ahead.

7 MR- FRANK: Thank you. I believe under established Board

8 Law, Local 30 has a riqht to lntervene in this proceedlng as a

9 somebody, as an entity that had been certified prevlousÌy by the

10 Board or the certification is in pface. Whether the employees

11 who were in that unit are entitled to vote in this election is

12 something to be determined in this case.

13 And I befieve Board Law specifically permits an eÌection

14 where there is no contract bar. To prevent any testimony or

15 ewidence reqarding whether people who are not subject to

16 contract bar I think is a denial of due process both for the

L7 employees and for lhe Employer.

18 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, aÌf right. co ahead, Mr.

19 Dorn, are you ready?

20 MR. DORN: Irm ready.

21 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay

22 MR. DORN: I'd like to know if the Employer has brought

23 information concerning the pay range in this. that you have

24 asked for on a number of previous occasions.

25 MR. FRANK: The witness is prepared to testify.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: We had previously asked the

2 witness if he had any know.Ledge and he stated that he didn't

3 have any know.Iedge of this, that's why the documents were

4 essentìal and I did ask for them.

5 MR. FRANK: Then I would suggest we have a separate record

6 regarding the subpoena on that issue-

7 MR. DORN: f don't know what that means.

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: WeÌÌ. they are subpoenaed and T

9 mean it's relevant and there is a subpoena here, so they're

10 subpoenaed documents.

11 MR. FRANK: I'd like a separate record to argue that

L2 issue. Vüe have a Motion to Quash the subpoena-

13 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. Vùell, I'ÌÌ make my

)-4 ruling on that, that the documents are relevant, that it is

15 beyond doubt that they're relevant/ that they're criticaÌ in

16 fact and, you know, the documents are subpoenaed and they should

I7 be pr esented here.

18 MR. FRANK: I request a separate record on that issue.

L9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: f'm not going to have a

20 separate record. I've made my ruling and that's it. I mean you

2L couÌd certainly ask- I mean we've asked the wltness before and

22 the witness dld state that he had no knowledge of -
23 MR. FRANK: That's not correct. that¡s not what he

24 testified to.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Oh, weÌl, Mr. Dorn can ask the
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1 questions but no matter what there's documentary evídence, it's
2 subpoenaed and it shou.Ld be brought, black and white.

3 MR - FRANK: trde.L.I , we have a Motion to Quash .

4 HEARING OEFICER GOTTI,IEB: WelÌ, I'we ruled on your Motion

5 to Quash. I'm not going

6 MR. FRANK: Have vou read it?

7 HEARING OEFICER 
"Orrar"U, 

Yes. I have. I read it before

I I came here/ the entire thing, yes, I did.

9 MR. FRANK: We take appeal to that issue. And I ask that
10 all of the matters regardlng the subpoena be in a separate

11 record pursuant to the Board's policles and rules and

a2 regulations.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Mr. Dorn.

!4 Whereupon,

15 Sedrick O'Connor

16 Having been previously sworn was recaÌÌed and test.if.ied herein

17 as follows:

18

L9 BY MR. DORN:

20 Q ideÌl/ Mr. O'Connor/ do you know the starting rate of pay

2f or Grade 0-1?

22 A Generally, yes.

23 Q What do you mean by generally, do you know or don't you

24 know?

25 MR. FRANK: Obj ection.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: WelÌ, that's totally
2 appropriate, go ahead.

3 BY MR. DORN:

4Q

5 do you know definitely what the starting rate is?

6 MR. FRANK: Objection to form.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: T'lÌ allow it, go ahead.

I THE WITNESS: There is a range and I am familiar with the

9 generaÌ range, yes.

10 BY MR. DORN:

11 Q What is the startinq pay for crade 1?

L2 A It would range from about 14 and a hatf doÌÌars to I7, L7

13 and a half do.Llars.

14 Q That's the starting pay?

15 A Yes.

a6 Q And what does the range depend on?

A7 MR. ERANK: Obiect.ion to form.

18 HEARING oFFrcE; GoTTLTEB: r,ÌÌ permir ir.
19 THE üITTNESS: Can you repeat the question, sir?
20 BY MR. DORN:

2I Q How do you determine whether an employee is to start at

22 14.50 or 17.50?

23 A Tt depends on experlence. It depends on training the

24 individual. educatlon/ the job that they're entel:ing.

25 Q All this is for crade 1?
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1 A Yes, sir.

2 Q What is maxlmum rate of pay for Grade One?

3 A The maximum wouÌd be somewhere with a hirlng or entry rate
4 wou]d somewhere around 11 Lo I1 and a half dolfars. And as

5 previously been discussed here, because aLL of our empÌoyees

6 receíve merit pay, pay for performance, they all quite likely
7 have a dífferent rate of pay/ although they would be brought in
B at a comparable range.

9 Their actual wages would vary based on performance, based

10 on length of service, based on additionaL training, or education

11 that they would receive durinq the course of their employment

L2 with rhe hosp j L.al .

13 Q Is there a maximum rate of pay for crade 1?

L4 A I'm familiar with the maximum rate of the hiring range

15 that I testified to.
16 Q But you're not famifiar with the maximum rate of pay?

L7 A For the W-O-1?

18 Q Yes.

19 A No, Sir.

20 Q Do you know how Ìong it would take an employee to go from

2L the hiring rate to the maxlmum rate?

22 A No.

23 Q ldhat is the hiring rate for Grade 2?

24 A The hirinq rate for Grade 0 2 wou.Id be somewhere 17 and 19

25 and a haff doflars.
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1 Q Do you know the max.imum rate of pay for Grade 2?

2 A The max.imum of the h.iring rate would be around 19 and a

3 half doÌÌars.

4 Q Do you know if there's a maxlmum rate of pay other than

5 the hiring rate ?

6 A I beÌieve rhere is, yes .

7 Q Do you know what it is?

I A No, Sir, I do not.

9 Q Do you know how long it woufd take an employee to go from

10 the starting rate to the maximum rate?

11 A WelÌ, that's lmpossible to say for a number of reasons.

12 The salary ranges are continuousÌy addressed, modified. They

13 are aged. if you will. They increase over time.

L4 Q I'm talking about the present time. Do you know what the

15 maximum rate of pay is for a crade 2?

L6 A No, sir, T do not.

a7 Q What is the starting rate for crade 3?

18 A Roughly that would be in the range of about 19 to 21

L9 dolÌars -

20 Q Does the hospital maintain in written form the starting

2I pay of all the grades?

22 A T'm sorry, could you restate that?

23 Q Does the hospital maintain in wrítten form any documents

24 which wou.Ld ìndicate the starting rate of pay for each of the

25 grade s ?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q Do you have it with you?

3 A No, sir, I do not, but I'm prepared to testífy --
4 Q Mr- O'Connor, please. just answer the questions.

5 A Sure.

6 MR. FRANK: Objection to cutting off the witness -

7 MR. DORN: The witness was not responding --
I HEARÌNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: There wasn't a question. The

9 witness was not responding to the question that was asked.

10 MR. FRANK: Obj ection.

11 BY MR. DORN:

L2 Q Do you know the maximum rate of pay for the Grade 3?

13 A No, s 1r.

L4 Q Do you know how long it woufd take an employee to go from

15 the star:ting rate to the maxlmum rate of pay?

a6 A No, sir.

a7 MR- FRANK: Olljectlon to the for.m of the questions.

18 There's a presumption in here that there's no foundation, that

19 it's any way related to time.

20 MR. DORN: If he knows somethlng, then he shÕuld testify

22 HEARING OEEICER GOTTLIEB: I'll permit it.

23 MR. DORN: -- thel:e's no -
24 BY MR. DORN:

25 Q What's the starting rate of pay for Grade 4?
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1 A RoughÌy the starting rate of pay wouLd be between 20 and

2 22 dollars an hour.

3 Q Do you know the maximum rate of pay for Grade 4?

4 A No, s ir.

5 Q What's the starting rate of pay for Grade 5?

6 A Roughly 27 Lo 23 doÌlars an hour.

7 Q Do you know the maximum rate of pay for crade 5?

I A No, sir.

9 Q tr{hat's the starting rate of pay for Grade 6?

10 A It would be roughly between 22 and 24 doÌÌars an hour.

11 Q Do you know the maximum rate of pay for Grade 6?

L2 A No, sir.

13 Q Do you know the starting rate of pay for Grade E?

1-4 A Grade E?

15 Q Yes.

L6 A No, sir.
'l-7 Q Are there grades above Gl:ade 6?

18 A ü7-0-7 .is one that we're dealing w.ith from Exhibit A, or

t9 Exhibit 1.

20 Q What classifications of employees are in W07?

2I A X-Ray Tecr nician -

22 Q And what's the rate of pay for a crade 7?

23 A Roughly 24 ta 26 dollars an hour.

24 Q Are there rates of pay for grades above seven?

25 A Sure.
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1 Q What are those grades?

2 A Those wouÌd be grades W08 through W11.

3 Q Are any of the non-professionaÌ classifications on

4 Empfoyer's Exhibít One 1n any of those grades?

5 A No/ they are not.

6 MR. DORN: Madam Hearing Officer, in view of the f,act that
7 the witness is testifying that the hospltal does maintain a

8 written record of these pay ranges, we again ask that block of
9 those documents be submitted to the Board.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Correct- Again. I've rufed
11 that they have to be submitted and brought here at the next

12 hearing date. They're subpoenaed and they're relewant and they

13 have to be provlded.

L4 MR. FRANK: I take an exceptlon to your ruling and I
15 request the Board Ruling on the subpoena on that issue.

L6 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: It's a subpoenaed issue. you

a7 have to bring the records. You have to brlng the documents in.
18 I'm not going to qo further into this matter-

L9 MR. FRANK: We made a Motlon to Quash. I beÌieve that the

20 Board has to rule on the Motion to Quash-

2l HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: T've ruled on it. Okay, just
22 go. l'm not going to spend any more time on this. Go ahead.

23 Mr. Dorn -

24 MR. DORN: I've no further questions.

25 REDIRECT EXAMINATTON
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q Mr. O'Connor, referring to aLL of the employees on

3 Employer: Exhibit One, all those job categories.
A L /ìl¡-t,vr\qt ¡

5 Q Vüould you describe for the record where employees in those

6 job categories are híred, is it a local hiring process?

7 A Yes/ sir. A1I of these índividuafs woufd be híred through

8 the human resources department at the llestchester diwision.
9 Q Now, if there's a need to terminate an employee,s

10 appointment, referrlng to aff of the job categorles in Employer

11 Exhíbit One, would you describe where that one occurs?

1-2 A That process woufd be focal as weÌl just Ìike the hlrlng
13 process would be conducted throuqh the Westchester division-
14 Terminations shou.Id that be deemed necessary woufd be handfed

15 locaÌly with the Westchester division, human resources

L6 department, and the department head Õf the department that was

a7 initiating the termination.
18 Q And what is your role I mean in your, \,vhat's yout:

19 position in the HR department?

20 A My pos.ition at the Westchester division as the manaqer of
21 the human resources and employee relations functions.
22 Q And do you apply the same standards to hiring decisions
23 and termination decisìons for afl of the empÌoyees job

24 categories descríbed ln Exhibit One?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q Now, during cross examination, you were repeatedÌy asked

2 by Mr. Dorn about the permanent assignments of empfoyees to
3 units, do you recalÌ that?

4 A Yes, I do.

5 Q And let me start viith the Nichols Cottage. Are there

6 other employee job classifications descrÍbed on Employer Exhibit
7 1 that have regular contact with the employees on the Nichols

I Cottage un.it in addition to those who are permanently assigned

9 to the unÍt ?

10 MR. DORN: I'm going to object. We have this testlmony on

11 direct examlnation.

12 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB:

13 MR. DORN: I'm going to object. ÍÍe have this testìmony on

14 direct examination.

15 HEARïNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes/ we did have this
16 test.imony.

l7 MR. FRANK: I don,t that is correct.
18 HEARïNG OEFICER GOTTLIEB: All the testimony vrent to that
19 issue so. Another question. please.

20 THE iÍITNESS: t¡loufd you repeat the question to the

2L witnes s ?

22 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you have another question?

23 MR. FRANK: Oh, are you directing the witness not to

24 answer that gues tion?

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: I'm sustaining the objection.
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q On unit Three South whlch categories of empfoyees who were

3 not permanent.ly assigned to that unit clean the area, that's
4 Three South.

5 MR. DORN: I'm goíng to object, the same objection.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'll permit that.
7 THE ü/ITNESS: I'm referring to Employer Exhil:it One, the

I halÌ aides building servlce attendants, senior hatt aide that
9 would be primaríly responsibLe for cLeaning the patient rooms or

10 the unit.

11 BY MR. FRANK:

f2 Q Now, employees who have cLeaning functions how many units
13 to do you work on?

L4 A Many of them work on one or two units, so Nichols Cottage

15 for example is adjacent to the adoLescent unit. The cleaning

L6 staff or the ha.l.l aides would cover one of both of those units
1-7 is just one example. But the sane with food and nutrition,
18 nutrition assistance provide a sÍmi1ar function to unlts v,/hether

a9 they're adjoining or not.

20 Q WelÌ, for example the food and nutrition, in other words

2! when you describing people who were permanently ass.igned to the

22 unit, okay, you did not describe food and nutrition as one of

23 those categories, corre ct ?

24 A -r don't I]e I i eve so.

25 Q And the reason for that was they work in muÌtiple units?
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1 A Correct.

2 Q What other job categories work in multiple units on a

3 regular basis that are not permanentÌy assigned to a sing.le

4 unlt ?

5 A Many of the jobs on Employer Exhibit One.

6 Q Would you please ident.ify fol: the record what the jobs are

7 that regularly work on multiple units that, and are not just

I assigned to a single unit?

9 A Sure. The abstractor for health information management,

10 the access services representative, chart analyst, medical data

11 analyst, the EC Clerks, maiÌ clerk. MediCaid counselor, patient

L2 account representatives, HfM Data Specialists, HIM processing

13 specialists, Senior Medicare Account rep, KCSACS, EKG

'J-4 Technlcian, pharmacy technician, phÌebotomist, X*Ray technician,

15 nutrit.ion assistant, social work assistant. buiÌding services

16 attendant, concierges, .laundry services coordinator, delivery

17 person. drapery maker, hall aldes, senior halÌ aide, senior

18 social work assistant/ store room clerk, and aÌl of the jobs at

L9 Lhe botLom of Lhe --

20 Q Please describe them for the record, continue your answer.

2I A General serwice worker. locksmith, maintenance worker.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: AÌl ríght, we don't have to get

23 ínto the orher categories.

24 MR. FRANK: I believe the man is entitled to complete his

25 testimony.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,TEB: Okay. Wefl, I've made a ruling
2 already on this, so.

3 MR. FRANK: And what ls your ruling that he's not aÌlohred

4 to testify truthfuÌly about who works in muÌtipLe units?

5 MR. DORN: Ob,jection. Objection.

6 MR. FRANK: There's no objection to that. The witness was

7 in the middle of an answer.

8 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. l'm not going to go

9 through this again, so go ahead.

10 THE WITNESS: And uphoÌstery.

11 BY MR- FRANK:

L2 Q Are there other titÌes that work in rnultiple al:eas that
13 you're not alfowed to answer the question for?

1"4 A Yes.

15 Q Would you describe where the auditorium is in the centra]

L6 buiIding?

a7 A Referring to Emptoyer Exhibit Three?

18 Q T've got a copy of lt if it will help you.

a9 A The Center buildinq, it would be the second floor of the

20 Center Building.

21 Q And what is it used for?

22 A It's used for what we refer to as patient safety Fridays

23 for physicíans and managers. Each Friday we have a training
24 session with a special focus on patient safety that's conducted

25 there - Recognition/ admission events, staff training events,
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1 patient activities, movies for patients, that's a few.

2 Q And lvhat job categories of employees on Employer Exhibit
3 One receive training in the auditorium?

4 MR- DORN: Ob,jection. We've already had testimony about

5 the training.

6 MR. FRANK: No, th.is question is about using the

7 auditorium in the Central Building. I'm not asking the

I substance of the training.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: I'.I1 permit it.
10 THE WITNESS: So, training or training severaÌ of the job

11 classifications on EmpÌoyer Exhibit One woutd receive training
L2 in the auditorium, such as the mental health worker, psychiatric

13 technician, unit cÌerk, access services representative, LPN-

L4 BY MR. FRANK:

15 Q And so the record is clear this is training beyond the

L6 initiaf orientation training -

L7 A Sure, patient care services training.

18 Q And when this training occurs are these muÌtíple job

19 classifications trained at the same time or?

20 A Yes, they are.

2L Q Noçv, when the auditorium is used for r:ecognition events

22 what categories of employees come to the auditorium at the same

23 time for recognition units?

24 A All categories of employees from the Westchestel: division.
25 There are generally over 400 people in attendance for the
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t holiday tea or símiÌar events.

2 Q You were asked about some employees who did not have

3 direct patient care lnwoÌwement, do you remember those

4 questions ?

5 A Yes-

6 Q Are there other categories of employees who do not, who

7 are in the group that the Union seeks to represent lvho do not

I have direct patient care contact?

9 A Yes, severaÌ.

10 Q Oh, what are those categories?

11 A Could you repeat the question so f understand it?

!2 Q Yes. Looking at, do the categories the Union seeks to
13 represent --
14 A Yes.

15 A -- some of those categories do not have direct patient

16 care responsibiLities.

I7 A Yes, now f understand your question.

18 Q Which of the categories that the Union seeks to represent,

L9 because I can't ask about the other peopfe/ don't hawe direct
20 patient care responsibilities ?

2I A Yes, there are several, hall aides, nutrition assistants,

22 nail clerks, Ìead cashier cafeteria, store room clerk, senior

23 halÌ aide, Ìaundry driver, drapery maker, upholsterer, delivery

24 person, cook, chauffeur, building services attendant, and I

25 beÌieve -hd-'s LL-
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1 O Does the chauffeur have any patlent care responsibilities?
2 A No, not direct patient care responsibiLities.
3 Q Does the laundry driver hawe any d.irect patient care

4 responslbilities ?

5 A No.

6 Q I'm sorry. I donrt do the delivery persons have any

7 direct patient care responsibilities?
I A No. they do not.

9 (Long pause)

10 BY MR. FRANK:

11 Q On Three South do the Licensed practicat Nurses and the
f2 unit cferks have the same pCD Supervisor?

13 A Yes/ they do.

L4 Q And do the mental health workers on Three South have the
15 same supervlsor as the unit clerks and the T,pNs?

1,6 A Yes, they do-

17 Q And is that also true for the psych Techs?

18 A Yes-

L9 Q Now, you vi ere asked if this was that model that's the same

20 for each of the units, woufd all of the unit clerks, mental

2a heafth workers. psych techs, and LpNs have the same pCD

22 supervisor on each of the uníts?

23 A Yes.

24 Q A different pCD for each, for the units.
25 A Correct.
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1 Q But they woutd alf report to the same supervision?

2 A Yes, on that unit they would, on each unit they woufd.

3 Q And .is the PCD on each unit the person initially
4 responsibÌe for discipline and scheduling on that unit?

5 A Corrective action. yes. that's what we refer to this.
6 Q And in addition to corrective action is the pCD

7 responsible for schedulìng of assignments?

I A Yes.

9 Q On the units. And that responsibiLity would cower all of
10 the job categories on the unit?

11 A Most of them, yes.

12 Q Other: than the hall aides who were --
13 A Correct.

L4 A -- bui.Iding services?

15 A Or the nLrtrition assistant working the pantry or in the

L6 kitchen area of the unit.
1-7 Q Now. if empÌoyees from other categories who are not

18 permanently assigned to the unit come onto the unit what ls the

19 role of the PCD in deaÌing with non-unit assign empÌoyees who

20 have to come to the units?

2L A I'm not entirely certain I'm following the question.

22 Q Irühat is the PCD'S responsibility for the operatíon of the

z3 unÌ]- s 1

24 A Ultimately the patient care director is responsib.le for
25 all of the direct patient care activities, non-direct patient
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I care activities, group activities that wouÌd be run on the unit.
2 Uftímately they would be responsibÌe for patients, guests,

3 visitors, and other empÌoyees and members of management that
4 wouLd visit the unit.

5 Q And is the PCD's responsibility for the unit a 24/1

6 responsibiÌity?
? 

^ 
w^ô ir iô

8 Q And Ít's applicabÌe to afl the patient care units?

9 A Correct.

10 Q Now, in regard to the store room, you testlfied that there

11 were two categories of employees that were permanently assigned

L2 to the store room, what other categories of employees spend

13 working time in the stot:e room?

14 A Numerous job categories would spend t.ime at the store room

15 picking up supplies that they had ordered, or making requests

16 for a dellvery to their unit or department. l

L7 Q ldoufd you describe the categories of ernployees that
18 regular.Ly go to the store room and interact with the employees

a9 permanently assigned the re ?

20 MR. DORN: Irm going to object. this 1s the same kind of
2L testimony that we had on direct. this alleqed interaction
22 between varlous classification of employees.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: it's true, I'Il sustain that
24 obj ection.

25 BY MR. FRANK:
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2 while they're doing their jobs, what category of employees?

3 A All of the job categorles listed on EmpLoyer Exhibit One.

4 Q And do employees go to the store room to get things for

5 their un.its ?

6 A Yes, and they sign in when they go there and when they

7 leave.

I Q And nouÌd that incfude housekeeping workers/ haLÌ aides?

9 A les, for c learing supp I ies.

10 Q Would it include unit cferks?

11 MR. DORN: Obj ection.

1-2 THE I{ITNESS: Yes.

13 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: I'lL sustain it. We've gone

L4 into a.ll of this. I just, I don't want to go into a rehashìng

15 of the direct examinatlon, so.

16 MR. FRANK: Well, we have never done, there's nothing ln
17 the record addressing this issue except Mr. Dorn, s cross

18 examinatlon regarding the location- He went through the map of
f9 the bul.lding and asked questions about location. I newer did

20 that on direcl examination.

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, but you did the

22 interaction between aÌÌ of it.

23 MR. FRANK: The word, "interaction" -
24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q What employee job categories qo to the store room area of
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1 the building dur.ing the day?

2 MR- DORN: Objection, he already answered it.
3 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: That'S true.
4 MR. FRANK: No. Mr. Dorn asked permanently assigned, who

5 was permanently asslgned to work in the store room area, okay.

6 My question is what other employees go to the store room area of
7 the building which was not asked previously.
I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLÌEB: f{e11, go ahead.

9 THE üIITNESS: Aff of the employees from inctuding
10 nutrition on a daily basis because that's where all of the food

11 would be delivered to the hospital, so nutrition assistants,
f2 cooks, the drapery maker, the upho.Lsterer, unit clerks, mail
13 clerk, staff assistants/ administratlve assistants, offlce
L4 assistants, chauffeur, concierges, buildlng services attendant,
15 delivery person agaín that individuaÌ works there, senior haff
L6 aides, hall aÍdes, grounds people.

17 BY MR. FRÄNK:

18 Q What categorles of employees go to the cafeteria location
a9 of the hospital on a regular basis?

20 MR. DORN: Obj ection.
21 THE WITNESS: AÌl categories.

22 MR. DORN: That was testlfled on direct.
23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: yes.

24 MR. DORN: Theyrre, all the employees can eat in the

25 ca feteri a -
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1 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I agree, sustained.

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q iühat emp.Loyees, categories of employees go to the basement

4 area of the hospital on a regular basls?

5 MR. DORN: I'm going to object to this .L1ne of
6 questioning.

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes/ we've, I mean I
8 MR. FRANK: Mr. Dorn did ask about thls on cross

9 examination, that is true. but he limited the questions to
10 permanentÌy assigned.

11 MR. DORN: And there was testimony

L2 MR. FRANK: Irm entit.led to ask on Redìrect what other

13 employees go to those locations of the building- The record is
14 not just what Mr. Dorn asked about. I mean he limited his

15 quest.ions to the permanently assiqned, and I objected at that
f6 time and said we'll hawe to qo back and ask questions about who

L7 else works in those locations, who goes to those locat.ions.

18 Now, T'm asking those questions, who else goes to those

a9 locations. And Mr. Dorn is now objecting to that, and he wants

20 the record to be limÍted to what he said- I'm entitled to ask

2l who eLse works in those areas.

22 MR. DORN: You've a.lready asked on Direct on many

23 occas.ions about the interaction of various employees with each

24 othe r .

25 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLTEB: I'Ìt per:mit it.
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q Mr. O'Connor, can you answer the question, please?

3 A Sure.

4 Q Thank you.

5 A AÌmost alÌ of the empÌoyees in the hospital wouÌd visìt

6 the basement on a regular basis- For example, human resources

7 is located in the basement. Any individuaf that .is intel:ested

8 in training opportunities, promotable opportunities would visit

9 the human resources department. ff an empÌoyee wished to file a

10 grievance for example that¡ s where they would do it.
11 There ís a female employee lounge in the basement. There

12 is a male ernpLoyee lounge, a billiard/ s room in the basement.

13 There are changing areas or locker rooms ín the basement for
L4 muLtipLe classification of ernployees. The security depârtment

15 is Ìocated in the basement. Any one that needs to get a new

L6 hospitâl identification if they were to lose theìrs that where

I7 they would visit.

18 ff they lost their 9-9-2-5 key. they would vislt the

19 locksmith in the basement. Plant operations is located in the

20 basement. If they were placing, if the Syntax System were not

2I opel:able. If they were placing a work order in person they

22 would visít the plant operations department. The pharmacy is in
23 the basement, so any/ many of the categories from Employer

24 Exhibit One would vislt the pharmacy to pick up or drop off
25 medications for patients.

BURKE COTIRT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wa)me, NeÌv ,Jersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692 - O660



536

1 Again, the store room, the employee computer training room

2 is focated in the basement. The IT department is Ìocated in the

3 basement, so if the CpU, the Centrat processing Unit, in the

4 tower of the computer needed to be fixed they would go there.
5 The food and nutrition office ís located in the basement, people

6 would place speclaf requests or speciaÌ functlons forms for
7 employee events, those requests woufd be detivered to the food

8 and nutrition depar:tments. Those are some examples of how

9 people wouÌd frequentfy use the basement.

10 Q And is the first ffoor of the hospital buiÌding similarly
11 used by or

L2 MR. FRANK: Withdrarvn -

13 BY MR- FRANK:

L4 Q Is the first f.Loor of the hospitaf building simiÌarly
15 frequented by all the categories of empLoyees in the various
16 areas shown on the maps?

I7 A Yes, there are many conrmon areas where employees wou.ld

18 TrequenL on a r egula I basis.

L9 Q What are the conìmon areas?

20 A The qift shop is on the first fÌoor. The patient resource

2l center where t.hey may be escorting a patient or directing family
22 members to is located on the first floor- The chapeÌ of the

23 hospitaL is on the first floor. The, there's a smalÌ cafê, a

24 lunch café, breakfast café where employees get coffee, muffirrs,
25 sandwiches.
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1 Therers an ATM that is ín the main part of the Center

2 BuiÌding. but also many of the common conference rooms wouÌd

3 actually be located on the main floor of the building. Four of

4 the five main conference rooms are on the first fLoor.

5 Q And what are the conference rooms used for in terms of

6 unit employe e s ?

7 A General employee orientation, staff training, staff
I recognition ewents. If they're escorting patients to different
9 events/ such as one of the 12-step recovery programs or patients

10 that would be on Four South, patients woufd utilize that space,

11 but empLoyees would escort those patients to a conference, for
L2 example.

13 MR. FRANK; I'we no further questions.

1.4 HEARING OFFTCER GOTT],IEB: MT. DoTn.

15 MR. DORN; May I have a few minutes?

L6 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Sure, off the record, please.

L7 (Off the record)

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Back on the record-
'l-9 MR. FRANK: Can I, I'd Ìike to put one offer of proof on

20 the record ?

2L HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, go ahead.

22 MR. FRANK: My offer of proof that the maintenance

23 mechanics work 24/1 , as other employees in the bargaining unit.
24 Second, the nutrltion assistants who the unit does seek to
25 incÌude in the bargaining unit do not Nork 24/1 . I do this by
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1 offer of proof because I'm precluded from asking directly.
2 I would also note f have no further questions based on

3 your ruling precluding me from going into various you specified
4 on the record.

5 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: AÌl rlght, welÌ, there's
6 nothing prohlbiting you from putting testimony on about

7 nutrition assistants so the statement is just inaccurate. Okay.

8 MR. FRANK: Those are categories in the, that the Union

9 seeks and I was told I couldn't put testimony on.

10 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI-TEB: No, that's lnaccurate- you

11 were tofd to start with excluded units, and that you could

12 obviousÌy put any testimony re.lating to units that everyone

13 agrees to, so what you're saying is just inaccurate. but okay.

14 Are there anymore questions?

15 MR. FRANK: Without waiving my exceptions to the

16 limitations imposed on the EmpÌoyer by the Hearing Offlcer, no.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Off the record.

18 (Whereby, at 11:14 a.m., the hearing was recessed to reconvene

19 at conclusion of subpoena hearing.)

20

2I
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AFTERNOON SESSION

2 (Time: 12:41 p.m. )

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Back on the record- Mr. Dorn,

4 do you want to present your w.itness?

5 MR. DORN: Yes -

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: cood afternoon/ pfease state

7 your name and address for the record.

8 THE WITNESS: Evelyn Joseph. 33 Wiflian Street, Mount

9 Vernon, NY 10552.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you want to raise your right
11 hand?

a2 Whereupon,

13 EVELYN JOSEPH

L4 Havlng been fil:st duly sworn, was called as a witness and

15 testified as foLLows:

16 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: TÌÌank you.

I7 DIRECT EXAMINÀTION

18 BY MR. DORN:

L9 Q Ms. Joseph, yourre employed by New York Presbyterian

20 Hospital in idestcheste r ?

2I A Yes.

22 Q How long have you been employed there?

23 A I've been working for 50 years.

24 Q Eight ?

BURKE COTIRT REPORTING, LTJC

1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316
Walme, New ,f ersey 0'147 O

(973\ 692- O660



540

1 A Years.

2 Q And what's your position there?

3 A I worked as Admission Representative in the Access

4 Department.

5 Q lrThat are your duties?

6 A My duties is to gather information from patlents

7 throughout the hospital and in the New York area- And also

I patients thatrs come 1n from their home that are mentaÌly I'll,
9 so what I wou.Ld do is gather information, such as data, clinlcaÌ

10 from both parties. And at the same time, once T gather them, I
11 would prepare a pre-admit, and then have our nurse practitioner
1,2 review the cllnical information, and then with her approvaÌ of
13 the patient in to be seen by our psychiatrist.

14 Q What hours do you work?

15 A I work from 7:00 a.m. in the mornlng to 7:30 p-m.

1-6 Q How many days a week?

1-7 A Two days a week-

18 Q And what days are those?

19 A Saturdays to Sundays.

20 Q Have you ever worked different hours or different days of

2I the week in that position?

22 A I worked different hours that was in the past. i{henever

23 they needed me in the admissions office I used to cÕver.

24 Q And where do you work, where are you located?

25 A I'm located right across the street from the Evaluation
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1 Center on the first ffoor of the l{in (ph) Building of the

2 hospítaf.

3 Q What other cÌassifications of employees work .in that area

4 with you ?

5 A the people that I work with are the cÌerk, the c.Lerk from

6 the EC, psychiatrist, the doctors, nurse practitioners, and also

7 we work, I, we work with finance department afso.

I MR. FRANK: I'm sorry, would you repeat that last answer?

9 THE i{ITNESS: We work with --
10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: She works with finance.

11 THE WITNESS: -- finance department in contact with them-

1-2 BY MR . DORN :

13 Q TÕ whom do you report?

14 A Ruth Mendolwitz.

15 Q Vùhat's her tltle or position?

a6 A Admission over Access, sorry.

a7 Q During your work do you ever come in face to face contact

18 with the, abstractor. the health information management?

t9 A No, sir.

20 Q Viìth the Administrative Assistant?

21- A No.

22 0 W i .h r-he Charc Ana r ys L?

23 A No, sir -

24 Q With the Administrative Clerk?

25 A No, sir.
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2 A No.

3 Q PurchasÍng Assistant?

4 A No-

5 Q Cashie r ?

6 A No.

7 Q Data Entry Technician?

I A No.

9 Q Data Entry Technician HIM?

10 A No.

11 Q Medlcaid Counselor ?

1-2 A No.

13 Q Office As s istant ?

L4 A No-

15 Q Patient Account Rep?

16 A No.

I7 Q Patient Registrar?

18 A No.

L9 Q HIM Data Specialist?

20 A No.

2L Q HIM Processlng Specialíst?

22 A No.

23 Q Sen.ior Medicare Account Rep?

24 A No.

25 Q Staff as s istant ?
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1 A No-

2 Q Do you have any telephone contact wlth any of the

3 cÌassifications that I just l:eferl:ed to?

4 A No.

5 Q Have you ever -
6 MR. DORN: Strike that.

7 BY MR. DORN:

8 Q Do you ever hawe to go to one of the units?

9 A No.

10 Q Do you have any face to face or telephone contact with

11 mental health workers ?

1-2 A We, I have telephone contact with mentaÌ health workers.

13 There are times I would have to calÌ the units/ actuafly not

14 times, I'm sorry. Every morning when I come in, Saturdays ând

15 Sundays, I have to call the units to find out how many beds they

16 have awailable.

1-7 Q And to whom do you speak when you call the unit?

18 A Anyone that picks Lrp that phone. It cou.Ld be a mental

a9 health worker. It could be the head nurse.

20 Q And how much t.ime do you spend talking to employees who

2L work on the un.its during the course of your work?

22 A Less than five minute lvhen I speak to them on the phone.

23 But throughout the day, they woufd caÌl to ask me information as

24 to lf I assign a patient on a unit, they probably wouLd call me

25 and tells me that the unit is too acute, if f could switch the
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1 patient to another bed-

2 Q ln your position do you have any, do any hands-on patient

3 care?

4 A No.

5 MR. DORN: T have no other questions.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Mr. Frank.

7 MR. FRANK: Is this a position that the Union seeks to
8 inc.Iude or exclude from the unit?

9 MR. DORN : Exc]ude .

10 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Coufd we go Õff the record for
_L _t a mlnul-e I

12 MR. FRANK: Sure.

13 (Off the record)

L4 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: Back on the record. Whife we

15 were off the record/ I had requested to know a Ìittle more

L6 detai.I regarding the admission representative since hers not

1"7 .listed on the all non-professlonals fist which ls Employer

18 Number One. Mr. Dorn, what is your position regarding that
L9 matte r ?

20 MR. DORN: We believe that the title listed is Access

2L Service Representative. And we do not seek its incfusion in the

22 unit. lûe befieve it's a business office clerical positlon.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Mr. Frank. do you have a

24 response to that ?

25 MR. FRANK: Not at this t-ime-
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, okay.

2 MR. FRANK: Let me ask, I want to take a second. Let me

3 ask a couple of preliminary questions if that's okay.

4 CROSS EXAMINATION

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Is your: job títle Access Service Representative?

7 A On my fD Card it says Admission Representative.

I Q Do you have a job description?

9 A Excuse me?

10 Q Do you have a job description?

11 A If I hawe a job description?

L2 Q Yes.

13 A Yes-

L4 Q And is your job title on your job description Access

15 Serwice Repre s entative ?

a6 A Yes.

17 Q And are you aware that the Union is taking the position
18 that you are not to be incfuded in the bargaining unit?

19 MR. DORN: Obj ectiÕn.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, f don't think that's
2I appropriate. I'lÌ sustain that objection.
22 BY MR. FRANK:

23 Q Is there a mail cÌerk at the hospital?

24 A A mail clerk?

25 Q Yes.
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1 A Meaning M-A---E, clerk?

2 Q No. M-A-I-I.

3 A Oh, in the admisslons department?

4 Q No, at the hospital, [destchester division of the hospitat?

5 A Not that I know of.

6 Q Is thel:e's somebody who deÌlvers the mail?

7 A ln Access, no.

I Q How does the mail get to the Access Service Department?

9 A Again, I don't work here, there durinq the week for quite

1U a wÌfrle.

11 Q Okay.

L2 A So, I don't know anythìnq about how the maiÌ get in there.

13 Q So, would it bìe accurate to say that you have no knowledge

a4 of what goes on in the Access Service Department on a Monday

15 through Frlday basis currently?

16 A Yes, I do know what's golng on because T've worked there

L7 ln the past -

18 Q Okay. But on a current basis you only work on weekends ìs
'1,9 that corre ct ?

20 A Yes.

2A Q And when the last time you worked Monday tÕ Friday?

22 A That was two years ago.

23 Q Now, you testified that you talked with the clerk from the

24 EC/ is that correct?

25 A Yes-
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1 Q And who is the cferk in the EC?

2 A There's tngrid.

3 Q And what is Tngrid's title?

4 A She's a evaluation clerk.

s Q And -
6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: What cÌerk is that? I didn't
7 hear you.

8 MR. DORN: Evaluatíon.

9 THE IÍITNESS: Evaluation Clerk.

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT.IEB: Oh.

11 BY MR. FRANK:

12 Q And how frequentÌy do you have contact with the eva.luation

13 cÌerk on weekends ?

L4 A Very frequent.

15 Q Would you describe your interactions with the evafuation

a6 clerk on weekends ?

1-7 A Okay. There are times when she have to go to cover the

18 unit. She have to call me to let me know that she's going on

L9 the unit for a couple of hours to cover. And lf I'm bringing

20 any patients to Access to calf her on whatever unit she's on so

2L I can infol:m her so she can come down to the evaluatlon cenl-er.

22 Q And whiÌe she's on the unit do you cover for her in the

23 ewaluation cente r ?

24 A T don't cover for her in the evaluation center because I

25 am working inside the admissions, but from time to time if a
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1 patient comes in, if a doctor/ s in the evaÌuation center, they

2 call me to come there to take care of the patient until Tngrid

3 comes down.

4 Q And when you're cafled to take care of the patient in the

5 EC, what do you do with the patient?

6 A I gather clinical information-

7 Q What clinical information do you gather?

8 A lühich is I asked them why they come, what is the purpose

9 of their coming in.

10 Q Okay.

11 A I gather data information.

12 O Vúhat kind of data do you qather?

13 A Thelr home address, their name, date of birth, Social

L4 Security, insurance information.

15 Q And is that the same information the EC CÌerk gathers from

16 the patient when the EC CÌerk is there?

1-7 A No, the EC Cferk does not gather those lnformation-

18 Access reps gather those informations (sic) because I have to

19 prepare the pre-admit application.

20 Q And what is the pre-admit appÌication?

2I A The pre-admit application is the, again it.'s the data

22 information that I have to gather from the patient along with

23 some very cl.inical information. And then once I go in. I have

24 to into my computer data system on the computer to enter the

25 information in ther.e- And from there I have to print it and
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1 then T have to take it back to the EC and then provide it to

2 her, to the c.Lerk. And the clerk from there on w1Ì1 provide it

3 to the doctor and then that's how they, they see the patient.

4 Q I see. And do you use the Eagle System?

5 A Yes, I do.

6 Q What is the Eag.Le System?

7 A The Eagle System is an applicat.ion where you registel: the

I patlents. You do registration. You do discharge. And you

9 adm.it patients.

10 Q What other information goes into the Eagle System besides

11 r:egistration, discharge --
a2 A Insurance information -

13 Q Does clinical informat.ion --
14 A Address.

15 Q Address ?

16 A Address of the patient-

17 Q Does clinicaL information go into the Eagle System?

18 A Clinica.l does not go in the, for me on my pal:t Ì do not
'L9 enter clinicaÌ in the Eagle System. I enter it into 45400.

20 Q And what is 45400?

2I A A.5400 is another software where we enter all the

22 information from the pre-admit appllcation that I mentioned to
23 you.

24 Q And do you enter clinicaÌ information in the 45400?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q What klnd of cfinical do you enter?

2 A ülhatever information that I receive from the doctol:s that
3 they fax to me about the patient, the diagnosis, the symptoms,

4 affergy, if the patient has alÌerqy, the type of medication

5 they're getting and that's basicaÌ]y it.

6 Q f/úho has access to the 45400 system besides yourseÌf, other

7 job classl fications ?

8 A The Access Department has access to the 45400 from my

9 know.Iedge -

10 Q Do other people hawe access tÕ that system?

11 A Not that I know of.

12 Q What is the information used for in the 45400 system?

13 A Thatrs for the 45400 system, it's for, that's just for our

7-4 record, okay, it goes for our record. Not only that. that
15 information I befieve the doctors have access to get into it
L6 also.

f7 Q Do the nurses have access to the system?

18 A Not that I know of.

a9 Q Are you sure of that?

20 A I'm positive.

2L Q Does anyone other than physicians have access to the 400

22 system?

23 A Not that I know of-

24 Q And who has access to the Eaqte System?

25 A The Admission Department from my knowÌedge and the EC
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1 Cferks.

2 Q Anyone else ?

3 A Not that I know of.

4 Q And is there another system that has the clinicaÌ
5 information regarding the patients?

6 A Ec.Liypsis.

1 Q Ecliypsis. And do you do any work with the Ecliypsis?

8 A Yes, we do.

9 Q And what do you do with the EcÌiypsis?

10 A T{e have to go in there and pull out some information.
11 This is, we've been doing it for Paine Whitney where we, --
L2 faxing the clinical to us, like the general hospitals do since

13 they¡re our sister hospital, we have access to the cfinicaÌ and

L4 that information. So, we would use that to printout those

15 informations.

16 Q And what kind of information is lncluded in the Ectiypsls
!7 s ys tem?

18 A Again, clinical and the patient data informâtlon.
a9 Q When you say clinical is that information about the

20 patients ?

21 A Yeah.

22 Q Is it details about the patients' medical condition?
23 A Sometimes, yes, a diagnosis.

24 Q And does it also incfude their treatment pÌans?

25 A It prowide treatment plans but once I print the
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1 information out, I handed it over to the nurse practitioner,

2 she's the one that wiLl go over and make the flnal decisions.

3 Q And that information is used by other employees at the

4 hospital for dolng their job?

5 A What informationf sir?

6 Q The information ín the Ecfiypsis system-

7 A From, from my understanding, from my point of view, the

I on.Iy thing .is I only use the EcÌiypsis the way that I explained

9 to you. I don't know if anybody else uses it.

10 Q So, is lt your testimony that you don't know how other

11 employees of the Westchester divlsion use the Ecliypsis system?

L2 A I don't know whether they use it. I don't know. I don't
13 know who uses it besides myself, my department.

!4 Q Is ther:e a Senior Access Serwice Representative?

15 A Yes.

16 Q And who is that?

!7 A Christel Ferre.L L .

18 Q And what does she do?

t9 A I believe . ne same, almosL Lhe same positlon tnaf I clc'

20 because she aÌso gather information from the hospitals in

2a regards to patients. And she prepare applications. pre-admits

22 and so forth. And she's also a help for Ruth Mendolwitz, she's

23 her assistant.

24 Q Do you ask a patient pre-screeníng questions?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q What are the pre-screening questions that you ask

2 pati ents ?

3 A Pre-screening questions, it's basically if they ever been,

4 first we take a brief cLinical information. Then we would ask

5 them if they wouÌd folfow with outside psychiatrist or a doctor.

6 And then I wou.Id get the name, the telephone number of the

7 doctor:. And then I wou.Id ask them if they're on any

I medications. T would take the name of the medicatlons.

9 Then there ìs a question about, in regards to substance,

10 if they're/ you knornr/ ever use drugs, substance abuse.

11 Psychiatric, if they've ever been hospitalized- And if they had

L2 any legal issues in the past and then their insurance

13 information, that's the pre-screening.

L4 Q And this is before the patient's admitted to the hospital?

15 A That's before. Oh, yes, before.

L6 Q And wouÌd you take thls information and you put it into a

17 re cord?

18 A fn 45400.

L9 Q And do you find, obtain the aqe of the patients?

20 A Yes-

2L Q And do you find out where they live?

22 A They're information, yes.

23 Q And do you find out where they work?

24 A !üork. the application does not ask. have that question.

25 Q Do you te]l them that the hospital is goÍng to have make a
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t declsion on whether to admit them or not?

2 A Yes, I do. I would tell them that.
3 Q And hor,v do you explain to the patient the process of
4 deciding that the hospitaf is goinq go throuqh on whether to
5 admit them ol: not?

6 A What I would do is once T'm done with atl the information,
7 if I 'm speaking to the patient directly over the phone, I would

I te.I.l them that with aÌl the information that I have gathered I'm
9 golng to prepare a pre-admit. Based on the outcome of the pre-

10 admit we wiÌl hawe our doctors and psychiatrists revlew it. And

11 then based on that I will glve them a calÌ back with, you krrow,

L2 wiL.h che aoproval-

13 And then once I calÌ. once they come in, I told them the,
L4 okay, so sorry.

15 Q Let's just stay with the first teLephone and then --
L6 A Okay.

L7 O -- after we finish with the teÌephone we'Ìl go to when

18 they come ìn. in person. Okay, Ìet's stay with you gather some

L9 of this ìnformation just on the telephone?

20 A Yeah, the information over the phone, yes.

2I Q And they're asking can they be admitted to the hospital,
22 how does the teÌephone call arlse?

23 A Excuse me?

24 Q How do you get to tefephone ca1l, do they call you

25 directfy ?
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1 A They call me. They call the hospitaL directly.
2 Q Okay. And the ca.lf comes into the teÌephone operator?

3 À That comes straight into Access.

4 Q Tnto Access.

5 A Uh-huh.

6 Q Okay. And what does the patient say to you typically, I
7 need help, or?

8 A Yes. It couLd be, "l;ve been here before. l'm not

9 feeling weÌl, I need to come in".

10 Q So. you're the first contact with the patient?

11 A Yeah, over the phone, yes.

L2 Q And the patient is saying to you I'm in trouble of some

13 sort ?

14 A Yeah, I need to come in.

15 Q How do you determine if a patient shouÌd be ln the

A6 outpatient program or the inpatient program?

L7 A When a patient caLls, I would, once that they ask that
18 they need to be helped, f asked them have you ever been to New

L9 York Presbyterian HospitaL before. If they say yes¡ then I
20 would mowe forward by, you know, asking them fol: what's going

2I on with them, for them to give me an explanation as to what's

22 going on, and T would put it on the paper.

23 And then from there on I woufd start an application and

24 then put it into the system. WhiÌe I'm on the phone w.ith them

25 I'm getting alÌ the information. And then, from there on I
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1 would tel.L them that this, I have to review this with the

2 psychiatrist and nurse practitioner; this is not a guaranteed

3 admissions but based on what the outcome, on what the doctor or

4 the nurse practitioner say I would get back to you in about 20

5 minutes so that you know to come in for an evaluation.

6 Q Do you discuss with the potential patient whether they're
7 go.ing to be outpatient or inpatient?

I A When the phone ca]]s first come in, the first thing I say,

9 "Are you looking for inpatient or outpatient, that's the first

10 thing, okay. And if they say they need outpatient T asked them

11 what their dlagnoses are and so forth, and I would r.efer them to
L2 àn ourpaLjenL service.

13 Q And who would you refer them to for outpatient?

L4 A It depends on what's on the Ìist. lf they say they're
15 looking for outpatient, I ask them, "Do you Ìive in Manhattan,

16 do you live in t.he [testchester". If they live in the

1-7 Westchester division. I woufd refer them to whoever is in charge

18 with the Westchester, people that lives in the Westchester

L9 diwision area.

20 Q And is there a clinic. an outpatient clinic at the

2L hospital ?

22 A Yeah.

23 Q And do you refer people to the outpatient clinic?

24 A Yes.

25 Q And is there a clerk at the outpatient clinic that you
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1 refer them to?

2 A I don't speak to a cÌerk from, I never speak to a cÌerk

3 from the outpatient clinic. I'm given a ]ist in the Access

4 Department and all the phone numbers are there and it says the

5 outpatient department. who ís in charge of it, and then the

6 phone number, then I would give it to the patlent over the phone

7 for them to caLl Monday throuqh Fr.iday.

I Q WelI, if the patient says they're suicida] do you teLL

9 them to wait until Monday tht:ough Friday?

10 A Oh/ no, I handle the suicidaf right away-

11 Q What do you do?

A2 A I would have them come in right away. I would quickly

13 get, you know, tell them, "Do you have a family member there
'L4 with you. Are you aÌone", and so forth. and I make sure they

15 come in.

L6 Q And who woufd you talk to at the hospitaf about somebody

f7 who indicates they're 1n very serious trouble or maybe suicidal?
18 A The nursing practitioner because I work with her very

19 closely.

20 Q Anyone else?

2l A ProbabÌy if the nurse practitioner is not there, and there

22 is a psychiatrist thel:e, I would get in touch with the doctor.

23 Q Do you ever arrange for transportation for the patient

24 into the faci I ity?

25 A \o, I don't .
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1 Q Now/ the cÌinical you get is put into the computer system?

2 A In the 45400.

3 Q Now, if the patient comes in for an appointment do you get

4 additionaf information from them?

5 A If they come in for an appointment?

6 Q Yes, if, in other words, you were describing what happens

7 on the telephone.

I A Right.

9 Q Okay. And then you call the patient back, you invite them

10 to come in to see you?

11 A Right.

a2 Q When they come into see you what information do you

13 collect from them?

a4 A If I already gathered information over the phone wilh the

15 patient and they're com.ing into the hospital, I don't get any

'L6 more information from the patient- I invite the pat.ient to

L7 come, give them the address which is 21 Bloomingdale Road, and

18 telÌ them to come t,o the main buifding, stop at the reception
'1,9 area and ]et the receptionist know that they need to come into

20 the evaÌuation center.

2A Q So, after you've talked to the patient on the phone, and

22 they come in, they go to the receptionist?

23 A tr{hen they come in the first, the first líne of contact is

24 the receptj.onist area, the operatol:.

25 Q And how far is the receptionist from your office, where
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1 you work?

2 A lt's down the halL from my, from my office.

3 Q How far roughly, 10 feet?

4 A I, I don't know.

5 Q Would you please estimate?

6 A l don't know.

7 Q How far is your office from the evaluation clerk's office?

I A ltrs right across the, from our office.

9 Q So, your offices face each other?

10 A Tt's a little bit down.

11 Q How far?

12 A Not that far, I mean. if I open the door and I just look

13 right down the, you know, the hall there that's/ that's where it
14 is.

15 Q And who is the evaÌuation clel:k supervisor?

L6 A On the weekends I don't beÌieve there is a supervisor

L7 there. It's the nursing supervisor that is there on the

18 weekends.

19 Q And who is your superwisor on the weekends?

20 A Ruth Mendo.lwitz is my supervisor on the weekends.

2l Q Isn't she the senlor person?

22 A Ruth Mendolwitz is the Access Dlrector.

23 Q She's the director-

24 A Yes.

25 Q I see. And is she there on weekends?
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1 A No, shers not there on the weekends but I can, in a simple

2 phone ca.Ll, I can always caÌl her and page her.

3 Q Vlho is the supervisor or manager on duty on weekends when

4 you're there ?

5 A The nursing supervisors.

6 Q And what's her name?

7 A They are dlfferent. Every weekends is different on

I nursing supervisors.

9 Q ls it the same nursing supervisor who supervises the

10 evaluatlon clerk?

11 A Yes.

a2 Q So, you both have the same supervisor --
13 A On the weekends.

L4 A -- in the building on weekends?

15 A Yes-

16 Q Okay. And is that true for all of the employees who work

17 on wee kends ?

18 A I don't know. T onÌy know about myself, that's it, on my

19 department.

20 Q Do you make any determinations on weekends on whether or

2L not a patienl needs lmmediate triage?

22 A Mean.ing, I don't understand the question?

23 Q Do you understand the word "triaqe"?

24 A Yeah, when the patient comes in, inside the evaluation

25 center, I beliewe the nurse practitioner, I mean is the one that
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1 takes care of the patient, is that what it is?
2 Q No, my question is when you're gathering information from

3 the patient do you make any determination on whetheï the patlent
4 need immediate treatment because they,re .in a severe mentalÌy
5 unstable condition or?

6 A T do not. T don't have, no. I do not do that.
7 Q What do you do if you see a patient who is acting
I lnappropriately or?

9 A If I see them?

10 Q Yes.

11 A I'm ínside Access so T woufdn,t know.

L2 Q Okay. Now, when a patient comes in, they go to the

13 registrar first, and who does the registrar take the patients to
1-4 next ?

15 A When the patient comes in, the patient goes into the
76 eva I Lêtion cenLeL.

L7 Q And does the reqistrar waÌk the patient into the
18 evaÌuation cente r ?

L9 MR. DORN: Objection, that was not --
20 MR. FRANK: I'm trying to withdrawn.

27 BY MR, FRANK:

22 Q I believe you testified \,,¡he n the patient comes in they
23 stop and see the reqistrar first?
24 A I told you they stop at the entrance where the operator
25 is.
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1 Q Oh, they flrst see the operator.

2 A Yes.

3 Q Okay.

4 A And then the operator guide them into the evafuation

5 center.

6 Q Okay. And does the operator walk them into the Evaluation

7 Center ?

8 A Not that I know of-

9 Q How do they get from the front door to the Evaluation

10 Center if they don't know the build.ing?

11 A On the weekend, the building is mostly isofated you could
'L2 say. So, when I'm.in my, my Access office, my supervisor always

13 advise me to c.lose the door, do not feave it open. So. when I'm

14 inside there I don't know what's realLy goíng outside un]ess

15 there is a doctor or the nurse come and knock on my door and

f6 tell me what's going out there because f'm on the phone taking

f7 care of the other patients

18 Q So. when you work on the weekends if you have to talk tô

19 patient they bring the patient to you, to your office?

20 A No.

2l Q Maybe I didn't understand your testimony. I thought you

22 said that when a patient came to the hospitaÌ/ the operator or

23 the registrar would then bring them to you to get additionat

24 data from them on weekends.

25 A Okây.
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1 Q Is that true?

2 A No. Would you Ilke me to clarify that?

3 Q No. Do you see patients at all in your office?
4 A Not in my office.

5 Q Do you get data from patients when they,ve come to the

6 hospita.I ?

7 A If we have a walk-in or an emergency the patient would

I come in. they would qo f.irst into the Evafuation Center. The

9 Ewaluation Center wouÌd call me. Then I would hawe to go over

10 there with my appÌication to get information from the patient,
11 onÌy the patient that comes in on an emergency b,asis.

L2 Q So, if you have to get information from the patient, you

13 .Ieave your office and you go to the Evaluation Center.

L4 A Right.

15 Q And that's the same pÌace that the evaÌuation c]erk works

16 is that correct ?

17 A Yes.

18 Q Okay. And do you know how the patient gets to the

L9 EvaÌuation Center from the front door?

20 A No, because they just walk in on an emergency basis.

2a Q If a patient presents on an emergency basis at the front
22 door how do they get fl:om the front door to the Evaluation

23 CenLer?

24 A They can come in with farnily members and they bring them

25 to the EvaÌuation Center-
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1 Q And who brings them to the EvaÌuation Center?

2 A FamiLy members.

3 Q WeIl. do the family members know the layout of the

4 hospital ?

5 A Again, they stop at the front entrance. They see the

6 operator. The operator guides them, tells them exactÌy where to
7 go, to the Evaluation Center-

8 Q So, the operator guides them lrhere to gol to --
9 A Exact.Ly.

10 a -- the Evaluation Center?

11 A Correct.

12 Q And are there procedures for how the operator wilÌ dírect
13 them v/here to go?

14 A No, I wouldn't, I wouldn't, I can't answer that because f
15 don't knÕw.

16 Q And who is the operator?

a7 A They have different operators on the weekends.

.LB O And whe re do they s j - ?

19 A They sit at the front behlnd the desk in the front.

20 Q Near the r:egistrar, or who is the greeter at the door for.

2L on weekends ?

22 A The operator.

23 Q The operator.

24 A Uh-huh.

25 Q Oh, so, the operator becomes the qreeter at the door on
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1 wee kends ?

2 A I don't know.

3 Q ü1e11, do you ever come into work on weekends?

L A Vôê T rì^

5 Q Who is at the door greeting people waÌking in the front

6 entrance of the main building?

7 A I donrt come to, I don't go to the front entrance.

8 Q Which entrance do you use?

9 A I go to the side entrance where the, the, the side

10 entrance. The evaLuation entrance there's a main entrance/

11 there is an entrance there, I have the keys.

12 Q Now, is there a haÌlway connecting your building to the

13 Center Bul lding ?

14 A A hallway, yes/ there is a hallway.

15 MR. FRANK: Can you show the witness Employer Exhibit
16 Three, pleas e ?

1.7 BY MR . FRANK :

18 Q Do you see the purple buiÌding, the purpÌe square?

79 A Yes.

20 Q Is that where your office is located, the building that's
21 immediately to the right of the Center Building in purple?

22 A A .l i ght purple ?

23 Q No, the dark purple where it says¡ "North", 123t dash, 3A

24 North".

25 A Okay, yos. r see it, yes.

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LI,C
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, Nev, ,Tersey 07 47 O

(973\ 692-o660



566

1 Q Okay. And. there's a door on the bottom.

2 A Yes-

3 Q Is that the door that you enter in?

4 A Yes.

5 Q Now, 1f you go a little bit to the left is the Center

6 Bui]d.ing, do you see where it says, "center"?

7 A Yes, that's the main entrance-

8 Q Okay. And thatrs where patients come in is that correct?

9 A Yes-

10 Q And do the patients get to your building through the

11 halÌway that connects the Center Building to the 123 North

1-2 Bui lding ?

13 A Yes.

14 Q Now, the operators are 1n the, the telephone operators are

15 in the Center Building?

16 A Yes.

L7 Q And the EC Clerk is the 123 North BuiÌding?

18 A Yes.

19 Q And on the second and third floor are there patient unlts
20 .in your bui Ldinq ?

2L A Second and third floor, yes-

22 Q Ìfhat patient care units are on the second and third f.loor

23 of your bui ldi ng ?

24 MR. DORN: I'm going to object. I don't see how this is
25 relevant to her test.Ímony- And we've already had an extensive
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1 testimony on the units, so I don't see what the relevance is.
2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: You want to, why do we need

3 more testimony into this area?

4 MR. FRANK: I would like to show the lnteraction and

5 interrelationship of th.is ernployee's job with other empfoyees in
6 that same buÍlding and throughout the hospital buílding. T mean

7 the Union is seeking to deprlve this emp.Ioyee from her

8 participation in the bargaining unit.
9 MR. DORN: I'm going to object to the statement and ask

10 that it be stricken.

11 MR. FRANK: Wou.ld vou like me to

f2 MR. DORN: fne U.rlon is not seeking to deprive anyone.

13 The Union is seeklng at this t.ime an efection among the service

a4 ernployees whom we beÌieve have a community of interest-
15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I understand. AlÌ rlght, go

L6 ahead.

L7 MR. FRANK: Then if you don't want this job classification
18 then -
L9 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: trdelÌ, we don't have to get into
20 this. I mean why don't you just go ahead, ask the qLlestion.

2! MR- FRANK: Could I have the question repeated? At the

22 moment I've lost my train of thought.

23 (Pause Playback)

24 MR. FRANK: Thank you.

25 COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry, I apologize.
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1 THE WITNESS: Can you ask me what was the patient unit?
2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q What units are on the second floor of the North Building
4 and the third floor?

5 A On the second ffoor, T don't really go on the units, sir.
6 Q That's not the question I asked- Do you know what unlt ís
7 on the second fÌoor?
8 A I donrt know. I don't go to the units.
9 Q Do the EC Clerks work in the Access Service office dur.ing

10 the week?

11 A No, they donrt.

L2 Q How do you know that if you dôn't nork there?

13 MR. DORN: She already testified she has wot:ked during the
1-4 wee k .

15 MR. FRANK: WelL, I didn't ask you, Mr. Dorn. I was

16 as k.ing the witness.

f7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTITEB; She already answered that
18 question that ít's based on her previous experience - Go ahead.

1.9 BY MR- FRANK:

20 Q Are you sure that the EC Clerks do not work 1n the Access

2a Service Department durlng the week, Monday through Friday?

22 A f 'm sure.

23 Q Do you ever see the ha.ll aides?

24 A No.

25 Q !¡lho cleans your of f lce ?
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1 A The ma Lnlenên^ô ^'."-
2 Q The maintenance guys.

3 A Yes.

4 Q Vùho does the cleaning of your office?

5 A On the weekends there are d.if ferent malntenance men that
6 come/ come to cfean the offlce, so I don't know them by name.

7 Q And are they the same people who cLean the units?

8 A I dontt know.

9 Q Do you have any contact with the KSAC peopÌe who deal with

10 drug issues?

11 A No.

12 Q Who do you deaf with on the drug abuse cases?

13 A I don't deal with anybody on the drug abuse cases.

L4 Q Well/ if a patient tafks to you about an addiction probfem

15 what do you do with it?

16 A Christel is the one that handles that appointment.

L7 Q Who is Cht:istel?

18 A The senior rep from admissions.

19 Q Oh. But if Christel is not there, who deaÌs with the

20 patient who comes ln with a dl:ug abuse problem?

2I A Vühat T do again I would take an, if they come ìn, in
22 person/ then I would, again they would see the psychiatrist and,

23 and then from there on they woufd be admitted.

24 Q Well, do they see you?

25 A I mean if they come in I hawe to go into the EC and get an
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1 application, a pre-admit appfication.
2 Q And what infol:mation do you get from the drug abuse

3 patient when you see them?

4 A Their data information.

5 Q What data do you get from them?

6 A Name, address, phone nuÍìlf,er, Social Security number, thelr
7 diaqnosis.

I Q How do you get their diagnosis?

9 A I asked them exactfy what's going on with them and they

10 to.ld me substance abuse. If they tetl me substance abuse that's
11 what T put ln the diagnosis area.

12 Q What other information do you get from them?

13 A I would get their brief cÌinical informatíon, such as

L4 they're having a withdrawal, how many times, how many drinks
15 they/ve had, or what type of drugs they've used and so and so

1,6 forth for the doctor. And I wouLd ask them if they had been to
L7 detox, if theyìve been previousÌy to rehab treatment in the

18 past, and get the doctor's information in the past and, you

1"9 know, the addt:ess- And then I wouÌd take their cÌinicaÌ
20 information.

2L Q What clinical information do you get from them?

22 A The, I'm sorry. The cllnical information is jLtst like
23 what I just expÌained to you, a brief description as to what

24 happened with withdrawal and so forth.
25 Q What is withdrawaf?
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1 MR. DORN: I'm going to object.
2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: yes, I'lÌ sustain that.
3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q Do you ask them about the medications they're on?

5 A Yes, I do- f asked them for the medication, the doses/
6 and f would ask them for their insurance information, find out
7 lf they're aÌlergic to any medications.

I Q Now, is thel:e, how do you know to ask the questions, is
9 there a list that you work out of, or do you just talk wìth

10 people ?

11 A There ls, there is a pre-admit that's already set for all
a2 these questions to be asked to the pat.ients.
13 Q And can people othel: than you use this list to obtain the
14 informatlon, or are you the only person in the hospitaf?
15 A Access. Access Department for my knowtedge, Access

16 Department is the person that use those forms.

!7 Q When you, re on vacation who covers for you?

lSAIdon'tknow-

19 Q Some other employee does your job?

20 A Yes, but I don't know who it is.
2I Q And durinq the week do other employees do the job that you

22 do?

23 A Yes, they do.

24 O And does t-he information you ob,tain over the weekend get
25 put into the same system as employees, as the information froirÌ

BURKE COURT REPORTTNG, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, Nevr ,.fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692_ O66O



572

1 employees who work during the week?

2 A Yes.

3 Q And yourve described three computer systems are those the

4 thr:ee computer systems for all functions at the hosp.ital in
5 We stchester?

6 A In my department, I can telÌ you yes- Other departments,

7 I donrt know.

8 Q Now, you testified that you have teÌephone contact with

9 the mental health workers.

10 A Yes.

11 Q And describe to me when a mentaL health worker would call
12 VÔ]] ?

13 O ,n.O would calÌ maybe f might have put a patlent on the

L4 unit and the patient, they stated that the patient is, the unit
15 is acute if I couÌd switch the patient to another unit.
16 Q ü7ell, if you assign, you asslgn patients to a unit?
17 A Yes.

18 Q And a mental heafth worker might call you --
L9 A Not a mental health worker. it could be, it's not a mentaf

20 health worker. What I would, when it comes to that I wouÌd just

2f -L wou ld d i scuss --
22 Q Now, jusL -.
23 A -- it r,riLh -

24 MR. DORN: Objection, let her finish.
25 HEARING OFFÏCER GOTTLIEB: I agree/ .let her finish what
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1 she's saying. Go ahead.

2 THE WITNESS: Because what happened is the head nurse

3 would caLL, would call to have the patient switched to another

4 unit. The mental heafth workers don't have the authorlty to do

5 that.

6 MR. FRANK: I move to strike that as non-responsive to the

7 quescion.

8 MR. DORN: I think it was very responsive.

9 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI-TEB: I would aoree I think it's

10 respons.ive.

11 MR. FRANK: Well -
12 MR. DORN: I understand Mr- Frank doesn't like it but it
13 is respons ive .

L4 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: okav

15 MR. FRANK: You know, tfru .uuA.. of the record will

L6 understand the, you know -
1,7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: All right.

18 MR. FRANK: There's one side to this, it works one way or

L9 the other -

20 MR. FRANK: My question was tÕ describe the conversations

2a the witness has with the mental health workers.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: WeÌI.

23 MR. FRANK: Wasn't that the question, I mean did she

24 describe something else?

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'm going to allow it, so letrs
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1 ask the next question.

2 MR. FRANK: I hawe no doubt.

3 BY MR. FRANK:

4 Q liould you teÌl us about your conversations with the mentaf

5 workers ?

6 A Okay. The menta.L health workers they would call me to

7 have a patient díscharged, to discharge a patient.

8 Q Now, what did they say to you?

9 A They would caÌL and say give me the name of the patient
10 from the hour the patient is discharged. And they told me can I
11 discharge the patient for them, and I said Õkay, no problem.

f2 Q And do they bring the. do you have any contact wlth the

13 patient to arrange theit: discharge?

14 A No, the patients are gone home. So, the patient --
15 Q So --
16 A I'm sorry. The patient ls, yeah, the patient couÌd be

!7 gone, going home. The patient could be going to White Plains

18 Medical Center on a medical, you knor^¡/ for medical lssues. And

L9 if the --
20 Q Well, do you arrange that?

2! A For what ?

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Let her finish what she's

23 saying before you ask a question. Go ahead-

24 BY MR. FRANK:

25 Q Do you hawe contact with the patients?
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1 A Not directly.

2 Q So, al.l your contact is with the mentat heafth worker?

3 A Yes, on --
4 Q Vùhat information does the mental health worker give you

5 about the pati ent ?

6 A They would give me the name of the patient, the date the

7 patient is discharged, the hour the patient is discharged.

I Q What el- se ?

9 A That's basicalLy ì t.

10 Q Do you need any other information to discharge a patient?

11 A No.

a2 Q And how, who arranges to have the patient leawe the

13 fac.ility, how do you arrange the departure of the patient?

L4 A ü]ell, the nurses on the unit would have that, have that
15 authority and the doctors.

16 Q What do you do to arrange the departure of the patient?

1-7 A I don't do anything to arrange the departure of the

18 patient. I have no contact with the information.

a9 Q What do you do with the informatlon that the mentaL heaLth

20 worker gives you ?

21 A What I would do is go into Eagle and then dlscharge the
a') ñ:+i^n+

PqL!srrL ¡

23 Q And how do you discharge the patient?

24 A T wou.ld go into Eagle, qo to the discharge area, and then

25 take --
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1 Q What do you do?

2 A -- the patient - put the unit the patient is on and then

3 browse through and see lrhat the Ìist of the patlent. I take the

4 patientf s name and I discharge the patient. I discharge the

5 patient at the time.

6 Q How do you do the discharge is what I'm asking you?

7 A How?

I Q Do you enter information into the system?

9 A Itrs Eagle/ yes. I put the patient's name, their, their,
10 the dates they r,rere discharged. and the hours.

11 Q Do you enter the date they were discharged before or after
a2 they actually leave the hospital?

13 A Tf the pat.ient went to/ out for medical issues, it's
14 after. If the patient ls still in the hospital. and they call
15 me then the doctor, the doct.or approve it and the nurses take

L6 care of alf the papers that's when they caI.I me to discharge the

L7 patient. The patient pr:obabty would stilÌ be in the hospital
18 before T discharged them-

1,9 Q And who do you get this information from as to whether or

20 not the patient has Left the hospital or not, does that come

2A from the unít cÌerks?

22 A Based on my understanding the patient cannot Ìeave, okay,

23 cannot leave the hospitaÌ base. Because vrhat happens is, T'm

24 sorry. Once they send me, once I get the okay from the nurse

25 for me to discharge the patient that's what I do, that's what I
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1 was toÌd by Ruth Mendolwitz.

2 Q Do you have any contact or communlcations with the unit

3 cler ks ?

4 A Unit clerks contact?
q Ô ¡/ôc

6 A Yeah.

7 Q [¡lould you describe your contact with the unit clerks?

I A Unit, I mean, I'm sorry. I meant to, the, the evafuation

9 c.Ierk, no/ I don't have contact with the --
10 Q Do the unit c.Ierks ever calÌ you regarding the discharge

11 of patients ?

12 A No.

13 MR. FRANK: May I have a moment?

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sure, off the record, please.

15 (Off the record)

16 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.

I7 MR. FRANK: May T continue?

18 HEARTNG OEFICER COTTLIEB: Sure.

L9 MR. FRANK: Thank you.

20 BY MR. FRANK:

2a Q Are there times that patients need wheelchairs?

22 A Yes.

23 Q When they come for an interview?

24 A Not that I know of.

25 Q Do you ever escort patients to the unit they're assigned?
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1 A No.

2 Q Do you have any contact with providers of health care

3 servÍces in the commun.ity?

4 A Providers of heafth care, I don't understand, could you

r ^ì --] €.,.J Lf a!f !y:

6 Q WelÌ, did you ever caff sociaf workers or psychiatrists in

7 the coÍìnun.ity who have treated perspective patients --
I A No.

9 Q to get information about them?

10 A No.

11 Q How do you obtain information about the patient's hi-story

12 from sources other than the patient themselves?

13 A WeLl/ the patient would have their doctors gìve the

L4 hospita.L a caII to provide that information or they would fax it

15 to the Access.

16 Q Do you obtain any of that information?

I7 A Yeah, on the weekends when I receive the fax, yes-

18 Q Oh, so you get the faxes from the outside providers?
1A À T ^ôt-

20 Q And what do you do with that information?

2L A T revìew it and I would prepare an application again to

22 pre-admit and --
23 Q Do you ever ca.Il the outside providers 1f you have a

24 question about the information they provided to you?

aE Z\ Vôc
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1 Q And so you woufd have some contact with the outside

2 provider?

3 A Some contact.

4 Q And those are socia] workers in the conìrnunity?

5 A Yeah, therers a, Ít's not social, well, yeah, yes, yes,

6 yes, yes, yes.

7 Q Would you have contact with aLcohol treatment counsefors

I in the community?

9 MR. DORN: I'm going to object, I don't see -
10 THE WITNESS: WeÌÌ

11 MR. DORN: Irm going to object- I don't see what the

a2 re.levance is of who she has contact with outside of the

13 hospital.

L4 MR. FRANK: It's obtaining informati_on for the delivery of
15 patient care. It's directly relevant to the care provided to
'L6 patients.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: yes, l'ÌÌ permit it.
18 THE WITNESS: Yes.

19 BY MR. FRANK:

20 Q What kind of providers do you talk to, sociaL workers?

2L A Psychiatric, some, well, social workers. There ìs a

22 sociaf worker by the name of cwen, she works with Ruth, she,s a

23 referral so she wouLd refer the patient to Access.

24 Q Do you have any contact with psychiatric technicians in
25 the coÍùnunity?
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1 A No.

2 Q Case psych workers or alcohol treatment counseLors?

3 A No.

4 Q Do you get any information about programs that patients

5 have attended for treatment in the community?

6 A Programs/ would you be more specific?

7 Q [,úeÌl, if --
I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: If you couÌd speak a little
9 Ìouder.

10 THE WITNESS: Would you be a ]ittle bit more specific, T

11 donrt understand.

L2 BY MR. FRANK:

13 Q Wetl, if a patient has had prior treatment for alcoholism

a4 or drug addj cL ior --
15 A Yes, uh-huh.

16 A -- in the connunity do you information about the treatment

L7 they've received prior to coming to the hospitaf?

18 A lf a patient is coming in for rehab treatment they

a9 probably wouLd be coming from a detox hospita.l, okay. Or once

20 they're dlscharged from the hospital, the social worker from

2L that hospitaf would call to provide cfinicaÌ informatlon on the

22 patient and to make sure there's a bed avai.Iable when the

23 patient comes in.

24 Q So, you would have contact with the detox center or the

25 social work person provided information about priol treatment?
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1 A Sociaf worker from the hospita.Is, yes.

2 Q Now, when beds become avaiÌable on a unit do the unit
3 c]erks call you to give you the informatlon on the anticipated
4 bed openings ?

5 A If there is a discharge that's when they caÌl me to let me

6 know there is a bed availabÌe.

7 Q ls there a whíte board in your office?

I A Yes.

9 Q Oh, what's on the white board?

10 A The patients' names that someone that's already admitted,

11 and it giwes you a sense of !,¡hat beds are available on that
a2 board.

13 Q How do you ]earn when beds become availabfe on a unit?
14 A Again when there is a discharge from the units, they call
15 us and they Ìet us know a patient is being discharged and that's
L6 when we discharge the patient, then a bed become available.
17 Q And is the caII that a patient is, bed is qoing to become

18 available does that come from the unit clerk?

L9 A On the lreekends, I don't, they don't do that, I dontt

20 know. On the weekends there is no clerk, they calL me and teLl
2L me there's going to be beds avallable.
22 Q There's no clerks that work on the weekends?

23 A I don't know. I don't know but f have not received a call
24 from a cleì:k on weekends.

25 Q lüho calls you?
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1 A lt couLd be a nursing supervisor or a mental heaLth

2 worker -

3 Q A mentaf heafth worker.

4 A Yeah.

5 Q And the white board in your off.ice lists aÌl the cLinical
6 patientS beds that are available?
7 A AÌl the patient, the, the boal:d shows atÌ the patlents
I that's admitted and it also shows beds that are availabÌe.
9 Q And that board covers every unit in the hospital?

10 A Yes.

11 Q And you malntain that board?

L2 A Yes.

13 Q So, in your office there's a complete Ìist.ing of every
L4 patient in the hospital, correct?

15 A Yes.

1-6 Q And every bed that's fiÌfecl .

L7 A Yes-

18 Q And every bed that's not filled.
1"9 A Yes -

20 Q And you and the people in the same class as yours are

2L responsible for maintaining this board?

22 A ln the, ln the Access, yes, we are responsible.
23 Q And am I correct that that board is what everybody can use

24 to determine what beds are avaílable for assigning new patlents?
25 A Yes-
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1 Q Now, do you have any BLS Training?

2 A Yes.

3 Q What is "BLS"?

4 A BLS 1s to make sure, it's a training, itrs a training
5 brhere, I just took it not too long ago. for chitdren, Iike for
6 ch.ildren, adults if there is a emergency, they have breathing

7 issues and so forth.

I Q Basic life support.

9 A Yes.

10 Q And you successfu.lly completed the training?
11 A T just did about this fast month.

a2 Q So, you're capab.Ie of assisting people in acute distress
13 on an emergency basis and the basic leveL?

1-4 A Whatever they taught me there, yes, that's what I can do.

15 Q And is part of your responsibiÌity to help deescalate

L6 patients who present themselves to you in scared or psychotic

L7 state s ?

18 A I don't understand what you're asking me.

1-9 Q Now, do you understand "de-escalation"?

20 A Yes.

2a Q What is "de-escalation of a patient"?

22 A Compensa L ed .

23 Q And what do you do w-ith d parlenl who needs de-esca.lac ìon,

24 I mean do you taLk to them or describe the process for the

25 re cord?
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1 A fs this when they're over the phone or when they come in
2 .in person ?

3 Q l,et's do it in person first and then we'Ìf do ower the

4 phone.

5 A fühen a patient comes in. wefl they wouÌd come in, they

6 would go to the EC again, and then the EC clerk would catt me.

7 Then I wouÌd have to go there with the applicatlon and try to
I r:etrieve c.Linical data ìnformation, thelr name, phone number and

9 so forth, now the process that I always have to do. And then I
10 wouÌd inform the psychiatrist that's in the EC, to inform them

11 that the patient needs immediate treatment.

12 Q And over the telephone how do you deescalate patients?

13 A Tf a patient call and did seem, said they're out of it, T

a4 would ask them do they have a famiÌy member ther.e with them.

15 And if there is a family member, because I know ¡1l.¡ ¡þ-^y might

16 not be ab]e to express themselves or they're crylng and so

a7 forth, I would request for a fanily menber to see if I can

18 gather as much information as possible and then ask the famj I ',

L9 member to br.ing the patient in.

20 Q And is there a protocoÌ that you follow generally for how

2L to get the information from a crying patient or, you know¡

22 someone who is clearfy in trouble and you're fir:st contact, f
23 mean?

24 A If a patient call, they're crying, I try to be as

25 Lrnderstanding as possible. I try to ask them/ you know, the
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1 questions so I can get some/ "You know, don't cry, that's okay",

2 that's what we're here for, we're here to he.Lp you. I just need

3 to gather some information sô I have you come in quickly"

4 Q And would you agree you're an essential part of the

5 delivery of patient care to these patients who are cryíng?

6 MR. DORN: Objectlon, calls for a conclusion-

7 HEARTNG OFF]CER GOTTLTEB: T'.I.I Sustain that.

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q Do you feel llke you're an essential part of
10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTIIEB: I said I sustained that.
11 MR. FRANK: I'm ask.ing a different question. f can't ask

f2 the witness --
13 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: No, you seem as though you weïe

14 going to ask the exact same question. Go ahead. I mean there's
15 no basis to ask her a concLusion which that question appeared to 

ì

L6 be, but go ahead.

1-7 BY MR . FRANK :

18 Q Are you familiar with Plain Tree?

L9 A I heard about lt.

20 Q What have you heard about Pfain Tree?

2L A The th.ing is they have some program with, I'm not sure if
22 that's the exact program we're talking about- I believe they

23 assist empÌoyees to go ln for Ìike a retreat, is that what is?

24 lrm noL sJ re.

25 Q I'm asking you if you know what Plain Tl:ee is?
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1 A No, I don't know what it is.
2 MR- FRANK: I've no further questions -

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

4 MR. DORN: No further questlons.

5 HEARING OFFICER cOTTtIEB: Okay. you're flnished, step
6 down. Thank you very much.

7 (Vlitness excused)

8 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTIIEB: off the record.

9 (Off the record)

10 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record. Good

11 afternoon.

L2 THE WTTNESS: Hi.

13 HEARING OFFICER cOTTt TEB: Okay. pÌease state your name

a4 and address for the record.

15 THE WITNESS: Febee pierre, 75 üjest Sweden place, Spring
a6 VaÌley, New York 10977.

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: And your last name is what?

18 THE WITNESS: pierre, P-I-E-R-R-E.

19 MR. FRANK: I'm sorry, could the witness just speak up, I
20 canrt hear her.

2I HEARING OFFTCER GOTT],IEB: And just raise your voice.
22 THE WITNESS: Oh, Febee pierre. F-E-B-E-E, pierl:e,

23 P_T-E_R_R_E.

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay, thank you. Do you want

25 to raise your right hand, please.
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I Whereupon.

2 EEBEE PIERRE

3 Having been first duÌy sworn. was called as a witness and

4 testi f .ied as follows:

5 DIRECT EXAMINATION

6 BY MR. DORN:

7 Q Ms. Pierre, you're employed by Presbyterian Hospital in

8 We stche ster: ?

9 A Yes.

10 Q How .long have you been empÌoyed there?

11 A 2005, November 2005.

L2 Q And what's your position?

13 A EC Clerk.

14 MR. FRANK: I'm going to object to any further testimony

15 from this witness because this is a category the Union wants to
L6 put ln the bargaining, and we were precluded from puttinq in

17 evidence on the subject.

18 MR. DORN: And I'fl indicate why in short manner.

1-9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Could we first know, I rather

20 know in advance.

2I MR. DORN: All right. ALL of the EC Clerks are asked to

22 work on the units as mental health workers.

23 MR. FRANK: But the Hearing Officer has been excluding

24 testimony on categories that are included in the bargain.ing

25 unit. We weren't allowed to put in informatiÕn on that topic or
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1 testimony.

2 MR. DORN: Well. this .is an unusual sltuation where the

3 evaluation clerk aÌso performs duties as a mental health worker.

4 And I think that that is relevant to indicate why the Union

5 be.I.ieves that this position should be incfuded.

6 MR. FRANK: But that's not the issue.

7 MR. DORN: Also

I MR. FRANK: I'm sorry.

9 MR. DORN: AÌso/ I would ask th.is employee when she works

10 on the unit what contacts íf any she has with other indiwiduals,

11 or other classifications.

12 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: i{e11, the mental health worker

13 and the EC CÌerk, it's agl:eed both of them are in the unit, both

14 the Emp.Loyer and the Union aqreed that both of those job titles

15 are, couÌd be incÌuded.

16 MR. DORN: Yes, but the

L7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: So, maybe I'm not understanding

18 what you're saying, but

19 MR. DORN: But this is an evaluation cferk where we've

20 heard testimony before and there's no indication they work as

2L mental heaÌth workers on the units - And also, you hawe allowed

22 testimony concerning interaction.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB; Yes, I mean it, what the

24 Employer is saying is lnaccurate in that there's been no

25 prohib.ition of testimony on any of the categol:ies that the
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1 simple prohíb,.ition was to commence with the titÌes that there's
2 no dispute over. Obviousfy, you begin with the disputed titles
3 and you can have as much testimony you,ve been allowed on the

4 non-disputed tltles, but I see what you're saying.

5 All right, Irll permit lt.
6 BY MR. DORN:

7 Q üIhat hours do you work?

8 A It's 4:00 to 12:00.

9 Q What days of the week?

10 A Four days, four days a week, one weekend a month-

11 Q One weekend a mont.h?

12 A Uh-huh.

13 Q And where in the hospitaÌ do you work when you¡re working

a4 as an evaÌuatìon clerk?

15 A In the Evaluation Center/ ìn that department.

16 Q Have you ever been asked to work on one of the units?
f7 A Yes.

18 Q How often does that happen in an average week?

19 A Maybe two to three times a week.

20 Q And when you work on a unit- what are your duties?

21- A Well, as a physician you see - and then you are - And also

22 if I can add I have a when they pull us to the unit to write
23 it down how many times that we've been pulted to the unit.
24 Q Do aÌÌ of the evaluation cLerks get putÌed to the units?
25 A Yes-
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1 Q When you're working on the unit do you have any face to

2 face contact with the extractor health information management

ì ñ^^ñ ^,
4 A No.

5 MR. FRANK: Objection to the leading.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: WelÌ

7 MR. FRANK: I mean I understand this is the category that

I people are not disputing whether they're lncluded in the unit-

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Yes, but Ít's rebuttaL. It's

10 ultimately rebuttal testimony so.

11 MR. FRANK: RebuttaÌ? The last time I heard this was not

12 an adversary hearing- Why don't we have the same rules for both

13 sides?

14 MR- DORN: AÌl I'm asking is she has face to face contact

15 with various classificalions.

16 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLTEB: And I agree. It's fine, go

a7 ahead.

18 MR. DORN: And Mr. Frank asked that continuousÌy.

a9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Yes, I wou.Id agree. co ahead.

20 BY MR. DORN:

2I Q DÕ you have any face to face contact with the

22 administrative assistant?

23 A No.

24 Q With the chart ana.Lyst.

25 A No.
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1 Q With the administrative cferk.

2 A No.

3 Q Vüith the med.ical data anaLyst.

4 A No.

5 MR. FRANK: Same objection-

6 BY MR. DORN:

7 Q With the assistant purchasing.

I A No.

9 Q Wíth the casher.

10 A No-

11 Q With the data entry technician.

12 A No-

13 Q With the data technician HIM.

a4 A No.

15 Q With the Medicaid counselor.

1-6 A No.

t'7 Q ülith the office assistant.

18 -A No.

L9 Q fliith the pat.ient account representative.

20 A ldhat patient account representative? I'm nÕt sure.

2a Q With the patient registrar?

22 A Yes.

23 Q You have face to face contact?

24 A Yes.

25 Q And whatrs the nature of that contact?
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1 A tr{efl, our office is next to each other, I just go there

2 and there's a new patient. a new patient just arrived needs to
3 be registered.

4 Q All right.

5 A ïf we busy we just call over the phone.

6 Q When you're working on one of the units do you have any

7 face to face contact wíth the patient registrar?

I A No.

9 Q What about the HIM Data Specialist?
10 A No.

11 Q HIM processing speciafist.
12 A No.

13 Q Senlor Medicare account representative.

!4 A No.

15 Q Staff assìstant.

16 A No.

L7 Q Telephone Operator.

18 MR. ERANK: Objection to form.

19 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'lÌ permit it.
20 MR. FRANK: But I don't hear a question.

2L THE I¡IITNESS; No.

22 MR. DORN: I asked her if she had any face to face -
23 THE WITNESS: No.

24 MR. DORN: -- contact with any of

25 THE WITNESS: No-
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: He's golng through the llst, I
2 mean.

3 THE WITNESS: No.

4 BY MR. DORN:

5 Q When you're working on the unit do you have any telephone

6 contact with any of these classifications?
7 A No.

8 MR. DORN: No other questions.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Okay. Mr. Frank.

10 CROSS EXA}4INATION

11 BY MR. FRANK:

!2 Q Now, most of the time your job is EC CÌerk is that
13 correct ?

f4 A Yes.

15 Q And do you sometlmes cover the Access Service Department?

16 A No-

'L7 Q Did you ever do those duties?

18 A No.

19 Q You've never done them?

20 A No.

2L Q What are your duties?

22 A Patients come to the EvaLuatlon Center with the patients
23 and then tell me what the process is, how long ìt's going to
24 take, and then they would contact wlth the --
25 Q What information do you get from the patient?
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1 A Paperwork from other hospitaL, and then get the name of

2 the patient and then scribe that name on the board. We have a

3 board.

4 Q Is that the white board?

5 A Huh?

6 Q Is that the white board?

7 A Irm not sure what cofor is that board. And scribe the

8 name of the patient on the board. And then I sign the patient

9 to evaluator. And if the patient need assistance so we ask the

10 patient in any kind of --
11 Q l{hat kind of information do you get from the patient?

12 A Oh/ sometimes patients cannot give you that much

13 information. We got the paperwork from, from the ambulance,

L4 from the --
15 Q What information do you ask the patient?

L6 A I don't ask the patient any infol:mation.

:a'7 Q WeIl, how do you do an evaLuation of the --
18 A WeÌÌ/ I don't do the evaluation.

L9 Q How do you gather the information?

20 A I don't, patient came already with the paper aÌready, so I

2I got the paper from the ambu.Iance crew. And whatevel: is on the

22 paper I give it to the nurse of the --
23 Q So, do you talk to the patlent at all?

24 A We.ll, I greet the patient. If the patient is, is abLe to,

25 is able to hear, to taÌk, but sometimes patient cannot- They,
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2 Q If the pat.ient is not medicated and is abfe to tafk/ do

3 you talk to the patient?

4 A I just qreet the patient.

5 Q trdhat do you say to the patient?

6 A I say, "My name ís Febee Pierre, so we're going to be

7 taking care of you here".

8 Q Did you say anythinq eÌse to the patlents?

9 A No-

10 Q Did you ask them any questions about --
11 A Well, I--

12 O -- their condítions?

13 A No. If you, and we. if you are hungry we have, we have

a4 sandwiches¡ can give you some sandwiches if you are hungry.

15 Q Do you ask the patients any questions about their
16 conditions ?

L7 A No, T don't..

18 Q Do you ask them any, do you ask them if they have a

19 doctor ?

20 A No, I don't ask those questions.

21 Q Do you ask, do you get any information from them other

22 than \^/hat comes in a written package?

23 A No.

24 Q [rlhat else do you do in your j ob?

25 A I would just start a patient and if there's no finance
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1 people to register the patient I do that.
2 Q And how do you, what information do you get from the

3 patient to register them wíth finance?

4 A From the pre-admit that Access brought to us.

5 Q And so you qet no independent information from the

6 patients ?

7 A No, no, no independent information.

8 Q Now, you testlfied that two or three times a week you work

9 on a unit ?

10 A Yes.

11 Q Is that as a unit clerk?

12 A No, as a mental health worker.

13 Q As a mentaÌ heaÌth worker.

14 A Uh-huh.

15 Q And which Linlt do you work on?

16 A Huh?

I7 Q And whÍch unit do you work on when you're assigned, when

18 you work as a menta.I heaLth worker?

19 A lt could be any un.it they need help, they ca.L.l you to
20 ano Lhe r ur' t .

2! Q So, you could be assigned to any unit in the hospltal?
22 A Uh-huh.

23 Q And are there other, do aÌl of the evaÌuation cÌerks work

24 on a.ll of the units at times?

25 A les, Uh-huh.
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1 Q So, employees can work anywhere within the hospital
2 b,uiÌding ?

3 MR. DORN: Obi ection.

4 THE !ûÍTNESS: Say it

5 MR. DORN: Obj ection.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Wait, walt, lf there's an

7 objection don't answer the question unti.L f ruLe on it, okay.

I THE WITNESS: Uh-huh.

9 MR. DORN: I don't understand the question/ if he's asking

10 abìout this witness, evaluation c.lerks or any employee?

11 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: All right.
L2 MR. FRANK: Mr. Dorn's understanding isn't grounds for an

13 objection. Tf the witness understands the question I think she

a4 cdn dnswer il-

15 HEARTNG OFFïCER GOTTLIEB: We.ll, could you repeat the

1,6 questÍon.

l7 THE !íITNESS: Yes -

18 MR- DORN: Yes .

L9 BY MR. FRANK;

20 Q Do aÌl of the evaÌuation cÌerks work as mental heaÌth

2I workers throughout the buildlng?

22 A What do you mean throughout the building?

23 Q In all --
24 A In alÌ the unit.s?

25 O -- the units?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q Yes, okay- So, you can be assigned to any unit in the

3 buiÌding?

4 A Yes.

5 Q Now, are there peopLe other than evafuation clerks h¡ho

6 are, work part-time or sometimes as mental health workers?

7 A I'm not sure what yourre asking.

I Q ls it a fact that there are times on the evening shift -
9 you work 4:00 to 12:00, correct?

10 A Yes.

11 Q There are times it's very not busy in your office.

12 A Uh-huh, okay.

13 Q Is that true?

L4 A Yes.

15 Q Okay. And there's some nights when you have nÕthing to do

L6 as a eva.Luation cferk?

!7 A AÌways something to do.

18 Q But isn't it a fact that ther.e are many evenings where

!9 there are no admissions and no new patients to evafuate?

20 A t/ùe haven't had any, any/ any things Ìike that.

2L Q But isn't it a fact that when there's no pal:ticular work

22 that you have to do that you're assigned to work on a unit?
23 A Even lf we have work to do we still have to go to the

24 unit.

25 Q But somebody comes to you and says, "we need heÌp on a
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1 unit", and you're not particularly busy so they assign you to a

2 unit is --
3 A Yes.

4 Q -- that correct?

5 A Yes.

6 Q Right.

7 A YeS.

8 Q And isn't lt a fact that you're onÌy realLy busy when

9 there's a new admission coming to the hosp.ital?

10 A tr{hat is it?

11 Q What do you, do you do anything as an EC Clerk besides

12 working with patients who are seeking admission to the hospital?
13 A Yeah, we do, we do, we go on the unit as a mentaL health

14 worker and then we do registration for finance, and then we do

15 EC Clerk.

L6 Q Now/ when you say you do registration for finance what is
I7 that ?

18 A WeÌÌ, you register the patient. I{e got some information

!9 from Access, and then we do the registration.
20 Q Now, is that informatìon regarding MediCald or Medicare?

2L A No, we don't enter insurance information, lre enter other

22 information-

23 Q What kind of information do you enter for finance?

24 A Demographic ínformation.

25 Q tr{hat else?
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1 A And the diagnosis we enter.

2 Q But what information particularly for flnance?

3 A Finance enter a.L.l this, except the insurance we don't

4 enter.

5 Q And in what computer system do you enter the information?

6 A Eagle -

7 Q And Eag]e is the finance system?

B A Eagle is t.he registration system that we use as a c.Lerk.

9 Q And what kind of infor:mation do you enter into the EagÌe

10 System for finance ?

11 A I just said af .l the data or all the demographic

12 information except the insurance part we don't enter.

13 Q Now, I believe you testified that your office is right

14 next to the patìent registrar's office is that correct?

15 A Yes, yes.

16 Q And who is the patient registrar?

a7 A What do you mean?

18 Q Do you know who the patìent Tegistrar is?

f9 A Yeah.

20 Q Okay, what's the personf s name?

2L A Oh, her narne is Danielle.

22 Q And what does the patient registrar do, do you know?

23 A I don't know.

24 Q How far is her office from your off.ice?

25 A Well. we're very close.
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1 Q Next door to each other?

2 A Yes, across.

3 Q And does the patient registrar provide information to the

4 finance department ?

5 A Okay, f.inance department, weLL T don't deaL with finance.

6 Q Isn't the lnformation that you prov.ide to the finance

7 department the same type of information that the patient

8 registrar prov.ides to the flnance department?

9 MR. DORN: Objection, she testified she doesn't know what

10 the --
11 THE WITNESS: Yeah.

12 MR. DORN: -- patient registrar does.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, she did testify she

a4 doesn't know.

15 BY MR . FR-ANK :

16 Q You also said you have contacl wìth the patient account

a7 representatlve,

18 MR- DORN: I don't be.lieve she testified about it.

f9 THE ü/ITNESS: T donrt kno!./.

20 MR. FRANK: What ?

2L BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q Do you have contact with the patient account

23 repres entative ?

24 A No-

25 Q Do you know who that is?
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1 A I don't know who that ls so I cannot testify for that.
2 Q Did I m.ishear? I've written down that you had sa.id you

3 had contact with the patient registTar and the patient account

4 representative on Direct Examination was that --
5 A Patient registrar, yes- What patient I can't tafk
6 specific to, which one I'm not sure.

7 Q lf you ü¡ant to correct something that's fine. I've
I written down patient account representative-

9 MR. DORN: The witness is not bound by what Mr. Frank has

10 wrÍtten down.

11 MR. FRANK: Okay.

f2 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, no, I understand that.
13 BY MR. FRANK:

f4 Q Do you have any contact with

15 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: if you don't have information

16 you can just state you don't have lnformation.

17 THE WITNESS; I don't know.

18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; Just testify to what you know,

L9 it's no problem.

20 THE WITNESS: Right.

21 BY MR. FRANK:

22 Q Do you only work on the evening shift, 4:00 to 12:00?

23 A Yes / uh-huh .

24 Q And where is your office located?

25 A Part on the Ìeft side.
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1 Q On what floor?

2 A First floor, first floor.

3 Q And is that directly across the hall from the Access

4 Service Of f .ice?

5 A I believe so.

6 Q Are you sure?

7 A Yes.

I Q Okay. And is there a medicaf clinic on the first fÌoor of

9 that bui lding?

10 A Yes, there's a medicaÌ clinic.

11 Q And is patient finance on that fÌoor, the patient f.inance

1"2 department ?

13 A Not close to me.

14 Q Are they, is the patient finance department on the same

15 fÌoor as you were on in the buiLding?

16 A Yes.

L7 Q How far down the hall ìs the patient finance department

18 from your offi ce ?

a9 A I don't know how far, but the, I don't know how far that

20 office is.

2I Q Would you please look at Employer Exhibit Three, do you

22 see the purpÌe buílding 123 North on the bottom of the page?

23 A Uh-huh.

24 Q Is that the bu.ilding that you work in?

25 A I guess so, that's our building-
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1 Q Ts that the buiÌding you work in?

2 A Uh-huh.

3 Q And is the finance department -
4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: ActuaÌly it's getting, say yes

5 ratheL than "Uh*huh".

6 THE WITNESS: Okay, uh-huh.

7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q And is the finance department .in that buildinq on that
9 first floor?

10 A I cannot teÌÌ. f don't know where the office is focated

11 by Ìooking at that graph here.

12 Q Now, do you pass along information that you obtained in
13 the Evaluation Center regarding the insurance a patient may have

L4 to other peopl e ?

15 A No.

1-6 Q What do you do with the infol:mation you obtain from the

L7 pat.ients records regarding their insurance .information?

18 A I don't got insurance information.

19 Q Did you get any information from the patients regarding

20 whether they have insurance or not during the evalllation

2f proce s s ?

22 A No, ide don't got to do the information. Access got that
23 kind of information.

24 Q And does Access then provide that infornation to you on

25 the way --
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1 A Yeah, pass it on to EC.

2 Q üihen you get the information from the Access person --
3 A Uh-huh.

4 Q -- regarding the patient's insurance what do you do with

5 LhaL inforrnðLton?

6 A WeÌl, we expecting that patient to come.

7 Q The Access Service representative gives you the

I information about the patient/ s insurance correct?

9 A Uh-huh.

10 Q Vúhen you receive that information what do you do with the

_L _L ÌnrormatÌon 1

12 A What informat ion?

13 Q About the patient's insurance?

L4 A WeLl, Access teLÌ us if the patient has insurance or not.

15 and then us¡ as a co.l.lect personaÌÌy, we don't do anything with

1-6 that. Íf, t-f , a clinìclan has to qualify of her, has to calf.

L7 Q My question is what do you do with the information, do you

18 wrlte it down?

1-9 A WeÌÌ, the information is already on the paper, so I don't

20 write anythinq down -

2I Q What do you do with the paper that you get?

22 A Well, the paper: I fax it to the unit the patient is golng

23 to.

24 Q You fax it to the unit?

25 A Uh-huh.
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1 Q And who at the unit do you fax it to?

2 A Well, I fax it. I calL the unit. I make sure that they

3 receive it. T speak to a nurse or a unit clerk.

4 Q Änd do you make any notat.ion on the white board regarding

5 patients' insurance ?

6 A Yes, if the patient arrives and the patíent has arrived so

7 we already get the pre-admit and then we transfer the name on

I the board and then we put yes or no that patient has insurance

9 or not.

10 Q Do you make any entries into the 45400 Systen?

11 A No.

L2 Q Do you make any entries into the Ecliypsis System?

13 A No.

'L4 Q So, you onfy make entries into the EagLe System.

15 A Uh-huh. yes.

16 Q Tf the patient has been prewiousLy admitted to the

L7 hospital do you obta.in the.ir medical records from the health

18 information system department ?

19 A No-

20 Q Who gets that information for you?

2L A Access give us that information-

22 Q Access gets it from health information and provides it to

23 you ?

24 MR. DORN: Objection. that's not what she testifled to-

25 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Yes, let her finish. You are,
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1 let her finish what she's testifying to.
2 THE üIITNESS: T don't know where Access got it, but 1f the

3 patient's been there into the hospita.l already, so Àccess got

4 information and then come over and g.ive us the paper, the pre-

5 admit and we know that patient's a.Lready been here with her

6 medica] record number, so and then we retrieve that information.
7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q And who do you retrieve that informatiÕn from?

9 A We retrieve it from Eag1e, from 45400.

10 Q AS400?

11 A Uh-huh.

f2 Q And what information do you retrieve from the 45400?

13 A All chart. all information on chart.

14 Q Did T misunderstand before when you said you didn't use

15 the 45400 system?

16 A Yeah, f don't use it for entry, that's what you asked ne

f7 before. You asked me if I enter.ing it, I say nÕ, but I don't
18 make entl:y in 45400.

L9 Q Okay, thank you for the clarification. You use the 45400

20 System to retrleve informatlon.

2! A Uh-huh.

22 Q Okay.

23 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTLIEB: and just remember to say yes.

24 T¡lt WllNþ.SS: Oh, yes, yes.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Just so the record is clear.
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1 THE i{ITNESS: Okay.

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q What information do you retríeve from the 45400 Systen?

4 A Any, any lnsurance lnformatlon we can look in 45400 what

5 Access did put in, in the 45400, and then we Ìook, we look to

6 see che lnsurance --
7 Q And what kind of information can you find in the 45400

I about that patient ?

9 A AÌl the demograph.ic informat.ion and then treatment,

10 medication and insurance information.

11 Q Do you ever escort patients to their units?

L2 A Yes-

13 Q Do you ever use the HQS System? Do you obtain patients'

L4 signatures on financial forms?

15 A Yes/ when I do registration-

16 Q And what forms do you have patients sign for financiaf

a7 forms what are they signed for?

18 A They sign - the financial form and the, yeah. It's the

A9 HIPAA form and then, and Medicaid/ Medicare, so to be on

20 MediCare, MediCaid. so they sign three forms.

2L Q Would you describe what the Medicaid form is that you have

22 patients sign?

23 A No.

24 Q Íüould you pLease describe what the MediCaid is that you

25 have patients sign?
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1 A Vühat do you mean, describe it how?

2 Q Vühat is the Medicaid form, what information and what is

3 the patient signing for on that form?

4 A Wel.L, the patient is s.ign.ing that Medicaid form to explain

5 to them if patient have pr.ivate insurance, everybody to sign

6 that MediCaid form no matter what in case lnsurance doesn't

7 cover certain par:ts so Medicaid, they can have that for

8 Medicaid, that's, that's we say to the patient when they signing

9 the Medicaid form-

10 Q And what do you say to the patient before you have them

11 s.ign the f or.m?

L2 A Well, okay, I said this is the financial package. this is

13 registration. Thìs is for HIPAA, for Medicaid, so ewerybody.

L4 thatrs, that's what I said to them. to the patient.

15 Q Do you teÌl them they have a choice to sign this form?

L6 A We.II, they refr.lse to sign, sometimes they refuse to sign

17 so itrs --
18 Q And what do you do if the patient refuses to sign the

L9 Medicaid form?

20 A I don't do anyth.ing. If a patient refuse to sign, refuse

2L to sign. You cannot force them to sign.

22 Q And do you teÌl anybody if the patient refuses to sign?

23 A Yeah, there is a, there is a note on the paper. There's a

24 Ìine on the pâper that says refuse or patient medicated or for

25 medication, so you check each one regarding what's happening.

BURKE COTIRT REPORTTNG, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

û{afme , New Jersey 07 47 O

(973) 692 - O66O



610

1 Q And who do you give that form to when, after you've

2 checked that the patient r:efused to siqn it?

3 A WeIl, I mention that to the Charge Nurse and say wett that

4 patient she has to sign the paper, the financial packaqe.

5 Q And wouLd that be the Char:ge Nurse on the unit?

6 A No, the Charge Nurse ìn the EC.

7 Q Now, you also said that you aÌso have patients sign a

I Medicare form is that dlfferent form?

9 A Medicare. MediCaid.

10 Q Did you have any Medicare forms for patients to sign?

11 A No/ not our, not ourselves/ nÕt the cÌerks -

L2 Q And is there a form that you have for patients to sign

13 that theyr ll be responsibÌe for paying the hospitaf?

74 A Yes.

15 Q You have them sign that.

16 A Yes-

L7 Q And what does that form say?

18 A V[e.lI, the, as I remeÍ]ltrer the form said the month of, for

L9 staying in the hospital per day or for pressure¡ so that's what.

20 one form said.

2a Q Il teÌÌs the patient horv much it wilÌ cost them?

22 A Yeah, itrs writing on the paper. The patient who is seen,

23 the patient who is seen is that per day, .is a with insurance, we

24 fiÌed insurance how much it's going to be, and if it's partial

25 hospital how much it's going to be.
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1 Q And do you explain to the patient that this is what it's
2 going to cost the patient before they slgn this form?

3 A We, we, we, sometimes the patient asks is that how much is
4 that/ is that, it's that much and I say yes, your insurance you

5 paid that much.

6 Q And then you ask the patient to sign the form?

7 A Yes.

8 Q What is the HIPAÀ Form that you provide to the patients to
9 sign? Do you provlde a HTPAA form or a prlvacy form to the

10 pat.ients ?

11 A Yes.

f2 Q What does that form say?

13 A I don't remember every detail of the form, but.

L4 Q Generally can you descrlbe what it says?

15 A Yeah, the HIPAA.is a privacy of the patient, so we need

16 the, and then we talk/ I telÌ the patient you sign in the HIPAA/

1"7 so the hospital has no right to share your information to nobody

18 unless you aqree.

!9 Q Are there any other forms that you have the patients siqn

20 for the finance department?

2L A Yes, for patient for NichoÌs Cottage.

22 Q And what is that for:m?

23 A That sign is for schooling. It keeps going to Nichols

24 Cottage or 07 North, those two units.

25 Q What is the form for Nichols Cottage for the children.
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1 that's a chifdren's unit?

2 A Yeah -

3 Q Is there a special form for children?

4 A No, it's not a speciaÌ form. Itrs an additionaÌ form for

5 those two units for schoo.Ling, because they have schooÌing on 7

6 North and Nicho.Ls Cottage.

7 Q And what's .inc]uded on that form generally?

I A lt's incLuded the schoof district and immunization, things

9 Like that- And then they ask the paLents to fiÌl out that paper

10 if they want the.ir chlfdren to have any schooling, and if they

11 want any information to be released to the school that they go

12 to, th.is kind of nature .

13 Q Are ther:e any other forms that you have patients fill out

L4 for finance or for education?

15 A No, no.

16 Q Have you had the T,S Training?

1,7 A Yes-

18 MR. FRANK: May I have a short recess?

1-9 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB; SuTe.

20 MR. FRANK: Thank vou-

2I HEARING OFFICER COttlfegr Off the record. You can walk

22 around if you want.

23 THE WITNESS: A.L.L right, thank you.

24 (Off the record)

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Back on the record-
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q When you enter information into the computer systems do

3 you do it by typlng on a keyboal:d?

4 A Yes-

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Just raise your voice a little.
6 THE WTTNESS: yes.

7 BY MR. FRANK:

8 Q And how fast do you type?

9 A Forty, maybe 35 tô 40 words.

10 O And wouÌd it be accurate to say that you're a very
11 accurate typist for .inputting information with very few

a2 mistakes?

13 A Yes.

L4 MR. FRANK: l,ve no further questions-
15 MR. DORN; No further questions.

L6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTITEB: Okay.

1-7 THE WITNESS: Okay. Can I go?

18 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: yes, you can step down. Thank

19 you.

20 THE !ÍITNESS: Thank you.

2L (Vgi tness excused )

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Off the record.
23

24 (Off the record)

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record. The
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t hearing is adjourned today. The. we are not resuming on April
2 gtl,. Once again we wilÌ be resuming on ApriÌ 7th, at 9:30. Iiüe

3 wiÌl afso be resumÍng on Aprif 13th, 19th, and the 2L.t, aL

4 9:30, and April 20th at 1:00 p.rn. Thank you very much.

5 (Vlhereupon / at 2:56 p.m., tÌ¡e hearing was adjourned Èo reconvene

6 on April 7, 2OLt, at 9;30 a.m.)

7
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1 PROCEEDINGS

2 ãr-^" "or"Or 
10:00 a.m. )

3 HEAR]NG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

4 This ls a resumption in the matter of the New York and

5 Presbyterian Hospital, 2-RC-23583. cood morning- Do you want

6 to please state your name and addr:ess for the record?

7 THE I{ITNESS: Kewin Williams. Address, 29 BÌoomingdale

I Road.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: And where is that located?

10 THE WITNESS: Whlte Plains, New York.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you want to raise your right

f2 hand/ please.

13 (Whereupon/

14 KEVIN VÍILLIAMS.

15 was called as a wltness by and on behaff of the Petitioner and,

L6 after having been du.Iy sworn, was examined and testified as

L7 foÌÌows: )

18 DIRECT EXAMINATION

1-9 BY MR. DORN:

20 Q Good morning, Mr. WÍI.Liams. P.Lease try to keep your voice

2l up so evelyone cdn hear you.

22 A Okay.

23 Q You are employed by Presbyterian Hospital in tr{estchester?

24 A Correct.

25 Q How Ìonq have you been employed there?
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1 A I've been there three years and four months.

2 Q What's your position?

3 A MentaÌ health worker.

4 Q What shift do you work on?

5 A 7:00 to 3:00 is my prlmary shift, but I also could do a

6 3:00 to 11:00 or 11:00 to 7:00.

7 Q So mental health workers work three shifts?
I A ü7hen we're hired, we're toLd that itrs not a set schedu]e

9 per se. but Ìike if you're needed to cover on occasion or

10 whatever, they'ÌÌ change the shift. You'll take that shift on.

11 Q Ìihat unit or un.its do you work on?

1-2 MR- FRANK: Objection. Mental health workers are a

13 categol:y that the Union seeks to incÌude in the unit. The

14 hearìng --
15 MR. DORN: I know. I'm going --
16 MR. FRANK: May I finish the objection, counseL?

17 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, let him finish.
18 MR. FRANK: I believe the hearing officer's direction was

19 not to have testimony on categories that were not disputed to be

20 included in the bargaining unit.

2I HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Right.

22 MR. FRANK: And T would ask that the hearlng officer apply

23 the same rule to the Union's presentation as to the Employer's.

24 This is not an adversary case. You had said not to put in
25 testimony on non-disputed categories and we're doing that again,
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1 so I obj ect.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Okay. But Ìet's clarify. lt

3 was not to beg.in with the titles that were not disputed. You

4 certainly couÌd put on any ewidence about the re]ationship of

5 the disputed with the non-disputed.

6 MR. FRANK: But that's not what's happening. The counsel

7 is putting testimony in al:out the mentaÌ heaÌth worker.

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, no, I understand he may

9 b,e trying to do the same thing which is now there is testimony,

10 of course, now there is testimony on the record between the

11 re.Latlons between the various categories. And I assume that's
L2 what he's doing. I mean we do have record testimony now on many

13 things about the mental health workers.

L4 MR. DORN: Irm not going to go into any detaiÌ on it.

15 Itrs one more question and then ask about ínteraction. period.

L6 HEARING OF!.LCER COT-LTEB: Yeah, that's what r'm assuming.

a7 MR. FRANK: I'm goinq to object to the unfair treatment

18 between the Union's ability to put in evidence and the

Lg hosoir¿I's. And believe Lhe hearlng olficer is demonsLrêLìng

20 bias. And I say that regretfulÌy, with all due respect, but you

2a are allÕwing them to do what you would not allow us to do. And

22 thatrs just not right.

23 MR. DORN: That's abso.lutely untrue, absoÌutely untrue-

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I mean obviously it made no

25 sense to begin with every classifications you agreed with and go
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1 into detail about those classiflcations. It made sense to go --
2 MR. FRANK: It night be --
3 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Let me finish. With the

4 dlsputed classifications and their interaction with the

5 non-disputed. Now there Ís testimony, substantial testimony in
6 the record about both disputed and non-disputed category.

7 MR. FRANK: This was a non-disputed cateqory.

I HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Correct.

9 MR. FRANK: Then why are we taking *-

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: We now hawe evidence in the

11 record of the relatlon betrveen the two. But Let us go forward.

L2 Go ahead, Mr. Dorn-

13 BY MR. DORN:

14 Q l¡lhat unit or unlts do you work on, Mr. Wllliams?

15 A My prìmary unit is 6-North but at any given day I can work

16 on any unit. I've worked on every unit in the hospitaL.

L7 Q During the time you have been employed as a mentaÌ health
18 worker, have you had any face to face contact with the

L9 abstractor heaÌth informatlon manager?

20 A No.

2L MR. FRANK: Objection to leading.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No. I'll permit it. co ahead.

23 BY MR, DORN:

24 Q Have you had any teLephone contact with the abstract?

25 A No, I haven't
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1 MR. FRANK: Obiection-

2 HEARTNG OFFICE; GOTTT,TEB: t,.Lt permír ir. co ahead.

3 BY MR. DORN:

4 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the access

5 services l:ep ?

6 HEARING OFEICER GOTTI,IEB: I don't think he answered the

7 last questlon.

I MR. DORN: T thought he did.

9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Did you?

10 THE VùITNESS: Yeah.

11 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Oh, okay. I,m sorry- co

12 ahead.

13 THE iíITNESS: Can you repeat the question?

1-4 BY MR . DORN :

15 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the access

16 service rep?

L'l MR. FRANK: Obj ection.

18 HEARTNG OFFÍCER GOTTLIEB: T'll permit it.
L9 MR. DORN: I assume he has a continuing objection. He

20 doesn't have to object to every question.

2I MR. FRANK: Can you teÌl me how to object to improper

22 Ìeading ques ti ons ?

23 HEARI\G OFFTCER GOTTL-LEB: No, -'ll permit ì

24 I\4R. DORN: Thank you.

25 HEARING OFFÌCER GOTTLIEB: Okav.
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1 BY MR. DORN:

2 Q Did you answer the question?

3 A No, I have not.

4 Q Have you had any telephone contact with the access service

5 rep?

6 A Ye s, occasionally.

7 Q What's the nature of that contact?

B A Access service rep would caÌ1 up to the unit and ask how

9 many beds are awailable. This caÌt could be taken by anybody.

10 But if T happen to pick up the call that day, that's a

11 conversation lasts about fess than a minute.

L2 Q Durìng an average week, how often do you speak to the

13 access service rep?

14 A I would say Õnce a week, if that.

f5 Q Have you had any face to face contact vrith the
'J-6 administrative assistant?

L7 A No.

18 Q Have you had any teLephone contact with the administrative

19 assistant?

20 A No.

2l Q Have you had any face to face contact with the chart

22 anaÌyst ?

23 A Maybe once a week, once a week.

24 Q What's the nature of that contact?

25 A Again, it's kínd of Ìike luck of the draw. If they come
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1 up to the unit and they have any questions about a producer,

2 whoever is in the nursing station can answer that question. It
3 doesn't necessariÌy have to be a mental heatth worker or a

4 nurse, or whoever can answer the question.

5 Q Do you have any telephone contact with the chart anafyst?

6 A Again, maybe once a week they call up with a question.

7 Q What about Lhe administrative clerk, do you have any face

I to face contact with the administrative clerk?

9 A No.

10 Q ülhat about telephone contact?

11 A No.

12 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the medical

13 data analyst ?

14 A No.

15 Q Any telephone contact?

L6 A No.

L7 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the purchasing

18 assistant?

L9 A No.

20 Q Any te.lephone contact?

2I A No.

22 MR. FRANK: Obj ections .

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I understand.

24 BY MR. DORN:

25 Q Have you had any face to face contâct with the cashier?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q Whatrs the nature of that contact?

3 A I night be covering for. the unit cferk. And we have

4 patients. We hofd their money with the cashier. So if that
5 patient is being discharged, we wilÌ go down and cotlect the

6 money. So I have face to face contact wlth the cashier in that
7 way.

8 Q During an average week, how often does that happen?

9 A T woufd say once a neek, if that, once a week.

10 Q Do you have any telephone contact with the cashier?

11 A No.

1-2 Q Do you have any face to face contact with the data entry

13 techni c.ian?

L4 A No.

15 Q Any telephone contact wit.h the data entry technician?

L6 A No-

L7 Q Any face to face contact with the data technician HIM?

18 A No.

a9 Q Any te.lephone contact with the data technician HTM?

20 A No.

2l Q Any face to face contact with the mail clerk?

22 A Yes.

23 Q What kind of contact do you have with the mail clerk?

24 A Again when the mail clerk comes up, normalÌy, they'll lust
25 drop the mail off at the tabLe. and whoever receives the maiÌ,
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1 that would be the onfy face to face contact she would have.

2 Q How often does that happen?

3 A They come up every day. Monday through Friday, I should

4 say. So I would say, yeah, about five times a week.

5 Q Do you have any teÌephone contact with the mail clerk?

6 A No.

7 Q Do you have any face to face contacl wíth the Medicaid

8 counse Lor?

9 A No-

10 Q Any telephone contact with the Medicaid counselor?

11 A No.

a2 Q Any face to face contact with the office assistant?

13 A No.

74 Q Any tefephone contact wlth the office assistant?

15 A No.

16 Q Any face to face contact wíth the patient account rep?

1-7 A No.

18 Q Any telephone contact with the patient account rep?

L9 A No.

20 Q Any face to face contact wìth the patient registrar?

21- A No-

22 Q Any telephône contact with the patient registrar?
23 A No.

24 Q Any face to face contact with the HIM data speciaList?

25 A No.
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1 Q Any telephone contact with the HIM data speciaÌist?
2 A No.

3 Q Any face to face contact w.ith the HTM processing

4 speciali st ?

5 A No.

6 Q Any telephone contact with the HIM processing speciaÌist?
7 A No-

8 Q Any face to face contact with the senior access services

9 rep?

10 A No.

11 Q Any telephone contact with the senior access services rep?

1-2 A No.

13 Q Any face to face contact with the senior Medicare account

L4 rep ?

15 A No-

a6 Q Any telephone contact with the senior Medicare account

L7 rep?

18 A No.

L9 Q Any face to face contact with the staff assistant?
20 A NÕ.

2L Q Any telephone contact with the staff assistant?

22 A No-

23 Q Any face to face contact with the social work assistant?

24 A Yes.

25 Q Vlhat's the nature of that contact?
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1 A Social work ass.istants are in charqe of after-care for

2 patients and discharge. So they might need us to assist w.ith

3 the patient, getting them ready for an interview, something like
4 that, or pretty much that's it- Over the phone, if they have

5 any questions. they wiLL call, so they have phone contact. And

6 that's pretty much it.

7 Q Where do the social work assistants work?

I A As f al: as I know, generally. they share a unit. There's a

9 lot of them. But I think they split them up. They share office
10 space. But none of them are on an actual unit.

11 Q Where is the office space located?

L2 A Out in the Center Building. I'm on the north side,

13 6-North, and T think most of them are Ìocated in the Center

a4 Building.

15 Q Do you have any face to face contact with the telephone

16 ope rator ?

I7 A On occasion -

18 Q What's the nature of that contact?

L9 A If I need to pick up a package that might have been

20 dropped off for a patient or a worker. T'd have to walk down to

2A the Center Building and receive it that way.

22 Q How often does that happen durinq the week?

23 A Maybe once a week.

24 Q What about telephone contact with the telephone operator?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q What's the nature of that contact?

2 A A patient might have a visitor downstaírs, again there

3 night be a package downstairs, and they wiÌl ca.l.l up and say can

4 this patient come up. If he needs to make a long distance phone

5 ca]l. we have to go through the operator to make the cafl.

6 Q How often on the average does that happen?

7 A Once or twice a week.

I Q One second.

9 (Pause. )

10 MR. DORN: No other questions.

11 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Mr. Frank?

a2 MR. FRANK: No further questions?

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: No further qusstions he's

L4 saying -

15 CROS S -EXAMINATION

T6 BY MR. FR.ANK :

I7 Q Do you have any contact with the chauffeur on a regular

18 basis?

L9 A No.

20 Q Any teÌephone conLact with the chauffeur?

2l A No.

22 Q Do you have any daily contact with the nutrition

23 assístants ?

24 A Yes.

25 Q Do you have any daily conLact with the ficensed practicaÌ
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1 nurses ?

2 A Yes-

3 Q What's your contact with the licensed practical nurses?

4 A lf they need us to get a patient. we'll go bring patients
5 to them whethei: it be for medica.I, physical, or somethlng Ìike
6 that.

7 Q How fl:equentÌy does that occur?

8 A That can happen three or four times a week.

9 Q So in a five day week/ three or four days out of five
10 you're going to have contact with the T,pNs?

11 A Yeah.

a2 Q Are there LpNs assigned to your unit?
13 A My unlt? No.

L4 Q Are there l-PNs assigned to other unlts where mental health
15 wo rkers wor r?

16 A Yes-

L7 Q How many of the units have LpNs assigned to them?

18 A I really don't know.

L9 Q VlouÌd it be most of the units?
20 A I wouLd say no.

2I Q How many LpNs are there?

22 A I've heard three or four.
23 Q Oo you ever have contact with the LpNs by telephone?

24 A No.

25 Q Oo you have any reguÌar contact with the drapery maker?
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1 A No.

2 Q Do you have any reguLar contact with the laundry driver?
3 A No.

4 Q Do you have any daily contact with the storeroom clerk?

5 A I can say out of a vJeek maybe about two times.

6 Q Do you go to the basement to see the storeroom clerk?

7 A Yes.

I Q Where in the basement do you meet the storeroom cler:k?

9 A Where in the basement?

10 Q Yeah.

11 A In the storeroom.

a2 Q !ühere is the storeroom located in the basement?

13 A The right side of the basement.

L4 Q Is human resources in the basement?

15 A Yes.

1-6 Q Do you ever go to the human resource department?

17 A Yes.

18 Q ülhat other departments are in the basement?

19 A Dietary is 1n the basement. Security is in the basement-

20 I think the voÌunteer department is in the basement. There is
2I laundry in the basement. l,ocksmith is ìn the basement. The

22 luggage room is in the basement.

23 Q Do you ever go to the Luggage room?

24 A Yes-

25 Q When do you go to the luggage room?
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1 A When? lfhen there is -- maybe about twice a week/ if I'm

2 covering for the unit clerk.

3 Q And why would you go to the Ìuggage room?

4 A To bring up a patient who might be getting discharged

5 their c.Lothing or their luggage.

6 Q How do you get into the fugqage room?

7 A You knock and the guy .Lets you .in.

8 Q Who is in the luggage room?

9 A The locksmith. He does the locksmith job and he does the

10 luggage room.

11 Q When you go intÕ the Ìuggage room, do you talk to the

L2 .Locksmith?

13 A Yes.

14 Q And you do that two or th:ree times a week?

15 A Yes.

16 Q Does the .Locksmith ever come to the units?

L7 A Yes.

18 Q [4lhy does he come to the units ?

!9 A He might need to --
20 MR. DORN: I'm goíng to object. I thought we were not

21- getting involved in the malntenance cLassifications -

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'ÌÌ permit this. co ahead.

23 The locksmith is not part of -- well, one second.

24 MR. DORN: Sure it is.

25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Is the locksmith --
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1 MR. DORN: The Ìocksmith is part of the maintenance unit.
2 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Off Èhe record.

3 (Discussion off the record. )

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On the record.

5 I'm looking at the exhlbit here, Union 1, and I don't see

6 the Ìocksmith is incLuded in the unit represented by Loca.I 30.

7 So go ahead. I'll permit it. You can answer the question.

I THE WITNESS: Can you repeat the question? Irm sorry.

9 MR. FRANK: Cou.Id you read the question back to the

10 witness. pfeas e ?

11 (IVhereupon, the pending question was played back. )

L2 THE WITNESS: YeS.

13 BY MR. FRÀNK:

L4 Q Do you have any contact rvith the uphoLsterer?

15 A No.

A6 Q What is patient center care? Are you famiÌiar with that
17 term?

18 A What is it? Ways to put patients flrst, improve care for
19 the patients, just working together to make their stay as

20 pleasant as possible.

21- Q And is that somethinq that you are trained in at the

22 hospital ?

23 A tr{e have different trainings and Planetree to help us in
24 order to achieve those qoals -

25 Q And what is Planetree?
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1 A Planetree is like twice, T mean once every tb¡o years I
2 beÌíeve it is we meet. Tt's fike a day off the un.it a group of
3 us get together and we are taught Ìike different ways to make

4 our units better, dlfferent ideas to take back to the units to
5 help improve patient care, and just to make our jobs easier-
6 Q At these Planetree meetings. are alL the employees of the

7 hospital, Westchester Division, incLuded in these group

B meetings ?

9 A Far as I know, yes.

10 Q And would that include employees that you testified that
11 you didnrt have daiÌy contact with?

L2 A Dally contact with?

13 Q Yes, correct. Going through the list, are the

a4 administrative assistants incLuded in the pÌanetree meetings?

15 A -L wo-ld assume yes.

1-6 Q Are the chart -*
1-7 MR. DORN: Objection. If the witness doesn't know. then I
18 think he shouLd not answer the question.

L9 MR. FRANK: That's not an objection-

20 MR. DORN: Yes, it ís. He assumed- T think it's wrong to
2L as sume -

22 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTT.IEB: If you don't know something.

23 just say you don't know.

24 THE WITNESS: Okay -

25 BY MR. FRANK:
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1 Q Are you being paid today for being here?

2 MR. DORN: Objection. Objection.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: That's not appropr:iate to say

4 to the witness. l,et's just move to the next question.

5 BY MR. ERANK:

6 Q Have you been paid by the Union for coming today?

7 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: EXCUSe __

I MR. DORN: Obj ection.

9 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTI,IEB: I'm golng to sustain the

10 objection. Okay, why don't we move to the next question?

11 BY MR. FRANK:

12 Q Do the ana]ysts attend the Pfanetree training?

13 A As far as -- can I just say something?

L4 HEARING OFEICER GOTTÍ,IEB: No/ no. Just answer the

15 question.

L6 THE WITNESS: AÌ1 ríght. I reaÌÌy don't know.

L7 BY MR. FRANK:

18 Q You've been to the PLanetree --
a9 A One time in three years I've been there.

20 Q Are you care champion for your unit?

2L A Yes.

22 Q Vlhat is the care champion for a unlt?

23 A Care champion, we keep up the statistics for our unit like

24 as far as how weÌl we are doing wlth oul: scores- We aÌso try to

25 make the unit better. b/e qo to a meeting once a month. And we
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1 take back that information to the unlt to .Let everyone know how

2 we are doing, what are the plans for the future, again ways to

3 make the unit better. When we go to these meetings, we let them

4 know if we hawe any issues and what they might be abLe to help

5 us with. And that's it. It's kind of like a brainstormlng

6 thing. Like one unit might do something that works weÌÌ, so we

7 can use their ideas- It's a good meeting-

I Q Who attends these monthly meetings?

9 A Whoever is the care champion on that unit.
10 Q Do the senior access reps attend those meetings?

11 A I wouÌdn't know.

12 Q hleÌl/ how many meetings have you been to?

13 A I've been to a couple.

14 Q Have any of the senior access representatives attended?

15 A I don't know-

16 Q Do the unit cferks attend the meeting?

L7 A Fal: as I know, yes.

18 Q What kind of statistics do you keep?

19 A We have whatrs called, well, these surveys- The name

20 sLips me right now. We monitor those scores as far as how good

2l the patients feel that their stay was from the EC to actual

22 discharge. Press Ganey is the name of the survey.

23 Q Is that a patient satlsfaction survey?

24 A Correct. So at the meeting/ they Let us know how we are

25 dolng. Ìike where we rank.
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1 Q And that survey goes fl:om the evaluation center to
2 dis charge ?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Does it incÌude everything in between coming to the

5 facility at the evaluation center to the time they Ìeave the

6 facifity?

7 A Yes.

8 Q And does 1t measure how the initial meeting with the

t hospitaÌ occurs at l:egistration?
10 A Can you explain for me?

11 Q Does it ask how the patients feel they were treated at the

12 initiaf encounter when they come to the facility?
13 A I wouLd say yes. yes-

14 Q Does it ask questions and obtain information about how

15 they Like the food at the faciÌlty?
16 A Yes.

a7 Q And does it obtain information on how they were treated at
18 the unit that they were assigned to?

1-9 A Yes.

20 Q And does it obtain information on how they were treated
21" when they were transported ft:om one part of the faciLity to the

22 othe r ?

23 A No.

24 Q Does it obtain information how they thlnk what work was

25 done ?
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1 A No-

2 Q Or how nurses treat them?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Vühat else does it ask?

5 A I believe there is a sociaÌ work part. There is also a

6 recreationaÌ ther:apy part, dietary, nursing, and that's aft I
7 can remember right now.

I Q Are there questions about how they Like their rooms and

9 the physical plant.

10 A T'm not sure.

11 Q You get the survey data for your unit?

L2 A Yes.

13 Q And do you see the survey data for the other units?

L4 A When it's given to us, it is individuaÌ units. So unless

15 I request to see someone eLse's scores, you really don't get to
a6 see them.

f7 Q At the monthly meetings, do each of the care champlons

18 from the other units have their surveys from their units?

a9 A We don't gô into the meetings with the surveys. They just

20 give us the scores- The surveys are given to patients when

2L they're discharged- They just get the scores.

22 Q The patients get the surveys.

23 A Yeah, upon discharge.

24 Q At your meetings/ do you discuss the surveys?

25 A Yes- Yeah. we do.
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1 Q So you have a meetlng of people from aÌÌ the different
2 unlts and you aff discuss the surveys and how patients are

3 reacting to you ?

4 A Yes.

5 Q Vühat is the goal or the purpose of these meetings?

6 A To achieve higher scores, ideas that we might have to do

7 so, afso just to get the scores back so we can post them on the

I unit, see how we're doing and Ìet the patients know how we're

9 dolng as a unit.

10 Q Is the goa.l to improve the scores for the entire facility
11 as a unit ?

L2 A Yes.

13 Q Now were you patient center care champion for, what, four

L4 years ?

15 A No.

16 Q How long have you been --
17 A T've been there for three years in the hospital. So it's
18 been I would say about two years.

L9 Q Two years. And wou.Ld it bìe accurate to say that you hawe

20 been successful in working with the other employees of the

2! facility to improve the overall pat.ient care satisfaction at the

22 faci I ity?

23 A On my particular unit/ yes-

24 Q And have the other units made progress and done well, too?

25 A I really can't answer that-
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1 Q Erom yoilr discussions at the group meetings?

2 MR. DORN: Objection. He said he can't answer. He canrt

3 answe r -

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, l'l.L pernit .it.

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Do you have any sense that the entire facllity at the

7 Westchester Division has improwed theír patient care scores over

8 the Ìast two years?

9 A The hospital as a whole, I would say yes.

10 Q And is it a fact that in achieving this improvement in
11 patient satlsfaction. the hospitaÌ has emphasized that the

a2 entire work force is wanting to pt:ovide care to the patients?

13 MR. DORN: Objection. It's a leading question. PIus,

14 it's vague. T don't know what --
15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Yeah, I mean it's Ìike his

L6 op.inion ultimately, so itrs not that probative.

a7 MR. FRANK: 1'1Ì follow up with that.

18 BY MR. FRANK:

f9 Q Can you answer: that?

20 A No.

2L Q Have you gotten instructions from the Ìeadership at the

22 hospital regarding the need for everyone to work toqether as a

23 coÍnmon team for providing patient care?

24 A Yes.

25 Q And who gave you that instruction?
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1 A The patient care director stresses that we work together

2 on our unìL-

3 Q Have you had simiLar instruction from senlor management?

4 A No.

5 Q Do you ever attend meetings with senior management?

6 A Recent.ly.

7 Q Yes? And do they -- do the conversations emphasize that

B patient care is the most important thing at the facility?

9 A Re cently ?

10 Q Yes.

11 A No, that hasn't been the topic-

12 Q In the past has it been a topic?

13 A No.

14 Q Did you have any invoLvement into the dewelopment of the

15 photo ID board?

16 A Yes.

L7 Q What is the photo lD board?

18 A The photo ID board rve started on my unit, 6-North. It was

f9 really my patient care director's idea- And we just, you know,

20 it's all the empfoyees - There's a photo of alL the empÌoyees,

2L theìr job titles. and what they do, a brief description of what

22 they do at the hospital on the unit. And it makes it easier for

23 the patients to identify us. I think it's a good too.l for the

24 patients just so they can becorne famíliar with us and be able to
25 point us out if they need something or someth.ing like that-
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1 Q Would it be accurate to say that the patients on your unit
2 are very sick patients?

3 A Some o[ Lhem are, yes.

4 Q And is this the affective disorders unit?

5 A [dhat is the affective disorders unlt?

6 A lt's a generaÌ unit. We get a ÌittÌe bit of every

7 diagnosis- We have everything from geriatric to very depressed

I patients, atcoho] and drug abusers, bipolar, so kind of a mixed

9 unit.

10 Q Ts it a locked unit?

11 A Yes.

12 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: I'm sorry. I didn't hear your

13 question.

L4 MR. FRANK: I said is it a Locked unit.
15 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Oh, okay.

1.6 BY MR. FRANK:

t7 Q !ûhy is it a Ìocked unit?

18 A Because --
'l-9 MR. DORN: Objection. I mean we've had testimony that alf
20 of the units are Locked exceÐt one-

2L MR. FRANK: f ' f f .or].ru.t this very qu.ickly.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Irll permit it. Go ahead.

23 BY MR. FRANK:

24 Q Why is this a locked unit?

25 A So the patients can't get off, safety reasons.
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1 Q Are some of the patients considered dangerous?

2 A I would say so, yes.

3 Q And does a patÍent sometlmes get vlolent with the staff or

4 visitors on that unit?

5 A Yes.

6 Q And that's part of their dlsease, correct?

7 A Can you repeat?

8 Q Is that part of their disease?

9 A Yes.

10 Q Are there rules for not leaving sharp instruments or sharp

11 objects on the unit?

12 A Yes.

13 Q What are those rules?

14 A lte keep aLl sharp objects in the nurses' station locked

15 up. Nothing 1s to be Ìeft out on the unit/ in the kitchen.

16 That's it.

L7 Q If the upholsterer comes -- does the upholsterer ever have

18 to come onto the unit to repair furniture?
L9 A No.

20 Q Who would repair. furniture on the unit?

21- A The upholsterer- But you sald dld they come on the unit.
22 They don't. The furniture is taken to them-

23 Q Who takes the furniture to them?

24 A I beÌieve housekeeping. Housekeep.ing-

25 Q Do the maintenance employees ever come to the unit?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q üihy would they come to the unit?

3 A To fix something.

4 Q Do they bring tools wlth them?

5 A Yes.

6 MR. DORN: I'm going to object again. The maintenance

7 employees were included in the bargaining unit represented by

I l,ocaÌ 30.

9 MR- FRANK: I'm entitfed to build a record to show there

10 is interchange of employees- And just because these employees

11 were in that former unit, I can show that they have interchange

72 with these employees and this is an appropriate.

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: AÌÌ right. No. I'If sustain

14 the obj ection.

15 BY MR. ERANK:

L6 Q Do air condition.ing service employees come to the unit?

L7 A Yes.

18 MR. DORN; Same objection-

19 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yeah, I'm qoing to sustain the

20 obj ectlon.

2I MR. FRANK: Can I ask the reason?

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,TEB: Tt's aÌready on the record so I

23 don't want to waste any more time on it. I'lL sustain the

24 objection. And let's move on.

25 BY MR. FRANK:
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1 Q Do plant service tradesmen ever come to the unit?
2 MR. DORN: Same objection.
3 HEAR]NG OFFICER GOTTIIEB: Yeah. AS I've said __

4 MR. FRANK: f'm qoing to make an offer of proof that they

5 come to the unit and --
6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTÍ,IEB: you already have made an offer
7 of proof with respect to this.
I MR. FRANK: I believe we have a witness who can testify
9 lrhat happens on the unit, that there is interchange on a regular

10 basis between these employees and the empÌoyees in the unit that
11 the Union seeks. And it is reaÌly to me objectionab.Le that the

a2 Union can cut off testimony because they don't want it on the

13 record when the facts çvitÌ show there is daiÌy and regular
a4 inr e rc ¿roe.

15 MR. DORN: The interchange that Mr. Frank is talking about i

L6iSabSolutelynonsensical.Whena1ocksmithcomeStotheunit

I7 to fix a door, that's what he or she does. Or the malntenance

18 worker fixes an air conditionlng unit, that's what he or she

L9 does- No one eÌse does it. And then they leave. That's not

20 incerchange wiLn --

2L HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Atl right, tet's go Õn with the

22 questions. We don't need to --
23 MR. FRANK: MR. Dorn is making up statements that are not

24 true. Thet:e is no evidence to support that.
25 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: All right. But there is no
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1 sense to argue peopÌe's positions no!,¡ - We have a witness to ask

2 questions.

3 MR. FRANK: I'm trying to put evidence on so the reader of

4 the record --
5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: A1l right- But lrve sustaíned

6 the objection. so you can move on.

7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q Does the general service workers ever come to the unit?

9 MR. DORN: Same objection-

10 HEARTNG OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Yeah.

11 MR. FRANK: I mean have you decided that the unit is what

'L2 the Union wants, ma'am? If it ls, I mean we can qo home and not

13 have a hearing.

L4 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: We've already had this. You

15 have a special appeal .

a6 MR. FRANK; And you haven't ruled on it.

!7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: The reqion hasn't ruLed on it
18 yet, but it's pending-

t9 MR. FRANK: I'm trying to build a record.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Let's move on.

2L MR. FRANK: My frustratlon ls you are not âllowing me to
22 build a record.

23 HEARINC OFFICER GOTTLTEB: WeÌI, you have appealed that

24 and the region hasn't ruÌed on it. If you prevail, that will be

25 the situation.
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1 MR. FRANK; And then we have to go back and do this

2 hearing again?

3 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLTEB: tr{ell, the region hasn't made a

4 detel:mination yet on that- But, pLease, let's move on and not

5 rvaste any more time on this.

6 MR. FRANK: I real.Iy think it is inappropriate for you to

7 say I'm wasting time. And f take exception to the bias the

I hearing officer is showing. I just don't think that's fair.

9 HEARING OEFICER GOTTLIEB: It's not b.ias. I'm here to

10 make cercain rhat --
11 MR- FRANK: T thought you role was to buiÌd a fuÌl record

L2 so the Board could decide it based on evidence, not to have a

13 record where evidence doesnrt come 1n.

a4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Okay. Look, we --
15 MR. DORN: Madam Hearing Officer, you've already ruleci

16 time and time again- Can we get on wÍth the hearing?

f7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Vle've rufed. f agree. I

18 agree.

19 BY MR . ER-A.NK :

20 Q Are there soclaf events at the hospital?

2L A Yes.

22 Q Can you describe the social events that regularly occur at

23 the hospital ?

24 A T know recent.Iy they just had a spring fling.

25 Q And who attended that?
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2 Q Did,you go?

3 A No.

4 Q Ì¡lhat other social events are hefd?

5 A They have tea I thlnk in the auditorium.
6 Q Do you ever go?

7 A No-

B Q Do you go to any social events?

9 A Not realÌy.
10 Q Is there a baseball team?

11 A There is a softba]Ì team.

12 Q Do you ever play softbalL?
13 A No.

a4 Q Do your responsibilities involve escorting patients to
15 areas other than their primary unit?
L6 A Yes.

fi Q And \,vhere do you escort patients to?
18 A ECT.

L9 Q What is ECT?

20 A ElectroconvuÌsíve treatment.
21- Q And where is that?
22 A Thatrs in the Center Buifding, cfoser to the north side
23 Q I{here eÌse do you escort patients to?

24 A X-ray.

25 Q Who works in X-ray?

BURKE COTIRT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Wa)me , New .fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692 - O66O



651

1 A The X-ray technician-

2 Q And do you stay there while the patient is gettinq X-rays?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Do you ever talk to the X-ray technician?

5 A About the patient.

6 Q About anything ?

7 A About the patient.

8 Q About the patient, okay. How often do you go to X-ray?

9 A Once a month.

10 Q Vühere e.Lse do you escort patients?

11 A To the hospital.

a2 Q Tn the hospital, okay- Where else do you escort -- how do

13 you get patìents to the hospital?

f4 A Call a cab.

15 Q And when you say the hospitaÌ, you're talking about a

L6 facility other than --
L7 A ldhite P.Lains Hospìtal.

18 Q ta/here eÌse do you escort patients?

f9 A That's pretty much it.
20 Q Do you ever escort them to the cafeteria?
2L A No, we don't do that.

22 Q Do the patients ever get tô go outside?

23 A Yes.

24 Q Do you escor:t patients on the grounds of the facility?
25 A Yes, to the courtyard.
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1 Q And if the pat.ient goes outside. do you walk around w.ith

2 them?

3 A No.

4 Q Does somebody stay with the patients when they are outside

5 in the courtyard ?

6 A We do, the mentaÌ hea.Lth lvorkers. It's a focked area, so

7 we donrt have to waÌk around wlth them as Ìong as they're in

I eyesight.

9 Q So you have to stay within eye contact of the patients

10 whenever they are outslde?

11 A Correct.

12 Q And when they are outside, do you see other employees of
13 the hospita L ?

L4 A Yes.

15 Q Who do you see when you are outside?

a6 A Mental hea.lth workers.

a7 Q Anyone ef s-^?

18 A Recreation therapists.

19 Q Anyone efse?

20 A That's it.

2A Q Ever see the groundskeepers?

22 A WhiLe we're outside? No.

23 Q Do you ever see the groundskeepers inside?

24 .A Yes.

25 Q tdhen do you see the groundskeepers?
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1 A When I'm drlving in.

2 MR. DORN: I'm going to object. Groundskeepers, f

3 believe. are included.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Correct. I'll sustain the

5 obj ection.

6 MR. FRANK: Okay. I'Ll keep taking exceptions.

7 BY MR. FRANK:

I Q Do you ever see the office assistants?

9 A No.

10 Q Do you ever take patients to an office?
11 A To an office?

a2 Q Yes-

13 A The EC, say to that office.

14 Q You ever escort the patients to the office areas?

15 A To the EC, yes.

76 Q Anywhere ef se?

L7 A Not an of f .ice, no.

18 Q What about to the cashier?

L9 A To the cashier?

20 Q Yes.

2I A No.

22 Q If visltors come, do you gÕ to meet visítors and br.inç,

23 them to the unit?

24 A No.

25 Q Who br.ings visitors to the unit?
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1 A They come to the unit on their own.

2 Q Does anyltrody escort them?

3 A No.

4 Q How do they know how to find the unit?

5 A The receptionist wilf teff them, give them direct.ions-

6 Q Do you talk to the receptionist when there are visitors
7 coming ?

8 A Yes.

9 Q And what does the receptionist advise you when a visitor
10 comes, that somebody is qoing to come to the unit or would you

11 describe that conve rs ation ?

A2 A The receptionist wilL call up and they would say so and so

13 pat.ient has a visitor, is it okay if the visitor comes up. And

L4 my response would be yes, if ítrs during visiting hours, and no,

15 if it is not.

16 Q idhat are visiting hours?

a7 A Visiting hours on my unit, it varies from unit to unit
18 but on my unìt it is from 1:00 to 5:00 every day and 6:00 to
L9 I : 00 every day.

20 Q And other units have different vislting hours?

21- A Correct.

22 Q Is the receptionist the same person as the telephone

23 operator or is that a different person?

24 A To my knowledge, itrs the same person.

25 Q Is the psychiatric technician a senìor menta.I heaÌth
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1 worke r?

2 A Yes.

3 Q The statistics that you were referring to previously, is

4 that informatÍon provided to you by the heafth information

5 people ?

6 A Health information people? No.

7 Q Where do you qet the statistical data from?

B A Tina. She leads our meetlngs.

9 Q Who is Tina?

10 A She's the patient care speciaList.

11 Q And what is your residentlal address?

a2 A My residentiaÌ address?

13 Q Yes.

14 A 40 Memor.ial Highway-

15 Q You don't live at the hospital facility?

L6 A No.

L7 Q What ls the Healing Arts Corunittee?

18 A To my knowledge, they have a store cÌose to the cafeteria
'J-9 where patients can work there after they reach a certain Ìevel -

20 They can go there, can put in a coupÌe of hours. They sell

2a trinkets/ little gifts and stuff for sale.

22 Q Who is on the Healing Arts Committee?

23 A I wouldn't know.

24 Q Are those employees of the hospital?

25 A I beÌieve so.

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, Ne\^/ ,fersey 07 47 O

(973) 692- O66O



6s6

1 Q And do you escort patients to the store that the Healing

2 ATts Corìnìittee mai nta ins ?

3 A No.

4 Q How do the patients from your unit get there?

5 A The recreation therapísts on my unit, they escort the

6 patients.

7 Q How do they get the patients from your unit?

I A How do they get the patlents?

9 Q Yes.

10 A T don't understand.

11 Q What is the process? Do they come to the unit and ask you

A2 or do they ask the unit clerk to escort the patients?

13 A To my knowledge, the recreation therapist, PSR, I believe

14 they ca1Ì them, he arranges that whoÌe transaction with the

15 patients.

a6 Q Well/ are you notified when a patient .leaves your unit?

17 A Yes.

18 Q Who notifies you that a patlent is going to Ìeave your

L9 unit ?

20 A The recreatlon therapist would notify us.

2I Q They will come onto the unit and talk to yor-l or does he do

22 it by te lephone ?

23 A Elther/or, rL doesn't matter. Either/or- He could be on

24 the unit when he gets the information. He can ca1.L from his

25 off.ice and say I'm taking this patient off the unit.
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1 Q Do the staff assistants ever call you to teÌf you a

2 patient is goíng to go off the unit?

3 A Yes. I'm sorry. I thought you said a social work

4 asslstant.

5 Q No. A staff ass.istant?

6 A No.

7 Q What is a shining star award?

8 A The shíning star award is a way for patients to recognize

9 workers that they feel have made an impact on their stay there.

10 They might want to show how much they appreciate the work that
11 they did for them. So 1t's a paper, a form that they can just

12 write the worker's name and the reason why they are submitting

13 the award, I mean the nominatlon. And we have lìke a fittÌe box

a4 on the unit. They put it in the box. And at the end of the

15 month it's talf.ied up and the winner gets an award-

16 Q And are a.L.L the emp.Ioyees, nonprofessionaf employees

I'Ì e.Ligible for obtaÍnÍng these awards.

18 A Yes.

1-9 Q Have you ever gotten one of these awat:ds?

20 A Yes, lhave.

2L Q How many times?

22 A I wouÌd say about three, three or four times.

23 Q Are there other awards that employees are eligibÌe for?

24 A Yes.

25 Q What are the other awards that the nonprofessional
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1 emp r oyees are e I i gible fo r?

2 A I Ì:eÌieve there is a Hamifton award.

3 Q What is that?

4 A I¡m not too sure-

5 Q What else?

6 A Thet:e's more, I just can't remenber the names.

7 Q What is CO status?

I A Constant obserwation.

9 Q What is that?

10 A A patient for whatever reason, it could be suicidaÌ, a

11 patient coufd be suicidaf or any kind of danger to themselves ot:

L2 others, we watch them. There ís a worker outside their door.

13 Vüe have to monitor and make sure they stay safe-

L4 Q What classes of empÌoyees perform close observation

15 duties ?

1-6 A Mental hea.Ith workers. OnÌy mental health workers.

17 Q Do other employees get assigned to do that work other than

18 menta.L health workers at times?

a9 A From time to time, if we need help, the nurse on a unit
20 will sit status. Sometimes fl:om the EC, they'll send the

2L workers up to help us out. They'tl slt status as well.
22 Q EC is the clel:ical ernpÌoyee?

23 A The c.Ierks downstairs at the evaÌuation center.

24 Q Yes. Those clerks wiÌÌ sometimes sit and do CO wol:k?

25 A Yeah, CO, yeah.
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1 Q Okay. Anyone eÌse?

2 A That's it.

3 Q What's maximum observation?

4 A Maximum observation is c.Loser. The patient miqht be like
5 an .immediate risk to coÍìmit suicide or endanger themselves or

6 others, so we have to be a Ìittfe closer/ arm's Ìength, b,y the

7 patient, just closer. It's fike a step up from CO.

I Q So wherever the patient goes, you have to move with the
o ñ-ri^ñl ?

10 A Arm's lenqth, yeah.

11 Q LiteraÌly one arm's length- And how often do you get

a2 assigned to do that?

13 A It depends- It could happen every day. It coufd happen

L4 once a month. lt really depends on what kind of patient we're

15 dealing with.

l-6 Q How does a patient on maximum observation get fed?

1-7 A On a tray.

18 Q [/ûho does the feeding of that person?

L9 A Who prepares the tray?

20 Q Yes.

2I A The pantry aide.

22 Q ls that on the unit? Does the patient eat on the unit?
23 A Yes.

24 Q And are you with the patient when that occurs?

25 A When a patient is eating, yes.
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1 Q On maximum observation?
t 

^ 
W^a

3 Q Do you have any contact with the cook?

4 A No.

5 Q Do you have any contact with the coordinator of Ìaundry

6 servlces?

7 A No.

8 Q Do you have any contact with the phlebotomist?

9 A Yes.

10 Q What contact do you have with the phÌebotomist?

11 A We gathel: the patients. üie have a list of blood work in
a2 the morning. So all the patients on that líst, we have to bring

13 those patients to the phÌebotomist. And we stand there when

14 they are getting the blood from the patients.

15 Q ülhere does the phlebotomist take btood?

L6 A In the treatment room.

I7 Q Where is the treatment room?

18 A lt's on the unit.

19 Q On your unit?

20 A Yes. On every unit.

21- Q So the phÌebotomist comes to every unit?

22 A Yeah, as far as I know.

23 Q Do you have any contact wlth the pharmacy technician?

24 A Yes.

25 Q What is your contact with the pharmacy technician?
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1 A He'1I come up- They come up I think every day. They
2 bring the medication up. That,s about as far as it qoes- I see
3 them every day.

4 Q Do you have any dlrect business dealings with them?

5 A No.

6 Q You just see them walk by?

7 A Pretty much, yeah.

I Q You're not invoÌved in the pharmacy end?

9 A No. One contact would be if the nurse needs us to run
10 down to the pharmacy to hand us over the medication. Then we go
11 back upstairs.
12 Q So somet_imes you,Ìf be sent downstairs to the basement, to
13 the pharmacy to get medications from the pharmacy technician?
1-4 A yes .

15 Q But when the pharmacy technician comes to the unit, you
1-6 have nothing to cto with 1t?

!7 A No.

18 Q You just might see him on the unit?
L9 A Him or her.

20 Q But you don, t tâtk to them?

2I A No.

22 Q Now when a llcensed practical nu¡se is on the unit/ do you
23 have contact wÍth her or him?

24 A yes. I don't have one on my unit/ but !,¡hen I float to
25 many other unlts -
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I Q Right. Thank you. Sometimes you float to other units.
2 A Col:rect -

3 Q When you float to another unit with a Ìicensed practical
4 nLlrse, do you vrork together wÍth the LpN?

5 A !ùe assist them, yes.

6 Q What kind of things do you do to assist them?

7 A cet patients when they need them. They might not know

8 exactly where to locate patlents. As a mental heatth worker, we

9 are more familiar with where patients are alÌ the time- So we

10 asslst them in that way.

11 Q Do you ever work in the children's unit?
L2 A Yes.

13 Q And are your duties modified !,rhen you are on the
'L4 chiLdren's unit ?

15 A No.

a6 Q You do the same kind of work?

1-7 A Every un.it.

18 Q Same contact wlth other people on the units?
79 A Yes.

20 Q The l,PNs ?

2L A If they have an LPN/ yes.

22 Q The mail clerk comes to the unlt every day?

23 A Monday through Friday, yes.

24 Q And on every unit you are on, the mail clerk comes to the

25 ur'Ls?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q Does the mail clerk dlstribute mail to each patient?

3 A No.

4 O How is that done?

5 A The maiL c.Lerk comes up. He wilf drop the maiÌ on the

6 unit clerk's desk. Then they feave.

7 Q And if you are on maximum observation with the patient and

I the patient gets mail, how does the patient get the maiÌ?

9 You're on arm's .Length observation.

10 Q WeÌl, the unit clerk or whoever is in the nursing station

11 can say that patient I'm with has mail, and I'll be there. Irll

L2 actually open the maìl and see the patient go through it just to
13 make sure there's nothing in it that would hurt him or anyone

L4 else.

15 a So it's part of your responsibíLìty to make sure that the

16 patient doesn't get something dangerous or injure themselves

L7 wlth the maiL?

18 A Correct.

19 Q Do you have any interactions with the halÌ aides?

20 A Hal.L aide s ?

21- Q Yes.

22 A I'm not familiar with that position.

23 Q Do you know !.¡ho the hall aides are?

24 A No.

25 Q Do you work with them at aLL?
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1 A I don't know the hall aide position.

2 Q Do you have any contact with the senior qroundskeeper?

3 MR. DORN: Obj ecr ion.

4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'll sustaln that.

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Do you have any contact with the senlor hall aides?

7 A I don't know the hall aide position.

I Q It's not a position you have any contact with?

9 A Say that again?

10 Q That¡s not a position you have any contact with as a

11 mental health worker?

!2 A I don't know.

13 MR. DORN: Objection. Objection. That's not what he

f4 said. He said he doesn't knor.¡ the classification.
15 MR. FRANK: T can ask follow-up questions. The witness

L6 can answer.

17 MR. DORN: OÌlject to the characterization.

18 MR- FRANK: You want to include a unit this man has no

L9 contact w.ith, the position.

20 MR. DORN: He didn't say that. He said he's not famlliar

2I with the classiflcatlon. Maybe he knows people by different

22 titles.

23 MR. FRANK: Can we take a short recess?

24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Off the record.

25 (!ühereupon. a brief recess was taken.)
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1 HEÀRING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On Èhe record.

2 BY MR. FRANK:

3 Q Do you know Christel Farelf?

4 A No.

5 Q Is she somebody that's included in the care champion

6 mee c ings ?

7 A I said no.

8 MR. DORN: Objection. lle said he didn't know her.

9 BY MR. FRANK:

10 Q Do you slt next to her at the meetlngs?

11 HEARING OFFÏCER GOTTI,IEB: Vüait, walt. Do you know her?

12 THE I{TTNESS: I said no.

13 (Laughter - )

1-4 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I want to wait for the comedlan in
15 the back tÕ --
16 HEARÍNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: A1Ì right, everyone can stop.
'L"7 He has said he doesn' t know her.

18 MR. FRANK: T'm allowed to ask a couple of questions to

L9 probe this a Ìitt.Ie bit, I think .

20 BY MR. FRANK:

2I Q Do you ever sit next to her in the care champion meetings?

22 A No.

23 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Well, do you know who this

24 person is?

25 THE WITNESS: I said no.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: So how woufd he know if he sat

2 next to her or not?

3 MR. FRANK: We may have a witness who testifies otherwise

4 on that topic.

5 BY MR. FRANK:

6 Q Have you been at meetings with Sedrick O'Connor?

7 A Yes.

I Q And was that at the PCC champion meetings?

9 A Yes.

10 Q What was Mr. O'Connor's role in those meetings?

11 A He conducted the meeting-

L2 Q And in those meetings. did he discuss the importance of
13 patients coming firs t ?

1-4 A Yes.

15 Q And would you describe how he emphasízed the need that
16 everybody work together for providing patient care?

17 A It's been a while. From what I can remember, he did

fg emphasize the lmportance Õf teamwork and how doing so can

a9 provide a ltretter experience for the patients while they,re here

20 at the hospital.

2L Q And is this importance of teamwork for better patient cal:e

22 experience directed to alÌ employees work.ing at the facility?
23 A I would say everyone that was in the meeting.

24 Q And who was in the meeting?

25 A When he was there?
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2 A A year ago, I rea]ly can¡t remember.

3 Q WeÌl, was it alf of the nonprofessional employees?

4 MR. DORN: Obj ection.

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: Hers just stated he doesn't

6 remember.

7 MR. FRANK: Irm aÌÌowed to ask a second question. I mean

I he says I don't remember, f'm allowed to, T believe, this is

9 cros s -examination, to ask a second question-

10 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT,IEB: Go ahead.

11 BY MR. FRANK:

12 Q Were a.Ll of the nonprofessional employees at this meeting?

13 Or many of them?

1-4 A I realÌy don't remember.

15 Q How many peopfe were there?

L6 A I reaÌly don't remember.

L7 Q Can you approximate?

18 A I'd say about 15, 10 to 15.

L9 Q Do you know Jose Delarosa?

20 A Yes.

2I Q Who is Jose Delarosa?

22 A He does the scheduÌe.

23 Q And does he work in patient care services?

24 A I be]ieve he works in the -- I'm not sure. I know he

25 works in the nursing supervisor's office.
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1 Q So he's a cl erical employee?

2 A Far as f know/ yes.

3 O And what is your contact with him regarding scheduÌinq?
4 A lf he neecis overtime or something Ìike that, he,lÌ calÌ up

5 to the unit and he'fÌ more than likeÌy speak to the unit clerk
6 and the unlt clerk wifl ask us who wants to work.

7 Q Is Mr. Defal:osa a staff assistant?
I A I don't know his title.
9 Q Do you know Betty Sue Murphy?

10 A No.

11 Q Or a Sue Murphy?

L2 A No.

13 Q Do you have Bl,S certiflcation?
a4 A Yes.

15 Q And do you have any contact with anybody regarding your
16 BT,S certi fication?
L7 A I think contact -- cil is our unit clerk and he notifies
18 us. He has like a chart in the office telling us when we need

L9 to be certified.
20 Q And who contacts cil?
2I A I don't know.

22 Q Does that come from pâtient care services?
23 A I donrt know.

24 Q Are there dances for the patients, sociaL events for
25 patients off the unlt?
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1 A Not that I know of.
2 Q Have you ever escorted patients to a dance for patients or

3 social eve nt ?

4 A No.

5 Q What is your job grade?

6 A Two or three.

7 Q And is your salary in the range of 918 to 919?

8 A Yes.

9 MR. FRANK: I have no ful:ther questions.

10 HEARING OFEICER GOTTLTEB: Mr. Dorn?

11 Go off Èhe record.

L2 (Discussion off the record. )

13 HEARfNG OFFICÊR GOTTLIEB: On Èhê record.

L4 REDIRECT EXAMÎNATTON

15 BY MR. DORN:

1-6 Q Mr. Smith (síc), do any --
L7 MR. FRANK: Mr. Dorn, I think you have the wrong wltness?

18 BY MR. DORN:

19 Q Yeah, WilÌiams - Sorl:y. Do any employees clean the units?
20 A EmpÌoyees? Other than housekeeping?

2I Q Who cleans the unit?

22 A Housekeeping.

23 MR. FRANK: I'm going to Õbject. To the extent we are not

24 aÌlowed to put in testimony about maintenance workers, I don't
25 -- ìt's inappropriate to put in testlmony about some people and
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1 then be excluded to be abfe to put in testimony about the other

2 people who are going to do similar functions.

3 MR. DORN: I wanted to clarify that the classificatlon

4 that Mr. Frank asked about, hall aides. are known to most

5 empÌoyees as housekeeping peopÌe. T just thought the record

6 shou.Ld be clarif led.

7 MR. FRANK: But that's not accurate. And malntenance

I people --
9 MR. DORN: How do you know it's not accurate from th.is

10 w.itness' poinL of view.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: A1l right. No --
L2 MR. FRANK: You just told the wìtness what to testify to.
13 But the maintenance peop.Le do similar functions.

f4 MR. DORN: He alreadv testified.

15 MR. FRANK: No, but Oo, .un'a allow testimony about some

16 people who do maintenance and housekeeping type servlces, and

l7 then excÌude testimony about other people who do the same thing.
18 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB; Vüell, it's for that limited
L9 purpose.

20 MR- DORN: They don't do the same thlng.
2L MR. FRANK: Yes, they do-

22 MR. DORN: Nonsense. You're telling me that a maintenance

23 mechanic does the same thing as a housekeeper?

24 MR. FRANK: lf you'd .let the evidence in, you might be --
25 MR. DORN: Nonsense -
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1 MR. FRANK: Well, the record wiÌl show otherwise.
2 HEARTNG OEFICER GOTT] fEB: A1l right, fet's not argue.

3 MR. FRANK: But Irm objecting to putting in testimony on a
4 subject that you won,t aflow us to put other testimony on to
5 buiÌd a complete record.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. But Mr. Dorn has just
7 said that this relates to the hall aide position. So for that
8 limited thing. I witl allow him to ask a question.

9 MR. FRÀNK: My objection applies to more than just a ha.I1

10 aide. Tt also applies to maintenance peopte.

11 MR- DORN: lrm not asking about maintenance peopÌe.

12 MR. FRANK: And groundskeepers.

13 MR. DORN: I have no other questions.

L4 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Okay. No other questions,

15 okay. ALI right, do you have -- weLÌf you aÌready did yours and

a6 he had no questions- So. okay, thank you very much-

L7 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

18 (t¡itness excused- )

1-9 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. We have another witness?

20 Good morning- How are you doing?

2I THE WITNESS: I'm well, thank you.

22 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Have a seat, pLease. pÌease

23 state your name and address for the record.

24 THE WITNESS: My name is peter Franc.is. And I reside at
25 2188 Strang, S-T-R-A-N-G, Avenue, and that's in the Bronx. And
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1 my zip code is 10466.

2 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Do you want to raise your right
3 hand, please.

4 (Vühereupon,

5 PETER FRJANCTS,

6 was cal.Ied as a witness by and on beha.Lf of the petitioner and.

7 afLer having been duÌy sworn, was examined and testified as

I folÌows: )

9 DIRECT EXAMINATION

10 BY MR. DORN:

11 Q Mr. Erancis, are you employed by presbyterian Hospital in
L2 trdest cheste r?

13 A Yes, I am.

14 Q How Ìong have you been employed there?

15 A 38 7/2 years -

16 Q And what's your current titfe?
17 A I'rn a psychiatric technician.
18 Q ldhat are your hours of work?

19 MR. FRANK: Objection- Vle've aÌready -- this is a

20 non-disputed category. We've already had testimony of the

2L mentaf heaLth workers. This is cumufative. Whv do we --
22 MR. DORN: So we -- go ahead-

23 MR. FRANK: You were directing us not to put testimony in
24 on the non-disputed categories. Why al:e we doing another one

25 whel:e it's cumu.lative with the fast witness.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Right. Mr. Dorn is doing just

2 the lnteractlon, which obviously you had evidence on --
3 MR. FRANK: It's no different than the menta] health

4 workers- This is the senior category to mental heaÌth workers.

5 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay.

6 MR. DORN: lf Mr- Frank wi.L.l st.ipu.Late that if Mr. Francis

7 testlfied, he would testify that his contacts with other

8 cLassifications are simifar to the way that Mr. trdil.Liams

9 testified his contacts are then we don't have to put this

10 witness on.

11 HEARING OFFICER COTTLIEB: Okay- There is obviousÌy no

f2 s tipulat ion.

13 MR. FRANK: No stipulation. I have an objection to
14 cumulative testimony and the hearing officer letting the union

15 put in testimony on non-disputed categol:ies when the hospitat

16 wasn't allowed to do so.

a7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'ÌÌ permit it. Go ahead.

18 MR. FRANK: I take exception, again.

L9 BY MR. DORN:

20 Q What are your hours of work. Mr. Francis?

2L A From 3:00 p.m. -- 3:15 p.m. until 11:15 p.n.

22 Q And on what unit or units do you work?

23 A I work on 4-South-

24 Q Horv .Long have you worked on 4-Sollth?

ð Jo ycdlJ.
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1 Q During the time you have worked as a psych tech on

2 4-South, have you had any face to face contact with the

3 abstractor, heaLth information management?

4 A No.

5 Q Any telephone contact with the abstractor, heafth

6 inf ormat.ion management?

7 A No.

I Q Have you had any contact face to face w.ith the access

9 service rep ?

10 A That's the EC?

11 Q No. Access se rv ice.

12 MR. FRANK: I object to this Lead -- okay. Leading

13 question obj ection.

1-4 THE WITNESS: No-

15 BY MR. DORN:

16 Q Have you had any telephone contact with the access service

l7 representat.ive.

18 MR. FRANK: Can I have a ruLing?

L9 THE WTTNESS: No.

20 MR. FRANK: What !,ra s the ruÌing on my objection?

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: The witness just wanted a

22 clar.if .ication as to the position.

23 MR. FRANK: T'm objecting to the leadinq. The witness

24 didn't even know what the question was.

25 MR. DORN: Obj ection.
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1 MR. ERANK: He's reading a list and he's saying no. T

2 mean that's not testimony.

3 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: I'11 permit the questions.

4 BY MR. DORN:

5 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the

6 administrative as s is tant ?

7 A No.

I Q Any teÌephone contact with the administrative assistant?

9 A No.

10 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the chart

11 analys t ?

12 A No.

13 Q Have you had any t.ef ephone contact w.ith the chart analyst?

L4 A No.

15 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the

!6 administrative clerk?

L7 A No-

18 Q Any tefephone contact with the administrative clerk?

L9 A No.

20 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the medical data

2I analys t ?

22 A No.

23 Q Any telephone contact with the medicaL data analyst?

24 A No.

25 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the purchasing

BURKE COURT REPORTING, LLC
1044 Route 23 North, Suite 316

Walme, Ne\^t .Iersey 07 47 O

(973t 692- 066O



676

1 assistant?

2 A No.

3 Q Any telephone contact with the pul:chasing asslstant?
4 A No.

5 Q Any face to face contact wlth the cashier?

6 A Yes.

7 Q What's the nature of that contact?

I A To retríeve patients' cash when they are Ìeaving the

t hospital .

10 Q How often do you have such contact with the cashier?
11 A Very rare, because it's generaLly done in the mornlng.

12 Q Do you have any telephone contact with the cashier?
13 A No.

14 Q Have you had any face to face contact wìth the data entry
15 technici an ?

16 A No.

1-7 Q Any telephone contact with the data entry technician?
18 A No.

19 Q Have you had any face to face contact wíth the data
20 technician HTM?

2I A No.

22 Q Any tefephone contact with the data technician HIM?

23 A No.

24 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the evaluation
25 cente r ?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q f{hat's the nature of that contact?

3 A They bring up a new admission to the unit and they will

4 present that person to me for admittance to our unít.

5 Q How often ln an average week does that happen?

6 A I'lI get that about three times per week.

7 Q Do you have any telephone contact with the EC clerk?

I A No-

9 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the maiÌ clerk?

10 A No.

11 Q Any te.lephone contact with the mail cferk?

12 A No.

13 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the Medicaid

14 counseÌor ?

15 A No.

a6 Q Any telephone contact with the Medicaid counselor?

L7 A No.

18 Q Have you had any face to face contact with the office

L9 assistant?

20 A No.

21- Q Any telephone contact with the office assistant?

22 A No.

23 Q Hdve you had any face Lo face contact lvlth the paL ient

24 account rep ?

25 A No.
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1 Q Any te.Lephone contact with the patient account rep?

2 A No.

3 Q Any face to face contact with the patient registrar?

4 A No.

5 Q Any telephone contact r.rith the patient registrar?

6 A No.

7 Q Q Any face to face contact with the HTM data specialist?

I A No.

9 Q Any telephone contact with the HIM data specialist?

10 A No.

11 a a Any face to face contact with the HIM processing

L2 specia.l i st ?

13 A No.

a4 Q Any telephone contact with the HIM pr.ocessing specialist?

15 A No.

a6 O O Any face to face contact with the senior access

f7 services rep ?

18 A No.

19 Q Any teÌephone contact with the senior access servj.ces rep?

20 A No.

2I O O Any face to face contact with the sen.ior Medicare

22 account rep ?

23 A No-

24 Q Any telephone contact with the senior Medicare account

25 rep?
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1 A No.

2 Q Q Any face to face contact v¡ith the staff assistant?
3 A No.

4 Q Any tefephone contact with the staff assistant?
5 A No.

6 Q Q Any face to face contact with the tefephone operator?

7 A Yes.

I Q tr{hatrs the nature of that contact?

9 A I go to her to get flowers that's left for patients on my

10 unit, ffowers.

11 Q How often during the week does that happen?

12 A Once a month.

13 Q Do you have any telephone contact with the telephone

14 operator?

15 A Yes.

16 Q And what's the nature of that contact?

L7 A To find out who is the supervisor for that evening tour.
18 Q How often does that occur?

19 A Pretty much on a daily basis.
20 Q Do you have any face to face contact wÍth the social work

2a as s istants ?

22 A Yes.

23 Q What's the nature of that contact?

24 A HelÌo, in the hallway-

25 Q Do you hawe any telephone contact with the socíal work
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1 assistants?

2 A No.

3 Q Any social work assistants work on your unit?
4 A We haven't got one assigned. I don't know.

5 MR. DORN: No other questions.

6 HEARING OFFICER GOTTT IEB: Okay. Mr. Frank?

7 CROSS -EXAMINATION

8 BY MR. FRANK:

9 Q lühen you answered no to alf those questions, is that true
10 over the last 38 years that you've never had contact with any of
11 the peopLe you've said no to?

f2 A Yes, it's true.
13 Q Do you always work at nights?

L4 A Yes-

15 Q You have never worked during the day shift?
1"6 A Oh, a time ?

L7 Q Yes.

18 A Yes.

19 Q When did you work day shift?
20 A l,ast -- today is what? I think I was there on Tuesday.

21, Tuesday.

22 Q You worked days Ìast Tuesday?

23 A Yeah, I worked an overtime.-

24 Q Other than overtime. have you always worked nights?
25 A Yes.
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1 Q Do you have any contact with the concierge?

2 A Yes.

3 Q i{hen do you have contact with the concíerge at night?

4 A From 3:00 in the afternoon when I report to work until he

5 goes away at 6:00. so 3 hours.

6 Q Whatrs the contact you have wíth the conclerge?

7 A When he .Leaves at 6:00, I become the concierge-

I Q And what do you do as the conc.ierge at 6:00?

9 A T assist the patients on the retreat part of 4-South.

10 Q What is the retreat?

11 A The retreat part if the amenities unit- Our fÌoor is

L2 divlded into two parts. You've got the amenlties unit and

13 you've got the regular 4-South.

L4 Q And what is the amenitles unit?

15 A These patients pay extra for additionaL amenities.

16 Q What kind of patients are on 4-South?

a7 A AÌcohoÌ and drug rehab. That's what it is.

18 Q Do you have any contact with the senior CASAC people?

1-9 A Yes.

20 Q What is your contact wlth senior CASAC?

2L A l¡,r ^ sh¿ re meeL i rq, sLaf f meecing.

22 Q Can you describe what happens at those meetings?

23 A Patient care. We talk about patients' care.

24 Q And you work with the senlor CASACS?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q What do you do in those meetings?

2 A T gíve feedback on what happened the prewious night whíle

3 they're away.

4 Q Are the CASACS also there as welÌ as the senlor CASACS?

5 A At the meeting?

6 Q Yes-

7 A Yes.

I O ü]ho else is at those meetings?

9 A Mental health workers.

10 Q Who else?

11 A That's it.

L2 Q AÌt of you at the meeting, the senlor CASACS, the mental

13 heafth workers, the CASACS/ you aLl discuss the patient issues

14 together ?

15 A Yeah.

16 Q What kind of things do you discuss about the patients?
17 A What kind of night they had the previous night while on my

18 tour.

L9 Q Ts there an LPN on your unit?

20 A No, sir.

2I Q Is there an LPN on the unit during the day?

22 A No, sir.
23 Q Do you know how the unit is staffed during the days?

24 A Yes.

25 Q And how is your unit staffed during the day?
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1 A You've got two RNs. unit clerk, two ol: three menta] health
2 workers. that's pretty much it-
3 Q And on the evening shift that you work, how is the unit
4 staffed?

5 A Two mentaÌ hea.lth workers, one RN. that's it.
6 Q Now when you work on evenings, you have contact with
7 anybody other than the two menta.L heafth workers and the one

8 reglstered nurse ?

9 A Yes.

10 Q Who else do you work with?

11 A the even ing supe rv isor.
f2 Q Anyone else?

13 A No, that's it.
L4 Q So when you are at work -- when you say two mentaÌ health
15 workers, do you consider yourself a menta.l health worker? Are

16 you one of the two?

L7 A At times.

18 Q Okay. And what is your lob title?
L9 A I'm a psychiatric technician.

20 Q When you are working, is it one psychiatric technician and

2L one mental heaLth worker on that unìt?

22 A Yes.

23 Q Is it your testimony that you have no contact with any

24 other employees in the bargainìng unit or: the proposed voting
25 unit other than the other mental health worker, the RN, and the
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1 evening supervi s or ?

2 A Thatrs my testimony/ sir.

3 Q So the fact that you have no contact wlth the cook?

4 A No, sir.

5 Q No contact with the deÌivery peopfe?

6 A No, sir,

7 Q No contact with the EEG technicians?

8 A No.

9 Q Never take patients down for fab tests or anything like

10 that at night ?

11 A No, not at night.

12 Q Do you have any contact with the pharmacy technicians?

13 A Yes. Between 3:00 and 4:00, T see them pass through to

14 the picks.

15 Q But you don't deal with them?

16 A No.

17 Q And is it your testimony that there is no unit clerk while

18 you are assigned to work?

L9 A One hour. I get in at 3:00. She leaves at 4:00, 4:30.

20 Q Do you ever take patients to the cafeteria?

2L A No- It-'s an open unit, so they go by themselves.

22 Q Do patients ever have to be escorted somewhere by mental

23 health workers ?

24 A No. They pretty much go by themseÌves.

25 Q Are the people -- excuse me, w.Íthdrawn. Do the patients
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1 on 4-South. are they allowed to walk the grounds of the

2 f aü-LiLy?

3 A Yes.

4 Q And whel:e are they aÌ.Lowed to walk?

5 A In the courtyards. I've seen them in the Center BuiÌding.

6 And that's pretty much it.

7 Q Can they go outside on the whole 200 acres of the grounds?

8 A No- We advise them not to, you know, stay pr:etty much in

9 close proximity.

10 Q When they go outs.ide, does somebody go with them?

11 A No.

f2 Q Are they tota.I.Ly unsupervised when they are walking

13 around?

L4 A Yes-

15 Q Do you have any contact with the phlebotomist?

L6 A No.

!7 Q Do you have any contact with the building service

18 attendants ?

19 A No.

20 Q Do you have any contact with the chauffeur?

2L A No.

22 Q Do you have any contact with the cook?

23 A No.

24 Q Do you have any contact with the coordinator, Ìaundry

25 serwices ?
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1 A No.

2 Q Do you have any contact with the drapery makeï?

3 A No.

4 Q Any contact with the laundry driver?

5 A No.

6 Q Do you have any contact with the per diem mentaf health
7 workers ?

I A Yes.

9 Q Do you have any contact with the sen.ior grounds peïson?

10 A No-

11 MR. DORN: Obj ection.
L2 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sustained.

13 MR- FRANK: Thatrs a position the Union seeks-

L4 MR. DORN: No.

15 HEARTNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: No. That,s a position that's
a6 in the Local 30.

L7 MR. FR.ANK: f beÌieve the Union said thls was a position
18 they were seeking/ senior grounds person.

L9 MR. DORN: No-

20 MR. FRANK: Well, the transcript says otherwise.

2L HEARING OFFICER GOTTÍ,IEB: That was their origÍnaÌ

PUrr L-LUrr.

23 MR. DORN: That was original position. When it turned out

24 that the grounds people and the senior grounds people had been

25 represented by LocaÌ 30. we indicated we were not seeking them.
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1 BY MR. FRANK:

2 Q Do you have any contact with the storeroom cferk?

3 A No.

4 Q Do you have any contact with the upholsterer?

5 A No.

6 Q Do you hawe any contact with Jose Delarosa?

7 A YeS.

I Q Does he do scheduling?

9 A Yes.

10 Q ls he a staff assistant?

11 A I don't know what he is. He works in the nursing office-
12 Q Is he a cLerical employee?

13 A Yes.

14 Q And what is your interaction with Mr. DeLalrosa regarding

15 s taffing?

16 A He'ÌÌ calf the unit and ask if I need some overtime/ if I
17 can assist him.

18 Q WhaL. efse?

L9 A Pretty much, that's it, sir.
20 Q And how often does he calL regarding assistance?

2L A I'd say once a week.

22 Q Do you have any contact with Sue Murphy?

23 A I know Sue.

24 Q Okay. What does she do?

25 A She is in that office, too, with Mr. Delarosa-
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1 Q You have contact with her regarding scheduÌing?

2 A No. I think maybe for BCLS.

3 Q What .is your contact with Ms. Murphy regarding BCLS?

4 A Tel]s me what date I'm supposed to go down and pump the

5 duÍùny, you know, the shush-shush-shush-shush-shush.

6 Q Would you explain what you mean of the gesture you showed

7 about pumping the dummy for the record?

I A ft's for the BCT,S. You use the manik.in to perform CPR.

9 Q So explain for the record what BLS trainlng is.

10 Q Tt's a training that if somebody is having a heart attack,

11 you are abÌe to assist them. And you are given a certiflcation
L2 which lasts for approximateÌy two yeal:s.

13 Q Are aII of the nonprofessional employees of the hospital
a4 trained in BLS ?

15 A I don't know. But I am trained, sir.
16 Q And when you ar:e tralned, are you trained with other

L7 emp.loyees at the same time?

18 A Yes.

19 Q How many people were in your last training qroup?

20 A lrd say about 10.

2L Q What were their jobs?

22 A Mental hea.Ith workers, psych techs.

23 Q Anyone else?

24 A No.

25 Q Do you do all of the same functions as the mental heaÌth
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1 workers ?

2 A Yes, f do.

3 Q And ls your positlon one of a more senior person as a

4 mentaÌ heaLth worker?

5 A Yes, I am.

6 Q What is your job grade?

7 A Say the last word again?

I Q What ls your job grade as a psych tech?

9 A Grate ?

10 Q Grade.

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: crade.

1-2 THE WTTNESS: Oh, grade. l,et me see, I am -- you've got
13 to be a fittLe more, f don't know, I don't understand.

1.4 BY MR. FRANK;

15 Q Do you know what your job grade is?
16 A My grade? Tt,s not done in grade. you are either a

l7 mental health worker or a psych tech.

18 Q Do you ever work on the night shift, 11p to 7a?

L9 A Once in a b,lue moon.

20 Q When you work on the night shift, do you have any contact
2L with the EC clerk?

22 A No.

23 Q If there is an ad¡nission when you are working on the night
24 shlft. who would bring the admission to your unit?
25 A I've never had the opportunity of having an admission on
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1 the night shift. When I do work it, it's so infrequent-
2 Q What is a code red?

3 A Fire-

4 Q Do you have fire drilfs in the evenìng?

5 A Yes.

6 Q Who do you communlcate with when there is a code red fire
7 drilf?

I A Senior staff nuïse.

9 O And what other emptoyees do you work with during fire
10 drifls ?

11 A Menta.L health worker/ RN. and security.
1-2 O Vlould it be accurate to say that on the evening shift
13 there are a smal L number of employees worklng?

1-4 A Less than the days, yes.

15 Q And are all of the units similarly staffed with, as you

A6 have described, two mental health workers, one RN?

17 A I don't know.

18 Q Do you ever rotate to other units?
19 A Yes, I do.

20 Q üihen you are on other units, are they staffed with two

2L mental health workers and one RN?

22 A Sometimes there,s three because it,s based on the
23 popuÌatlon of the unit, the patient population.
24 Q But it is two or three mental heafth workers and an RN?

25 A Here agaln I've got to exptaln that there are statuses on
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1 these other units and when there are statuses, more people are

2 there to assist -

3 Q And is it generally true that there are no unit cÌerks on

4 the evening or night shifts?
5 A That's true.
6 Q Now do you have to make entries Ín charts?

7 A On the computer.

I Q What computer system do you use?

9 A Eclipsys.

10 Q What kind of information do you enter into the Eclipsys
11 system during your working shifts?
12 A I enter group notes. üie do a fot of groups for alcohol
13 and drug rehabifitations. I put group notes in, sir.
t4 Q And describe what kìnd of information you input into the
15 compurer sysLen from group noles.

L6 A Attendance, participation, pt:etty much that's it.
1-7 Q And do you enter this lnformation by typing on the

18 keyboard ?

L9 A Yes.

20 Q Vihere does this information go?

2L A I wouldnrt know, sir.
22 Q Does it become part of the patient record?

23 A Yes. it does.

24 Q And do you hawe an obÌigatlon to accurately enter this
25 lnformation into the patíent record?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q And is this information discussed at the staff meetings at

3 the end of the shift?

4 A Yes-

5 Q And is this information used by the professional employees

6 for diagnosis and treatment of patients?

TAlassumeso-

I Q Do you enter information into any other computer system of

9 the hospital ?

10 A No.

11 Q Do pat.ients on your unit ever get vlsitors?

L2 A Yes, they do.

13 Q Does the telephone operator call you in regârd to
L4 visitors ?

15 A No. It's an open unit so they come directly, ring the

16 belÌ.

a7 Q Do you know greets the visitors at the door? Do they get

18 a pass?

19 A Yes, they get a pass.

20 Q Who gives the visitol:s a pass?

2a A I generally do.

22 Q And where do you keep the passes?

23 A In the desk drawer on the unit, ltself, inside our nursing

24 station.

25 Q So on the ewening shift, you are the person who greets the
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1 visitor and gives them their pass?

2 A Right.

3 Q Is this the same thing that the registrar or telephone

4 operator does during the day?

5 A T don't know.

6 Q But on the evening shift, you are the person who --
7 A Yes.

I Q -- g.ives the passes out?

9 A Yes.

10 MR. FRANK: Can I have a minute, please?

11 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Sute. Off the record, please.

12 (Whereupon, a brief tecess was taken.)

13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: On Èhe record.

1.4 BY MR. FRANK;

15 Q In doì.ng your dllties, are you ever assigned to lead groups

L6 of patients ?

L7 A Yes.

18 Q In discussions.

1-9 A Yes.

20 Q Would you describe what you do when you lead patients

2I groups and meetings?

22 A Can I expfain something? My group meeting is life story.

23 So I'm actually leading them. but it's the patlent !,rho is

24 telling his or her fife story to me and to their peers.

25 Q What is the purpose of these group meetings, telling of
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1 life stot:ies ?

2 A It gives them an opportunity to reflect on what brought

3 them into the hospital.

4 Q Is lt part of the care program?

5 A Yes.

6 Q How would you describe the care program for the people on

7 your unit ?

I A As usual, lve put the patients first. And we are AA,

9 AlcohoLics Anonymous, oriented; also, Narcotlcs Anonymous.

10 Q What klnd of support does the patient need to progress on

11 the unit?

a2 A They need TLC, understanding thelr disease concept.

13 Q Is this TLC something that is only pr:ovided by mental

t4 health worker ol: psychiatric techniclans?

15 A No. The team concept. It's a team concept-

16 Q ülhat is the team concept?

1-7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Does TLC mean tender loving
18 care ?

1-9 THE WITNESS: Tender loving care, yes.

20 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Just in case someone

2a didn't know -

22 THE WITNESS: Right.

23 BY MR. FRANK;

24 Q So it's not just mental health workers who do TLC?

25 A No.
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1 Q What does the team consist of in terms of who is important

2 in providing this TLC to the patients?

3 A You've got CACS during the daytime. You've got the nurse,

4 the RN, mental health workers and psych tech-

5 Q Isn't it a fact that everybody at the faci.Iity is

6 respons.ible for providing an appropriate atmosphere and

7 understanding to the alcohoÌ abuse and drug abuse patients?

I A Everybody?

9 Q Yes, sir.

10 A Menta.L hea.lth workers, a nurse ln the ewenings, the

11 concierge, the, as I said, the psych tech. Who eÌse is
L2 involved? That's our team. Thatrs our team there, sir.
13 Q Is anybody exempted from the obligation to take patients

L4 first and that is their priority?

15 A No, I don't think so.

a6 Q That appÌies to everybody, doesn't it?
'l-7 A I would say that.

18 Q And ls the patient first concept for providing care

19 something that's discussed on a regular basis among the mental

20 hea.lth workers and the other empfoyees?

2L A Mental heaÌth workers, yes.

22 Q And wou.Ld .it be accurate to say that's a very important

23 part of the treatment of the patìents?

24 A Yes. Yes.

25 MR. FRANK: I have no further questions.
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1 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLTEB: Okay. you can step down.

2 Thank you very much-

3 THE VüITNESS: All right.
4 MR. DORN: No other witness.

5 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Okay. Off the record.
6 (Discussion off the record-)

7 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Back on the record.
I During off the record dlscussions, the Union indicated
9 that it does not want the region to seek enforcement of the

10 subpoena in ol:der to get the documents refÌecting wage ranges.
11 Is that correct. Mr. Dorn?

L2 MR. DORN: That's correct.
13 HEARING OFFICER GOTTI,IEB: In light of that, we are going
L4 to cfose the recor:d today. The regionaÌ director is considering
15 the speciaÌ appeal . ln the event that this special appeal is
1-6 granted, obvious.ly, the record wouÌd be reopened. Okay?

L7 MR. DORN: What about briefs? Vühen are briefs going to be

18 due ?

L9 HE-ARfNG OFFICER GOTTLIEB: CorrecÈ. Off the recotd.
20 (Discussion off the record.)

2l HEARING OFFICER GOTTLfEB: On the record-
22 Okay. Briefs wilf be due in seven days, on ApriÌ 14th.
23 MR. FRANK: prior to the ruling?
24 HEARING OFFICER GOTTLIEB: Correct.
25 MR. FRANK: And who do we ask for an extensron?
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1 HEARING OFFTCER GOTTLIEB: Extenslons go to the regional
2 director- And in the event of a government shutdown, you can

3 efiÌe. Okay? So, alt right, the hearing is cÌosed- Thank you.

4 (Vlhereupon, at 1:31 p.rn., ttre hearing in the above-entiÈled
5 maÈter was closed. )

6
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